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Chairman's Message

Dear Shareholders!

The financial year 2024-25 marks an extraordinary
milestone—Cranex’s 50-year journey of resilience and innovation.
We celebrate a legacy built upon overcoming challenges and
continuously pushing our boundaries.

This year, the company has achieved exceptional growth, with profit
rising by 28.14%. Our focus remains firmly on sustaining this
momentum and enhancing shareholder value. Expanding our
manufacturing capacity and prioritizing high-capacity EOT cranes
have allowed us to realize greater profit margins. Notably, our order
book remains robust, with confirmed orders ensuring more than
twelve months of sales visibility.

Our products are trusted by respected clients operating under demanding conditions in India and abroad. The Indian
Railways, Defence, and Power sectors continue to be our primary areas of focus. We are proud to be closely associated with
flagship projects such as the Vande Bharat train sets, supplying cranes to leading establishments like ICF Chennai, RCF
Kapurthala, and MCF Rae Bareli.

Cranex is also innovating through the introduction of specialized equipment including Traversers—niche products made by
only a handful of companies in India—as well as Turn Tables and advanced material handling lines for maintenance
workshops nationwide. These developments position us strongly for future growth.

Equally, the Central Government’'s commitment to infrastructure—especially within Indian Railways and power
generation—provides us significant opportunities. We maintain key relationships with power equipment leaders such as
BHEL, L&T, and Voith Hydro, supplying cranes up to 170 tonnes for major thermal and hydel projects across the country.

Our progress is the result of our outstanding employees, whose dedication forms the backbone of Cranex’s culture and
success. Their wholehearted embrace of new technologies and systems has enabled better performance evaluation and
more efficient remote operations.

On behalf of the Board of Directors, | wish to extend my deepest gratitude to our valued shareholders for your ongoing trust
and encouragement. Your supportinspires us to strive for excellence and deliver meaningful value to all stakeholders.

Thank you for being part of our journey.
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Cranex ataGlance

Established in the year 1973, Cranex Limited, is one of the experienced EOT cranes manufacturers in India having rich experience

of 52 years. With our presence spread across the country, we strive to provide to customers and build a long term sustainable
business.

All Cranex products are designed as per the Customer's requirements, with complete customisation and smooth working in the
mostrugged working conditions. Cranex products are also designed to work for continuous duty with 24 hour working.

We are specialists in manufacturing Cranes for demanding applications such as Space, Atomic Energy, and Flame Proof
environments. Cranex has worked with Delhi Metro Rail Corporation, Indian Railways, Mumbai Metro Rail Corporation and
Mumbai Metropolitan Regional Development Authority in this segment.
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52 Years of Strength, Innovation, and Impact

Fifty Two years ago, our journey began with a simple but bold idea: to build machines that lift not only heavy loads but entire industries.
What started as a small team of visionaries and builders has grown into a trusted name in crane manufacturing, respected for our engineering
excellence, unwavering integrity and deep commitment to safety and innovation.

As we celebrate our 52" anniversary, we do so withimmense pride and gratitude.

Pride in what we have built, cranes that have helped shape skylines, support critical infrastructure and power the world's most demanding
industries.

And gratitude for the employees who brought their skills and heart to the job every day for the customers who trusted us with their heaviest
challenges and for the partners who walked with us through every milestone.

This golden anniversary is more than a marker of time. It is a testament to resilience. We have navigated economic cycles, technological
shifts, and industry disruptions. Through it all, we remained grounded in our core values: safety, precision and performance. Each crane
we have built stands as a symbol of that commitment.

To our employees past and present: thank you for being the backbone of this company. Your craftsmanship and dedication are what make
our machines world class.

To our customers and partners: thank you for your trust and collaboration. You challenge us to be better every day.
To our founders and pioneers: your legacy lives on—not just in what we have built, butin how we build.

Hereis to 52 years of lifting more than loads, we have lifted people, businesses & possibilities and the best is still to come.

Anniversary Celebration
2025

— -

—
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CRANEX

CRANEX LIMITED
CIN: L74899DL1973PLC006503
Registered Office: 9, DDA Market, Katwaria Sarai, New Delhi-110016
Corporate Office: 57/1, Industrial Area, Site-IV, Sahibabad (U.P.)-201010
E mail: investors@cranexltd.com, Website: http://www.cranexltd.com
BSE Script Code: 522001 ISIN: INE608B01010

NOTICE OF 50th e- ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

Notice is hereby given that the 50th e- Annual General Meeting of the Members of Cranex Limited will be held on Monday, the 29th day of
September, 2025 at 03:00 P.M. through Video Conferencing ('VC’)/Other Audio Visual Means (‘OAVM’) facility to transact the following
Businesses:

ORDINARY BUSINESS:

ITEMNO. 1-ADOPTION OF STANDALONE & CONSOLIDATED AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS.

To receive, consider and adopt the Standalone & Consolidated Audited Financial Statements of the Company for the financial year ended
31stMarch, 2025 together with the Reports of the Board of Directors and the Auditors thereon.

ITEM NO. 2- TO APPOINT A DIRECTOR IN PLACE OF MR. CHAITANYA AGRAWAL (DIN 05108809), WHO RETIRES BY ROTATION
AND BEING ELIGIBLE, OFFERS HIMSELF FOR RE-APPOINTMENT.

SPECIAL BUSINESS:

ITEM NO. 3 - REGULARISATION OF MR. AVINASH PRABHAT (DIN: 10997441), AS DIRECTOR AND INDEPENDENT DIRECTOR OF
THE COMPANY FORATERM OF FIVE CONSECUTIVE YEARS.

To consider and, if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s), the following resolution as a Special Resolution:

"RESOLVED THAT Mr. Avinash Prabhat (DIN: 10997441), who was appointed as an Additional Director of the company w.e.f. 20th May,
2025 by the Board of Directors, based on the recommendation of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee, and who hold office as
such upto this Annual General Meeting (AGM'), of the Company under sections 161(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act") and in
respect of whom the Company has received a notice in writing under section 160(1) of the Companies Act from a member proposing his
candidature for the office of Director, be and is hereby appointed as a Director of the Company.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT pursuant to section 149, 152 and applicable provisions, if any, of the act read with Schedule IV to the Act,
and the Companies (Appointment and Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014 and other applicable regulations of the SEBI (Listing
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, (including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment(s) thereof for the
time being in force), the appointment of Mr. Avinash Prabhat (DIN: 10997441), who has submitted a declaration that he meets the criteria of
independence as provided in section 149(6) of the act and regulation 16 (1)(b) of Listing Regulations and who is eligible for appointment as
an Non-Executive Independent Director of the company not liable to retire by rotation, for a first term of consecutive 5 (five) years
commencing from 20th May, 2025 upto 20th May, 2030 be and hereby is approved.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT pursuant to the provisions of sections 149, 197 and other applicable provisions of the Act and the Rules
made thereunder, Mr. Avinash Prabhat shall be entitled to receive the remuneration/ fees/ commission as permitted to be received in a
capacity Non-Executive, Independent Director under the Act and Listing Regulations, as recommended by the Nomination and
Remuneration Committee and approved by the Board of Directors, from time to time.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors (including any committee thereof) be and is hereby authorised to do all acts and to
take all such steps as may be necessary, proper or expedient to give effect to this resolution."

ITEMNO.4-APPROVAL FORINCREASING THE BORROWING LIMIT UNDER SECTION 180(1) (C) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013

To consider and, if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s), the following resolution as a Special Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT in partial modification of earlier resolution passed by the Company in the 45th Annual General Meeting held on 30th,
September, 2020 and pursuant to Section 180(1)(c) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Management and
Administration) Rules, 2014 (including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment thereof, for the time being in force) & other applicable
laws and provisions of Articles of Association of the Company, consent of the Shareholders be and is hereby accorded to the Board of
Directors of the Company (the “Board”) to borrow such moneys or sum of moneys, from time to time, at its discretion, with or without security
and upon such terms and conditions as the Board may think — fit, for the purpose of business of the Company, notwithstanding that the
money to be borrowed together with the money already borrowed by the Company (apart from the temporary loans obtained from the
Company’s bankers in the ordinary course of business), will exceed aggregate of the paid up share capital of the Company and its free
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ITEM NO.5: TO CREATE MORTGAGE AND/OR CHARGE ON ALL ORANY OF THE MOVABLE AND/OR IMMOVABLE PROPERTIES
OF THE COMPANY.

To consider and, if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s), the following resolution as a Special Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT in partial modification of earlier resolution passed by the Company in the 45th Annual General Meeting held on 30th,
September, 2020 and pursuant to Section 180(1)(a) and other applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the
Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014 (including any statutory modi—fication(s) or re-enactment thereof, for the time
being in force) and any other applicable laws and provisions of Articles of Association of the Company, consent of the Shareholders be and
is hereby accorded to the Board of Directors of the Company (the “Board”) to create charge, hypothecation, mortgage on any movable
and/or immovable properties of the Company wheresoever situated, both present and future and on the whole or substantially the whole of
the undertaking or the undertakings of the Company in favour of any banks, - financial institutions, hire purchase/lease companies, body
corporate or any other persons on such terms and conditions as the Board may think - fit, for the benefi-t of the Company and as agreed
between Board and lender(s) towards security for borrowing of funds from time to time, not exceeding Rs. 50 Crore (Rupees Fifty Crore
only) for the purpose of business of the Company or otherwise, as per the requirements of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the
Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014 and any other statutory and procedural formalities to be complied with in this
regard.”

“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors of the Company (including any Committee duly constituted by the Board of Directors

or any authority as approved by the Board of Directors) be and is hereby authorized to do and execute all such acts, deeds and things as
may be necessary for giving effect to the above resolution.”

By Order of the Board of Directors

For Cranex Limited

Sd/-

Heena Sharma

Place: New Delhi Company Secretary
Date: 1st September, 2025 ACS: 65512

NOTES FOR MEMBERS’ ATTENTION:

1. The deemed venue for 50th e-AGM shall be the Registered Office of the Company. Members may note that the Notice and Annual
Report 2024-25 along with other documents will also be available on the Company’s website www.cranexltd.com, website of the Stock
Exchange, i.e., www.bseindia.com.

2. Pursuant to the provisions of the Act, a member entitled to attend and vote at the e-AGM is entitled to appoint a proxy to
attend and vote on his/her behalf and the proxy need not be a member of the Company. Since this e-AGM is being held
pursuant to the MCA Circulars through VC/OAVM facility, physical attendance of members has been dispensed with.
Accordingly, the facility for appointment of proxies by the members will not be available for the e-AGM and hence the Proxy
Form and Attendance Slip are not annexed to this Notice.

3. Attendance of the Members participating in the 50th e-AGM through VC/OAVM facility shall be counted for the purpose of reckoning
the quorum under Section 103 of the Act.

4. Explanatory Statement pursuant to Section 102 of the Companies Act, 2013 ('the Act') in respect of the business underitem no. 3,4 &5
set out above and the relevant details of the directors seeking appointment/ re-appointment under the accompanying notice, as
required under SEBI (Listing Obligations & Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 is annexed herewith.

5. The Board has appointed Mr. Parveen Kumar Rastogi, Practicing Company Secretary (COP No. 26582), as the Scrutinizer to
scrutinize the e-voting in a fair and transparent manner. The Scrutinizer will submit his report to the Company Secretary of the Company
(‘the Company Secretary’) or to any other person authorized by the Company after the completion of the scrutiny of the e-voting (votes
cast during the AGM and votes cast through remote e-voting), not later than 2 days from the conclusion of the AGM. The result declared
along with the Scrutinizer’s report shall be communicated to the stock exchange, NSDL and RTA and will also be displayed on the
Company’s website, www.cranexltd.com.

6. Institutional/Corporate Shareholders (i.e. other than individuals/HUF, NRI, etc.) are required to send a scanned copy (PDF/JPG
format) of its Board or governing body Resolution/Authorization etc., authorizing its representative to attend the e-AGM on its behalf
and to vote through remote e-voting. The said Resolution/Authorization shall be sent to the Scrutinizer by e-mail through its registered
e-mail address to rastogifcs3@gmail.com

7. The Company has engaged the services of NSDL, as authorised agency for conducting the AGM through VC/ OAVM and for providing
e-voting facility. Investors, who are members of the Company, are encouraged to attend and vote at the 50th e-AGM of the Company.

8. To support “green initiative” and in terms of section 101 and 136 of the Act, read together with the Rules made there under, the listed
companies may send the notice of annual general meeting and the annual report, including Financial Statements, Board Report etc. by
electronic mode. Pursuant to the said provisions of the Act read with MCA Circulars, Notice of the AGM along with the Annual Report
2024-25 is being sent only through electronic mode to those members whose e-mail addresses are registered with the
Company/Depositories. Members may note that the Notice and Annual Report 2024-25 will also be available on the Company’s
website at www.cranexltd.com, website of the Stock Exchange i.e. BSE Ltd. at www.bseindia.com, RTA at
http://www.beetalfinancial.com/.

9. To receive shareholders’ communications through electronic means, including Annual Reports and Notices, members are requested

9
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10.

11.

12.

13.

14.

15.

16.

17.

18.

to kindly register/update their e-mail address with their respective depository participant, where shares are held in electronic form.
Where shares are held in physical form, members are advised to register their e-mail address with Beetal Financial Computer Services
Private Limited.

Register of Members and Share Transfer Books will remain closed from Tuesday, 23rd September, 2025 to Monday, 29th September,
2025 (both inclusive) for the purpose of annual closing and AGM.

Shareholders, who would like to express their views/have questions may send their questions in advance mentioning their name
demat account number/folio number, email id, mobile number at investors@cranexltd.com. The same will be replied by the company
suitably. For redressal of shareholder’s complaints\grievances in case you have any unresolved grievances, please write to us at
investors@cranexltd.com.

Members having any question on Financial Statements or on any Agenda item proposed in the notice of AGM are requested to send
their queries at least three days prior to the date of AGM of the company at investors@cranexltd.com to enable the company to collect
the relevantinformations.

Shareholders who would like to express their views/ask questions during the meeting may register themselves as a speaker by
sending their request in advance at least 3 days prior to meeting (i.e. before September 26, 2025) mentioning their name, Demat
account number/folio number, email id, mobile number atinvestors@cranexltd.com. The shareholders who do not wish to speak during
the AGM but have queries may send their queries in advance 3 days prior to meeting (i.e. before September 26, 2025) mentioning their
name, Demat account number/folio number, email id, mobile number at investors@cranexltd.com. These queries will be replied to by
the company suitably by email. Those shareholders who have registered themselves as a speaker will only be allowed to express their
views/ask questions during the meeting.

CUT OFF DATE :

a) Aperson whose name is recorded in the register of members or in the register of beneficial owners maintained by the depositories
as on Monday, September 22nd, 2025 (the "Cut-off Date") only shall be entitled to vote through Remote E-voting and at the AGM. The
voting rights of Members shall be in proportion to their share of the paid-up equity share capital of the Company as on the Cut Off date.

UPDATION OF MEMBERS’ DETAILS:

a) Pursuant to SEBI circular No. Circular No. SEBI/HO/MIRSD/MIRSD-PoD-1/P/CIR/2023/37 dated 16th March 2023, the SEBI has
mandated that all shareholders holding shares in physical form must submit PAN (please ensure your PAN is linked with Aadhaar),
Nomination Details, Updated Contact Information, Bank Account Details and Specimen Signature to avoid any freezing of folios. We
request you to kindly furnish above mentioned details along with a duly filled in Form to our RTA - M/s Beetal Financial & Computer
Services Pvt Ltd, Beetal House, 3rd Floor, 99, Madangir, behind LSC, New Delhi-110062(Email: beetalrta@beetalfinancial.com) or at
Company’s office at 57/1 Industrial Area, Site IV, Sahibabad, Ghaziabad —201010, Uttar Pradesh (email: investors@cranexltd.com).

b) SEBI has mandated the submission of Permanent Account Number (PAN) by every person dealing in securities market. Members
holding shares in electronic form are, therefore, requested to submit the PAN to their depository participants with whom they are
maintaining their demat accounts. Members holding shares in physical form can submit their PAN details to the Company or Beetal,
RTA.

c) Members who still hold share certificates in physical form are advised to dematerialise their shareholding to also avail of numerous
benefits of dematerialisation, which include easy liquidity, ease of trading and transfer, savings in stamp duty and elimination of any
possibility of loss of documents and bad deliveries.

d) Members are requested to quote their Folio No./Client ID/DP ID in all correspondences with the Company. They are also requested
to furnish their bank account details, change of address and all other required details to the Registrar & Share Transfer Agentin respect
of shares if held in physical form. In case of shares held in electronic form, these details should be furnished to the respective
Depository Participants (DPs).

e) Members who hold shares in physical form in multiple folios in identical names or joint holding in the same order of names are
requested to send the share certificates to Registrar and Share Transfer Agents, for consolidation into single folio.

f) As perthe provisions of Section 72 of the Act, the facility for making nomination is available for the Members in respect of the shares
held by them. Members who have not yet registered their nomination are requested to register the same by submitting Form No. SH-13.
If a member desires to opt out or cancel the earlier nomination and record a fresh nomination, he/she may submit the same in Form ISR-
3 or SH-14 as the case may be. The said forms can be downloaded from the Company’s website at http://www.cranexltd.com. Members
are requested to submit the said details to their DP in case the shares are held by them in dematerialized form and to RTA of the
company in case the shares are held in physical form.

In case of joint holders, the member whose name appears as the first holder in the order of names as per the Register of Members of the
Company will be entitled to vote at the e-AGM.

The facility for voting during the AGM will also be made available. Members presentin the AGM through VC and who have not cast their
vote on the resolutions through remote e-voting and are otherwise not barred from doing so, shall be eligible to vote through the e-voting
system during the AGM.

Pursuant to the prohibition imposed vide Secretarial Standard on General Meetings (SS-2) issued by the ICSI and the MCA circular, no
gifts/coupons shall be distributed to the members.
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19. Since the AGM will be held through VC in accordance with the Circulars, the route map, proxy form and attendance slip are not attached
to this Notice.

EXPLANATORY STATEMENT
(PURSUANT TO SECTION 102 OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013)

As required by Section 102 of the Companies Act, 2013 (the “Act”) and the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (the “SEBI LODR Regulations”) the following Explanatory Statement sets out all material acts
relating to the business mentioned under ltem No. 03 to 05 of the accompanying Notice dated September 01, 2025:

ITEMNO. 3

Mr. Avinash Prabhat (DIN: 10997441), on the recommendation of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee was appointed as an
Additional Director in the capacity of a Non-Executive Independent Director with effect from 20th May, 2025 by the Board of Directors in
accordance with Articles of Association and sections 149, 161 and Schedule IV of the Companies Act 2013 ("the Act") and Regulation
16(1)(b) and other applicable provisions of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

As per section 161 of the Act, Mr. Avinash Prabhat holds office upto the date of the 50th AGM of the Company. The company has received
requisite notice in writing under section 160 of the Act from a member proposing the candidature of Mr. Avinash Prabhat to be appointed as
an Independent Non-Executive Director at the 50th AGM for a term of five years starting from 20th May, 2025, not liable to retire by rotation.

Mr. Avinash Prabhat has consented to the proposed appointment and declared qualified. Mr. Avinash Prabhat possesses requisite
knowledge, experience and skill for the position of Independent Director as per required criteria under the Act and rules & regulations made
thereunder. Mr. Avinash Prabhat, will not be entitled for any remuneration as per the Company policy for non-executive directors except
sitting fees for attending Board meetings.

Except Mr. Avinash Prabhat, Independent Director, no other director, Key Managerial Personnel of the Company and their relatives thereof
are interested or concerned financial or otherwise in the proposed resolution.

The Board of Directors of the Company recommends the passing of the resolution in Item No. 03 of the notice as Special Resolution.
ITEM NO. 485

In accordance with the provisions of Section 180(1)(a) and 180(1)(c) of the Companies Act, 2013, the following powers can be exercised by
the Board of Directors with the consent of the company by a Special Resolution:

»  To pledge, mortgage, hypothecate and/or charge all or any part of the moveable or immovable properties of the Company and the
whole or part of the undertaking of the Company;

»  To borrow money, where the money to be borrowed, together with the money already borrowed by the Company will exceed the
aggregate of the Company’s paid-up share capital and free reserves and securities premium, apart from temporary loans obtained from the
company’s bankers in the ordinary course of business, except.

The Board is of the view that the in order to further expand the business activities of the Company and for meeting the expenses for capital
expenditure, the Company may be further required to borrow money, either secured or unsecured, from the banks/ financial
institutions/other body corporate, from time to time, and to pledge, mortgage, hypothecate and/or charge any or all of the movable and
immovable properties of the Company and/or whole or part of the undertaking of the Company.

The Board of Directors of the Company proposes to increase the limits to borrow money upto Rs. 50 Crores (Rupees Fifty Crores Only) and
to secure such borrowings by pledging, mortgaging, hypothecating the movable orimmovable properties of the Company amounting up to
Rs. 50 Crores (Rupees Fifty Crores Only). It is, therefore, required to obtain approval of members by Special Resolution under Sections
180(1)(a) and 180(1)(c) of the Companies Act, 2013, to enable the Board of Directors to borrow money in excess of the aggregate of the paid
up share capital and free reserves of the Company and to create charge on the assets over the Company under the Companies Act, 2013.

None of the Directors and Key Managerial Personnel of the Company and their relatives is concerned or interested, financial or otherwise, in
the said resolutions.

The Board recommends the Special Resolution set out at ltem No. 4 & 5 of the Notice for approval by the Members.

By Order of the Board of Directors
For Cranex Limited
Sd/-
Heena Sharma
Place: New Delhi Company Secretary
Date: 1st September, 2025 ACS: 65512

1
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Details of the directors seeking appointment/re-appointment, pursuant to regulation 36 (3) of standard-2: meeting, in relation to the
appointment or re-appointment of directors is as under SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosures Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and

secretarial standards.

Item No. -2
Name of Director and Designation and DIN No. Mr. Chaitanya Agrawal, Whole Time Director & CFO and DIN: 05108809
D.0.BandAge 11-04-1983, 42 years
Date of Appointment on the Board of the Company 01-10-2011
Qualification M.B.A.
Experience 15+ years
Expertise and functional area Finance
No. of directorship held in other company 3

List of Directorship of other Board

Directorship:

*  Ritu Investments Private Limited

+  Skylark Associates Pvt Ltd

* IFE Cranex Elevators and Escalators India Pvt. Ltd.

Chairman/Member of the Committee(s) of the Board of
Directors of the Company and other listed entities

NIL

Name of the listed entities from which the person has
resigned in the past three years

NIL

No. of Shares held in Cranex Limited

190000 (at present)

Relation with other Director and KMP

Mr. Piyush Agrawal - Father

No. of Board meeting attended during the year

14

Remuneration sought to be paid and last drawn

Last drawn: Upto Rs. 2,00,000 per month
Sought to be paid: Upto Rs. 2,00,000 per month

Terms and conditions of re-appointment

Except Remuneration, other Terms and conditions of appointment/re-
appointment will remain same as before. Further Remuneration details
are mentioned in the Explanatory Statement of the Notice of AGM

Item No. -3

Name of Director and Designation and DIN No.

Mr. Avinash Prabhat (Independent) and DIN: 10997441

D.0.BandAge

23-09-1995, 29 years

Date of Appointment on the Board of the Company 20-05-2025

Qualification Company Secretary & B.com
Experience 5+ years

Expertise and functional area Corporate Law

No. of directorship held in other company 0

List of Directorship of other Board Directorship: NA
Chairman/Member of the Committee(s) of the Board of NIL

Directors of the Company and other listed entities

Name of the listed entities from which the person has NIL

resigned in the past three years

No. of Shares held in Cranex Limited NIL

Relation with other Director and KMP No relation with other Director and KMP
No. of Board meeting attended during the year NIL

Terms and conditions of appointment

As per the Explanatory Statement

Remuneration sought to be paid and last drawn

Lastdrawn: Notapplicable
Soughttobe paid:  Mr. Avinash Prabhat would be entitled to sitting fees for attending the
Meetings of the Board of Directors and Committee(s) thereof.

In case of independent directors, the skills and capabilities required for
the role and the manner in which the proposed person meets such
requirements & the justification for choosing the appointee as
Independent Directors

Mr. Avinash Prabhat fulfils the conditions for independence specified in the Act, the Rules
made thereunder and the LODR Regulations and such other laws / regulations for the
time being in force, to the extent applicable to the Company and she is independent of the
Management and her Expertise and experience in the areas of corporate laws and
business finance justify her role as an Independent Director.
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E-VOTING PROCESS:

In Compliance with provisions of Section 108 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 20 of the Companies (Management and
Administration) Rules, 2014 as substituted by the Companies (Management and Administration) Amendment Rules, 2015 and
Regulation 45 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirement) Regulations, 2015, the Company is pleased to provide
Members a facility to exercise their right electronically through electronic voting service facility arranged by NDSL. The instructions for
e-voting are annexed to the notice.

A member may exercise his vote at the 50th Annual General Meeting by electronic means and the Company may pass any resolution
by electronic voting system in accordance with the provisions of the aforesaid Rule. The facility of casting the votes by the Members
using an electronic voting system from a place other than venue of AGM (“remote e-voting) will be provided by NSDL.

The remote e -voting period begins on 9:00 A.M. on Friday, 26th September, 2025 and ends on 5:00 P.M. on Sunday, 28th September,
2025. During this period shareholders' of the Company, holding shares either in physical form or in dematerialized form may cast their
vote electronically. The e-voting module shall be disabled by NDSL for voting thereafter. The voting rights of shareholders shall be in
proportion to their shares of the paid up equity shares.

APerson, whose name is recorded in the register of members or in the register of beneficial owners maintained by the depositories as
on cut-off date only shall be entitled to avail the facility of remote e-voting or voting of the meeting.

1. Pursuant to the General Circular No. 09/2024 dated September 19, 2024, issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) and
circular issued by SEBI vide circular no. SEBI/ HO/ CFD/ CFDPoD-2/ P/ CIR/ 2024/ 133 dated October 3, 2024 (“SEBI Circular”)
and other applicable circulars and notifications issued (including any statutory modifications or re-enactment thereof for the time
being in force and as amended from time to time, companies are allowed to hold EGM/AGM through Video Conferencing (VC) or
other audio visual means (OAVM), without the physical presence of members at a common venue. In compliance with the said
Circulars, EGM/AGM shall be conducted through VC / OAVM.

2. Pursuant to the Circular No. 14/2020 dated April 08, 2020, issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs, the facility to appoint proxy to
attend and cast vote for the members is not available for this EGM/AGM. However, the Body Corporates are entitled to appoint
authorised representatives to attend the EGM/AGM through VC/OAVM and participate thereat and cast their votes through e-
voting.

3. The Members can join the EGM/AGM in the VC/OAVM mode 15 minutes before and after the scheduled time of the
commencement of the Meeting by following the procedure mentioned in the Notice. The facility of participation at the EGM/AGM
through VC/OAVM will be made available for 1000 members on first come first served basis. This will not include large
Shareholders (Shareholders holding 2% or more shareholding),Promoters, Institutional Investors, Directors, Key Managerial
Personnel, the Chairpersons of the Audit Committee, Nomination and Remuneration Committee and Stakeholders Relationship
Committee, Auditors etc. who are allowed to attend the EGM/AGM without restriction on account of first come first served basis.

4. The attendance of the Members attending the EGM/AGM through VC/OAVM will be counted for the purpose of reckoning the
quorum under Section 103 of the Companies Act, 2013.

5. Pursuant to the provisions of Section 108 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 20 of the Companies (Management and
Administration) Rules, 2014 (as amended) the Secretarial Standard on General Meetings (SS-2) issued by the ICSI and
Regulation 44 of SEBI (Listing Obligations & Disclosure Requirements) Regulations 2015 (as amended), and the Circulars issued
by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs from time to time the Company is providing facility of remote e-Voting to its Members in respect of
the business to be transacted at the EGM/AGM. For this purpose, the Company has entered into an agreement with National
Securities Depository Limited (NSDL) for facilitating voting through electronic means, as the authorized agency. The facility of
casting votes by a member using remote e-Voting system as well as e-voting on the date of the EGM/AGM will be provided by
NSDL.

6. Inline with the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) Circular No. 17/2020 dated April13, 2020, the Notice calling the EGM/AGM has
been uploaded on the website of the Company at https://www.cranexltd.com. The Notice can also be accessed from the websites of
the Stock Exchanges i.e. BSE Limited at www.bseindia.com respectively and the EGM/AGM Notice is also available on the website
of NSDL (agency for providing the Remote e-Voting facility) i.e.www.evoting.nsdl.com.

7. EGM/AGM has been convened through VC/OAVM in compliance with applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 read with
MCA Circularissued from time to time.

THE INSTRUCTIONS FOR MEMBERS FOR REMOTE E-VOTING AND JOINING GENERAL MEETING ARE ASUNDER:-

The remote e-voting period begins on Friday, 26" September, 2025 at 9:00 A.M. and ends Sunday on 28" September, 2025 at 5:00
P.M. The remote e-voting module shall be disabled by NSDL for voting thereafter. The Members, whose names appear in the
Register of Members / Beneficial Owners as on the record date (cut-off date) i.e. 22" September, 2025 may cast their vote
electronically. The voting right of shareholders shall be in proportion to their share in the paid-up equity share capital of the
Company as on the cut-off date, being 22" September, 2025.

How do I vote electronically using NSDL e-Voting system?

The way to vote electronically on NSDL e-Voting system consists of “Two Steps” which are mentioned below:
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Step 1: Access to NSDL e-Voting system

A) Login method for e-Voting and joining virtual meeting for Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode

In terms of SEBI circular dated December 9, 2020 on e-Voting facility provided by Listed Companies, Individual shareholders holding
securities in demat mode are allowed to vote through their demat account maintained with Depositories and Depository Participants.
Shareholders are advised to update their mobile number and email Id in their demat accounts in order to access e-Voting facility.

Login method forIndividual shareholders holding securities in demat mode is given below:

Type of shareholders Login Method
Individual Shareholders holding securities in 1. For OTP based login you can click on https://eservices.nsdl.com/SecureWeb/evoting/evotinglogin.jsp. You will
demat mode with NSDL. have to enter your 8-digit DP ID,8-digit Client Id, PAN No., Verification code and generate OTP. Enter the OTP

received on registered email id/mobile number and click on login. After successful authentication, you will be
redirected to NSDL Depository site wherein you can see e-Voting page. Click on company name or e-Voting
service provideri.e. NSDL and you will be redirected to e-Voting website of NSDL for casting your vote during the
remote e-Voting period or joining virtual meeting & voting during the meeting.

2. Existing IDeAS user can visit the e-Services website of NSDL Viz. https://eservices.nsdl.com either on a Personal
Computer or on a mobile. On the e-Services home page click on the “Beneficial Owner” icon under “Login” which
is available under ‘IDeAS’ section , this will prompt you to enter your existing User ID and Password. After
successful authentication, you will be able to see e-Voting services under Value added services. Click on “Access
to e-Voting” under e-Voting services and you will be able to see e-Voting page. Click on company name or e-
Voting service provider i.e. NSDL and you will be re-directed to e-Voting website of NSDL for casting your vote
during the remote e-Voting period or joining virtual meeting & voting during the meeting.

3. Ifyouare notregistered for IDeAS e-Services, option to register is available at https://eservices.nsdl.com. Select
“Register Online for IDeAS Portal” or click at https://eservices.nsdl.com/SecureWeb/ IdeasDirectReg.jsp

4. Visit the e-Voting website of NSDL. Open web browser by typing the following URL:
https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/ either on a Personal Computer or on a mobile. Once the home page of e-Voting
system is launched, click on the icon “Login” which is available under ‘Shareholder/Member’ section. A new
screen will open. You will have to enter your User ID (i.e. your sixteen digit demat account number hold with
NSDL), Password/OTP and a Verification Code as shown on the screen. After successful authentication, you will
be redirected to NSDL Depository site wherein you can see e-Voting page. Click on company name or e-Voting
service provideri.e. NSDLand you will be redirected to e-Voting website of NSDL for casting your vote during the
remote e-Voting period or joining virtual meeting & voting during the meeting.

5. Shareholders/Members can also download NSDL Mobile App “NSDL Speede” facility by scanning the QR code
mentioned below for seamless voting experience.

NSDL Mobile App is available on

"App Store ' Google Play

Individual Shareholders holding securities in 1. Users who have opted for CDSL Easi / Easiest facility, can login through their existing user id and password.

demat mode with CDSL Option will be made available to reach e-Voting page without any further authentication. The users to login Easi
[Easiest are requested to visit CDSL website www.cdslindia.com and click on login icon & New System Myeasi
Tab and then user your existing my easi username & password.

2. After successful login the Easi / Easiest user will be able to see the e-Voting option for eligible companies where
the evoting is in progress as per the information provided by company. On clicking the evoting option, the user will
be able to see e-Voting page of the e-Voting service provider for casting your vote during the remote e-Voting
period or joining virtual meeting & voting during the meeting. Additionally, there is also links provided to access the
system of all e-Voting Service Providers, so that the user can visit the e-Voting service providers’ website directly.

3. If the user is not registered for Easi/Easiest, option to register is available at CDSL website
www.cdslindia.comand click on login & New System Myeasi Tab and then click on registration option.

4. Alternatively, the user can directly access e-Voting page by providing Demat Account Number and PAN No. from
a e-Voting link available on www.cdslindia.com home page. The system will authenticate the user by sending
OTP on registered Mobile & Email as recorded in the Demat Account. After successful authentication, user will be
able to see the e-Voting option where the evoting is in progress and also able to directly access the system of all e-

Voting Service Providers.
Individual Shareholders (holding securities in You can also login using the login credentials of your demat account through your Depository Participant registered
demat mode) login through their depository with NSDL/CDSL for e-Voting facility. upon logging in, you will be able to see e-Voting option. Click on e-Voting option,
participants you will be redirected to NSDL/CDSL Depository site after successful authentication, wherein you can see e-Voting

feature. Click on company name or e-Voting service provider i.e. NSDL and you will be redirected to e-Voting website
of NSDL for casting your vote during the remote e-Voting period or joining virtual meeting & voting during the meeting.
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Important note: Members who are unable to retrieve User ID/ Password are advised to use Forget User ID and Forget Password option
available at abovementioned website.

Helpdesk for Individual Shareholders holding securities in demat mode for any technical issues related to login through
Depositoryi.e. NSDL and CDSL

Login type Helpdesk details

Individual Shareholders holding securities in Members facing any technical issue in login can contact NSDL helpdesk by sending a request at
demat mode with NSDL evoting@nsdl.co.in or call at 022 - 4886 7000

Individual Shareholders holding securities in Members facing any technical issue in login can contact CDSL helpdesk by sending a request at
demat mode with CDSL helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com or contact at toll free no. 1800-21-09911

B) LoginMethod for e-Voting and joining virtual meeting for shareholders other than Individual shareholders holding securities
indemat mode and shareholders holding securities in physical mode.

How to Log-in to NSDL e-Voting website?

1. Visitthe e-Voting website of NSDL. Open web browser by typing the following URL: https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/ either on a Personal
Computer oronamobile.

2. Oncethe home page of e-Voting system is launched, click on the icon “Login” which is available under ‘Shareholder/Member’ section.
3. Anewscreen will open. You will have to enter your User ID, your Password/OTP and a Verification Code as shown on the screen.

Alternatively, if you are registered for NSDL eservices i.e. IDEAS, you can log-in at https://eservices.nsdl.com/ with your existing
IDEAS login. Once you log-in to NSDL eservices after using your log-in credentials, click on e-Voting and you can proceed to Step 2i.e.
Cast your vote electronically.

4. Your User ID details are given below :

Manner of holding shares i.e. Demat (NSDL or CDSL) or Physical Your User ID is:

a) For Members who hold shares in demat account with NSDL. 8 Character DP ID followed by 8 Digit Client ID
For example if your DP ID is IN300*** and Client ID is 12****** then your user ID is
N3O 2¥+es.

b) For Members who hold shares in demat account with CDSL. 16 Digit Beneficiary ID

For example if your Beneficiary ID is 12************** then your user ID is

Vididdidiiiiiidd

c) For Members holding shares in Physical Form. EVEN Number followed by Folio Number registered with the company

For example if folio number is 001*** and EVEN is 101456 then user ID is
101456001***

5. Password details for shareholders other than Individual shareholders are given below:
a) Ifyouarealready registered for e-Voting, then you can user your existing password to login and cast your vote.

b)  Ifyouare using NSDL e-Voting system for the first time, you will need to retrieve the ‘initial password’ which was communicated to you. Once you retrieve your
‘initial password’, you need to enter the ‘initial password’ and the system will force you to change your password.

c) Howtoretrieve your ‘initial password'?

(i) Ifyour email ID is registered in your demat account or with the company, your ‘initial password’ is communicated to you on your email ID. Trace the email
sent to you from NSDL from your mailbox. Open the email and open the attachment i.e. a .pdf file. Open the .pdf file. The password to open the .pdf file is
your 8 digit client ID for NSDL account, last 8 digits of client ID for CDSL account or folio number for shares held in physical form. The .pdf file contains your
‘User ID’ and your ‘initial password'.

(i) Ifyouremail IDis notregistered, please follow steps mentioned below in process for those shareholders whose email ids are not registered.

6. Ifyouareunable toretrieve orhave notreceived the  Initial password” or have forgotten your password:
a) Clickon “Forgot User Details/Password?”(If you are holding shares in your demat account with NSDL or CDSL) option available on www.evoting.nsdl.com.
b) Physical User Reset Password?” (If you are holding shares in physical mode) option available on www.evoting.nsdl.com.
c) Ifyou are still unable to get the password by aforesaid two options, you can send a request at evoting@nsdl.co.in mentioning your demat account number/folio
number, your PAN, your name and your registered address etc.
d) Members canalso use the OTP (One Time Password) based login for casting the votes on the e-Voting system of NSDL.

7. Afterentering your password, tick on Agree to “Terms and Conditions” by selecting on the check box.
8. Now, you will have to click on “Login” button.

9. Afteryou click on the “Login” button, Home page of e-Voting will open.
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Step 2: Cast your vote electronically and join General Meeting on NSDL e-Voting system.

How to cast your vote electronically and join General Meeting on NSDL e-Voting system?

1.

After successful login at Step 1, you will be able to see all the companies “EVEN” in which you are holding shares and whose voting cycle and General
Meetingisin active status.

Select “EVEN” of company for which you wish to cast your vote during the remote e-Voting period and casting your vote during the General Meeting. For
joining virtual meeting, you need to click on “VC/OAVM” link placed under “Join Meeting”.

Now you are ready for e-Voting as the Voting page opens.

Cast your vote by selecting appropriate options i.e. assent or dissent, verify/modify the number of shares for which you wish to cast your vote and click on
“Submit” and also “Confirm” when prompted.

Upon confirmation, the message “Vote cast successfully” will be displayed.
You can also take the printout of the votes cast by you by clicking on the print option on the confirmation page.

Once you confirm your vote on the resolution, you will not be allowed to modify your vote.

General Guidelines for shareholders

1.

Institutional shareholders (i.e. other than individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) are required to send scanned copy (PDF/JPG Format) of the relevant Board Resolution/
Authority letter etc. with attested specimen signature of the duly authorized signatory(ies) who are authorized to vote, to the Scrutinizer by e-mail to
rastogifcs3@gmail.com with a copy marked to evoting@nsdl.co.in. Institutional shareholders (i.e. other than individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) can also upload their
Board Resolution / Power of Attorney / Authority Letter etc. by clicking on "Upload Board Resolution / Authority Letter" displayed under "e-Voting" tab in their
login.

Itis strongly recommended not to share your password with any other person and take utmost care to keep your password confidential. Login to the e-voting
website will be disabled upon five unsuccessful attempts to key in the correct password. In such an event, you will need to go through the “Forgot User
Details/Password?” or “Physical User Reset Password?” option available on www.evoting.nsdl.com to reset the password.

In case of any queries, you may refer the Frequently Asked Questions (FAQs) for Shareholders and e-voting user manual for Shareholders available at the
download section of www.evoting.nsdl.com or call on.: 022 - 4886 7000 or send a request to Mr. Utkarsh Gupta at evoting@nsdl.co.in.

Process for those shareholders whose email ids are not registered with the depositories for procuring user id and password and registration of e mail ids for
e-voting for the resolutions set out in this notice:

1.

In case shares are held in physical mode please provide Folio No., Name of shareholder, scanned copy of the share certificate (front and back), PAN (self attested
scanned copy of PAN card), AADHAR (self attested scanned copy of Aadhar Card) by email to investors@cranexitd.com.

In case shares are held in demat mode, please provide DPID-CLID (16 digit DPID + CLID or 16 digit beneficiary ID), Name, client master or copy of Consolidated
Account statement, PAN (self attested scanned copy of PAN card), AADHAR (self attested scanned copy of Aadhar Card) to investors@cranexitd.com. If you are
Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode, you are requested to refer to the login method explained at step 1 (A) i.e.Login method for e-Voting and
joining virtual meeting for Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode.

Alternatively shareholder/members may send a request to evoting@nsdl.co.infor procuring user id and password for e-voting by providing above mentioned
documents.

In terms of SEBI circular dated December 9, 2020 on e-Voting facility provided by Listed Companies, Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode are
allowed to vote through their demat account maintained with Depositories and Depository Participants. Shareholders are required to update their mobile number
and email ID correctly in their demat account in order to access e-Voting facility.

THEINSTRUCTIONS FOR MEMBERS FOR e-VOTING ON THE DAY OF THE EGM/AGMARE AS UNDER:-

The procedure for e-Voting on the day of the EGM/AGM is same as the instructions mentioned above for remote e-voting.

Only those Members/ shareholders, who will be present in the EGM/AGM through VC/OAVM facility and have not casted their vote on the Resolutions through
remote e-Voting and are otherwise not barred from doing so, shall be eligible to vote through e-Voting system in the EGM/AGM.

Members who have voted through Remote e-Voting will be eligible to attend the EGM/AGM. However, they will not be eligible to vote at the EGM/AGM.

The details of the person who may be contacted for any grievances connected with the facility for e-Voting on the day of the EGM/AGM shall be the same person
mentioned for Remote e-voting.

INSTRUCTIONS FOR MEMBERS FORATTENDING THE EGM/AGM THROUGH VC/OAVMARE AS UNDER:

1.

Member will be provided with a facility to attend the EGM/AGM through VC/OAVM through the NSDL e-Voting system. Members may access by following the steps
mentioned above for Access to NSDL e-Voting system. After successful login, you can see link of “VC/OAVM” placed under “Join meeting” menu against
company name. You are requested to click on VC/OAVM link placed under Join Meeting menu. The link for VC/OAVM will be available in Shareholder/Member login
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where the EVEN of Company will be displayed. Please note that the members who do not have the User ID and Password for e-Voting or have forgotten the User ID
and Password may retrieve the same by following the remote e-Voting instructions mentioned in the notice to avoid last minute rush.
2. Members are encouraged to join the Meeting through Laptops for better experience.

3. Further Members will be required to allow Camera and use Internet with a good speed to avoid any disturbance during the meeting.

4.  Please note that Participants Connecting from Mobile Devices or Tablets or through Laptop connecting via Mobile Hotspot may experience Audio/Video loss due to
Fluctuation in their respective network. Itis therefore recommended to use Stable Wi-Fi or LAN Connection to mitigate any kind of aforesaid glitches.

5. Shareholders, who would like to express their views/have questions may send their questions in advance mentioning their name demat account number/folio
number, email id, mobile number atinvestors@cranexltd.com. The same will be replied by the company suitably.

6.  Shareholders who would like to express their views/ask questions during the meeting may register themselves as a speaker by sending their request in advance at
least 3 days prior to meeting (i.e. before September 26, 2025) mentioning their name, Demat account number/folio number, email id, mobile number at
investors@cranexltd.com. Those shareholders who have registered themselves as a speaker will only be allowed to express their views/ask questions during the
meeting.
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DIRECTOR'S REPORT

To,
THE MEMBERS,

The Directors have pleasure in presenting the 50" Annual Report on the business and operations of the Company together with the financial
results for the period ended 31* March, 2025.

FINANCIAL RESULTS

Financial results are presented in the table below:
(Amountin Lakhs)

Particulars Standalone Consolidated
31-03-2025 31-03-2024 31-03-2025 31-03-2024

Revenue from operation 5153.76 6211.41 5153.76 6211.41
Other Income 42.60 101.17 42.60 101.17
Total Revenue 5196.36 6312.58 5196.36 6312.58
Less: Total Expenses 4944 81 6095.74 4944 81 6095.74
Profit before Exceptional and Extra ordinary items & tax 251.54 216.83 251.55 216.83
Less: Exceptional ltems e e e e
Less: Extraordinary tems | e e e e
Profit or Loss before Tax 251.54 216.83 251.55 216.83
Less:
(@) Current tax expense for current year 60.00 50.95 60.00 50.95
(b) Deferred tax 2.84 0.51 2.84 0.51
(c) Prior Period Tax (5.93) 13.49 (5.93) 13.49
Share in Profit/Loss (of Associates) | e e e (2.04)
Profit or Loss After Tax 194.62 151.88 194.64 149.84

STATE OF AFFAIRS AND OUTLOOK

The Standalone and Consolidated Financial Statements of the Company for the financial year ended 31st March 2025 have been prepared in accordance with the Indian
Accounting Standard (Ind AS) as notified by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs and as amended from time to time.

Standalone Financials: During the year under review, your Company has achieved a turnover of Rs. 5196.36 Lakhs against Rs. 6312.58 Lakhs during previous year. The
Company reported a Net Profit of Rs. 194.62 Lakhs as against Rs. 151.88 Lakhs earned during previous year.

Consolidated Financials: During the year under review, your Company has achieved a consolidated turnover of Rs. 5196.36 Lakhs against Rs. 6312.58 Lakhs during
previous year. The Company reported a Net profit of Rs. 194.64 Lakhs against Rs. 149.84 Lakhs during previous year.

However you're Directors are confident that the Company will perform much better in future and will bring more promising improvement in coming years. The Operational
performance of the Company has been extensively covered in the Management Discussion and Analysis, which form part of this Directors’ Report.

DIVIDEND
Your Directors do not recommend any dividend for the financial year ended 31st March 2025.

TRANSFER TO RESERVE

Your Company has not transferred any amount to the Reserves for the financial year ended 31st March 2025.
ANNUAL RETURN

Pursuant to the provisions of section 92(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014, the annual return of the
Company for F.Y 2024-25, which will be filed with Registrar of Companies/MCA, is uploaded on the Company’s website and can be accessed at
https:/iwww.cranexltd.com/investor-relations/annual-return.

NUMBER OF MEETINGS OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

During the Financial Year 2024-25, the Company hold 14 (Fourteen) meetings of the Board of Directors as per Section 173 of Companies Act, 2013 which is summarized
below. The provisions of Companies Act, 2013 were adhered to while considering the time gap between two meetings.
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S.No Date of the meeting
1. 02-04-2024
2. 30-05-2024
3. 30-07-2024
4, 05-08-2024
5. 13-08-2024
6. 03-09-2024
7. 07-10-2024
8. 25-10-2024
9. 13-11-2024
10. 19-11-2024
1. 19-12-2024
12. 17-01-2025
13. 11-02-2025
14. 17-02-2025
ATTENDANCE OF DIRECTORS
S. Name of Director Meeting of Board
No Number of Number of Meeting to be Number of Meeting %
meeting Held entitled to attend attendant
1 | MR. PIYUSH AGRAWAL 14 14 100
2 | MR.ASHWANI KUMAR JINDAL 06 06 100
3 | MR. CHAITANYA AGRAWAL 14 14 14 100
4 | MS. SHILPY CHOPRA 14 " 78.57
5 | MS. SHALINI RAHUL 05 03 60
6 | MS. PRIYANKA PATHAK 08 08 100

COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Detailed information onthe Mandatory Committees is given below.

AUDIT COMMITTEE: (Section 177 of Companies Act, 2013) and Companies (Meetings of Board and its Powers) Rules, 2014 and other applicable provision.

Six (6) Audit Committee Meetings were held during the year and the gap between two meetings did not exceed 120 days. The necessary quorum was present for all the
meetings. The dates on which the said meetings were held are as follows:

30" May, 2024, 5" August, 2024, 13" August, 2024, 3" September, 2024, 13" November, 2024 and 11" February, 2025

The details of Audit Committee meetings attended by its members are given below:

S. Name of Director Designation Category Total meeting Number of Number of %
No. held during the | Meeting to be meeting
year entitled to attend attended
1 Mr. Ashwani Kumar Jindal Non-Executive Chairman 6 4 4 100
Independent Director | till 27" September, 2024
Mr. Chaitanya Agrawal Whole Time Director Member 100
Ms. Shilpy Chopra Non-Executive Member /Chairman 100
Independent Director | from 28" September, 2024
4, Ms. Priyanka Pathak Non-Executive Member 6 2 2 100
Independent Director
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NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE: (Section 178 of Companies Act, 2013 and Companies (Meetings of Board and its Powers) Rules, 2014 and

otherapplicable provision.

Three (3) Nomination & Remuneration Committee Meeting was held on 2nd April, 2024, 27th August, 2024 and 19th December, 2024 during the year.

The composition of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee and the details of meetings attended by its members are given below:

S. Name Nature of Designation Total meeting Number of Number of %
No. Directorship in Committee held Meeting to be Meeting
during the year | entitled to attend Attended
1 Mr. Ashwani Kumar Jindal Non-Executive Chairman 3 2 2 100
Independent Director | till 27" September, 2024
2. Ms. Shalini Rahul Non-Executive Member 3 2 2 100
Independent Director
3. Ms. Shilpy Chopra Non-Executive Member /Chairman 3 3 3 100
Independent Director | from 28" September, 2024
4. Ms. Priyanka Pathak Non-Executive Member 3 1 1 100
Independent Director

STAKEHOLDERS RELATIONSHIP COMMITTEE: Section 178 of Companies Act, 2013 and Companies (Meetings of Board and its Powers) Rules, 2014 and

other applicable provision.

One (1) meeting of the stakeholders' relationship committee was held on 5th August, 2024 during the financial year 2024-25.

The composition of the Stakeholders' Relationship Committee and the details of meetings attended by its members are given below:

S. Name Nature of Designation Total meeting Number of Number of %
No. Directorship in Committee held Meeting to be Meeting
during the year | entitled to attend Attended
1 Mr. Ashwani Kumar Jindal Non-Executive Chairman 1 1 1 100
Independent Director | till 27" September, 2024
Mr. Chaitanya Agrawal Whole Time Director Member 1 1 1 100
Ms. Shilpy Chopra Non-Executive Member /Chairman 1 1 1 100
Independent Director | from 28" September, 2024
4, Ms. Priyanka Pathak Non-Executive Member 1 0 0 0
Independent Director

SEPARATE MEETING OF THE INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS OF THE COMPANY

The Independent Directors of the Company met separately on 23rd December, 2024 without the presence of Non-Independent Directors and the members of
management. The meeting was attended by all the Independent Directors. The meeting was conducted informally to enable the Independent Directors to discuss matters
pertaining to the Company’s affairs and put forth their combined views to the Board of Directors of the Company. In accordance with the Listing Regulations, following
matters were, inter-alia, discussed in the meeting:

Performance of Non-Independent Directors and Board as a whole.
Performance of the Chairman of the Company after taking into consideration the views of Executive and Non-Executive Directors.

Assessment of the quality, quantity and timeliness of flow of information between the Company Management and the Board that is necessary for the Board to
effectively and reasonably perform their duties.

DIRECTORS'RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

Pursuant to Section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013, the Board of Directors, to the best of their knowledge and ability, confirm that:

inthe preparation of the annual accounts, the applicable accounting standards have been followed and there are no material departures;

they have selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true
and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company at the end of the financial year and of the profit of the Company for that period;

they have taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the
assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities;

they have prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis;

they have laid down internal financial controls to be followed by the Company and such internal financial controls are adequate and operating effectively;
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vi.  they have devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws and that such systems were adequate and operating effectively.
Based on the framework of internal financial controls and compliance systems established and maintained by the Company, work performed by the internal,
statutory and secretarial auditors and external consultants and the reviews performed by management and the relevant board committees, including the audit
committee, the board is of the opinion that the Company's internal financial controls were adequate and effective during the financial year 2024-25.

DETAILS OF FRAUD REPORTED BY AUDITORS

No fraud has been noticed or reported by the Auditors including secretarial auditor of the Company as per Section 134 (3) (ca) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with
Companies (Amendment) Act, 2015.

DECLARATION BY INDEPENDENT DIRECTOR

The Independent Directors have confirmed and declared that they are not disqualified to act as an Independent Director in compliance with the provisions of Section 149 of
the Companies Act, 2013 and the Board is also of the opinion that the Independent Directors fulfil all the conditions specified in the Companies Act, 2013 making them
eligible to actas Independent Directors.

CODES, STANDARDS, POLICIES AND COMPLIANCES
Detailed information on the codes, standards and policies is given below:
POLICY ONDIRECTORS' APPOINTMENT AND REMUNERATION AND OTHER DETAILS

The Company's policy on directors' appointment and remuneration and other matters provided in Section 178(3) of the Act has been disclosed in Company’s website at
https://lwww.cranexltd.com/investor-relations/policies.

CODE OF CONDUCT FOR THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND THE SENIOR MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL

Your Company has adopted a Code of Conduct for its Board of Directors and the Senior Management Personnel. The Code requires the Directors and employees of the
Company to act honestly, ethically and with integrity and in a professional and respectful manner. Directors and Senior Management of the Company have confirmed
compliance with the code of conduct applicable to the Directors and employees of the Company and declaration in this regard made by Managing Director which forms
part of this Annual Report as “Annexure I”.

CODE FOR PROHIBITION OF INSIDER TRADING PRACTICES

The Board of Directors adopted the Code of Conduct for Board Members and Senior Managerial Personnel. The said code was communicated to the Directors and
members of the senior management and they affirmed their compliance with the said code. The adopted Code is posted on the Company’s website at
https:/lwww.cranexltd.com/investor-relations/policies.

Pursuant to the requirements of the SEBI (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015, your Company has adopted Code of practices and procedures for disclosure
of unpublished price sensitive information and Code of Conductin order to monitor and report Insider Trading.

All Directors and the designated employees have confirmed compliance with the Code.

NOMINATION, REMUNERATION & EVALUATION POLICY

In accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act 2013 and Listing Regulations, the Company has put in place the Nomination and Remuneration Policy for the
Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and other employees of the Company including criteria for determining qualifications, positive attributes and independence of a
Director as well as a policy on Board Diversity. The Board has, on the recommendation of the Nomination & Remuneration Committee framed a Nomination Remuneration
& Evaluation Policy, which, inter-alia, lays down the criteria for identifying the persons who are qualified to be appointed as Directors and/or Senior Management
Personnel of the Company, along with the criteria for determination of remuneration of Directors, KMPs and other employees and their evaluation and includes other
matters, as prescribed under the provisions of Section 178 of Companies Act, 2013.

The salient features of the policy are as follows:

0  The Nomination and Remuneration Committee of Directors (the Committee) shall take into consideration the following criteria for recommending to the Board for
appointmentas a Director of the Company:
a) Qualifications & experience of proposed incumbent.

b) Attributes like - professional integrity, strategic capability with business, respect for Company’s core values, vision, etc.
c) Theincumbentshould not be disqualified for appointment as Director pursuant to the provisions of the Act or other applicable laws & regulations.
)

d) In case the proposed appointee is an Independent Director, he should fulfil the criteria for appointment as Independent Director as per the applicable laws &
regulations.

o  The Committee will recommend to the Board appropriate compensation to the Executive Directors subject to the provisions of the Act, Listing Regulations and other
applicable laws & regulations. The Committee shall periodically review compensation of such Directors in relation to other comparable companies and other factors,
the Committee deems appropriate. Proposed changes, if any, in the compensation of such Directors shall be reviewed by the Committee subject to approval of the
Board.

0  The evaluation of the performance of the Board, its committees and the individual directors will be carried out by the Board, on an annual basis, in the manner
specified by the Nomination and Remuneration Committee of Directors for such evaluation and in accordance with the other applicable provisions of the Companies
Act, 2013 and the Listing Regulations, in this regard.

DISCLOSURE ON WHISTLE-BLOWER POLICY /VIGIL MECHANISM
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Pursuant to the provisions of Section 177(9) & (10) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 7 of Companies (Meetings of Board and its Powers) Rules, 2014 and
Regulation 22 of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations , 2015], the Company has adopted a Whistle Blower Policy, which provides for a
vigil mechanism that encourages and supports its Directors, and employees to report instances of unethical behaviour, actual or suspected, fraud or violation of the
Company’s Code of Conduct or Ethics Policy. It also provides for adequate safeguards against victimization of persons who use this mechanism and direct access to the
Chairman of the Audit Committee in exceptional cases. The adopted Whistle-Blower Policy /Vigil Mechanism is posted on the Company’s website at
https://lwww.cranexltd.com/investor-relations/policies.

RISK MANAGEMENT POLICY

Your Company has formulated and adopted a Risk Management Policy. The Board of Directors is overall responsible for identifying, evaluating and managing all
significant risks faced by the Company. The Risk Management Policy approved by the Board acts as an overarching statement of intent and establishes the guiding
principles by which key risks are managed across the organization.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTION POLICY

Related Party Transaction Policy, as formulated by the Company, defines the materiality of related party transactions and lays down the procedures of dealing with
Related Party Transactions. The policy on materiality of and dealing with related party transactions is available on the Company’s website at
https:/lwww.cranexltd.com/investor-relations/corporate-governance/policies/related-party-transaction-policy.

INTERNAL FINANANCIAL CONTROL SYSTEM

According to Section 134(5) (e) of the Companies Act, 2013 the term Internal Financial Control (IFC) means the policies and procedures adopted by the company for
ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to company's policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds
and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information.

The Company has a well-placed, proper and adequate internal financial control system which ensures that all assets are safeguarded and protected and that the
transactions are authorised, recorded and reported correctly. The Company's internal financial control system also comprises due compliances with Company's policies
and Standard Operating Procedures (SOPs) and audit and compliance by in-house Internal Audit Division, supplemented by internal audit checks from M/s. Amit R
Aggarwal & Associates, Chartered Accountants, the Internal Auditors. The Internal Auditors independently evaluate the adequacy of internal controls and concurrently
audit the majority of the transactions in value terms. Independence of the audit and compliance is ensured by direct reporting of Internal Audit Division and Internal Auditors
to the Audit Committee of the Board.

PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES AND RELATED DISCLOSURES

Disclosures pertaining to remuneration and other details as required under Section 197(12) of the Act read with Rule 5 of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration
of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 form part of this Report and are annexed as “Annexure II”.

There are no employees who are drawing remuneration in excess of the limits as set out in provisions of Section 197(12) of the Act and the Companies (Appointment and
Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014.

EMPLOYEES BENEFITS

Retirement benefitin the form of provident fund is a defined contribution scheme. The contributions to the provident fund are charged to the statement to the profitand loss
for the year when the contributions are due. We have considered the provision for Gratuity in F.Y. 2024-25. The benefit shall be transferred to the employees as may be
applicable. The liability for gratuity payable has been determined in the year hence provision has been made in the accounts for expenses of gratuity.

MAINTENANCE OF COSTRECORDS

The Company is required to maintain Cost Records as specified by the Central Government as per section 148 applicable on the Company and the Company has
maintained proper records and account of the same as required under the act.

COSTAUDITOR
In terms of Section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013 and rules made there under, Cost Auditis not applicable to the Company.

INTERNAL AUDITORS

The Board of Directors of the Company has appointed M/s. Amit R Aggarwal & Associates as Internal Auditor of the Company, to audit the function and activities of the
Company and to review various operations of the Company. The Company continued to implement their suggestions and recommendations to improve the control
environment.

SECRETARIALAUDITORS AND THEIR REPORTS

In accordance with the provisions of Section 204 of the Act read with the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, M/s.
Parveen Rastogi & Co. (Membership No. 4764 and COP No. 26582), Secretarial Auditors of the Company has conducted Secretarial Audit for the financial year 2024-25 of
the Company. The Secretarial Audit Report submitted by themin the prescribed Form MR- 3is annexed hereto as “Annexure lll”.

Please find below the observations made in the secretarial audit report for F.Y. 2024-25 along with management reply:-
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S. No. Observations

Management Reply

prior intimation about the meeting of the board of directors.

1. During the Audit Period, BSE Limited (‘BSE”) have vide their letter dated September
13th, 2024 imposed a fine of Rs. 11,800/- (including GST) (Rupees Eleven Thousand
Eight Hundred Only) on the Company under Regulation 29(2)/29(3) of the SEBI (Listing
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 for Delay in furnishing |stakeholders.

The Company inadvertently delayed in furnishing prior intimation about
the meeting of the board of directors for the month of August 2024. There
was no intention to mislead the Stock Exchanges or our valuable

We reiterate that we will continue to abide by the requirements of Listing
Regulations in future.

STATUTORY AUDITORS AND THEIR REPORTS

M/s. V R Bansal & Associates, Chartered Accountants, Firm Registration No. (016534N) was appointed as Statutory Auditors of the Company in the Annual General
Meeting held on 30/09/2022 for a term of Five (5) Years upto 52" Annual General Meeting of the Company.

Please find below the qualifications, reservations or adverse remark made in their audit report for F.Y. 2024-25 and also the explanations by the board on every
qualification, reservation or adverse remarkin the qualified auditors report:-

On Standalone & consolidated Financial Results

Audit Qualification (each audit qualification separately):

For Audit Qualification(s) where the
impact is quantified by the auditor,
Management's Views:

For Audit Qualification(s) where the impact
is not quantified by the auditor

(i) Property, Plant and Equipment (PPE) register has not been
produced before us for verification. Depreciation of Property, Plant
and Equipment has been provided on the basis of figures as certified
by the management,

The Company has calculated the Depreciation
figures as per applicable rules. The detailed
register is under preparation.

(i) Balances under Trade Receivables and Trade Payables, loans and
advances given by the Company and parties from whom unsecured
loans have been taken are subject to confirmations and adjustments,
ifany.

Noted and confirmed

(iii) The Financial Assets and Liabilities — Trade Receivables and long
term borrowings taken from IFE Cranex Elevators and Escalators
India Private Limited have not been measured at fair value as
required by Ind AS-109 “Financial Instruments”. Impairment
provisions and fair value measurements have not been measured in
accordance with Expected Credit Loss (ECL) method as per Ind AS-
109.

The Company does not expect any change in the
long term borrowings taken from IFE Cranex

Elevators and Escalators India Private Limited.
Thereis no Expected Credit Loss (ECL).

(iv) Inventory register has not been produced before us for verification.
Inventory value has been provided on the basis of figures as certified

L bythe-management.

Noted and confirmed

On Consolidated Financial Results

Audit Qualification (each audit qualification separately):

For Audit Qualification(s) where the
impact is quantified by the auditor,
Management's Views:

For Audit Qualification(s) where the impact
is not quantified by the auditor

() The Parent Company has produced a Joint Venture agreement
which it has entered into with M/s Shree Construction on 23/09/2021,
whereby the parties have entered into a Joint Venture agreement
and a Joint Venture entity namely M/s Shree-Cranex (JV) has been
formed . However the parent company has not applied Equity
method of accounting in respect of the investment in the Joint
Venture and hence not complied with the provisions of Ind AS 28
(Investment in Associates and Joint Ventures) with respect to
accounting Joint Ventures in consolidated financial statements.

There will be a very insignificant impact on the
Company from the financial results from M/S Shree
Cranex (JV).

Further, financial closing and financial data of M/s
Shree Cranex (JV) are not finalized, as they are
required to do so only by 30 September 2025.
Hence, itwas not considered.

PARTICULARS OF CONTRACTS ORARRANGEMENTS WITH RELATED PARTIES

CRANEX

Related party transactions entered during the financial year under review are disclosed in Notes of the financial statements for the financial year ended March 31, 2025.
These transactions entered were at an arm's length basis and in the ordinary course of business. There were no materially significant related party transactions with the
Company's Promoters, Directors, Management or their relatives, which could have had a potential conflict with the interests of the Company. Form AOC-2, containing the

note on the aforesaid related party transactions is enclosed herewith as “Annexure-IV”.
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PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES AND INVESTMENTS

There were no loans, guarantees or investments made by the Company under Section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 during the year under review hence the said
provision is not applicable.

SUBSIDIARY,ASSOCIATE AND JOINT VENTURE

The Company does not have any subsidiary whereas the Company has one Associate Company viz., IFE Cranex Elevators & Excalators India Private Limited and one
Joint Venture viz., Shree Cranex JV. Details of Associate Company and Joint Venture are provided in AOC-1 as “Annexure- V” attached with this report.

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The audited consolidated financial statements incorporating the duly audited financial statements of the Associate Company and Joint Venture, as prepared in compliance
with the Companies Act, 2013 ('the Act'), Listing Regulations, 2015 and in accordance with the Indian Accounting Standards specified under section 133 of the Act read
with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 along with all relevant documents and the Independent Auditors' Report thereon forms part of this Annual
Report.

Pursuant to the provisions of section 129(3) of the Act read with the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014, the statement containing salient features of the financial
statements of the Company’s Associate and Joint Venture for the financial year ended on 31st March 2025 in Form AOC-1 forms part of this Annual Report.

Further, in terms of the provisions of section 136 of the Act, a copy of the audited financial statements for the financial year ended on 31st March 2025 of the Associate
Company will be made available by email to members of the Company, seeking such information. The members can send an email to investors@cranexitd.com. These
financial statements shall also be kept open for inspection by any member at the registered office of the Company during business hours.

SIGNIFICANT AND MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY THE REGULATORS OR COURTS

During the year under review, there were no significant and material orders passed by the regulators or courts or tribunals, which may impact the going concern status of
the Company and its operations in future.

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION, FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO

Pursuant to provisions of Section 134 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 8(3) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014, the details of Conservation of Energy,
Technology Absorption, Foreign Exchange Earnings and Outgo are as follows:

A. Conservation of Energy
a) Energy conservation measures taken:

+ The Company has always been conscious of the need for the conservation of energy and optimum utilisation of available resources and has been steadily
making progress towards this end.

+  The Company has taken lot of initiatives for reduction in power cost by improving the production processes. Production process of the company does not require
much power.

+ Thereis anoptimumratio of glass windows to utilise natural light and proper insulation/ventilation to balance temperature and reduce heat.

b) Impactofabove measures:

+  The above measures will results in lower energy consumption, significant reduction in Carbon emissions, and hedge against continuous energy rate increase.
B. TechnologyAbsorption, Adaptation And Innovation

The company has successfully absorbed the technology for the development of various new models of the cranes. Your company is constantly improving its technology to
match world standards, which is reflected in the new orders being received from very quality conscious customers.

C. Foreign Exchange Earnings and Outgo.

S. Particulars F.Y. 2024-25 F.Y. 2023-24
No. Amount (in Lakhs) Amount (in Lakhs)
1. Foreign Exchange Earned 33.06/- 37.20 /-

2. Foreign Exchange Outgo 236.25/- 724.74/-

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

As per Regulation 34 and schedule V of the SEBI (Listing Obligation and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, the Management Discussion and Analysis for the
year is separately given and forms part of this Annual Report as “Annexure VI” which provides a more detailed analysis on the performance of individual businesses and
their outlook.

GREEN INITIATIVE

In accordance with the “Green Initiative” the Company has been sending Annual Report/Notice of AGM in electronic mode to those Shareholders whose email ids are
registered with the Company and/or the Depository Participants.
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CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

Your Company does not fall under the criteria as laid down under Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility Policy)
Rules, 2014, therefore, there was no requirement to constitute and formulate a committee under Corporate Social Responsibility.

DEMATERIALIZATION OF SHARES

The shares of your company are being traded in electronic form and the Company has established connectivity with Central Depository Services (India) Limited (CDSL)
and National Securities Depository Limited (NSDL). In view of the numerous advantages offered by the Depository system, members are requested to avail the facility to
dematerialization of shares either of the Depositories as aforesaid. Directors are thankful to the Shareholders for actively participating in the Green Initiative.

PERFORMANCE EVALUATION OF NON — INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS:

The performance evaluation of Chairman and the non-independent directors were carried out by the independent directors, considering aspects such as effectiveness as
Chairman, in developing and articulating the strategic vision of the company; demonstration of ethical leadership, displaying and promoting throughout the company a
behaviour consistent with the culture and values of the organization; contribution to discussion and debate through thoughtful and clearly stated observations and
opinions; creation of a performance culture that drives value creation without exposing the company to excessive risks.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company is not required to mandatorily comply with the provision of Regulation 17 to Regulation 27 of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015 (Listing Regulations, 2015) as its equity share capital is less than Rs. 10 Crore and Net Worth is not exceeding Rs. 25 crores, as on the last day of the
previous financial year. However, the Company has voluntarily adopted various practices of governance conforming to highest ethical and responsible standard of
business, globally benchmarked.

MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENTS

There have been no material changes and commitments, affecting the financial position of the Company, which have occurred between the end of the financial year 2024-
25 and the date of this Report.

CAPITAL STRUCTURE

During the year under review, there was no change in the Authorized Share Capital of the Company. The Equity Authorized Share Capital of your Company is Rs.
100,000,000/- (Rupees Ten Crore) comprising 10000000 (One Crore) Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- (Rupees Ten) each.

Your Company has allotted 5,70,000 (Five Lakh Seventy Thousand) Equity Shares of face value of Rs. 10/- (Rupee Ten only) each upon conversion of Convertible
Warrants atan issue price of Rs. 102/- (Rupees One Hundred Two Only) each on 17th February, 2025.

Subsequent to the aforesaid allotment, the Paid-Up Equity Share Capital of the company has increased from Rs. 6,00,00,000 (Rupees Six Crores) to Rs. 6,57,00,000
(Rupees Six Crores Fifty Seven Lakhs) comprising 65,70,000 (Sixty Five Lakhs Seventy Thousands) Equity Shares of face value of Rs. 10/- (Rupees Ten) each.

Your Company has received Listing and trading approval for 570000 Equity Shares in 17th March, 2025 and 25th March, 2025 respectively.

Raising of funds by issuance of Warrants convertible into Equity Shares on a private placement basis
Pursuant to the shareholders’ approval received at 49th Annual General Meeting held on 30th September, 2024, your Company has issued 27,80,000 (Twenty Seven
Lakhs and Eighty Thousand) convertible warrants at a price of 02/- (Rupees One Hundred Only) per warrant, each convertible into, or exchangeable for, 1 fully paid-up

equity share of the Company of face value of 10/- each to promoter & promoter group and non-promoter group of the Company by way of preferential issue on a private
placement basis for an aggregate consideration of up to #28,35,60,000/- (Rupees Twenty Eight Crore Thirty Five Lakh and Sixty Thousand Only).

During the year under review, there was no public issue, rights issue or bonus issue etc. The Company has not issued shares with differential voting rights, sweat equity
shares nor has it granted any stock options.

CHANGE IN THE NATURE OF BUSINESS

During the year under review, there was no Change in the nature of the business of the Company.
DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL (KMP)

The Company has a professional Board with Executive Directors & Non-Executive Directors who bring the right mix of knowledge, skills, and expertise and help the
Company inimplementing the best Corporate Governance practices.

The changes in the composition of the Board of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel of the Company during the year under review are as under:

Re-appointment of Director retiring by rotation

Pursuant to the provisions of section 152 of the Companies Act, 2013, Mr. Chaitanya Agrawal (DIN 05108809), director of the Company, is liable to retire by rotation at the
ensuing 50th AGM of the Company and being eligible, offer himself for re-appointment. The Board recommends their re-appointment. Brief detail of Mr. Chaitanya Agrawal
is given in the Notice of ensuing 50th AGM.

Appointments

During the year under review, Ms. Sonia Mendiratta (DIN: 10237932), on the recommendation of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee was appointed as an
Additional Director in the capacity of a Non-Executive Independent Director with effect from 19th December, 2024.
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Mr. Avinash Prabhat (DIN: 10997441), on the recommendation of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee was appointed as an Additional Director in the capacity of
a Non-Executive Independent Director with effect from 20th May, 2025 by the Board of Directors in accordance with Articles of Association and sections 149, 161 and
Schedule IV of the Companies Act 2013 ("the Act") and Regulation 16(1)(b) and other applicable provisions of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015.

His appointment as Independent Director of the Company is subject to the approval of the shareholders in the ensuring 50th Annual General Meeting of the Company and
any other regulatory approvals, if applicable.

Cessations

Ms. Shalini Rahul and Ms. Sonia Mendiratta resigned as Non-Executive Independent Director of the Company on 31st August, 2024 and 17th January, 2025 respectively.
The Board of Directors expressed their sincere appreciation and gratitude for the excellent contribution made by them towards the progress of the Company.

During the year, Mr. Ashwini Kumar Jindal (DIN: 01958501) has completed his second and final term as an Independent Director and consequently ceased to be a Director
of the Company w.e.f. the close of business hours on 29th September, 2024. The Board of Directors and the Management of the Company place on record their deep
appreciation for the contributions made by Mr. Ashwini Kumar Jindal during his association with the Company over the years.

In terms of the provisions of rule 8(5) (iiia) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014, the Board opines that the Independent director so appointed hold highest standards
of integrity and possess necessary expertise and experience.

Except as stated above, there were no other changes in the directors and key managerial personnel of the Company during the year under review since the last report.

Pecuniary relationship or transactions with the Company

During the year under review, the Non-Executive Directors of the Company had no pecuniary relationship or transactions with the Company, other than sitting fees and
reimbursement of expenses incurred by them for the purpose of attending meetings of the Board/ Committee(s) of the Company.

DEPOSITS FROMPUBLIC

The Company has not accepted any deposits from public and as such, no amount on account of principal or interest on deposits from public was outstanding as on the date
of the balance sheet.

SECRETARIAL STANDARDS

During the year under review, your Company has complied with all the applicable secretarial standards. The same has also been confirmed by Secretarial Auditors of the
Company.

MANAGING DIRECTORAND CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER CERTIFICATE

In terms of the requirement of the Regulation 17(8) of the SEBI (Listing Obligation & Disclosure Requirements) Regulation, 2015, the certificate from Managing Director
and Chief Financial Officer obtained and is attached in the said annual report. The said certificate is part of the annual report as “Annexure-VII".

LISTING OF SHARES

The equity shares of the Company are listed on the Bombay Stock Exchange Ltd (BSE). The listing fee for the year 2024-25 has been already paid to the stock exchange.
INDUSTRIAL RELATION

The Company maintained healthy, cordial and harmonious industrial relations at all levels. The enthusiasm and unstinting efforts of Employees have enabled the
Company at good position in the industry. It has taken various steps to improve productivity across organization.

PREVENTION, PROHIBITION & REDRESSAL OF SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF WOMEN AT WORKPLACE

The Company has laid down sexual harassment policy pursuant to provision of Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act,
2013 and Rules made thereunder. The objective of this policy is to provide protection against sexual harassment of women at workplace and for the prevention and
redressal of complaints of sexual harassment and for matters connected therewith.

The Policy for Prevention of Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace has been uploaded on the website of the Company at https://www.cranexltd.com/investor-
relations/anti-sexual-harassment-policy/viewdocument.

Particulars No.
Number of complaints of sexual harassment received in the year Nil
Number of complaints disposed off during the year and Nil
Number of cases pending for more than ninety days Nil

STATEMENT ON MATERNITY BENEFIT COMPLIANCE

The Company has complied with the provisions of the Maternity Benefit Act, 1961, including all applicable amendments and rules framed thereunder. The Company is
committed to ensuring a safe, inclusive, and supportive workplace for women employees. All eligible women employees are provided with maternity benefits as prescribed
under the Maternity BenefitAct, 1961, including paid maternity leave, nursing breaks, and protection from dismissal during maternity leave.

The Company also ensures that no discrimination is made in recruitment or service conditions on the grounds of maternity. Necessary internal systems and HR policies
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are in place to uphold the spirit and letter of the legislation.

GENDER-WISE COMPOSITION OF EMPLOYEES

In alignment with the principles of diversity, equity, and inclusion (DEI), the Company discloses below the gender composition of its workforce as on the March 31, 2025.

Male Employees: 135
Female Employees: 4
Transgender Employees: NIL

This disclosure reinforces the Company’s efforts to promote an inclusive workplace culture and equal opportunity for allindividuals, regardless of gender.

DETAILS OF APPLICATION MADE ORANY PROCEEDING PENDING UNDER THE INSOLVENCY AND BANKRUPTCY CODE, 2016

Neither application made nor any proceeding pending under IBC during the financial year. Hence this clause is not applicable.

DETAILS OF DIFFERENCE BETWEEN AMOUNT OF THE VALUATION DONE AT THE TIME OF ONE TIME SETTLEMENT AND THE VALUATION DONE WHILE
TAKING LOAN FROM THE BANKS OR FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS

The Company has never made any one-time settlement against the loans obtained from Banks and Financial Institution during the financial year. Hence this clause is not
applicable.
ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS

Your Directors place on record their gratitude to the Central Government, State Governments and Company's Bankers for the assistance, co-operation and
encouragement they extended to the Company. Your Directors also wish to place on record their sincere thanks and appreciation for the continuing support and unstinting
efforts ofinvestors, vendors, dealers, business associates and employees in ensuring an excellent all around operational performance.

By Order of the Board of Directors
For Cranex Limited

Sd/- Sd/-
Chaitanya Agrawal Piyush Agrawal
Whole Time Director Managing Director
DIN: 05108809 DIN: 01761004

Place: New Delhi
Date: 1* September, 2025
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ANNEXURE |

ANNUAL COMPLIANCE WITH THE CODE OF CONDUCT FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR 2024-25

|, Piyush Agrawal, Managing Director of the Company do hereby solemnly affirm to the best of my knowledge and belief that, | have fully complied with the provisions of the
CODE OF CONDUCT FORBOARD MEMEBERS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL during the financial year ending 31st March, 2025.

By Order of the Board of Directors
For Cranex Limited

Sd/-
Piyush Agrawal
Managing Director
DIN: 01761004
Place: New Delhi
Date: 1* September, 2025
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ANNEXURE - I

(A) The ratio of the remuneration of each director to the median employee's remuneration and other details in terms of sub-section 12 of Section 197 of the

Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 5(1) of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014:

S. No. Requirements Disclosure
1. The ratio of the remuneration of each director to the median |EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR
Remuneration of the employees for the financial year 2024-25. 1. Mr. Piyush Agrawal-Managing Director- 7.5:1
2. Mr. Chaitanya Agrawal- whole Time Director-5.1:1
2. The percentage increase in remuneration of each Director in the |MD:71.43%
WTD: 60%
3. The percentage increase in the median remuneration of employees in | 7.69%
4, The number of permanent employees on the rolls of the Company. There were 139 permanent employees on the rolls of the Company, as on March 31,
2025.

5. Average percentile increase already made in the salaries of employees | The average percentile increase already made in the salaries of employees other than
other than the managerial personnel in the last year (2023-24) and its | the managerial personnel in the last financial year is around 8.49%. The managerial
comparison with the percentile increase in the managerial remuneration | remuneration is as per the approval accorded by the Nomination and Remuneration
and justification thereof and point out if there are any exceptional | Committee of the Board and Shareholders.
circumstances for increase in the managerial remuneration.

6. The key parameters for any variable component of Remuneration | Any variable component of remuneration payable to the Directors is based on the
availed by the Directors. parameters, as approved by the Board of Directors, on the basis of the recommendation

of the Nomination & Remuneration Committee of the Board. The said parameters are set
considering the provisions of applicable regulations, Nomination (including Boards
'Diversity), Remuneration and Evaluation Policy of the Company and the respective
resolution(s) of the Members of the Company, as applicable.

7. Affirmation that the remuneration is as per the remuneration policy of the | It is hereby affirmed that the remuneration is as per the Nomination and Remuneration
Company. Policy of the Company.

(B)

Particulars of employees pursuant to Section 134 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 5(2) of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of

Managerial Personnel), 2014 and forming part of the Board's Report for the financial year ended March 31, 2024.

A.TOP 10 employees in terms of salary drawn during the FY 2024-25:

Sl. Name of Date of Gross Qualification Age |Experience Last Designation *% of Equity
No Employee Joining | Remuneration (Yrs.) (Yrs.) Employment Shares held within
(MM/DDIYY) (Rs.) the meaning of
clause (iii) of sub-
rule (2) of Rule 5
1. | Mr. Piyush Agrawal 01/10/2011 28,50,000 B. Tech. 72 48 Nil Managing Director 39.47%
2. | Mr. Chaitanya Agrawal 01/10/2011 19,50,000 MBA Finance 42 15 Batlivala & Karani Whole Time Director& CFO 2.89%
Securities India Pvt. Ltd.
3. | Mr. Jay Prakash Padmakar Mishra | 22/12/2023 18,37,800 MBA Marketing 50 26 Counsulting Engg. Groups Ltd. Project Manager
4. | Mr.P. John Gold 20/06/2023 12,53,000 Diploma Electronics 42 21 Johnson Lift Pvt. Ltd. Maintenance Manager
& Electricals
5. | Mr. Ajay Pradhan 12111211999 |  12,27,600 BA, PGDCA 45 21 R.G. Data Products Pvt. Ltd. General Manager 0.59%
6. | Mr. Mohan Tiwari 10/01/2004 12,27,600 PGDCA/ Diploma 45 21 Tushar Electronics Pvt. Ltd. General Manager 0.07%
Business Accounting/
Mech. Engg
7. | Mr. Firoz Khan 12/12/2022 10,87,200 B.E. Mechanical 36 13 Escon Elevators Pvt. Ltd. Deputy Project Manager
8. | Mr. Mansuri Shamsul Aazam 02/01/2023 6,92,565 B.TECH 37 14 Blue Pacific Elevators Pvt. Ltd. | Quality Control Manager
9. | Mr. Manu Mahajan 01/02/2010 5,44,460 B.Tech/MBA 38 16 Nil Quality Engineer
10.| Ms. Heena Sharma 02/04/2024 5,28,000 Company Secretary/ 30 4 J.P., Kapur & Uberai Company Secretary and
LLB Compliance Officer
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B. Employees drawing salary of 102 lakhs or above per annum: NIL
C. Employed for part of the year with an average salary of 8.5 lakh or above per month: NIL

Note:

1. Allthe employees included in the table above are permanent employees of the Company and their appointments are non-contractual.

2. Interms of proviso to Rule 5 of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, particulars of employees posted and working
in a country outside India, not being Directors or their relatives, have notbeen included in the above statement.

3. None of the employees named above were paid remuneration in excess of that drawn by the Managing director and Whole-time Director & CFO of the Company.

4. Gross Remuneration includes salary, allowances, performance linked variable pay paid, other perquisites & benefits, leave encashment and Company's
contribution to provident fund but excludes the Company's contribution to gratuity fund.

5. Theinformation regarding qualifications and last employment is based on the particulars furnished by the concerned employee.

By Order of the Board of Directors
For Cranex Limited

Sd/- Sd/-
Chaitanya Agrawal Piyush Agrawal
Whole Time Director Managing Director
DIN: 05108809 DIN: 01761004

Place: New Delhi
Date: 1* September, 2025
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ANNEXURE - lll
SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT

FORM MR-3
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2025
{Pursuant to Section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 9 of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules 2014}

To,
The Members,
CRANEXLIMITED

We have conducted the Secretarial Audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the adherence to good corporate practice by CRANEX LIMITED
(hereinafter called the “Company”) having CIN L74899DL1973PLC006503. Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that provided us a reasonable basis for
evaluating the corporate conduct/ statutory compliances and expressing our opinion thereon.

Based on our verification of the Companies book, paper, minute book, form and return filed and other records maintained by the Company and also the information
provided by the Company, its officers, agents and authorized representatives during the conduct of Secretarial Audit.

We hereby report that in our opinion, the Company has during the audit period covering the financial year ended 31st March 2025 (‘Audit Period’) complied with the
statutory provision listed hereunder and also that the Company has proper Board —processes and compliance —mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and
subject to the reporting made hereinafter:

We have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and return filed and other records maintained by the Company for the financial year ended on 31st March,
2025 according to the provisions of:

() The CompaniesAct, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made thereunder;
(i) The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (‘'SCRA) and the rules made thereunder;
(i)  The Depositories Act,1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed thereunder;
(iv) Foreign Exchange ManagementAct, 1999 and the rules and regulations made thereunder to the extent of Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment.
There was no External Commercial Borrowings;
(v)  Thefollowing Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board of IndiaAct, 1992 (‘SEBI Act): -
(@) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulation, 2015 ['SEBI (LODR);
b) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) Regulation, 2018
c) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers) Regulations, 2011;
d) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulation, 2018 (Not applicable to the Company during the Audit Period)
e) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefits and Sweat Equity) Regulations, 2021 (Not applicable to the Company during
the Audit Period)
(f) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and listing of Securitised Debt Instruments and Security Receipts) Regulation, 2008 (Not applicable to the
Company during the Audit Period)
The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Non-Convertible Securities) Regulations, 2021 (Not applicable to the Company during the
Audit Period)
The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015
The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2021 (Not applicable to the Company during the Audit Period)
The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer Agents) Regulations, 1993 regarding the Companies Act, 2013 and
dealing with client to the extent of securities issued.
s informed to us, the following other Acts/laws specifically applicable to the company are as under:
Provident Fund Act, 1952
The Employees State Insurance Act, 1948
Labour Welfare Fund Act
Contract Labour (Regulation and Abolition) Act, 1970
Professional TaxAct
Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972
Payment of BonusAct, 1965
Minimum WagesAct, 1948
Payment of Wages Act, 1936
10. Maternity BenefitAct, 1961
11. Equal RemunerationAct, 1976
12. Employee CompensationAct, 1923
13. Employee ExchangeAct, 1959
14. Trade LicenseAct
15. Goods & Service TaxAct
16. Income TaxAct, 1961
17. Companies (Auditors' Report) Order, 2016
28. Legal MetrologyAct, 2009
19. TheFactoriesAct, 1948

(
(
(
(

—
«©«
-

s~
=
=

—
=

(vi)

©OeN>ORWD =~ >

31



CRANEX 50" Annual Report 2024-2025

20. The CustomAct, 1962
21. The Sexual harassment of Women at Work Place (Prevention, Prohibition & Redressal)Act, 2013

We have also examined compliances with the applicable clauses / regulations of the following:

(i)  The Secretarial Standards, as amended from time to time, issued by the Institute of the Company Secretaries of India; and
(ii) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and the Listing Agreements entered into by
the Company with BSE Limited.
(iii) We have not examined compliance by the Company with applicable financial laws, like direct and indirect tax laws, since the same have been subject to review
by statutory financial audit and other designated professionals.
During the period under review, the Company has complied with the applicable provisions of the Act, Rules, Regulations, Guidelines, Standards, etc. as mentioned above
subject to the following:

We observed that:

During the Audit Period, BSE Limited (“BSE”) have vide their letter dated September 13th, 2024 imposed a fine of Rs. 11,800/- (including GST) (Rupees Eleven
Thousand Eight Hundred Only) on the Company under Regulation 29(2)/29(3) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations,
2015 for Delay in furnishing prior intimation about the meeting of the board of directors.

We further report that:
The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of Executive Directors, Non-Executive Directors and Independent Directors.

Adequate notice is given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and detailed notes on agenda were sent at least seven days in advance, and a system
exists for seeking and obtaining further information and clarifications on the agenda items before the meeting and for meaningful participation at the meetings.

As per the minutes of the meeting duly recorded and signed by the Chairman, the decisions of the Board were unanimous and no dissenting views have been recorded.
We further report that:

There are adequate systems and processes in the Company commensurate with the size and its operations to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules,
regulations and guidelines.

We further report that during the Audit Period, the Company has following specific events/ actions having major bearings on the affairs of the Company in pursuance of
the above referred laws, rules, regulations, guidelines, standards, etc.:

Regularisation of Ms. Priyanka Pathak (DIN: 10601570), as Director and Independent Director of the Company for a term of five consecutive years.

Increase in remuneration of Mr. Piyush Agrawal, Managing Director of the Company.

Increase in remuneration of Mr. Chaitanya Agrawal, Whole-Time Director of the Company.

Issuance of upto 27,80,000 warrants convertible into equity shares to the persons belonging to promoter and promoter group and non — promoter group on a
preferential issue.

5. Theallotmentof 5,70,000 (Five Lakh Seventy Thousand) Equity Shares of face value of Rs. 10/- (Rupee Ten only) each upon conversion of warrants at an issue
price of Rs. 102/- (Rupees One Hundred Two Only) each, including a premium of Rs. 92/- each (as determined in accordance with the pricing guidelines
prescribed under Chapter V of the SEBI ICDR Regulations) (the “Issue Price”)

L=

Please note that this decision has been made based on the information and representations provided by your side. It is of utmost importance that all information and
documents submitted are accurate and comply with all relevantlegal requirements.

PLACE: NEWDELHI FORPARVEEN RASTOGI & CO.
DATE: 26.08.2025 (COMPANY SECRETARIES)
PARVEEN KUMARRASTOGI

C.P.No.: 26582

M.No.: F4764

PRNo.: 5486/2024
UDIN: F004764G001081895

This reportis to be read with my letter of even date which is annexed as “Annexure A” and forms an integral part of this report.
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ANNEXURE TO THE SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT

To,
The Members,
CRANEXLIMITED

Ourreport of event date is to be read along with this letter:

1. Maintenance of secretarial records is the responsibility of the Management of the Company. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these secretarial records
based on our audit.

2. We have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain reasonable assurance about the correctness of the content of the secretarial
records. The verification was done on test basis to ensure that the correct facts are reflected in secretarial records. We believe that the processes and practices we
followed provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

3. The compliance of the provisions of corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulations, standards is the responsibility of management. Our examination was
limited to the verification of procedures on test check basis.

4. Our Audit examination is restricted only up to legal compliances of the applicable laws to be done by the Company; we have not checked the practical aspects
relating to the same.

5. We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and Books of Accounts of the Company as well as correctness of the values and
figures reported in various disclosures and returns as required to be submitted by the Company under the specified laws, though we have relied to a certain extent on
the information furnished in such returns.

6.  The compliance by the Company of applicable financial laws such as direct and indirect tax laws has not been reviewed in this Audit since the same have been
subject to review by Statutory Auditors and other designated professionals and the contents of this Report has to be read in conjunction with and notin isolation of the
observations, if any, in the report(s) furnished/to be furnished by any other auditor(s)'agencies/authorities with respect to the Company.

7. Whereverrequired, we have obtained the management representation about the compliance of laws, rules and regulations and happening of events, etc.

8.  The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor of the efficiency or effectiveness with which the Management has
conducted the affairs of the Company.

PLACE: NEW DELHI FORPARVEEN RASTOGI & CO.
DATE: 26.08.2025 (COMPANY SECRETARIES)
PARVEEN KUMARRASTOGI

C.P.No.: 26582

M. No.: F4764

PR No.: 5486/2024
UDIN: F004764G001081895

33



CRANEX 50" Annual Report 2024-2025

ANNEXURE - [V

FORM NO. AOC-2
(Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section (3) of section 134 of the Act and Rule 8(2) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014.

Form for Disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the company with related parties referred to in sub section (1) of section 188 of the Companies
Act, 2013 including certain arm's length transaction under third proviso thereto.

1. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at Arm's length basis.
S. NO. PARTICULARS DETAILS
(a) Corporate identity number (CIN) or foreign company registration number (FCRN) or Limited Liability Partnership number
(LLPIN) or Foreign Limited Liability Partnership number (FLLPIN) or Permanent Account Number (PAN)/Passport for individuals
or any other registration number
(b) Name(s) of the related party & nature of relationship
() Nature of relationship
(d) Nature of contracts/arrangements/transaction
(e) Duration of the contracts/arrangements/transaction
(f Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements or transactions, including actual / expected contractual amount
(9) Justification for entering into such contracts or arrangements or transactions’
(h) | Date of approval by the Board (DD/MM/YYYY) Please refer the
() | Amount paid as advances, if any note  given below
) Date on which the resolution was passed in general meeting as required under first proviso to section 188 (DD/MM/YYYY)
(k) SRN of MGT-14
*NOTE: There were no contracts or arrangements or transactions entered into during the year under review which was not an arm’s length basis.
2. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions at Arm's length basis.
S. NO. PARTICULARS DETAILS

(a) Corporate identity number (CIN) or foreign company registration number (FCRN) or Limited Liability Partnership number
(LLPIN) or Foreign Limited Liability Partnership number (FLLPIN) or Permanent Account Number (PAN)/Passport for individuals
or any other registration number

Name(s) of the related party
c) Nature of relationship

o
-

(

(

(d) Nature of contracts/arrangements/transaction

(e) Duration of the contracts/arrangements/transaction

(f) | Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements or transactions, including actual / expected contractual amount. nglgasjvr::]etrxtai?w
(9) Date of approval by the Board (DD/MM/YYYY)

(h) | Amount paid as advances, if any

*NOTE: The details of names, nature of relationship; nature of such contracts/arrangements/transactions are disclosed in Notes of the Financial Statements.

By Order of the Board of Directors
For Cranex Limited

Sd/- Sd/-
Chaitanya Agrawal Piyush Agrawal
Whole Time Director Managing Director
DIN: 05108809 DIN: 01761004

Place: New Delhi
Date: 1* September, 2025
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ANNEXURE - V

Form AOC-1
(Pursuant to first proviso to sub-section (3) of section 129 read with rule 5 of Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014)

Statement containing salient features of the financial statement of subsidiaries/associate companies/joint ventures
Part “A”: Subsidiaries

Details of Subsidiaries
(Information in respect of each subsidiary to be presented with amounts in Rs)

1. Number of subsidiaries: Not applicable since there are no subsidiaries

Block1
S. Particulars Details
No.
1. CIN/ any other registration number of subsidiary company -
2. Name of the subsidiary -
3. Date since when subsidiary was acquired -
4, Provisions pursuant to which the company has become a
subsidiary (Section 2(87)(i)/Section 2(87)(ii)) -
5. Reporting period for the subsidiary concerned, if different from the From -
holding company's reporting period To
6. Reporting currency and Exchange rate as on the last date of the Reporting Currency -
relevant financial year in the case of foreign subsidiaries: Exchange Rate

Share capital -
Reserves & surplus -
9. Total assets -
10. | Total Liabilities -
11. | Investments -
12.| Turnover -
13.| Profit before taxation -
14. | Provision for taxation -
15. | Profit after taxation -
16. | Proposed Dividend -
17.| % of shareholding -

2. Names of subsidiaries which are yet to commence operations: None

Sl. No. CIN /any other registration number Names of subsidiaries which are yet to commence operations

3. Number of subsidiaries which have been liquidated or have ceased to be a subsidiary during the year: None

SI. No. CIN /any other registration number Names of subsidiaries
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Part “B”: Associates and Joint Ventures

Statement pursuant to Section 129 (3) of the Companies Act, 2013 related to Associate Company and Joint Ventures

4. Number of Associate/ Joint Venture: 2 (Two)

(Amount in Hundred)

Block 1

1.

Name of associates/Joint Ventures

IFE Cranex Elevators & Excalators
India Private Limited
(Associate Company)

Shree Cranex JV
(Joint Venture)

Latest audited Balance Sheet Date 30/05/2025 24/09/2024
Date on which the Associate or Joint Venture was 20-06-2017 22/07/2021
associated or acquired
4. | Shares of Associate/Joint Ventures held by the company
on the year end
A | Number 182000 N.A.
B | Amount of Investment in Associates/Joint Venture 1,82,000.00/- 31,710.76/-
C | Extend of Holding % 26% 26%
5. | Description of how there is significant influence By way of control of 26% of share capital| By way of control of 26% of capital
6. | Reason why the associate/joint venture is not consolidated Not applicable There will be a very insignificant
impact on the Company from
financial results of M/s Shree
Cranex (JV). Further financials
were not finalised till May, 2025.
Hence it was not considered.
7 Net worth attributable to shareholding as per latest audited Balance Sheet 1,60,480.19/- By way of control of 26% of capital
8. | Profit/Loss for the year
A | Considered in Consolidation -0.408/- Not considered
B | Not Considered in Consolidation -1.162/-

o

Names of associates or joint ventures which are yet to commence operations:- None

Sl. No.

CIN /any other registration number

Names of Associates and Joint Ventures which are yet to
commence operations

6. Names of associates or joint ventures which have been liquidated or sold during the year:-None

Sl. No.

CIN /any other registration number

Names of Associates and Joint Ventures

Sd/-

Chaitanya Agrawal
Whole Time Director
DIN: 05108809

Place: New Delhi
Date: 1* September, 2025

By Order of the Board of Directors
For Cranex Limited

Sd/-
Piyush Agrawal
Managing Director
DIN: 01761004
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ANNEXURE - VI

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS REPORT

> INDUSTRY STRUCTURE AND DEVELOPMENTS

¢ GLOBALECONOMY OVERVIEW

The global economy in FY 2025-26 is showing signs of a cautious recovery, supported by lower inflation, stable job markets, and gradual improvement in financial
conditions. However, ongoing challenges such as geopolitical tensions and global financial uncertainties continue to weigh on growth. According to the International
Monetary Fund (IMF), global GDP is expected to grow by 2.8% in 2025, with a slight increase to 3.0% in 2026, down from 3.1% in 2024. This moderate pace reflects the
impact of high interest rates, shifting supply chains, and climate-related disruptions. Emerging markets are expected to lead global growth, with a projected expansion of
4.2%in 2025, well above the 1.7% growth forecast for advanced economies. India continues to stand out with strong domestic demand, solid economic fundamentals, and
rising infrastructure spending.

Inflation is gradually declining, with global inflation expected to ease to 4.5% in 2025 from 5.9% in 2024. This decline is mainly due to tighter monetary policies and more
stable commodity prices, especially in developed countries. However, some developing economies may still face inflation risks because of currency fluctuations and
regional tensions. In the US and Eurozone, growth is likely to remain subdued, between 1.5% and 2%, as high interest rates continue to limit both investment and
consumer spending.

While the overall outlook has improved, key risks remain. Uncertainty around US trade tariffs and ongoing geopolitical conflicts could continue to disrupt global trade,
particularly in manufacturing, technology, and commodity sectors. These challenges, along with currency volatility and shifting investment patterns, may slow down the
pace of recovery. Additionally, climate-related events and the restructuring of global supply chains are affecting production costs and investment decisions in several
regions.

While the global economy is gradually recovering, the outlook for FY 2025-26 remains cautiously optimistic. Strength in labour markets, easing inflation, and robust growth
in emerging markets offer positive signals. However, continued global uncertainties, particularly around trade and geopolitics, highlight the need for businesses to remain
flexible and focused on risk management.

+  INDIAN ECONOMY OVERVIEW

India’s economic performance in 2024 firmly reinforced its position as the fastest-growing major economy in the world, despite a challenging global backdrop. The
country's strong growth was supported by robust domestic demand, higher public investment, easing inflation, and continued implementation of structural reforms. Even
with global trade tensions and supply chain disruptions, India maintained macroeconomic stability and progressed on key reform agendas, particularly in labour
regulations, digital governance, and clean energy transitions.

Looking ahead, India remains one of the most resilient and high-performing economies in 2025. The International Monetary Fund (IMF) has projected GDP growth at6.2%
for the year. Growth is being driven primarily by strong domestic consumption, rising urban incomes, and a recovery in private sector investments. Rural demand
continues to be steady, supported by favourable agricultural output and government support measures aimed atimproving rural welfare.

Inflation is expected to stay within the Reserve Bank of India’s (RBI) target range of 4-6%, with the Monetary Policy Committee forecasting inflation to moderate to around
4% in FY 2025-26. This decline is attributed to stabilising food prices and effective monetary policy. The government remains committed to fiscal consolidation, with the FY
2024-25 fiscal deficit reported at 4.8% of GDP and a further reduction targeted at 4.4% in the current year. Importantly, this fiscal strategy continues to support high levels
of capital expenditure, especially in infrastructure and welfare, without compromising financial discipline.

India’s economic outlook for FY 2026 remains strong, with growth underpinned by domestic resilience, reform momentum, and a growing role in global supply chains,
positioning the country as a key contributor to global economic growth.

Sources:

https://www.oecd.org/en/topics/economic-outlook.html
https://www.pib.gov.in/PressReleasePage.aspx?PRID=2123826

https://www.imf.org/en/Countries/IND

https://www.reuters.com/world/india/indian-governments- fy25-fiscal-deficit-line-with-projection-2025-05-30/
https://www.pib.gov.in/PressReleasePage.aspx?PRID=2131716

>  INDIAN CRANE MARKET

The Indian crane market in 2025 is experiencing steady growth, underpinned by the country’s ongoing infrastructure development, rapid urbanization, and expansion in
sectors such as construction, mining, logistics, and manufacturing. The market size has reached a value of USD 3.6 billion in 2024 and is projected to grow ata compound
annual growth rate (CAGR) of 4.4% during 2025-2033, ultimately reaching USD 5.4 billion by 2033. This expansion is driven by large-scale government initiatives like the
Bharatmala Project and Smart Cities Mission, which continue to fuel demand for cranes across a variety of applications.

Mobile cranes dominate the market, accounting for the largest share, followed by fixed, marine, and port cranes. The construction sector remains the primary end-user,

contributing to approximately 70-75% of total demand, with the remainder coming from mining, industrial, and logistics applications. The market is also witnessing a
notable shift toward technologically advanced cranes, including electric, hybrid, and autonomous models, as sustainability, efficiency, and safety become increasingly
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important for project execution. The autonomous crane segment, in particular, is poised for rapid growth, with a projected CAGR of 7.2% through 2035, driven by
investments in automation, Al-powered load management, and remote operation capabilities.

Despite the positive outlook, the industry continues to face challenges such as fluctuating raw material prices and the potential shortage of skilled labour. The competitive
landscape remains intense, with both global and domestic manufacturers focusing on product innovation, strengthening after-sales service, and forming strategic
partnerships to gain market share. Demand is expected to remain strong in metropolitan areas and industrial hubs, driven by the concentration of infrastructure
developmentand industrial activity in these regions.

Overall, the Indian crane market’s long-term prospects remain optimistic, reflecting the nation’s sustained focus on infrastructure-led growth, technological advancement,
andindustrial expansion.

Sources: https://www.marketresearch.com/Expert-Market-Research-v4220/India-Crane-Forecast-41222998/
https://www.imarcgroup.com/india-crane-market
https://www.6wresearch.com/industry-report/india-crane- market-2020-2026

OPPORTUNITIES

India’s Union Budget 2025-26 and the country’s long-term infrastructure and industrial vision present a strong growth environment for the company as a leading
manufacturer of cranes and construction equipment. The record capital expenditure outlay of #11.21 lakh crore in FY26 underscores the government’s commitment to
infrastructure-driven development. Significant investments across highways, expressways, metro projects, smart cities, and urban transit systems are expected to fuel
demand for construction machinery such as earthmoving equipment and cranes. Continued momentum under national programs like the National Infrastructure Pipeline,
Bharatmala Pariyojana, and Smart Cities Mission is likely to support sustained demand for modern and efficient construction equipment across sectors.

India’s manufacturing sector is poised to reach a market size of $1.4 trillion by 2025, driven by the Production Linked Incentive schemes and an upswing in industrial
capital expenditure. This trend supports rising demand for heavy machinery, industrial cranes, and material handling systems across factories, industrial units, and
logistics hubs. Growth in capital goods and auto component industries, aided by policy support and duty exemptions, further enhances prospects for construction and
material handling equipment.

> THREATS

+ Aslowdown in the Indian economy, triggered by adverse macroeconomic or global factors such as trade barriers, tariff war, freight crises and geopolitical
tensions, could negatively impact infrastructure and manufacturing sectors, thereby affecting the Company’s growth prospects;

+  Inefficient construction project management, including inadequate planning, scheduling, or resource allocation, may resultin project delays, cost overruns, and
legal or financial complications. Shortages of skilled workforce and delays in land acquisition or environmental clearances can further exacerbate these risks;

+  Volatility in raw material prices, particularly steel and other key inputs, can lead to margin pressures. Sharp increases in input costs may raise the cost of goods
sold and adversely affect profitability;

+  Environmental issues and strictlaws may hinder the strong growth of the Company;
+  Intensifying competition from both established international players and agile domestic companies, including those offering advanced electric or autonomous

equipment, may lead to pricing pressures and erosion of market share;

> _RISKSAND CONCERN

The impact of the key risks, which are potentially significant are listed below has been identified through a formal process by the management. Your Company recognizes
that every business has its inherent risks and the Company has been taking proactive approach to identify and mitigate them on a continuous basis. Some of the risks that
are potentially significant in nature and need constant monitoring are listed below:

«  Supply chain disruptions and commodity price fluctuations: Our ability to supply components, in time, to our manufacturing operations is of paramount
importance in achieving production schedules and meeting consumer demand. Commodity price fluctuations, being a major part of overall costs, might impact the
cost competitiveness and overall profitability, the volatile nature of the regulatory landscape (Tariffs) could also result in significant direct and indirect impacts to
suppliers and disruption to logistics thatincrease production costs and lead times.

Mitigation: Maintaining continuous focus on cost optimisation initiatives to lower fixed costs and enhance variable cost efficiency. Exploring alternative suppliers and
emphasising localisation efforts. Implementing thorough financial due diligence for all new suppliers. Improving power security and infrastructure consistently. Deploying
amanagementteam that ensures sustainable low-cost production, operational excellence, and reliable access to essential raw materials.

. People capability and capacity: To deliver strategic and operational plans an organisation needs a workforce with core and critical skills in both current and
emerging areas and a culture underpinned by a safe, secure and inclusive environment that enables people to do their best work every day. The safety, wellbeing
and engagement of our employees is paramount and needs to be maintained in the face of a challenging external environment.

Mitigation: An essential part of our strategy is to cultivate an agile and capable organisation and culture through changes in our work methods and introducing a new
business purpose and supporting behaviours. We remain dedicated to fostering an environment that drives exceptional business performance.

. Fluctuations in commodity prices: Prices and demand for the products may remain volatile/uncertain and could be influenced by economic conditions, natural
disasters, weather, pandemics, political instability, and so on. Volatilityin commodity prices and demand may adversely affect our earnings and cash flow.
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Mitigation: Continue to work on mitigating the inflationary impact through ‘Commodity Risk Management’, cost re- engineering and value engineering activities and
Leverage whenever there is afall in prices of commodities and achieve material cost reduction.

«  Brandpositioning, innovation and rapid technology change: Staying competitive in the dynamic construction equipment market s increasingly challenging due
to intensified competition from existing OEMs and new disruptive entrants. Technology in the industry is also evolving rapidly, particularly with respect to autonomy,
connectivity and electrification. Our ability to succeed in the future relies on staying abreast of evolving automotive trends, meeting changing customer demands
through timely innovation and maintaining product competitiveness and quality.

Mitigation: Our brands continue support our position in the market with smart product interventions and timely refreshes with stylish designs, safety and technology
features, our brand perception has increased over the years. The Company has been investing in R&D and itis upgrading its products continuously.

. Regulatory Risk: The business may be impacted due to non-compliance or delay in compliance with regulatory approvals or altered legislations may also have an
adverse impact on the Company.

Mitigation: We are dedicated to adhering to the laws and regulations in all countries where we conduct business. Our specialist teams diligently monitor legal and
regulatory developments, establish detailed standards, and ensure awareness and compliance with these standards.

>  FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE REVIEW

Financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Ind AS as per the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 as amended and notified Section
133 of the CompaniesAct, 2013 (“the Act”) and other relevant provisions of the Act.

The key highlights of financial performance of standalone business are as under:
+  Totalrevenue from operations decreased to Rs. 5153.76 Lakhs as against Rs. 6211.41 Lakhs in the previous year a decrease of 20.53%.

. Earnings before Interest, Depreciation, Amortization, Exceptional ltems & Tax for the current year is Rs. 285.58 Lakhs against Rs. 248.29 Lakhs in the previous year-
anincrease of 15.01%.

+  Profit before Tax (PBT) and Profit after Tax (PAT) for the current year are Rs. 251.54 Lakhs and Rs. 194.62 Lakhs respectively against Rs. 216.83 Lakhs and Rs.
151.88 Lakhsin the previous year - increase of 16.01% and 28.14% respectively.

. Earnings per share is Rs. 3.21 for the year under review.

> INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEMS AND THEIRADEQUACY

Your Company has in place adequate internal control system and procedures commensurate with its size and nature of operations. Internal control systems comprising of
policies and procedures are designed to ensure sound management of your Company’s operations, provide a reasonable assurance over reliability in financial reporting,
ensure appropriate authorization of transactions, safeguarding the assets of the Company and prevent misuse/ losses and legal compliances.

The Company has instituted robust internal control systems and best in-class processes commensurate with its size and scale of operations. These comprise:

. Well-formulated policies and procedures that facilitate effective business operations with governance across all major activities.

«  The Company conducts audits based on stringent standards to review the design effectiveness of internal control systems and procedures to manage risks, ensure
monitoring control, comply with relevant policies and procedures, and recommend improvement measures.

«  TheAudit Committee of the Board of Directors regularly reviews the adequacy and effectiveness of internal audit systems. It monitors the implementation of internal
auditrecommendations.

. Timely and accurate financial reporting in accordance with applicable accounting standards;

¢« Optimum utilization and safety of assets;

. Compliance with applicable laws, regulations, listing applications and management policies; and

«  Aneffective managementinformation system and reviews of other systems.

»  MATERIAL DEVELOPMENTS IN HUMAN RESOURCES/INDUSTRIAL RELATIONS

The Company strives to nurture the individual capabilities of its workforce to achieve the organisational goal of blending growth and achievement, ensuring everyone
thrives while contributing to the Company'’s collective success. The Company has adopted guiding pillars to build a resilient, adaptive, and inclusive workplace where
every team member is valued and uplifted.

. The Company focuses on taking various initiatives to make its workplace more engaging, collaborative, and fulfilling.
+  The Company aims to empower its employees with userfriendly tools and ensure a digitally integrated and agile infrastructure.

«  The Company is committed to an open-door policy and effective communication channels to maintain positive industrial relations. The Company addresses
employee concerns through regular forums and committees, initiating dialogue and fostering a transparent and collaborative workplace.

. The Company has created a comprehensive diversity, equity, and inclusion policy to equal rights and respect for all individuals, regardless of gender, ethnicity, race,
religion, marital status, or disability. ACE catalyses innovation, creativity, and collaboration by embracing varied perspectives. Adiverse and inclusive workplace is a
source of strength and essential for achieving the Company’s business objectives.
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The Number of permanent employees on the rolls of the Company as on March 31, 2025is 139.

>  DETAILS OF SIGNIFICANT CHANGES IN KEY FINANCIAL RATIOS:

The Company has identified the key financial ratio as described in note no. 31 of the standalone financial statement that is the part of Annual Report.

> RISKMANAGEMENTAND GOVERNANCE

Risk is an intergral and unavoidable component of business and your company is committed to managing risk in a proactive manner. Though risks cannot be completely
eliminated; an effective risk management plan ensures thatrisks are reduced, avoided, retained or shared.

The company recognizes that effective risk management is crucial to its continued profitability and long-term sustainability of its business. Given the challenging and
dynamic environment of your Company’s operations, strategies for mitigating the inherent risks in accomplishing the ambitious plans for your Company is imperative. The
Key business risks identified by your Company are given in Risk and Concern section of this report.

The risk horizon considered includes long term strategic risks, short to medium risks as well as single events. The risks are analyzed considering likelihood and impactas a
basis of determining their management. The Company is committed to adopt good corporate governance, which promotes the long-term interests of all stakeholders,
creates self-accountability across its management and helps built trustin the Company.

>  DISCLAIMER

Certain statements in the Management Discussion and Analysis describing the Company’s objectives, projections, estimates, expectations or predictions may be
“forward looking statements” within the meaning of applicable securities laws and regulations. Actual results could differ from those expressed or implied. Important
factors that could make a difference to the Company’s operations include raw material availability and prices, cyclical demand and pricing in the Company’s principal
markets, changes in Government regulations, tax regimes, economic developments within India and the countries in which the Company conducts business and other
incidental factors.

By Order of the Board of Directors
For Cranex Limited

Sd/- Sd/-
Chaitanya Agrawal Piyush Agrawal
Whole Time Director Managing Director
DIN: 05108809 DIN: 01761004

Place: New Delhi
Date: 1* September, 2025
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ANNEXURE - VII

CERTIFICATE BY MANAGING DIRECTOR & CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER

> To,

The Board of Directors
CRANEXLIMITED

9, DDA Market, Katwaria Sarai,
New Delhi-110016

We, the undersigned, in our respective capacities as Managing Director (MD) and Chief Financial Officer (CFO) of Cranex Limited ('the Company'), to the best of our
knowledge and belief certify that:

1. We have reviewed the financial statements and cash flow statement for the year ended 31st March, 2025 and to the best of our knowledge and belief, we state that:
a) these statements do not contain any materially untrue statement or omit any material fact or contain statements that might be misleading;

b) these statements together present a true and fair view of the Company's affairs and are in compliance with existing Accounting Standards, applicable laws and
regulations.

2. We further state that to the best of our knowledge and belief, there are no transactions entered into by the Company during the year, which are fraudulent, illegal or
violative of the Company's code of conduct.

3. Weacceptresponsibility for establishing and maintaining internal controls for financial reporting and we have evaluated the effectiveness of internal control systems
of the Company pertaining to financial reporting. Deficiencies in the design or operation of such internal controls, if any, of which we are aware, have been disclosed
to the auditors & Audit Committee and steps have been taken to rectify these deficiencies.

4. Wehaveindicated, based on our mostrecent evaluation, wherever applicable, to the Auditors and Audit Committee:
a) Significantchanges, in the internal control over financial reporting during the year;
b) Significantchanges, in the accounting policies during the year and that the same has been disclosed in the notes to the financial statements; and

c) Instances of significant fraud of which we have become aware and the involvement therein, if any, of the management or an employee having significant role in
the Company's internal control system over financial reporting.

By Order of the Board of Directors
For Cranex Limited

Sd/- Sd/-
Chaitanya Agrawal Piyush Agrawal
Whole Time Director Managing Director
DIN: 05108809 DIN: 01761004

Place: New Delhi
Date: 1* September, 2025
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To

The Members of
CRANEXLIMITED

57/1, Industrial Area, Site - 1V,
Sahibabad, Ghaziabad,
Uttar Pradesh-201010

Report on the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements
Qualified Opinion

We have audited the accompanying standalone Ind AS financial statements of CRANEX LIMITED (“the Company”), which comprise the
Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2025, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including other comprehensive income), the Statement of Cash
Flows, and the Statement of Changes in Equity for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as Ind AS Financial Statements).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanation given to us, except for the effects of the matter described in
the basis of Qualified Opinion section of our report, the aforesaid standalone Ind AS financial statements, give the information required by
the Companies Act, 2013 in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally
accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31,2025, net profit and total comprehensive income, changes in equity
and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Qualified Opinion

a) Property, Plantand Equipment (PPE) register has not been produced before us for verification. Depreciation of Property, Plantand
Equipment has been provided on the basis of figures as certified by the management,

b) Balances under Trade Receivables and Trade Payables, loans and advances given by the Company and parties from whom
unsecured loans have been taken are subject to confirmations and adjustments, if any.

c) The Financial Assets and Liabilities — Trade Receivables and long term borrowings taken from IFE Cranex Elevators and Escalators
India Private Limited have not been measured at fair value as required by Ind AS-109 “Financial Instruments”. Impairment
provisions and fair value measurements have not been measured in accordance with Expected Credit Loss (ECL) method as per
Ind AS-109.

d) Inventory register has not been produced before us for verification by the Company. Inventory value has been provided on the basis
of figures as certified by the management.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section 143(10) of the Companies Act 2013, as
amended (“The Act”). Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the “Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Standalone Financial Results” section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the code of Ethics issued by
The Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statement
under the provisions of the Act andthe Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence obtained by us is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our qualified opinion on the statement.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the standalone financial
statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the standalone financial statements as a
whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. We have determined the matters
described below to be the key audit matters to be communicated in our report

S. | KeyAudit Matter Auditor's Response
No

1 Revenue from the sale of goods (hereinafter referred to as “Revenue”is | Our proceduresincluded:

recognized when the Company performs its obligation to its customers | *  Evaluating the design and implementation of Company’s controls in respect of revenue
and the amount of revenue can be measured reliably and recovery of the recognition.

consideration is probable. The timing of such recognition in the case of
sale of goods is when the control over the same is transferred to the
customer, which is mainly upon dispatch, delivery or upon formal | ¢«  Testing the supporting documentation for sales transactions recorded during the period
customer acceptance depending on customer’s terms. closer to the year end and subsequent to the year end, including examination of credit
notes issued after the year end to determine whether revenue was recognized in the
correct period.

+ Testing the effectiveness of such controls over revenue cut off at year end.
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S. | KeyAuditMatter Auditor's Response

No

2 | The timing of revenue recognition is relevant to the reported | *« Performing analytical procedures on current year revenue based on monthly trends and
performance of the Company. The management considers revenue as a where appropriate, conducting further enquiries and testing.
key measure for evaluation of performance. There is a risk of revenue
being recorded before control is transferred. + Assessing the appropriateness of the Company’s revenue recognition accounting
Refer note no. 2.14 - Significant Accounting Policies; and note no. 22 - policies in line with Ind AS 115 (“Revenue from Contracts with Customers” and testing
Revenue from Operations; of the Financial Statement. thereof.

3 | Evaluation of tax positions

The Company operates in India and is subject to periodic challenges by
local tax authorities on a range of tax matters during the normal course of
business including direct tax, transfer pricing and indirect tax matters.

Ouraudit procedures include the following substantive procedures:

Obtained an understanding of key tax litigations and potential tax exposures

We along with our internal tax experts -

read and analyzed select key correspondence and consultations carried out by

These involve significant management judgment to determine the management with external tax experts for key tax litigations and potential tax exposures;
possible outcome of the tax litigations, consequently having an impact | * discusspd with approlpriate senior managemgnt apd gvaluated mar.la}gement‘s
on related accounting and disclosures in the financial statements. Refer underlying key assumptions and grounds of appeal in estimating the tax provisions; and

+ Evaluated the status of the recent and current tax assessments / inquiries, results of
previous tax assessments and changes in the tax environment to assess management's
estimate of the possible outcome of key tax litigations and potential tax exposures.

Note 30(A) to the standalone Ind AS financial statements.

4. | Taxation Significant judgments are required in determining provision We evaluated the design and implement of controls in respect of provision for current tax
of income taxes, both current and deferred, as well as the assessment of and the recognition and recoverability of deferred tax assets.
provision for uncertain tax position including estimates where We discussed with management the adequate implementation of policies and control
appropriate. regarding currentand deferred tax.

We examined the procedure in place for the current and deferred tax calculation for
completeness and valuation and audited the related tax computation and estimates in
light of our knowledge of the tax circumstances. Our work was conducted with our tax
specialist.

We performed the assessment of the material components impacting the tax expenses,
balance and exposures. We reviewed and challenged the information reported by
components with the support of our tax specialist, where appropriate.

In respect of deferred tax assets and liabilities, we assess the appropriateness of
management’s assumption and

Estimates to support deferred tax assets for tax losses carried forward and related
disclosures in financial statements. Based on the procedure performed above, we obtain
sufficient audit evidence to corroborate management's estimates regarding current and
deferred tax balances.

Information Other than the Standalone Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information included in the
Annual report but does not include the Ind AS financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon. The Annual Report is expected to be
made available to us after the date of this Auditor’s Report. Our opinion on the Ind AS financial statements does not cover the other
information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the Ind AS financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is material misstatement of this other information; we are required to report
that fact. We have nothing to reportin this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charges with Governance for the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) with
respect to the preparation of these standalone Ind AS financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial
performance including other comprehensive income, cash flows and changes in equity of the company in accordance with accounting
principles generally accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of
the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 and the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015.This responsibility also includes
maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company
and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial
controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation
and presentation of thelnd AS financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.

In preparing the Ind AS financial statements, the board of directors is responsible for the assessing the Company’s ability to continue as a
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going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the
Board of Directors either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the company’s financial reporting process.
Auditor’s Responsibility for the Audit of Ind AS Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether them Ind AS financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level
of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it
exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of theselnd AS financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.
We also:

. Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the standalone Ind AS financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as
fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

«  Obtain an understanding of internal financial controls relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances. Under section 143(3)(1) of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has
adequate internal financial controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by management.

»  Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability
to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report
to the related disclosures in the standalone Ind AS financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion.
Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions
may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the standalone Ind AS financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the standalone Ind AS financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the standalone Ind AS financial statements that, individually or in aggregate, makes it
probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the Ind AS financial statements may be influenced. We
consider quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work;
and (i) to evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in the Ind AS financial statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were of most significance in the
audit of the standalone Ind AS financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters
in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be
expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”), issued by the Central Government of India in terms of sub-
section (11) of section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013, we give in the Annexure ‘A ‘a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs
3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

2. Asrequired by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

(@) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief were necessary
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(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

(f)

(9

(h)

(i)

)

for the purposes of our audit.

In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it appears from our
examination of those books, the data backup of the books & accounts in electronic mode has been kept on server physically
located inside India.

The Balance Sheet, and the Statement of Profit and Loss including the Statement of Other Comprehensive Income, the Cash
Flow Statement and the Statement of Changes in Equity dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account.

In our opinion, except for the effects/possible effects of the matters described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion paragraph above,
the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with the Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under Section 133 of the
Actand the rules prescribed there under.

On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31st March, 2025 taken on record by the Board of
Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31st March, 2025 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164
(2) of the Act.

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial control over financial reporting of the Company and the operating
effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate reportin “Annexure B” to this report.

The qualifications relating to maintenance of accounts and other matters connected therewith are as stated in the Basis for
Qualified Opinion paragraph above.

The matter described in the Basis for Qualified opinion paragraph above, in our opinion, does not have any adverse effect on the
functioning of the Company.

In our opinion, the managerial remuneration for the year ended March 31, 2025 has been paid / provided by Company to its
directors in accordance with the provision of section 197 read with schedule V to the Act;

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and
Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

(i) The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in its Ind AS financial statements. (Refer
note no. 30(A))

(i) The Company has made provision, as required under the applicable law or accounting standards, for material foreseeable
losses, if any, on long-term contracts including derivative contracts.

(iii) There has been no delay in transferring amounts, required to be transferred, to the Investor Education and Protection Fund
by the Company.

(iv) (@) The Management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds (which are material either
individually or in the aggregate) have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share
premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any other person or entity, including foreign
entity (“Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall,
whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on
behalf of the Company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate
Beneficiaries;

(b) The Management has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds (which are material either
individually or in the aggregate) have been received by the Company from any person or entity, including foreign entity
(“Funding Parties”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall, whether,
directly orindirectly, lend orinvest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the
Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate
Beneficiaries;

(c) Based on the audit procedures that have been considered reasonable and appropriate in the circumstances, nothing
has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the representations under sub-clause (i) and (ii) of Rule 11(e),
as provided under (a) and (b) above, contain any material misstatement.

(v) As The Company has not declared any dividend during the year. Hence, reporting requirements under rule 11(f) of
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 are not applicable to the Company.

(vi) (a) Based on our examination carried out in accordance with the implementation Guidance on Reporting on Audit Trail

under Rule 11(g) of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 (Revised 2025 Edition issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India, which included test checks, we report that the company has used an accounting
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software for maintaining its books of account which has a feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility and the same
has operated throughout the year all relevant transaction recorded in the software. Further, during the course of our
audit we did not come across any instance of audit trail feature being tampered with.

(b) Additionally, the audit trail has been preserved by the company as per the statutory requirements for record retention.
Our examination of the audit trail was in the context of an audit of financial statements carried out in accordance with the
standards of auditing and only to the extents required by Rule 11 (g) of the Companies(Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014.
We have not carried out any audit or examination of the audit trail beyond the matters required by the aforesaid Rule 11
(g9) nor have we carried out any standalone audit or examination of the audit trail.

ForV.R. Bansal & Associates
Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration No. 016534N

(Rajan Bansal)

Partner
Place: Delhi Membership No. 093591
Dated: 30" May 2025 UDIN: 25093591BMKWBF 6941
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Annexure-A referred to in paragraph 1 under the heading “Report on other legal and regulatory requirements” of our report of
evendate

Re: CRANEXLIMITED (the Company)

To the best of our information and according to the explanations provided to us by the Company and the books of account and records
examined by us in the normal course of audit, we state that:

1. Inrespectofthe Company’s Property, Plantand Equipment and Intangible Assets:

(a) A. The Company has not satisfactorily maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative details and
situation of Property, Plant and Equipment.
B. The company also has not maintained proper records showing full particulars of intangible assets.

(b) Inthe absence of on updated property, plants and equipment’s due to non-availability of records of physical verification we are
unable to ascertain the appropriateness of the same.

(c) Based on our examination of the property tax receipts and lease agreement for land on which building is constructed, registered
sale deed / transfer deed / conveyance deed provided to us, we report that, the title in respect of self-constructed buildings and
title deeds of all otherimmovable properties, disclosed in the financial statements included under Property, Plant and Equipment
are held in the name of the Company as at the balance sheet date

(d) According to the information & explanation given to us, The Company has not revalued any of its Property, Plant and Equipment
(including right-of-use assets) and intangible assets during the year.

(e) According to the information & explanation given to us, No proceedings have been initiated during the year or are pending against
the Company as at March 31, 2024 for holding any Benami property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (as
amended in 2016) and rules made thereunder.

2. (a) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of records of the Company,
inventory has been physically verified by the management during the year. In our opinion, the frequency of such verification is
reasonable, and procedures and coverage as followed by management were appropriate. However inventory register has not
been produced for verification therefore it is not possible to comment on discrepancies were noticed on verification between the
physical stocks and the book records that were more than 10% in the aggregate of each class of inventory.

(b) The company has been sanctioned working capital limits in excess of five crore rupees, in aggregate, from banks or financial
institutions on the basis of security of current assets; and the quarterly returns or statements filed by the company with such banks
or financial institutions are in agreement with the books of account of the Company except the following observations mentioned
below: -

SL. No. Particulars As per Submitted Statement As Per Books Difference
Quarter 1

1. Inventory 1396.83 1396.89 (0.06)

2. Trade Receivables 2308.82 2226.63 82.19

3. Trade Payables 597.49 1059.47 (461.98)

Quarter 2

1. Inventory 1117.92 1117.92 -

2. Trade Receivables 2813.01 2802.28 10.73

3. Trade Payables 587.84 1218.80 (630.96)

Quarter 3

1. Inventory 1068.03 1068.03 -

2. Trade Receivables 2766.86 2779.57 (12.71)

3. Trade Payables 351.96 950.48 (598.52)

Quarter 4

1. Inventory 649.92 852.04 (202.12)

2. Trade Receivables 3205.79 321553 (9.74)

3. Trade Payables 373.82 826.79 (452.97)

* Refer Note No 31(8) of Standalone Financial Statements.

3. (a)

(b)

The Company has made investments in earlier years. In our opinion and as per and explanations given to us, the Company has
not granted secured/ unsecured loans/advances in nature of loans, or stood guarantee, or provided security to any parties.
Therefore, the reporting under clause 3(iii), (iii)(a), (iii)(c), (iii)(d), (iii)(e) and (iii)(f) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

In respect of the investments, the terms and conditions under which such investments were made are not prejudicial to the
Company’sinterest.
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4. According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of records of the Company, in respect of
investment made, loan given, and guarantee provided by the Company, in our opinion the provisions of Section 185 and 186 of the
CompaniesAct, 2013 (“the Act”) have been complied. The Company has not given any security.

5. The Company has neither accepted any deposits from the public nor accepted any amounts which are deemed to be deposits within
the meaning of sections 73 to 76 of the Companies Act and the rules made thereunder, to the extent applicable. Accordingly, the
requirement to report on clause 3(v) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

6. Pursuant to the rules made by the Central Government of India, the Company is required to maintain cost records as specified under
Section 148(1) of the Actin respect of its certain products and services. We have broadly reviewed the same and are of the opinion that,
prima facie, the prescribed accounts and records have been made and maintained. We have not, however, made a detailed
examination of the records with a view to determine whether they are accurate or complete.

7. (a) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the records of the Company, the
Company is generally regular in depositing with appropriate authorities undisputed statutory dues including goods and services
tax, provident fund, employees' state insurance, income-tax, sales-tax, service tax, duty of customs, cess and other statutory
dues applicable to it. According to the information and explanations given to us and based on audit procedures performed by us,
no undisputed amounts payable in respect of these statutory dues were outstanding, at the year end, for a period of more than six
months from the date they became payable.

(b) The dues of goods and services tax, provident fund, employees' state insurance, income-tax, sales-tax, service tax, duty of
custom, duty of excise, value added tax, cess, and other statutory dues have not been deposited on account of any dispute, are
as follows:

S. No. Name of Statute Nature of Dues Amount (Rs. In lakhs ) Financial Year Forum where dispute is pending

1. Demand raised by the GST
Department (Excluding Demand 5.94 2023-24 Addl. Commissioner, Gr. 2(Appeal)
Penalty) (Amount Deposited Meerut-I
Rs.5.94 Lakh)

2. Show Cause Notice received
from Rs.18.32 (Excluding Demand 7.56 Period for Office Of The Commissioner, Central
Penalty) (Amountdeposited 2017-23 GST, Audit-ll Delhi
Rs.10.49 Lakh)

8. In our opinion, based on audit procedures and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not
surrendered or disclosed any transaction, previously unrecorded in the books of account, in the tax assessments under the Income Tax
Act, 1961 as income during the year. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(viii) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

9. (a) Inouropinion, based on audit procedures and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is regular

in repayment of loans and borrowing or in the payment of interest thereon to any lender.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the records of the Company, the
Company has not been declared a wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or government or government authority.

(c) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the records of the Company,
term loans were applied for the purpose for which the loans were obtained.

(d) On an overall examination of the financial statements of the Company, no funds raised on short-term basis have been used for
long-term purposes by the Company.

(e) According to the information and explanations given to us and on an overall examination of the financial statements of the
Company, we report that the Company has not taken any funds from any entity or person on account of or to meet the obligations
of its subsidiary/associate defined under the Act.

(f)  According to the information and explanations given to us and procedures performed by us, we report that the Company has not
raised loans during the year on the pledge of securities held in its associate/subsidiary.

10. (a) According to the information and explanations given to us and procedures performed by us the Company has not raised any
money during the year by way of initial public offer / further public offer (including debt instruments). Accordingly, the requirement
toreporton clause 3(x)(a) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(b) The Company has made preferential allotment and private placement of shares during the year. For such allotment of shares, the
Company has complied with the requirements of Section 42 and 62 of the Companies Act, 2013, and the funds raised have been,
prima facie, applied by the Company during the year for the purposes for which the funds were raised which were to meet funding
requirements for Business Expansion, working capital requirements to strengthen financial position and general corporate
purposes. The Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of (fully or partly or optionally) convertible
debentures during then year.

11. (a) Based on examination of the books and records of the Company and according to the information and explanations given to us,
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12.
13.

14,

15.

16.

17.
18.

19.

20.

no fraud by the Company or on the Company has been noticed or reported during the course of the audit.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, no report under sub-section (12) of Section 143 of the Act has been led
by the auditors in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under Rule 13 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central
Government.

(c) Asrepresented to us by the management, there are no whistle blower complaints received by the Company during the year.
The Company is not a Nidhi Company and hence reporting under clause (xii) of the Order is not applicable.

In our opinion, the Company is in compliance with Section 177 and 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 with respect to applicable
transactions with the related parties and the details of related party transactions have been disclosed in the standalone financial
statements as required by the applicable accounting standards.

(a) Based on information and explanations provided to us and our audit procedures, in our opinion, the Company has an internal
audit system commensurate with the size and nature of its business.

(b) We have considered the internal audit reports of the Company issued till date for the period under audit.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not entered into any non-cash
transactions with its directors or persons connected to its directors and hence, provisions of Section 192 of the Act are not applicable to
the Company.

(a) Inouropinion, the Company is not required to be registered under section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934. Hence,
reporting under clause 3(xvi) (a) of the Order is not applicable.

(b) The Company has not conducted any non-banking financial/housing finance activities during the year. Accordingly, the reporting
under clause 3(xvi)(b) of the orderis not applicable to the Company.

(c) The Company is not a Core Investment Company (CIC) as defined in the regulations made by the Reserve Bank of India.
Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(xvi)© of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(d) Based on the information and explanations provided by the management of the Company, the Group does not have any CICs,
which are part of the Group. We have not, however, separately evaluated whether the information provided by the management
is accurate and complete. Accordingly, the reporting under clause 3(xvi)(d) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

The Company has notincurred cash losses during the financial year covered by our audit and the immediately preceding financial year.

There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors of the Company during the year.

According to the information and explanation given to us and on the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of
realisation of financial assets and payment of financial liabilities, other information accompanying the financial statements and our
knowledge of the Board of Directors and Management plans and based on our examination of the evidence supporting the
assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, which causes us to believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the date of the
audit report indicating that Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall
due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date. We, however, state that this is not an assurance as to the future viability of
the Company.

We further state that our reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any
assurance that all liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date, will get discharged by the Company as
and when they fall due;

a) Inouropinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, there is no unspent amount under sub-section (5) of
Section 135 of the Act pursuant to any project other than ongoing projects. Accordingly, clause 3(xx)(a) of the Order is not
applicable.

(b) Inouropinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, there is no unspent amount under sub-section (5) of
Section 135 of the Act pursuant to any ongoing project. Accordingly, clause 3(xx)(b) of the Order is not applicable.

21. The reporting under Clause 3(xxi) of the Order is not applicable in respect of audit of the standalone financial statements. Accordingly,
no commentin respect of the said clause has been included in this report.
For V.R. Bansal & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 016534N
(Rajan Bansal)
Partner
Place: Delhi Membership No. 093591
Dated: 30" May 2025 UDIN: 25093591BMKWBF 6941
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Annexure - B to the Auditors' Report

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)
Tothe Members of Cranex Limited

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of CRANEX LIMITED (“the Company”) as of 31st March, 2025 in conjunction with our audit of the
Standalone financial statements of the Company for the period ended on that date.

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company's management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria
established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial
Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India ('ICAI'). These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to company's policies, the
safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of
reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors' Responsibility
Ourresponsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial reporting based on our audit.

We conducted our auditin accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) and the Standards on
Auditing, issued by ICAl and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls,
both applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note
require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over
financial reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our auditinvolves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating
effectiveness.

Our audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk
that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected
depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Company's internal financial controls
system overfinancial reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

Acompany's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the
preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. Acompany's internal financial control over financial
reporting includes those policies and procedures that:

1. pertainto the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company;

2. provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of
the company; and

3. Provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a
material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the possibility of collusion orimproper management override of controls,
material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to
future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree
of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over
financial reporting were operating effectively as at 31st March 2025, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering
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the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India.

ForV.R.Bansal & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No.016534N

(Rajan Bansal)
Partner
Membership No. 093591

Place: Delhi
UDIN: 25093591BMKWBF 6941

Dated: 30" May 2025
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Statement on Impact of Audit Qualifications (for audit report with modified opinion) submitted along-with
Annual Audited Financial Results - (Standalone)
(in lakhs)
Statement on Impact of Audit Qualifications for the Year ended March 31, 2025
[Under Regulation 33 / 52 of the SEBI (LODR) (Amendment) Regulations, 2016]
| Sl. Particulars Audited Figures (as reported| Adjusted Figures (audited
No. before adjusting for figures after adjusting for
qualifications) qualifications)
1 Turnover / Total Income 5196.36 5196.36
2 Total Expenditure 5001.72 5001.72
3 Net Profit/ (Loss) 194.62 194.62
4 Earnings Per Share 3.21 3.21
5 Total Assets 5671.47 5671.47
6 Total Liabilities 3230.72 3230.72
7 Net Worth 2440.74 2440.74
8 Net Profit before OCI 194.62 194.62
9 Other Comprehensive Income (0.73) (0.73)
10 Net Profit after OCI 193.90 193.90

Audit Qualification (each audit qualification separately):

a. Details of Audit Qualification:

i. Property, Plant and Equipment (PPE) register has not been produced before us for verification. Depreciation of Property, Plant and Equipment has

been provided on the basis of figures as certified by the management.

ii. Balances under Trade Receivables and Trade Payables, loans and advances given by the Company and parties from whom unsecured loans have

been taken are subject to confirmations and adjustments, if any.

management.

The Financial Assets and Liabilities — Trade Receivables and long term borrowings taken from IFE Cranex Elevators and Escalators India Private
Limited have not been measured at fair value as required by Ind AS-109 “Financial Instruments”. Impairment provisions and fair value
measurements have notbeen measured in accordance with Expected Credit Loss (ECL) method as per IndAS-109.

iv. Inventory register has not been produced before us for verification. Inventory value has been provided on the basis of figures as certified by the|

b. Type of Audit Qualification : Qualified Opinion

¢. Frequency of qualification:

The qualification mentioned above in Il (a) (i) to (iv) is repetitive

d. ForAudit Qualification(s) where the impact is quantified by the auditor, Management's Views:

As perattached annexure |

e. ForAudit Qualification(s) where the impact is not quantified by the auditor:

(i) Management's estimation on the impact of audit qualification: As per attached annexure |
(i) 1fmanagementis unable to estimate the impact, reasons for the same: N.A.
(iii) Auditors’' Comments on (i) or (i) above: N.A.

Signatories

O  PiyushAgrawal, (Managing Director)

O ChaitanyaAgrawal, (CFO)

O  Shilpy Chopra, (Audit Committee Chairman)

O RajanBansal, (Statutory Auditor)

Place: Ghaziabad

Date: 30.05.2025
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Annexurel

Audit Qualification (each audit qualification separately):

For Audit Qualification(s) where the
impact is quantified by the auditor,
Management's Views:

For Audit Qualification(s) where the impact
is not quantified by the auditor

(i) Property, Plant and Equipment (PPE) register has not been
produced before us for verification. Depreciation of Property, Plant
and Equipment has been provided on the basis of figures as certified
by the management,

The Company has calculated the Depreciation
figures as per applicable rules. The detailed
register is under preparation.

(ii) Balances under Trade Receivables and Trade Payables, loans and
advances given by the Company and parties from whom unsecured
loans have been taken are subject to confirmations and adjustments,
ifany.

Noted and confirmed

(iif) The Financial Assets and Liabilities — Trade Receivables and long
term borrowings taken from IFE Cranex Elevators and Escalators
India Private Limited have not been measured at fair value as
required by Ind AS-109 “Financial Instruments”. Impairment
provisions and fair value measurements have not been measured in
accordance with Expected Credit Loss (ECL) method as per Ind AS-
109.

The Company does not expect any change in the
long term borrowings taken from IFE Cranex
Elevators and Escalators India Private Limited.
Thereis no Expected Credit Loss (ECL).

(iv) Inventory register has not been produced before us for verification.
Inventory value has been provided on the basis of figures as certified
by the management.

Noted and confirmed

Signatories

O PiyushAgrawal, (Managing Director)

O ChaitanyaAgrawal, (CFO)

O  Shilpy Chopra, (Audit Committee Chairman)

O RajanBansal, (Statutory Auditor)

Place: Ghaziabad

Date: 30.05.2025
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BALANCE SHEET AS AT MARCH 31, 2025
(Amount in Lakhs)
Notes As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024
ASSETS
1 Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 3 569.49 600.10
Investments in associates and Joint Ventures 4 213.711 213.71
Financial assets 5
(i) Non-Current Investments 0.01 0.01
(i) Loans and advances - -
(iii) Other Financial Assets 208.82 407.86
Deferred tax assets (Net) 6 - -
Other non-current assets 7 1.50 2.58
993.53 1,224.25
2 Current assets
Inventories 8 852.04 1,131.14
Financial assets 9
(i) Trade receivables 3,215.53 2,704.57
(ii) Cash and cash equivalents 0.81 1.34
(iii) Other bank balances 426.05 145.68
(iv) Loans and advances - -
(v) Other Financial Assets 25.51 148.73
Current tax assets (Net) 10 - -
Other current assets 1 158.00 190.07
4,677.94 4,321.53
Total Assets 5,671.47 5,545.78
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
1 EQUITY
Equity share capital 12 657.00 600.00
Other equity 13 1,783.74 501.88
2,440.74 1,101.88
2 LIABILITIES
Non-current liabilities
Financial liabilities
(i) Borrowing 14 221.04 650.97
(i) Lease Liabilities - -
Provisions 15 56.44 52.62
Deferred tax liabilities (Net) 6 33.59 31.00
311.06 734.58
Current liabilities
Financial liabilities
(i) Short Term Borrowings 17 1,770.96 2,056.03
(i) Trade payable
Total outstanding dues of micro and small enterprises 34.92 129.96
Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro and small enterprises 791.87 1,173.86
(iii) Other financial liabilites 115.30 155.59
Other current liabilities 18 154.36 171.69
Provisions 19 25.96 17.26
Current tax liabilities (Net) 20 26.28 4.94
2,919.66 3,709.31
Total Equity and Liabilities 5,671.47 5,545.78
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Summary of significant accounting policies
Contingent liabilities, commitments and litigations
Other notes on accounts

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
As per our report of even date

For V.R. Bansal & Associates
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration No.: 016534N

Sd/-

Rajan Bansal
Partner

M. No.: 093591

Place: Sahibabad
Date: 30th May 2025
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Sd/-

Piyush Agrawal
Managing Director
DIN: 01761004

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Sd/-

Chaitanya Agrawal
Whole-Time Director & CFO
DIN: 05108809

Sd/-

Heena Sharma
Company Secretary
M. No.: A-65512
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STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE PERIOD ENDED MARCH 31, 2025
(Amount in Lakhs)
Notes As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024
I INCOME
Revenue from operations 21 5,153.76 6,211.41
Other income 22 42.60 101.17
Total Income 5,196.36 6,312.58
Il EXPENSES
Cost of materials consumed 23 3,052.71 3,982.01
Purchase of traded goods 24 26.57 57.93
Change in inventories of FG, Traded Goods and WIP 25 (23.79) 295.48
Employee benefits expenses 26 568.90 448.11
Finance costs 27 170.74 144.65
Depreciation and amortisation expenses 28 34.04 31.46
Other expenses 29 1,115.63 1,136.11
Total Expenses 4,944.81 6,095.74
Il Profit before exceptional items and tax 251.55 216.83
Add : Exceptional items - -
IV Profit before tax 251.55 216.83
V  Tax expenses
Current tax 60.00 50.95
Income tax for earlier year (5.93) 13.49
Deferred tax 2.84 0.51
Income tax expense 56.91 64.95
VI Profit/ (loss) for the year 194.64 151.88
VIl  Other comprehensive income
Other comprehensive income not to be reclassified to profit or loss in
subsequent periods
i) Re-measurement gains on defined benefit plans (0.97) 0.63
ii) Income tax effect 0.24 (0.16)
Other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax (0.73) 0.47
VIII Total comprehensive income/ (loss) for the year, net of tax 193.91 152.35
IX Earnings per equity share
(nominal value of share Rs.10/-)
Basic (Rs.) 3.21 253
Diluted (Rs.) 2.35 2.53
Summary of significant accounting policies 2
Contingent liabilities, commitments and litigations 30
Other notes on accounts 31
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
As per our report of even date
For V.R. Bansal & Associates For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration No.: 016534N
Sd/- Sd/- Sd/-
Rajan Bansal Piyush Agrawal Chaitanya Agrawal
Partner Managing Director Whole-Time Director & CFO
M. No.: 093591 DIN: 01761004 DIN: 05108809
Sd/-
Heena Sharma
Place: Sahibabad Company Secretary
Date: 30th May 2025 M. No.: A-65512
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CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE PERIOD ENDED MARCH 31ST, 2025

(Amount in Lakhs)

A. CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Profit/ (loss) before income tax

Adjustments to reconcile profit before tax to net cash flows
Depreciation and amortisation expense
Profit on Sale of Vehicle
Finance cost
Interest income

Operating Profit before working capital changes

Movement in working capital
(Increase)/ Decrease in financial assets loans and advances
(Increase)/ Decrease in inventories
(Increase)/ Decrease in trade receivables
(Increase)/ Decrease in other financial assets
(Increase)/ Decrease in other non-financial assets
Increase/ (Decrease) in trade payables
Increase/ (Decrease) in other financial liabilities
Increase/ (Decrease) in other financial liabilities
Increase/ (Decrease) in other non current asset
Increase/ (Decrease) in current Tax libility
Increase/ (Decrease) in provisions

Cash generated from operations
Income tax paid (net of refunds)

Net Cash flow from Operating Activities (A)

o~ o~ —~ —

B. CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

goods and capital advances)
Proceeds from fixed deposits (Net)
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment
Interest Received
Net Cash flow from/(used) in Investing Activities (B)

C. CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds/(Repayment) of Long term borrowings
Proceeds from Share issued
Interest Paid

Net Cash Flow from/(used) in Financing Activities (C)

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year
Cash and Cash Equivalents at the end of the year

Net increase / (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C)

Purchase of property, plant and equipment and CWIP (net of creditor for capital

As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024

251.55 216.83
34.04 31.46

(1.97) -
170.74 144.65
(38.86) (31.74)
415.49 361.21
37.93 (23.96)
279.10 478.60
(510.96) (601.24)
123.21 (136.65)
32.07 23.24
(477.02) (77.48)
(40.29) (88.83)
(17.33) (2.62)
1.08 (0.25)
11.56 11.40
(145.15) (56.58)
(32.73) (55.80)
(177.88) (112.38)
(8.77) (52.55)
(119.28) (20.98)
7.3 -
38.86 31.74
(81.87) (41.79)
(714.99) 297.13

1,144.95 -
(170.74) (144.65)
259.22 152.48
(0.53) (1.69)
1.34 3.02
0.81 1.34

Notes :

1 The above Cash flow statement has been prepared under the "Indirect Method" as set out in Indian Accounting Standard-7, "Statement of Cash Flows".

2 Components of cash and cash equivalents :-
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(Amount in Lakhs)

As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024
Cash and cash equivalents
Balances with banks
Current accounts 0.76 0.93
Cash on hand 0.04 0.41
0.81 1.34
As per our report of even date
For V.R. Bansal & Associates For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration No.: 016534N
Sd/- Sd/- Sd/-
Rajan Bansal Piyush Agrawal Chaitanya Agrawal
Partner Managing Director Whole-Time Director & CFO
M. No.: 093591 DIN: 01761004 DIN: 05108809
Sd/-
Heena Sharma
Place: Sahibabad Company Secretary
Date: 30th May 2025 M. No.: A-65512

58



50" Annual Report 2024-2025 CRANEX

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY FOR THE PERIOD ENDED MARCH 31, 2025
(A) Equity Share Capital

Particulars Nos. (Amount in Lakhs)
As at March 31, 2023 6,000,000 600.00
Add:- Issued during the year - -
As at March 31, 2024 6,000,000 600.00
Add:- Issued during the year 570,000 57.00
As at March 31, 2025 6,570,000 657.00

(B) OtherEquity
(Amount in Lakhs)

Particulars Reserves and surplus Money received Total
Securities Premium Account | Retained Earnings | 2gdainest share
warrant
As at April 1, 2023 - 349.53 349.53
Net profit /(loss) for the year 151.88 151.88
Other comprehensive income for the year
Re-measurement gains on defined benefit plans (net of tax) 047 047
As at March 31, 2024 - 501.88 - 501.88
Net profit /(loss) for the year 194.64 194.64
Other comprehensive income for the year
Re-measurement gains on defined benefit plans (net of tax) (0.73) (0.73)
Transaction with owners in their capacity as owners
Equity share Issued during the year 524.40 524.40
Money received against share warrant 563.55 563.55
As at March 31, 2025 524.40 695.79 563.55 1,783.74
Summary of significant accounting policies 2
Contingent liabilities, commitments and litigations 30
Other notes on accounts 31

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
As per our report of even date

For V.R. Bansal & Associates For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration No.: 016534N
Sd/- Sd/- Sd/-
Rajan Bansal Piyush Agrawal Chaitanya Agrawal
Partner Managing Director Whole-Time Director & CFO
M. No.: 093591 DIN: 01761004 DIN: 05108809
Sd/-
Heena Sharma
Place: Sahibabad Company Secretary
Date: 30th May 2025 M. No.: A-65512
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Notes to Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31,2025

1

CORPORATE INFORMATION
Cranex Limited (the Company) was incorporated on 27th February 1973. The Company is a public limited Company incorporated and domiciled in India and has its
registered office at Delhi, India. The Company is listed on Bombay Stock Exchange (BSE).The CIN of the Company is L74899DL1973PLC006503.

The Company is primarily engaged in the business of manufacturing and selling cranes and its parts.The Company's corporate office and manufacturing unit are
loacted at57/1, Industrial Area, Site-1V, Sahibabad, 201010 in Uttar Pradesh.

SIGNIFICANTACCOUNTING POLICIES
2.1 Statementof Compliance
The financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (IND AS) notified under Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015. For all periods including the year ended 31 March 2017, the Company prepared its financial statements in accordance
with accounting standards notified under the section 133 of the Companies Act 2013, read together with paragraph 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules,
2014 (Indian GAAP). The financial statements were authorised for issue by the Company’s Board of Directors on 30th May, 2025.

2.2 Basis of preparation
The financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (IND AS) notified under Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015.These standalone financial statements are presented in INR and all values are rounded to the nearest Lakhs (INR
00,000), except when otherwise indicated

These financial statements have been prepared on accural basis and under historical cost basis, except for the following assets and liabilities which have been
measured at fair value:

(@) Certainfinancial assets and liabilities thatis measured at fair value.
(b) Assets held for sale-measured at fair value less cost to sell.
(c) Defined benefit plans-plan assets measured at fair value.

2.3 Useof estimates and judgments
The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with Ind AS requires the management to make estimates, judgments and assumptions. These
estimates, judgments and assumptions affect the application of accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, the disclosures of
contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the period. Accounting
estimates could change from period to period. Actual results could differ from those estimates. Appropriate changes in estimates are made as management
becomes aware of changes in circumstances surrounding the estimates. Changes in estimates are reflected in the financial statements in the period in which
changes are made and, if material, their effects are disclosed in the notes to the financial statements.

2.4 Currentversus non-current classification
The Company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current/ non-current classification. An asset s treated as current when itis:

(@) Expected to be realized orintended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle

(c) Held primarily for purpose of trading

(d) Expected to be realized within twelve months after the reporting period, or

(e) Cashorcash equivalentunless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for atleast twelve months after the reporting period

All other assets are classified as non-current.
A liabilityis currentwhen:
(a) Itisexpectedtobe settled in normal operating cycle

a)

(b) Itis held primarily for purpose of trading

(c) ltis due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or

(d) Thereis nounconditional right to defer the settiement of the liability for atleast twelve months after the reporting period.

All other liabilities are classified as non current.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are classified as non- current assets and liabilities.

The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realization in cash and cash equivalents. The Company has identified
twelve months as its operating cycle.

2.5 Property, plantand equipment

Property, Plant and equipment including capital work in progress are stated at cost, less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any.
The cost comprises of purchase price, taxes, duties, freight and other incidental expenses directly attributable and related to acquisition and installation of the
concerned assets and are further adjusted by the amount of input tax credit availed wherever applicable. When significant parts of plant and equipment are
required to be replaced at intervals, the Company depreciates them separately based on their respective useful lives. Likewise, when a major inspection is
performed, its costis recognised in the carrying amount of the plant and equipment as a replacement if the recognition criteria are satisfied. All other repair and
maintenance costs are recognised in profit or loss as incurred. The present value of the expected cost for the decommissioning of an asset after its use is
included in the cost of the respective assetif the recognition criteria for a provision are met.

An item of property, plant and equipment and any significant part initially recognised is derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and
the carrying amount of the asset) is included in the income statement when the asset is derecognised.
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Capital work- in- progress includes cost of property, plant and equipment under installation / under development as at the balance sheet date.
Depreciation on property, plant and equipment is provided on prorata basis on straight-line method using the useful lives of the assets estimated by
management and in the manner prescribed in Schedule Il of the Companies Act 2013. The useful lives are as follows:

Assets Usefullife (in years)

Property, Plantand Equipment Overits useful life considered as 30 years as technically assessed
Computer Software Overa period of 5 years

Other Overthe period of agreement of right to use

Components relevent to fixed assets, where significant, are separately depreciated on strainght line basis in terms of their life span assessed by technical
evaluation in item specified context.

Lease hold improvements are depreciated on straight line basis over their initial agreement period.
The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and equipment are reviewed at each financial year end and adjusted
prospectively, if appropriate.

(i) Goodwill
No self-generated goodwill is recognized. Goodwill arises during the course of acquisition of an entity in terms of accounting treatment provided in IND AS-
103 dealing with "Business Combination". Goodwill represents the excess of consideration money over the fair value of net assets of the entity under
acquisition. Such goodwill is construed to have indefinite life and as such is not subject to annual amortization but annual test of impairment under INDAS -
36. Any shortfall in consideration money vis-a-vis fair value of net assets on account of bargain purchase is recognized in OCI at acquisition point and
subsequently transferred to capital reserve.
(i) Intangible assets
Intangible assets including software license of enduring nature and contractual rights acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost.
Following initial recognition, intangible assets are carried at cost less accumulated amortization and accumulated impairment losses, if any. Internally
generated intangibles, excluding capitalized development cost, are not capitalized and the related expenditure is reflected in statement of Profit and Loss
in the period in which the expenditure is incurred. Cost comprises the purchase price and any attributable cost of bringing the asset to its working condition
foritsintended use.

The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed as either finite or indefinite.

Intangible assets with finite lives are amortized over their useful economic lives and assessed for impairment whenever there is an indication that the
intangible asset may be impaired. The amortization period and the amortization method for an intangible asset with a finite useful life is reviewed at least at
the end of each reporting period. Changes in the expected useful life or the expected pattern of consumption of future economic benefits embodied in the
asset is accounted for by changing the amortization period or method, as appropriate, and are treated as changes in accounting estimates. The
amortization expense on intangible assets with finite lives is recognized in the statement of profit and loss in the expense category consistent with the
function of the intangible assets.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are not amortized, but are tested forimpairment annually, either individually or at the cash-generating unit level.
The assessment of indefinite life is reviewed annually to determine whether the indefinite life continues to be supportable. If not, the change in useful life
from indefinite to finite is made on a prospective basis.

Gains orlosses arising from disposal of the intangible assets are measured as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of
the assetand are recognized in the statement of profit and loss when the assets are disposed off.

Intangible assets are amortized on a straight line basis over the estimated useful economic life which generally does not exceed 6 years.

Type of assets Basis
ERP and other Software Straight line basis over a period of six years.

(iii) Research and Development Costs (Product Development)
Research costs are expensed as incurred. Development expenditure on an individual project is recognised as an intangible asset when the Company can
demonstrate:

(@) The technical feasibility of completing the intangible asset so that the asset will be available for use or sale
(b) Itsintention to complete and its ability and intention to use or sell the asset

(c) How the assetwill generate future economic benefits

(d) The availability of resources to complete the asset

()

Following initial recognition of the development expenditure as an asset, the asset is carried at cost less any accumulated amortisation and accumulated
impairment losses. Amortisation of the asset begins when development is complete and the asset is available for use. It is amortised over the period of
expected future benefit. Amortisation expense is recognised in the statement of profit and loss unless such expenditure forms part of carrying value of
anotherasset.

During the period of development, the assetis tested forimpairment annually.

Investmentin Subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures
An associate is an entity over which the Company has significant influence. Significant influence is the power to participate in the financial and operating policy
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decisions of the investee, butis not control or joint control over those policies.

The investment in subsidiary, associate and Joint venture are carried at cost as per IND AS 27. Investment accounted for at cost is accounted for in accordance
with IND AS 105 when they are classified as held for sale and Investment carried at cost is tested forimpairment as per IND AS 36. An investor, regardless of the
nature of its involvement with an entity (the investee), shall determine whether it is a parent by assessing whether it controls the investee. An investor controls an
investee when it is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the investee and has the ability to affect those returns through its power
over the investee. Thus, an investor controls an investee if and only if the investor has all the following:

(a) powerovertheinvestee;

(b) exposure, orrights, to variable returns from ts involvement with the investee and

(c) theability to use its power over the investee to affect the amount of the investor’s returns.

Ondisposal ofinvestment, the difference between its carrying amount and net disposal proceeds is charged or credited to the statement of profit and loss.

Investment Properties

Property that is held for long term rental yields or for capital appreciation or for both, and that is not occupied by the Company, is classified as investment
property. Investment property is measured initially at its cost, including related transaction cost and where applicable borrowing costs. Subsequent expenditure
is capitalised to assets carrying amount only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the expenditure will flow to the Company and the
cost of the item can be measured reliably. All other repair and maintenance cost are expensed when incurred. When part of an investment property is replaced,
the carrying amount of the replaced partis derecognised.

Investment property consist of land which is Carried at Cost.
Aninvestment property is derecognised upon disposal or when the investment property is permanently withdrawn from use and no future economic benefits are
expected from the disposal. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of property is recognised in the Statement of Profitand Loss in the same period.

Financial instruments
Afinancial instrumentis any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or equity instrument of another entity.
I Financial Assets

The Company classifies its financial assets in the following measurement categories:

(@) Thosetobe measured subsequently at fair value (either through other comprehensive income, or through profit & loss).

(b) Those measured atamortised cost.

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are recognised initially at fair value plus, in the case of financial assets not recorded at fair value through profit and loss, transaction costs
that are directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets. Purchase or sale of financial asset that require delivery of assets within a time frame
established by regulation or conversion in the market place (regular way trades) are recognised on the trade date, i.e., the date that the Company commits
to purchase and sell the assets.

Subsequent measurement

For purposes of subsequent measurement financial assets are classified in following categories:
(@) Debtinstruments atamortized cost

(b) Debtinstruments at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)

(c) Debtinstruments atfair value through profitand loss (FVTPL)

(d) Equity instruments measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)
(e) Equity instruments measured at fair value through profitand loss (FVTPL)

Where assets are measured at fair value, gains and losses are either recognized entirely in the statement of profit and loss (i.e. fair value through profit or
loss), or recognized in other comprehensive income (i.e. fair value through other comprehensive income). For investment in debt instruments, this will
depend on the business model in which the investment is held. Forinvestmentin equity instruments, this will depend on whether the Company has made an
irrevocable election at the time of initial recognition to account for equity instruments at FVTOCI.

Debtinstruments at amortized cost

ADebtinstrumentis measured at amortized cost if both the following conditions are met:

()  BusinessModel Test: The assetis held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets for collecting contractual cash flows, and

(i)  Cashflow Characterstics Test: Contractual terms of asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest (SPP!I) on principal amount outstanding.

Afterinitial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest rate (EIR) method. Amortised
costis calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of EIR. The EIR amortization
is included in finance income in statement of profit or loss. The losses arising from impairment are recognized in the statement of profit or loss. This
category generally applies to trade, other receivables, loans and other financial assets.

Debt instruments at fair value through OCI
A'debtinstrument'is classified as at the FVTOCI if both of the following criteria are met:

()  Business Model Test: The objective of the business model is achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial assets, and
(i) Cashflow Characterstics Test: The asset's contarctual cash flows represent SPPI.

Debt instrument included within the FVTOCI category are measured initially as well as at each reporting date at fair value. Fair value movements are
recognized in the other comprehensive income (OCI). However, the Company recognises interest income, impairment losses and reversals and
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foreign exchange gain or loss in the statement of profit and loss. On dereognition of the asset, cumulative gain or loss previously recognized in OCl is
reclassified from the equity to statement of profit &loss. Interest earned whilst holding FVTOCI debt instrument is reported as interestincome using the
EIR method.

Debtinstruments at FVTPL
FVTPL is a residual category for debt instruments. Any debt instrument, which does not meet the criteria for categorization as at amortized cost or as
FVTOCI,is classified asat FVTPL.

In adition, the Company may elect to designate a debt instrument, which otherwise meets amortised cost or FVTOCI criteria, as at FVTPL. However, such
election is allowed only if doing so reduces or eliminates a measurement or recognition inconsistency (referred to as 'accounting mismatch'). The Company
has not designated any debtinstrumentas at FVTPL.

Equity investments of other entities

All equity investments in scope of IND AS 109 are measured at fair value. Equity instruments which are held for trading are classified as at FVTPL. For all
other equity instruments, the Company may make an irrevocable election to present in other comprehensive income all subsequent changes in the fair
value. The Company makes such election on an instrument-by-instrument basis. The classification is made on initial recognition and is irrevocable.

In case of equity instruments classified as FVTOCI, then all fair value changes on the instrument, excluding dividends, are recognized in the OCI. There is
no recycling of the amounts from OClI to statement of profit and loss, even on sale of investment. However, the Company may transfer the cumulative gain
orloss within equity.

Equity instruments included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all changes recognized in the Statement of Profitand loss.

Derecognition
Afinancial asset (or ,where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of group of similar financial assets) is primarily derecognised when:
(@) Therighttoreceive cash flows from the assets have expired, or
(b) The Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the received cash flows in full without
material delay to a third party under a "pass through" arrangement and either:

(I)  the Company has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or

(i) the Company has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the asset.
Where the Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered into a passthrough arrangement, it evaluates if and to what
extent it has retained the risks and rewards of ownership. Where it has nither transferred not retained substantially all of the risks and rewards of the assets, nor
transferred control of the assets, the Company continues to recognise the transferred assets to the extent of the Company's continuing involvement. In that
case, the Company also recognises an associated liability. The transferred asset and the associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and
obligations thatthe Company has retained.

Impairment of financial assets
Inaccordance with IND AS 109, the Company applies expected credit losses (ECL) model for measurement and recognition of impairment loss on the following
financial asset and credit risk exposure:

(a) Financial assets measured atamortized cost e.g. loans, debt securities, deposists, trade receivables and bank balance;

(b) Financial assets measured at fair value through other comprehensive income(FVTOCI);

(c) Tradereceivables orany contractual right to receive cash or another financial asset that result from transactions that are within the scope of IndAS 18
(d) Financial guarantee contracts which are not measured at FVTPL

The Company follows "simplified approach” for recognition of impairment loss allowance on:

(a) Tradereceivables or contractrevenue receivables;

(b) Alllease receivables resulting from the transactions within the scope of IND AS 116

The application of simplified approach does not require the Company to track changes in credit risk. Rather, it recognizes impairment loss allowance based on
lifetime ECLs ateach reporting date, right from its initial recognition.

For recognition of impairment loss on other financial assets and risk exposure, the Company determines whether there has been a significant increase in the
credit risk since initial recognition. If credit risk has not increased significantly, 12-month ECL is used to provide for impairment loss. However, if credit risk has
increased significantly, lifetime ECL is used. If, in subsequent period, credit quality of the instrument improves such that there is no longer a significant increase
in creditrisk since initial recognition, then the entity reverts to recognizing impairmentloss allowance based on 12-months ECL.

Lifetime ECL are the expected credit losses resulting from all possible default events over the expected life of a financial instrument. The 12-month ECL is a
portion of the lifetime ECL which results from default events that are possible within 12 months after the reporting date.

ECL is the difference between all contractual cash flows that are due to the company in accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that the entity
expects toreceive (i.e., all cash shortfalls), discounted at the original EIR. When estimating the cash flows, an entity is required to consider:

(a) Financial assets measured as at amortised cost, contractual revenue receivables and lease receivables: ECL is presented as an allowance, i.e., as
an integral part of the measurement of those assets in the balance sheet. The allowance reduces the net carrying amount. Until the asset meets write-off
criteria, the Company does not reduce impairment allowance from the gross carrying amount.

(b) Debt instruments measured at FVTOCI: Since financial assets are already reflected at fair value, impairment allowance is not further reduced from its
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value.

Forassessingincrease in credit risk and impairment loss, the Company combines financial instruments on the basis of shared credit risk characteristics with the
objective of facilitating an analysis that is designed to enable significantincreases in credit risk to be identified on a timely basis.

Financial liabilities:

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified at initial recognition as financial liabilities at fair value through statement of profit or loss, loans and borrowings, and payables,
as appropriate.

Allfinancial liabilities are recognised intially at fair value and in case of loans, borrowings and payables, net of directly attributable transaction costs.
The Company's financial liabilities include trade and other payables, loans and borrowings including bank overdrafts.

Subsequent measurement
The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification, as described below:

Trade Payables

These amounts represents liabilities for goods and services provided to the Company prior to the end of financial year which are unpaid. The amounts are
unsecured and are usually paid within 120 days of recognition. Trade and other payables are presented as current liabilities unless payment s not due within 12
months after the reporting period. They are recognized initially at fair value and subsequently measured at amortized cost using EIR method.

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial liabilities at fair value through statement of profit or loss include financial liabilities held for trading and financial liabilities designated upon initial
recognition as at fair value through statement of profit or loss. Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading if they are incurred for the purpose of
repurchasing inthe nearterm.

Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading are recognized in the statement of profit and loss.

Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition at fair value through statement of profit or loss are designated as such at the initial date of recognition, and
only if the criteria in IND AS 109 are satisfied. For liabilities designated as FVTPL, fair value gains/ losses attributable to changes in own credit risk are
recognized in OCI. These gains/ loss are not subsequently transferred to profit and loss. However, the Company may transfer the cumulative gain or loss within
equity. All other changes in fair value of such liability are recognized in the statement of profit or loss. The Company has not designated any financial liability as at
fair value through profitand loss.

Loans and borrowings

Borrowings are initially recognised at fair value, net of transaction cost incurred. After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently
measured atamortized cost using the EIR method. Gains and losses are recognized in statement of profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognised as well as
through the EIR amortization process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR
amortization is included as finance costs in the statement of profit and loss.

Financial guarantee contracts

Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Company are those contracts that require a payment to be made to reimburse the holder for a loss itincurs because
the specified debtor fails to make a payment when due in accordance with the terms of a debt instrument. Financial guarantee contracts are recognized initially
as aliability at fair value, adjusted for transaction costs that are directly attributable to the issuance of the guarantee. Subsequently, the liability is measured at
the higher of the amount of loss allowance determined as perimpairment requirements of IND AS 109 and the amount recognized less cumulative amortization.

Derecognition

Afinancial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires. When an existing financial liability is replaced by
another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is
treated as the derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognized in the
Statement of Profitand Loss.

Reclassification of financial assets:

The Company determines classification of financial assets and liabilities on initial recognition. After initial recognition, no reclassification is made for financial
assets which are equity instruments and financial liabilities. For financial assets which are debt instruments, a reclassification is made only if there is a change in
the business model for managing those assets. Changes to the business model are expected to be infrequent. The Company’s senior management determines
change in the business model as a result of external or internal changes which are significant to the Company’s operations. Such changes are evident to
external parties. A change in the business model occurs when the Company either begins or ceases to perform an activity that is significant to its operations. If
the Company reclassifies financial assets, it applies the reclassification prospectively from the reclassification date which is the first day of the immediately next
reporting period following the change in business model. The Company does not restate any previously recognised gains, losses (including impairment gains or
losses) orinterest.

Original classification Revised classification Accounting treatment

Amortised cost FVTPL Fair value is measured at reclassification date. Difference between
previous amortized cost and fair value is recognised in statement
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of profitand loss.

FVTPL Amortised cost Fair value at reclassification date become its new gross carrying
amount. EIR is calculated based on the new gross carrying
amount.

Amortised cost FVTOCI Fair value is measured at reclassification date. Difference between

previous amortised cost and fair value is recognised in OCI. No
change in EIR due to reclassification.

FVTOCI Amortised cost Fair value at reclassification date becomes its new amortised cost
carrying amount. However, cumulative gain or loss in OCl is
adjusted against fair value. Consequently, the asset is measured
asifithad always been measured at amortised cost.

FVTPL FVTOCI Fair value at reclassification datebecomes its new carrying
amount. No other adjustmentis required.

FVTOCI FVTPL Assets continue to be measured at fair value. Cumulative gain or
loss previously recognized in OCl is reclassified to statement of
profitand loss at the reclassification date.

Offsetting of financial instruments:
Financials assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet if there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset
the recognized amounts and there is an intention to settle on a netbasis, to realize the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

Inventories

(a) Basis of valuation

() Raw Materials, Packing Materials and Stores and Spare parts are valued at lower of cost and net realizable value.Materials and other items held for use in
the production of inventories are not written down below cost, if the finished products in which they will be incorporated are expected to be sold at or above
cost. Raw Material, Packing Materials, Stores and Spares & and Raw Material contents of work in progress are valued by using the first in first out (FIFO)
method.

(i) Finished goods, traded goods and work in progress are valued at cost or netrealizable value whichever is lower.

(b) Method of Valuation
(i) Cost of raw materials has been determined by using FIFO (first-in-first-out) method and comprises all costs of purchase, duties, taxes (other than those
subsequently recoverable from tax authorities) and all other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location and condition.

(i) Cost of finished goods and work-inprogress includes direct labour and an appropriate share of fixed and variable production overheads.Fixed production
overheads are allocated on the basis of normal capacity of production facilities. Cost is determined on weighted average basis.

(iii) Cost of traded goods has been determined by using FIFO(first-in-first-out) method and comprises all costs of purchase, duties, taxes (other than those
subsequently recoverable from tax authorities) and all other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location and condition.

(iv) Netrealizable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated costs of completion and estimated costs necessary to
make the sale.

Business Combinations

Common control business combinations includes transactions, such as transfer of subsidiaries or businesses, between entities within a group.
Business combinations involving entities or businesses under common control shall be accounted for using the pooling of interests method.
The pooling of interest method is considered to involve the following:

(@) The assets and liabilities of the combining entities are reflected at their carrying amounts.

(b) No adjustments are made to reflect fair values, or recognise any new assets or liabilities. The only adjustments that are made are to harmonise accounting
policies.

(c) The financial information in the financial statements in respect of prior periods should be restated as if the business combination had occurred from the
beginning of the preceding period in the financial statements, irrespective of the actual date of the combination. However, if business combination had
occurred after that date, the prior period information shall be restated only from that date.

(d) The balance of the retained earnings appearing in the financial statements of the transferor is aggregated with the corresponding balance appearing in the
financial statements of the transferee.

Provisions and Contingent Liabilities

Provisions

Aprovision is recognized when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources
embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. These estimates are
reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimates.

If the effect of time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre - tax rate that reflects, when appropriate, the risks specific to the
liability. When discounting is use, the increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognised as a finance cost.

Contingent liabilities
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Acontingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events whose existence will be confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more
uncertain future events beyond the control of the Company or a present obligation that is not recognized because it is not probable that an outflow of resources
will be required to settle the obligation. A contingent liability also arises in extremely rare cases, where there is a liability that cannot be recognized because it
cannot be measured reliably. the Company does not recognize a contingent liability but discloses its existence in the financial statements unless the probability
of outflow of resources is remote.

Provisions, contingent liabilities, contingent assets and commitments are reviewed at each balance sheet date.

Taxes
Tax expense for the year comprises of direct tax and indirect tax.

Direct Tax
(a) CurrentTax
i) Currentincome tax, assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities in accordance
with the Income Tax Act, 1961. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that are enacted or substantively enacted, at the
reporting date in India as per Income Computation and Disclosure Standards (ICDS) where the Company operates and generates taxable income.

ii) Current income tax relating to item recognized outside the statement of profit and loss is recognized outside profit or loss (either in other
comprehensive income or equity).Current tax items are recognized in correlation to the underlying transactions either in statement of profit and loss or
directly in equity. Management periodically evaluates positions taken in the tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulations are
subject tointerpretation and establishes provisions where appropriate.

(b) Deferred Tax
Deferred tax is provided using the liability method on temporary differences between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for
financial reporting purposes at the reporting date.

-

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognized for all deductible temporary differences, the carry forward of unused tax credits and any unused tax
losses. Deferred tax assets are recognized to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary
differences, and the carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilized, except:

(@) When the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temporary difference arises from the initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that
is nota business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss.

(b) Inrespectof deductible temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, deferred tax assets are recognised only to the extent that it
is probable that the temporary differences will reverse in the foreseeable future and taxable profit will be available against which the temporary
differences can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable
profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilized. Unrecognized deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each reporting date
and are recognized to the extent that it has become probable that future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year when the asset is realized or the liability is settled,
based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Deferred tax relating to items recognized outside the statement of profit and loss is recognized outside the statement of profit and loss (either in other
comprehensive income or in equity). Deferred tax items are recognized in correlation to the underlying transaction either in OCl or directin equity.

Deferred Tax includes Minimum Alternate Tax (MAT) recognizes MAT credit available as an asset only to the extent that there is convincing evidence that
the Company will pay normal income tax during the specified period, i.e. the period for which MAT credit is allowed to be carried forward. The Company
reviews the “MAT credit entitlement” asset at each reporting date and writes down the asset to the extent the Company does not have convincing evidence
that it will pay normal tax during the specified period.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax assets against current tax liabilities and the
deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity and the same taxation authority.

Indirect Tax

Goods and Sevice Tax has been accounted for in respect of the goods cleared. The Company is providing Goods and Sevice tax liability in respect of finished
goods. GST has been also accounted for in respect of services rendered.(w.e.f. 1st July, 2017 GST has been implemented. All the taxes like Excise Duty, Value
Added Tax, etc. are subsummed in Goods and Service Tax.)

Revenue From Contracts with Customers

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable, taking into account contractually defined terms of payment and excluding
taxes or duties collected on behalf of the government. Revenue is recognized to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Company
and the revenue can be reliably measured, regardless of when the payment is being made. Amounts disclosed are inclusive of Goods and service tax and net of
returns, trade discounts, rebates and amount collected on behalf of third parties. (w.e.f. 1st July, 2017 GST has been implemented. All the taxes like Excise Duty,
Value Added Tax, etc. are subsummed in Goods and Service Tax.)

The Company assesses its revenue arrangements against specific criteria in order to determine if it is acting as principal or agent. the Company has concluded
thatitis acting as a principal in all of its revenue arrangements since it is the primary obligor in all the revenue arrangements as it has pricing latitude and is also
exposed to inventory and credit risks. The specific recognition criteria described below must also be met before revenue is recognised:"
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(a) Saleofgoods
Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when the significant risks and rewards of ownership of the goods have passed to the buyer, usually on
delivery of the goods and is measured at fair value consideration received/receivable, net of returns and allowances, discounts, volume rebates and cash
discounts.

Revenue is usually recognised when it is probable that economic benefits associated with the transaction will flow to the entity, amount of revenue can be
measured reliably and entity retains neither continuing managerial involvement to the degree usually associated with ownership nor effective control over
the goods sold.
i) Variable Consideration:

If the consideration in a contract includes a variable amount, the Company estimates the amount of consideration to which it will be entitled in exchange for
transferring the goods to the customer. The variable consideration is estimated at contract inception and constrained until it is highly probable that a
significant revenue reversal in the amount of cumulative revenue recognised will not occur when the associated uncertainty with the variable consideration
is subsequently resolved. Some contracts for the sale of electronics equipment provide customers with a right of return and volume rebates. The rights of
return and volume rebates give rise to variable consideration.

ii) ContractAssets:
Acontract asset is the right to consideration in exchange for goods or services transferred to the customer. If the Company performs by transferring goods
orservices to a customer before the customer pays consideration or before paymentis due, a contract assetis recognised for the earned consideration that
is conditional.

Areceivable represents the Company’s right to an amount of consideration thatis unconditional (i.e., only the passage of time is required before payment of
the considerationiis due).

(b) Rendering of Services
Revenue from service related activities is recognised as and when services are rendered and on the basis of contractual terms with the parties.
(c) Interestincome

For all debt instruments measured either at amortised cost or at fair value through other comprehensive income, interest income is recorded using the
effective interest rate (EIR). EIR is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash payments or receipts over the expected life of the financial
instrument or a shorter period, where appropriate, to the gross carrying amount of the financial asset or to the amortised cost of a financial liability. When
calculating the effective interest rate, the Company estimates the expected cash flows by considering all the contractual terms of the financial instrument
(for example, prepayment, extension, call and similar options) but does not consider the expected credit losses. Interestincome is included in otherincome
inthe statement of profitand loss.

(d) Dividend from investmentin Shares
Dividend Income is recognized when the right to receive the payment is established which is generally when shareholders approve the dividend.

(e) Claims
Claims are recognised when there exists reasonable certainity with regard to the amounts to be realised and the ultimate collection thereof.

Retirement and other Employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits and defined contribution plans
All employee benefits payable/ available within twelve months of rendering the services are classified as short-term employee benefits. Benefits such as
salaries, wages and bonus etc. are recognised in the Statement of Profitand Loss in the period in which the employee renders the related services.

Provident fund

Retirement benefit in the form of provident fund is a defined contribution scheme. The Company has no obligation, other than the contribution payable to the
provident fund. The Company recognizes contribution payable to the provident fund scheme as an expense, when an employee renders the related services. If
the contribution payable to scheme for service received before the balance sheet date exceeds the contribution already paid, the deficit payable to the scheme
is recognized as aliability after deducting the contribution already paid. If the contribution already paid exceeds the contribution due for services received before
the balance sheet date, then excesses recognized as an asset to the extent that the prepayment will lead to , for example, a reduction in future payment or a
cashrefund.

Gratuity (Unfunded)
Gratuity is a defined benefit scheme. The cost of providing benefits under the defined benefit plan is determined using the projected unit credit method.

The Company recognises termination benefit as a liability and an expense when the Company has present oblligation as a result of past events, it is probable
that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the
obligation. If the termination benefits fall due more than 12 months after the balance sheet date, they are measured at present value of future cash flows using
the discount rate determined by refrence to market yields at the balance sheet date on governments bonds.

Re-measurements, comprising of actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the asset ceiling, excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit
liability and the return on the planned assets (excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability), are recognised immediately in the
balance sheet with a corresponding debit or credit to retained earnings through OCl in the period in which they occur. Re-measurements are not reclassified to
profit or loss in subsequent periods.

Past service costs are recognised in profit or loss on the earlier of :
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(@) The date of the planamendment or curtailment, and
(b) The date thatthe Comoany recognises related restructuring cost

Netinterestis calculated by applying the discount rate to the net defined benefit liability or asset.

The Company recognises the following changes in the net defined benefit obligation as an expense in the Statement of Profitand Loss:
(@) Service costs comprising current service costs, past service costs, gains and losses on curtailments and
(b) Netinterestexpenses orincome

Compensated Absences
Accumlated leave, which is expected to be utilised within next 12 months, is treated as short term employee benefit. The Company measures the expected cost
of such absences as the additional amount that it expects to pay as a result of the unused entitlement that has accumlated at the reporting date.

The Company treats accumlated leave expected to be carried forward beyond 12 months, as long-term employee benefit for measurement purposes. Such
long-term comopensated absences are provided for based on the acturial valuation using the projected unit credit method at the period end. Re-measurement,
comprising of actuarial gains and losses, are immediately taken to the Statement of Profit and Loss and are not deffered. The Company presents the leave as a
current liability in the balance sheet to the extent it does not have an unconditional right to defer its settlement for 12 months after the reporting date. Where
Company has the unconditional legal and contractual right to defer the settlement for a period beyond 12 months, the same is presented as non-current liability.

Borrowing Costs
Borrowing cost includes interest and other costs incurred in connection with the borrowing of funds and charged to Statement of Profit & Loss on the basis of
effective, interestrate (EIR) method. Borrowing cost also includes exchange differences to the extent regarded as an adjustment to the borrowing cost.

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of an asset that necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready for
its intended use or sale are capitalised as part of the cost of the respective asset. All other borrowing costs are recognised as expense in the period in which they
occur.

Government Grants
Government Grants are recognized at their fair value when there is reasonable assurance that the grant will be received and all the attached conditions will be
complied with.

When the grant relates to an expense item, it is recognized as income on a systematic basis over the periods that the related costs, for which it is intended to
compensate, are expensed. When the grant relates to an asset, itis recognized as income in equal amounts over the expected useful life of the related asset.

When the Company receives grants of non-monetary assets, the asset and grant are recorded at fair value amounts and released to profit or loss over the
expected useful life in a pattern of consumption of the benefit of the underlying asset.

Earnings Per Share

Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity shareholders by the weighted average number of
equity shares outstanding during the period. The weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period is adjusted for events such as bonus
issue, bonus elementin a rights issue, share split, and reverse share split (consolidation of shares) that have changed the number of equity shares outstanding,
without a corresponding change in resources.

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity shareholders and the weighted average
number of shares outstanding during the period are adjusted for the effect of all potentially dilutive equity shares.

Impairment of non- financial assets

The Company assesses, at each reporting date, whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired. If any indication exists, or when annual
impairment testing for an asset is required, the Company estimates the asset’s recoverable amount. An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of an asset's
or cash-generating unit's (CGU) fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use. Recoverable amount s determined for an individual asset, unless the asset
does not generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets or Company's of assets. Where the carrying amount of an asset or CGU
exceeds its recoverable amount, the assetis considered impaired and is written down to its recoverable amount.

In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. In determining fair value less costs of disposal, recent market transactions are taken
into account, if available. If no such transactions can be identified, an appropriate valuation model is used. These calculations are corroborated by valuation
multiples, quoted share prices for publicaly traded companies or other available fair value indicators.

Impairment losses including impairment on inventories, are recognized in the statement of profit and loss. After impairment, depreciation is provided on the
revised carrying amount of the asset over its remaining useful life.

Non-financial assets other than goodwill that suffered an impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of the impairment at the end of each reporting period.

An assessmentis made at each reporting date to determine whether there is an indication that previously recognised impairment losses no longer exist or have
decreased. If such indication exists, the Company estimates the asset’s or CGU'’s recoverable amount. A previously recognised impairment loss is reversed
only if there has been a change in the assumptions used to determine the asset’s recoverable amount since the last impairment loss was recognised. The
reversal is limited so that the carrying amount of the asset does not exceed its recoverable amount, nor exceed the carrying amount that would have been
determined, net of depreciation, had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior years. Such reversal is recognised in the statement of profit and
loss.
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Segmentaccounting:
Based on "Management Appoarch” as defined in Ind AS 108- Operating Segments, the executive Management Committee evaluates the Company's
performance and allocates the resources based on an analysis of various performance indicators by business segments.

The Company prepares its segment information in conformity with the accounting policies adopted for preparing and presenting the financial statements of the
Company asawhole.

Foreign currencies
The Company’s financial statements are presented in Indian rupee (INR) which is also the Company’s functional and presentation currency. ltems included in
the financial statements are measured using the currency of the primary economic environment in which the entity operates ('the functional currency’).

Foreign currency transactions are recorded on initial on initial recognition in the functional currency, using the exchange rate prevailing at the date of
transaction.

Measurement of foreign currency items at the balance sheet date

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the dates of the initial
transactions. Non-monetary items measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the date when the fair value is
determined. The gain or loss arising on translation of non- monetary items measured at fair value is treated in line with the recognition of the gain or loss on the
change infair value of the item (i.e., translation differences on items whose fair value gain or loss is recognized in OCl or profit or loss are also recognized in OCI
or profitor loss, respectively).

Exchange differences
Exchange differences arising on settlement or translation of monetary items are recognized as income or expense in the statement of profit and loss in the
period in which they arise.

Bank Guarantee and Letter of Credit
Bank Guarantee and Letter of Credits are recognised at the point of negotiation with Banks and coverted at the rates prevailing on the date of Negotiation.
However, outstanding at the period end are recognised at the rate prevailing as on that date and total sum is considered as contingent liability.

Dividend Distributions
The Company recognizes a liability to make payment of dividend to owners of equity when the distribution is authorized and is no longer at the discretion of the
Company and is declared by the shareholders . Acorresponding amount s recognized directly in equity.

Fair value measurement
The Company measures financial instruments at fair value at each balance sheet date.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the
measurement date. The fair value measurementis based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either:

(i) Inthe principal market for asset orliability, or
(ii) Inthe absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability.

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company.

The fair value of an asset or liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that
market participants actin their economic best interest.

Afair value measurement of a non- financial asset takes into account a market participant's ability to generate economic benefits by using the assetin its highest
and best use or by selling it to another market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to measure fair value, maximising
the use of relevant observable inputs and minimizing the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categorized within the fair value hierarchy, described as
follows, based on the lowest level input thatis significant to the fair value measurement as awhole:

Level1- Quoted(unadjusted) market prices in active markets foridentical assets or liabilities
Level 2- Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that s significant to the fair value measurement s directly or indirectly observable
Level3- Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurementis unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognized in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the Company determines whether transfers have occurred
between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing categorization ( based on the lowest level input that is significant to fair value measurement as a whole ) at the
end of each reporting period.

Forthe purpose of fair value disclosures, the Company has determined classes of assets and liabilities on the basis of the nature, characteristics and risks of the
asset orliability and the level of the fair value hierarchy as explained above.

Leases
The company assesses at contractinception whether a contract s, or contains, alease. Thatis, if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified
asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration.
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The Company as alessee
The Company applies a single recognition and measurement approach for all leases, except for short-term leases and leases of low-value assets. The
Company recognises lease liabilities to make lease payments and right-of-use assets representing the right to use the underlying assets.

Right-of-use assets

The Company recognises right-of-use assets at the commencement date of the lease (i.e., the date the underlying asset is available for use). Right-of-use
assets are measured at cost, less any accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liabilities. The cost of
right-of-use assets includes the amount of lease liabilities recognised, initial direct costs incurred, and lease payments made at or before the commencement
date less any lease incentives received. Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the shorter of the lease term and the estimated useful
lives of the building (i.e. 30 and 60 years)

If ownership of the leased asset transfers to the company at the end of the lease term or the cost reflects the exercise of a purchase option, depreciation is
calculated using the estimated useful life of the asset. The right-of-use assets are also subject to impairment. Refer to the accounting policies in section
'Impairment of non-financial assets'.

(b) Lease Liabilities

At the commencement date of the lease, the company recognises lease liabilities measured at the present value of lease payments to be made over the lease
term. The lease payments include fixed payments (including in substance fixed payments) less any lease incentives receivable, variable lease payments that
depend on an index or a rate, and amounts expected to be paid under residual value guarantees. The lease payments also include the exercise price of a
purchase option reasonably certain to be exercised by the company and payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects the company
exercising the option to terminate. Variable lease payments that do not depend on an index or a rate are recognised as expenses (unless they are incurred to
produce inventories) in the period in which the event or condition that triggers the payment occurs.

In calculating the present value of lease payments, the company uses its incremental borrowing rate at the lease commencement date because the interest rate
implicitin the lease is not readily determinable. After the commencement date, the amount of lease liabilities is increased to reflect the accretion of interest and
reduced for the lease payments made. In addition, the carrying amount of lease liabilities is remeasured if there is a modification, a change in the lease term, a
change in the lease payments (e.g., changes to future payments resulting from a change in an index or rate used to determine such lease payments) or a
change in the assessment of an option to purchase the underlying asset.

(c) Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Company applies the short-term lease recognition exemption to its short-term leases (i.e., those leases that have a lease term of 12 months or less from the
commencement date and do not contain a purchase option). It also applies the lease of low-value assets recognition exemption to leases that are considered to
be low value. Lease payments on short-term leases and leases of low-value assets are recognised as expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

The Company as alessor

Leases for which the company is a lessor is classified as finance or operating lease. Leases in which the company does not transfer substantially all the risks
and rewards incidental to ownership of an asset are classified as operating leases. Rental income arising is accounted for on a straight-line basis over the lease
terms. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the leased asset and recognised over the
lease term on the same basis as rental income. Contingent rents are recognised as revenue in the period in which they are earned.

Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions

The preparation of the Company’s financial statements requires management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts
of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and the accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these
assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that require a material adjustment to the carrying amount of the asset or liability affected in future periods.

Judgments

In the process of applying the Company’s accounting policies, management has made the following judgments, which have the most significant effect on the

amounts recognized in the financial statements.

(a) Operatinglease commitments —Company as lessee
The Company has taken various commercial properties on leases. The Company has determined, based on an evaluation of the terms and conditions of
the arrangements, such as the lease term not constituting a substantial portion of the economic life of the commercial property, and that it does not retain all
the significant risks and rewards of ownership of these properties and accounts for the contracts as operating leases.

(b) Assessment of lease contracts
Significantjudgment is required to apply lease accounting rules under Appendix C to IND AS 116 : determining whether an Arrangement contains a Lease.
In assessing the applicability to arrangements entered into by the Company, management has exercised judgment to evaluate the right to use the
underlying assets, substance of the transaction including legally enforced arrangements and other significant terms and conditions of the arrangement to
conclude whether the arrangements meet the criteria under Appendix C to INDAS 116.

Estimates and assumptions

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the reporting date, that have a significant risk of causing a
material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are described below. The Company based its assumptions
and estimates on parameters available when the financial statements were prepared. Existing circumstances and assumptions about future developments,
however, may change due to market changes or circumstances arising beyond the control of the Company. Such changes are reflected in the assumptions
when they occur.

a) Revenue from contracts with customers
The Company applied the following judgements that significantly affect the determination of the amount and timing of revenue from contracts with
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customers:
Determining method to estimate variable consideration and assessing the constraint

In estimating the variable consideration, the Company is required to use either the expected value method or the most likely amount method based on
which method better predicts the amount of consideration to which it will be entitled. The Company determined that the expected value method is the
appropriate method to use in estimating the variable consideration for revenue from operation, given the large number of customer contracts that have
similar characteristics.Before including any amount of variable consideration in the transaction price, the Company considers whether the amount of
variable consideration is constrained. The Company determined that the estimates of variable consideration are not constrained based on its historical
experience, business forecast and the current economic conditions. In addition, the uncertainty on the variable consideration will be resolved within a short
time frame.

(b) Taxes

(c

(d

(e

(9

~—

~

)

p—t}

Uncertainties exist with respect to the interpretation of complex tax regulations, changes in tax laws, and the amount and timing of future taxable income.
Given the wide range of business relationships and the long-term nature and complexity of existing contractual agreements, differences arising between
the actual results and the assumptions made, or future changes to such assumptions, could necessitate future adjustments to tax income and expense
already recorded. The Company establishes provisions, based on reasonable estimates. The amount of such provisions is based on various factors, such
as experience of previous tax audits and differing interpretations of tax regulations by the taxable entity and the responsible tax authority. Such differences
ofinterpretation may arise on a wide variety ofissues depending on the conditions prevailing in the respective domicile of the companies.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused tax losses to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the losses can be
utilised. Significant management judgementis required to determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can be recognised, based upon the likely timing
and the level of future taxable profits together with future tax planning strategies.

Defined Benefit Plans

The cost of defined benefit plans (i.e. Gratuity benefit) and the present value of the gratuity obligation are determined using actuarial valuations. An actuarial
valuation involves making various assumptions which may differ from actual developments in the future. These include the determination of the discount
rate, future salary increases and mortality rates. Due to the complexities involved in the valuation and its long-term nature, a defined benefit obligation is
highly sensitive to changes in these assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at each reporting date.

The parameter most subject to change is the discount rate. In determining the appropriate discount rate for the plans operated in India, management
considers the interest rates of long term government bonds with extrapolated maturity corresponding to the expected duration of the defined benefit
obligation.

The mortality rate is based on publicly available mortality tables for the specific countries. Those morality tables tend to change only at interval in response
to demographic changes. Future salary increases and pension increases are based on expected future inflation rates for the respective countries.

Further details about the assumptions used, including a sensitivity analysis, are given in note no. 31(2).

Fairvalue measurement of financial instrument

When the fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the balance sheet cannot be measured based on quoted prices in active markets,
their fair value is measured using valuation techniques including the Discounted Cash Flow (DCF) model. The inputs to these models are taken from
observable markets where possible, but where this is not feasible, a degree of judgment is required in establishing fair values. Judgments include
considerations of inputs such as liquidity risk, credit risk and volatility. Changes in assumptions about these factors could affect the reported fair value of
financial instruments. See note no. 31(11) for further disclosures.

Impairment of financial assets

The impairment provisions of financial assets are based on assumptions about risk of default and expected loss rates. the Company uses judgment in
making these assumptions and selecting the inputs to the impairment calculation, based on Company's past history ,existing market conditions as well as
forward looking estimates at the end of each reporting period.

Impairment of non-financial assets

The Company assesses at each reporting date whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired. If any indication exists, or when annual
impairment testing for an asset is required, the Company estimates the asset's recoverable amount. An assets recoverable amount is the higher of an
asset's CGU'S fair value less cost of disposal and its value in use. Itis determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows
that are largely independent of those from other assets or Company's of assets. Where the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable
amount, the asset is considered impaired and is written down to its recoverable amount.

In assessing value in use , the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. In determining fair value less costs of disposal, recent market transactions are
taken into account. If no such transactions can be identified, an appropriate valuation model is used. These calculations are corroborated by valuation
multiples, or other fair value indicators.

Expected Credit Loss

The Company has used a practical expedient by computing the expected credit loss allowances for trade receivables based on a provision matrix takes ito
accounts historical credit loss experience and adjusted for forward looking information. The expected credit loss allowance is based on the ageing of the
day ofthe receivables are due and the rates are given in the provision matrix.
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Notes to Financial Statements for the period ended March 31, 2025

3. Property, Plant and Equipment
(Amount in Lakhs)

Particulars Land Factory Plant and Vehicles Office Furniture & Air Computer | Total
Building Equipment Equipments | Fixtures Conditioners

Gross Block (At cost)

At April 01, 2023 18.35 236.47 577.01 69.76 45.38 11.95 7.28 097 | 967.17
Additions - 3.65 45.55 1.32 2.03 52.55
Disposals - - - - - - - - -
At March 31, 2024 18.35 236.47 580.67 115.31 46.70 11.95 7.28 3.01 [1,019.73
Additions - - 5.48 - 1.24 0.60 1.44 8.77
Disposals - - - 19.05 - - - - 19.05
At March 31, 2025 18.35 236.47 586.15 96.26 47.94 11.95 7.88 4.45 (1,009.44

Depreciation

At April 01, 2023 - 30.84 275.66 44.80 22.47 9.88 435 0.17 | 388.16
Charge for the year - 3.74 13.07 10.39 2.67 0.58 0.35 0.67 31.46
Disposals - - - - - - - - -
At March 31, 2024 - 34.58 288.72 55.19 2514 10.46 4.70 0.84 | 419.62
Charge for the year 3.74 13.49 12.02 2.79 0.44 0.43 1.14 34.04
Disposals - - - 13.71 - - - - 13.71
At March 31, 2025 - 38.31 302.21 53.50 27.93 10.89 5.13 198 | 439.95
Net carrying amount

At March 31, 2024 18.35 201.89 291.94 60.13 21.56 1.49 2.58 216 | 600.10
At March 31, 2025 18.35 198.15 283.94 42.76 20.01 1.06 2.75 247 | 569.49

Notes: -

() Depreciation has been provided prorata basis on straight line method using the useful lives and in the manner as prescribed under Schedule Il of the
CompaniesAct, 2013. (Refer Accounting Policies No. 2.5)

(i)  The Company has notrevalued its Property, Plantand Equipment.
(iii)  Interestduring construction paid during the year amounting to Rs.Nil/-(March 31;2024: Rs. Nil/-) has been capitalised.

(iv) The title in respect of self -constructed buildings and title deeds of all other immovable properties (other than properties where the Company is the lessee and
the lease agreements are duly executed in favour of the lessee), disclosed in the financial statements included under Property, Plantand Equipment are held in
the name of the Company as the balance sheet date.

(v) Vehicles taken onfinance lease are financed from Kotak Mahindra Prime Limited and HDFC Bank Limited (Refer Note No. 14.1)
(vi) Property, Plantand equipment pledged as security towards liabilities as on March 31,2025 and March 31, 2024 are as under (refer note no 14.1):

Firstand Exclusive Charge onImmovable Property PlotNo. 57/1 and 57/1/19, industrial area site IV, Sahibabad, Ghaziabad in the name of the Company.
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CRANEX

Notes to Financial Statements for the period ended March 31, 2025

4  INVESTMENTSINASSOCIATES

Investments in equity instruments (unquoted) non-trade, (valued at cost)

Investments in Associate Company
IFE Cranex Elevators & Excalators India Pvt. Ltd.

1,82,000(26%) (March31,2023:1,82,000(26%)) equity shares of Rs.100/- each fully paid up

Other Investments

Investments in Joint Ventures

Shree Cranex (JV) [Refer Note (b) Below]

Aggregate amount of unquoted investments in associates

Aggregate amount of impairment on value of investments

Notes: -

As at
March 31, 2025

(Amount in Lakhs)

As at
March 31, 2024

182.00 182.00
31.71 31.71
213.1 213.1

(@) Managementis of the opinion that the fair value of the unquoted equity share of IFE Cranex Elevators & Excalators India Private Limited exceed the amount of

investment made and hence there is noimpairment in the value ofinvestment.

(b) During the financial year 2021-22, the Company has invested an amount of Rs. 31.71 Lakhs in Shree Cranex (JV), a joint venture with Shree Construction. The
share of the company as a designated partner in the total capital of the Joint Venture (JV) is 26 % which amounts to a capital contribution of Rs. 31.71 Lakhs. The
name and share of other designated partner of the Joint Venture (JV) are IFE Elevators Company Limited with a share of 74% which amounts to capital

contribution of Rs. 1,24.55 Lakhs.

5  NON-CURRENTFINANCIALASSETS

5.1 INVESTMENTS
(a) Investments in equity instruments (unquoted), non trade

Valued at Fair Value through Other Comprehensive Income [FVTOCI]

Saraswat Co-operative Bank Ltd.
50 (March31,2024:50) equity shares of Rs.10/- each fully paid up
Aggregate amount of unquoted investments (At fair Value)

Aggregate amount of unquoted investments (At Cost)

5.2 LONG TERMLOANS AND ADVANCES
(Valued at amortised cost)
(Unsecured, considered good)

Other Loans and Advances

5.3 OTHERNON-CURRENT FINANCIALASSETS
(Valued at amortised cost)
(Unsecured, considered good)
Security deposits

Fixed deposits held as margin money against bank guarantees having remaining

maturity period of more than twelve months

(i)  Security deposits includes deposits against electricity, telephone,shipping lines, vendors, etc.

0.01 0.01
0.01 0.01
0.01 0.01
14.62 52.55
194.20 355.30
208.82 407.86

(i) The deposits maintained by the Company with banks comprise of time deposits of varying periods of more than twelve months and earn interest at the

respective deposit rates.

6 DEFERREDTAXASSETS (NET)
(a) Income tax expense in the statement of profit and loss comprises :
Currentincome tax charge
Income Tax for earlier years
Deferred Tax
Relating to origination and reversal of temporary differences
Income tax expense reported in the statement of profit or loss
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(Amount in Lakhs)

As at As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
(b) Other Comprehensive Income
Re-measurement (gains)/losses on defined benefit plans 0.24 (0.16)
Tax expense related to items recognized in OCl during the year 0.24 (0.16)
(c) Reconciliation of tax expense and the accounting profit multiplied by
India’s domestic tax rate:
Accounting Profit before tax 251.55 216.83
Applicable tax rate 25.17% 25.17%
Computed Tax Expense 63.31 54.58
Expense not allowed for tax purpose 6.57 10.37
Additional allowances for tax purpose - -
Income tax charged to Statement of Profit and Loss at effective rate of 22.62%
(March 31,2024: 29.96%) 69.88 64.95
Balance Sheet Statement of profit & loss
As at As at As at As at

March 31,2025 March 31,2024 March 31,2025 March 31, 2024
(d) Deferred tax assets comprises:

Accelerated Depreciation for Tax purposes (56.62) (51.17) (5.45) (5.97)
Expenses allowable on payment basis 23.03 20.18 2.85 5.30
(33.59) (31.00) (2.60) (0.67)
MAT Credit entitlement - - - -
(33.59) (31.00) (2.60) (0.67)
(e) Reconciliation of deferred tax assets (net)
Opening balance (31.00) (30.32)
Tax expense recognised in the statement of profit and loss during the year (2.84) (0.51)
Tax expense recognised in other comprehensive income during the year 0.24 (0.16)
Closing balance (33.59) (31.00)

(i) Effective tax rate has been calculated on profit before tax and exceptional items.

(i) The Company offsets tax assets and liabilities if and only if it has a legally enforceable right to set off curent tax assets and current tax liabilities and the deffered
tax assets and deferrred tax liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same tax authority.

As at As at
March 31,2025 March 31, 2024

7  OTHERNONCURRENTASSETS
(Unsecured, considered good)

Others
Prepaid expenses 1.50 2.58
1.50 2.58
Notes: -
(i) Prepaidexpensesincludes expenses related to License Fees & Insurance.
As at As at

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

8 INVENTORIES
(Valued at lower of cost and net realisable value unless otherwise stated)

Raw materials 242.51 545.39
Workiin progress. 194.51 178.86
Finished goods 415.02 406.89
852.04 1,131.14

Notes: -

(i) Inventories are hypothecated with the bankers against working capital limits. (refer note no. 17.1(1))

(i) Referaccounting policy no.2.11 formode of valuation of Inventories.
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9  CURRENTFINANCIALASSETS
9.1 TRADERECEIVABLES

Notes: -

(il

(a) Trade Receivables considered good-Secured

Trade Receivables considered good-Unsecured

(b)
(c) Trade Receivables which have significantincrease in Credit Risk
(d)

Trade Receivables -Creditimpaired

Less: Impairment allowance for trade receivables

Trade receivables are usually non-interest bearing and are on trade terms of 0 to 90 days.

As at

CRANEX

As at

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

2,704.57

3,215.53
3,215.53 2,704.57
3,215.53 2,704.57

No trade receivables are due from directors or other officers of the company either severally or jointly with any other person. Trade receivables due from firms or
private companies respectively in which any director or partner is having a substantial interest are as under:

Shree Cranex-JV

Trade Receivables aging schedule as at 31st March,2025

309.28

313.32

309.28

313.32

Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment

Particulars

Less than
6 months

6 months -
1 year

1-2 years

2-3 years

More than 3
years

Total

Undisputed Trade receivables —
considered good

878.37

1,675.80

521.73

32.85

91.43

3,200.18

Undisputed Trade Receivables —
which have significant increase in credit risk

Undisputed Trade Receivables —
credit impaired

Disputed Trade Receivables —
considered good

15.35

15.35

Disputed Trade Receivables —
which have significant increase in credit risk

Disputed Trade Receivables — credit impaired

Total

878.37

1,675.80

521.73

106.78

3,215.53

Less: Allowance for Trade Receivable

Total

878.37

1,675.80

521.73

106.78

3,215.53

Trade Receivables aging schedule as at 31st March,2024

Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment

Particulars

Less than
6 months

6 months -
1 year

1-2 years

2-3 years

More than 3
years

Total

Undisputed Trade receivables —
considered good

1,637.10

493.48

515.89

2,646.48

Undisputed Trade Receivables —
which have significant increase in credit risk

Undisputed Trade Receivables —
credit impaired

Disputed Trade Receivables —
considered good

58.10

58.10

Disputed Trade Receivables —
which have significant increase in credit risk

Disputed Trade Receivables — credit impaired

Total

1,637.10

493.48

58.10

2,704.57

Less: Allowance for Trade Receivable

Total

1,637.10

493.48

58.10

2,704.57
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As at As at
March 31,2025 March 31, 2024

9.2 CASHAND CASHEQUIVALENTS

Balances with banks:
Currentaccounts 0.76 0.93
Cashonhand 0.04 0.41
0.81 1.34
Notes: -
There are no restrictions with regard to cash and cash equivalents as at the end of the reporting period.
9.3 OTHERBANKBALANCES
Fixed deposits pledged with government departments having a original maturity
period of more than three months but less than twelve months 426.05 145.68
426.05 145.68

Notes: -
(i)  The deposits maintained by the Company with banks comprise of time deposits made of varying periods between three months to twelve months and earn
interest at the respective short term deposit rates.

(i) Fixed deposit with original maturity of more than twelve months but remaining maturity of less than twelve months have been disclosed under other bank
balances. (refer note no.5.3)

9.4 SHORTTERMLOANSANDADVANCES
LoanandAdvances - -

9.5 OTHER CURRENT FINANCIALASSETS
(Valued at amortised cost)
(Unsecured, considered good,unless otherwise stated)

Security deposits 13.12 13.88
Unbilled Revenue 12.40 134.85
25.51 148.73

Notes: -
(i) Security deposits include deposits with material suppliers.

(i) Noamounts are due to directors or other officers of the Company or any of them either severally or jointly with any other person.

10 CURRENTTAXASSETS (NET)
Advance Tax and TDS (net of provision for tax ) - -

11 OTHERCURRENTASSETS
(Unsecured, considered good,unless otherwise stated)

Advances against materials and services 69.11 106.14
Balance with Statutory/ Government authorities 39.32 23.07
Pre-deposits with Government departments under protest 5.94 23.20
Income Tax Refund 29.71 29.71
Prepaid Expenses 9.72 4.46
Otheradvances 4.20 3.49

158.00 190.07

Notes: -

() Prepaidexpensesincludes expenses related to License Fees & Insurance.
(i) Otheradvance include outstanding balance in staffimprest accounts, Staffloans & Advances.

As at As at
March 31,2025 March 31, 2024

12 EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL

a) Authorized
100,00,000 equity shares of Rs.10/- each (March 31,2024:100,00,000 equity shares of Rs.10/- each) 1,000.00 1,000.00

Issued, subscribed and fully paid up
65,70,000 equity shares of Rs.10/- each (March 31,2024: 60,00,000 equity shares of Rs.10/- each) 657.00 600.00

b) Reconciliation of the shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the year
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As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024
No. of shares AmountinRs. No. of shares Amountin Rs.
Atthe beginning of the year 6,000,000 600.00 6,000,000 600.00
Add: Equity shares issued 570,000 57.00 - -
Atthe end of the year 6,570,000 657.00 6,000,000 600.00
c) Termslrights attached to equity shares
The Company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of Rs.10/- per share (March 31,2024 : Rs.10/- per share). Each holder of equity shares is
entitled to one vote per share. The Company declares and pays dividend in Indian rupees.
In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the Company after distribution of all
preferential amounts. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders.
d) Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the Company is set out below (representing legal and beneficial ownership):
Name of Shareholders As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024
No. of shares % holding No. of shares % holding
Mr. Piyush Agrawal 2,593,000 39.47% 2,143,000 35.72%
As per the records of the Company, including its register of shareholders/members and other declarations received from shareholders regarding beneficial
interest, the above shareholding represents both legal and beneficial ownership of shares.
e) Aggregate number of shares bought back, or issued as fully paid up pursuant to contract without payment being received in cash or by way of
bonus shares during the period of five years immediately preceding the date of Balance Sheet:
As at As at
March 31,2025 March 31, 2024
No. of shares  No. of shares
Equity shares allotted as fully paid-up pursuant to contracts for consideration other than cash. Nil Nil
Equity shares allotted as fully paid up bonus shares by capitalisation of securities premium account and general reserve. Nil Nil
Equity shares bought back Nil Nil
f) Details of Shareholding of promoters in the company :
Shares Held by the Promoters at the end of the year
No. of Shares Held % of Total Shares % change
Name of the Promoter during the year
2024-25 2023-24 2024-25 2023-24
1 Mr.PiyushAgrawal 2,593,000 2,143,000 39.47% 35.71% 3.76%
2 Mrs.RituAgrawal 242,345 242,345 3.69% 4.04% -0.35%
3 ChaitanyaAgrawal 190,000 190,000 2.89% 3.17% -0.28%
4 RituInvestments Private Limited 100,000 - 1.52% 0.00% 1.52%
Total 3,125,345 2,575,345 47.57% 42.92%
As at As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
OTHEREQUITY
Securities Premium 524.40 -
Retained earnings 695.79 501.88
Money received against share warrants 563.55 -
1,783.74 501.88
Notes:
(a) Securities premiumreserve
Opening Balance 524.40 524.40
Add:-Equity shares issued during the year 524.40 524.40
(b) Retained earnings
As per the last balance sheet 501.88 349.53
Net profit/(loss) for the year 194.64 151.88
Items of other comprehensive income recognised directly in retained earnings
Re-measurement gains /(losses) on defined benefit plans (net of tax) (0.73) 047
695.79 501.88
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(c) Money received against share warrant
Opening Balance -
Add:-received during the year 708.90

Less:- Converted into equity Share 145,35
563.55 -

(A) Nature & Purpose of Reserves

(a) Securities premium
Securities premium is used to record the premium on issue of shares. The reserve can be utilised only for limited purposes such as issuance of bonus share in
accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act,2013.

(b) Retained earnings
Retained Earnings are profit the company has earned till date less transfer to General Reserve, dividend or other distribution or transaction with shareholders.

(c) ShareWarrant
(Refernote no 31(3))

As at As at
March 31,2025 March 31, 2024

14 NONCURRENT LIABILITIES

14.1 BORROWINGS
Term Loan form Banks(Secured)

Kotak Mahindra bank limited - 19.24
19.24
Less : Current Maturity of Long Term Borrowing - 19.24

Non-Current Portion .

Finance Lease Obligations(secured)

From Banks
HDFC Bank limited 34.60 4153
34.60 4153
Less : Current Maturity of Finance lease obligations 8.07 7.20
Non-Current Portion 26.53 34.33
Term Loan from others(unsecured)
IFE Cranex Elevators & Esclators India Private Limited 615.63 616.63
Less : Current Maturity of Long Term Borrowings 421.12 -
194.51 616.63
221.04 650.97

Notes:

A) Term Loan from Kotak Mahindra Bank

I Working capital term loan from Kotak Mahindra Bank Limited is taken for a sum of Rs. 90 Lakhs Outstanding balance as on 31.03.2025 Rs Nil/- (Previous year
Rs.19.24 Lakhs) under WCCTL Guranteed Emergency Credit Line (GECL) to provide liquidity support and build up current asset and meet operational
liabilities affected due to Covid 19 Pandemic.

Il The Term loan is secured by way of second exclusive equitable mortgage charge on the Book Debts Movable Property (not being pledge), current assets,
Movable Fixed Assets and furthur Immovable property .

il The Term loan is further secured by second exclusive equitable mortagage charge on immovable property Plot No 57/1/19, industrial area site IV, Sahibabad,
Ghaziabad inthe name of Cranex Limited.

IV Terms of Repayment:
Term Loan of Rs. 90 Lakhs :- Commencing from 15th Nov. 2020 repayable in total of 48 installments which are as follows:

1st Installment Rs.60,983.60/- Only have interest component
2nd Installment Rs.59,016.39/- Only have interest component
3rd Installment Rs.61,059.06/- Only have interest component
4th Installment Rs.61,150.68/- Only have interest component
5th Installment Rs.55,232.88/- Only have interest component
6th Installment Rs.61,150.68/- Only have interest component
7th Installment Rs.59,178.08/- Only have interest component
8th Installment Rs.61,150.68/- Only have interest component
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15

16

17

9th Installment

10th Installment
11th Installment
12th Installment
Next 35 Installments
Last Installment

Rs.59,178.08/-
Rs.61,150.68/-
Rs.61,150.68/-
Rs.59,178.08/-

Rs.282,027.00/-
Rs. 282,189.76/-

Only have interest component
Only have interest component
Only have interest component
Only have interest component

CRANEX

Principal Component Plus Interest
Principal Component Plus Interest

V' The Company has borrowings from banks on the basis of current assets. The Company has complied with the requirement of filing of quarterly

returns/statements of security of current assets with the banks or financial institutions, as applicable, and these returns were in agreement with the books of

accounts except as shown in note no 31(8).

VI The borrowings obtained by the Company from banks have been applied for the purposes for which such loans were taken. In respect of term loans which were
takenin the previous year, those were applied in the respective year for the purpose for which the loan were obtained.

B) FinanceLease Obligations

Long term maturities of finance lease obligations secured against hypothecation of respective vehicles under finance lease are as under:-

Name of Lendor Nature of Lease Terms of repayments (Including Interest)

HDFC Bank Finance Lease Repayable in total 60 monthly equal instalments Rs.41,741/- all including
interest, commencing from 7th March 2024.

HDFC Bank Finance Lease Repayable in total 60 monthly equal instalments Rs.44,554/- all including
interest, commencing from 05th Apr 2024.

C) Unsecured Loan IFE Cranex Elevators & Esclators India Private Limited- An Associate Company.

The said loan has been granted in lieu of bank gurantees given by the Company for projects. The Loan is interest free and is repayable on extinguishment of

bank gurantees as and when it occurs. There are amount due for repaymentin F.Y 2025-26 Amount421.12 Lakhs.

D) The Company has not defaulted in repayment of principal amount and interest during the year and complied with loan covenants of the lenders.

NON CURRENT PROVISIONS
Provision for employee benefits
Gratuity(refer note no 31(2))

OTHER NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES

CURRENT FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

17.1 SHORT TERM BORROWINGS
SECURED (at Amortised Cost)
Repayable on Demand
Cash Credit facility - Kotak Mahindra Bank Limited (See Note I)
Cash Creditfacility - Canara Bank Limited (refer note no. 31(6B))
Current maturities of long-term borrowings
Current maturities of finance lease obligation

UNSECURED (atAmortised Cost)
(a) Loan from Related Parties
Loans and advances from related parties ( See Note v)

(b) Others
National Small Industries corporation Limited ( See Note ii)
Oxyzo Financial Services Ltd. ( See Noteiiii)
Current maturities of long-term borrowings-Others

Notes:

56.44 52.62
56.44 52.62
784.71 806.38
- 2.73

- 19.24

8.07 7.20
792.77 835.54
250.30 972.80
214.02 247.69
92.75 -
421.12 -
978.19 1,220.49
1,770.96 2,056.03

() The Companyhas availed working capital limits of Rs.3185 Lakhs (Previous Year Rs.3185 Lakhs ) from Kotak Mahindra Bank which is secured by way of first
charge on Book Debts of the Company.In the given working capital limit, fund based limit is of Rs. 1327 Lakhs and Non Fund based limit is to the extent of Rs.

1885 Lakhs.

The workig capital limit is secured by the way of first and exclusive hypothencation chrges on all existing and future and current assets, movalbe fixed assets

and any interest therein
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The working Capital Limitis further secured by Exclusive Equitable Charge on Immovable Property Plot no 57/1 and 57/1/19, industrial area site 1V, Sahibabad,
Ghaziabad in the name of the Company.

The Company has borrowings from banks on the basis of current assets. The companyhas complied with the requirment of filling of quarterly returns/statement
of security of current assets with the bank or Financial instituations, as applicable, and these returns were in agreement with the books of accounts except as
showninnote no 31(8).

The difference are due to unaudited /provisional figures filed with bank

Aggregated amount of working Capital Limits secured by way of personal gurantee of
Mr. Piyush Aggarwal (Director) and Mr. Chaitanya Aggrawal (Director) 784.71 809.10

(i)  The Company has been sanctioned an unsecured loan of Rs. 300.00 lakhs by National Small Industries Corporation Limited (NSICL) for its business needs.
The Company has not furnished any security. However, Bank Gurantee equivalent to the value of limit sanctioned from Kotak Mahindra Bank been charged
against the said loan.

(i) The Company has been sanctioned an unsecured loan of Rs. 130.00 lakhs by Oxyzo Finacial service Limmited for its business needs. The Company has not
furnished any security. However, Bank Gurantee equivalent to the value of limit sanctioned from Kotak Mahindra Bank been charged against the said loan.

(iv) The effective rate of interest on short term borrowings ranges between 9.25 % p.a. to 14.5% p.a. during the year, depending upon the prime lending rate of the
banks and financial institutions at the time of borrowing, wherever applicable, and interest rate spread agreed with the banks

(v) Loan
Amitabh Aggarwal (HUF) 99.72 146.72
Chaitanya Agrawal 146.65 27515
Piyush Agrawal 3.93 550.93
250.30 972.80
(vi) There are no defaultin the repayment of borowings and interests as on the date of the balance sheet.
17.2TRADE PAYABLES
Total outstanding dues of micro and small enterprises 34.92 129.96
Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro and small enterprises 791.87 1,173.86
826.79 1,303.81
Trade payables ageing schedule for the year ended as on March 31,2025 :
. Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment Total
Particulars Not due Less than 1 1-2 years 2-3years | More than 3
Year years
(i) | MSME 30.24 - 30.24
(ii) | Others 235.70 100.58 93.30 61.46 300.83 791.87
(iii) | Disputed dues — MSME - - - 4.67 - 4.67
(iv)| Disputed dues - Others - - - - - -
Total 265.94 100.58 93.30 66.14 300.83 826.79

Trade payables ageing schedule for the year ended as on March 31,2024:

Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment Total
Particulars Not due Less than 1 1-2 years 2-3years | More than 3
Year years

(i) | MSME 8.75 109.24 8.09 0.71 3.17 129.96
(ii) | Others 39.06 669.61 44317 13.61 0.44 1,165.90
(iii) | Disputed dues — MSME - - - - - -
(iv)| Disputed dues - Others - - 7.96 7.96

Total 47.81 778.85 451.26 14.32 11.57 1,303.81

Notes: -
*Trade payables includes due to related parties Rs. Nil/- (March 31, 2024: Nil/-)
*The amounts are unsecured and are usually paid within 120 days of recognition.
*Trade payables are usually non- interest bearing .In few cases ,where the trade payables are interest bearing, the interest is settled on quarterly basis.

(i) Information as required to be furnished as per section 22 of the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 (MSMED Act) for the year ended
March 31, 2025 is given below. This information has been determined to the extent such parties have been identified on the basis of information available with
the Company.
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(i) | Principal amount and interest due thereon remaining unpaid to any supplier covered under MSMED Act:

Principal 34.52 129.95

Interest Nil Nil
(i) | The amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of section16, of the MSMED Act, 2006 along with the

amounts of the payment made to the supplier beyond the appointed day during each accounting year. Nil Nil
(iii) | The amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment (which have been paid but

beyond the appointed day during the year) but without adding the interest specified under MSMED Act. Nil Nil
(iv) | The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of each accounting year. Nil Nil

(v) | The amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding years, until such date
when the interest dues as above are actually paid to the small enterprise for the purpose of disallowance as a
deductible expenditure under section 23 of the MSMED Act, 2006 Nil Nil

(i) Theinformation in respect of party determined under the MSMED Act 2006, has been identified on the basis of information available with the Company.

17.30THERFINANCIAL LIABILITIES

Employee Benefit Expenses 56.11 84.74
Other payables 59.20 70.85
115.30 155.59
Notes:
() Employees benefitexpensesinclude payable to directors and other related parties are as under:-
ChaitanyaAgrawal 1.49 0.84
Piyush Agrawal 2.16 1.19
Shilpy Chopra - 0.03
(i) Otherpayablesareinrespectof auditfee, uncleared cheques and other miscellaneous liabilities payable.
18 OTHER CURRENTLIABILITIES
Revenue received inadvance
Advance from customers 13.30 87.23
Statutory dues
Goods and Service Tax (GST) 132.08 77.19
Others statutory dues
PF Payable 3.79 3.62
ESIPayable 0.45 0.46
TDS Payable 4.73 3.19
154.36 171.69
19 CURRENTPROVISIONS
Provision for employee benefits
Gratuity( refernoteno 31(2) 25.96 17.26
25.96 17.26

Notes:
(i) Provisions are recognized for Gratuity. The provisions are recognized on the basis of past events and probable settlements of the present obligations as a result
of the pastevents, in accordance with Indian Accounting Standard-37 issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

The movement of provisions are as under:-

At the beginning of the year

Gratuity (Non-current Lakhs 52.61/-) 69.88 59.11
Income Tax 50.95 23.50
Arising during the year

Gratuity (Includes items of OCI) 15.91 13.12
Income Tax 60.00 50.95
Utilised during the year

Gratuity 3.38 2.35
Income Tax 50.95 23.50
Atthe end ofthe year

Gratuity (Non-Current Lakhs 56.44/-) 82.41 69.88
Income Tax 60.00 50.95
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As at As at
March 31,2025 March 31, 2024

20 CURRENTTAXLIABILITIES (NET)
Income Tax (Netof TDS) 26.28 4.94
26.28 4.94

21 REVENUEFROMOPERATIONS

Sale of Products 3,777.48 4,841.76
Sale of services 1,376.28 1,369.65
5,153.76 6,211.41
Notes:
(i) Timing of Revenue Recognition
Goods transferred ata pointin time 3,777.48 4,841.76
Services transferred over the time 1,376.28 1,369.65
5,153.76 6,211.41
(i) Disaggregation of revenue based on product or service
Cranes 3,695.85 4,711.24
Accessories 43.48 8.90
Erection & Installation 1,263.42 1,368.68
Freight - 0.97
TestRings - 84.42
Iron Scrap 5.09 -
Annual Maintenance Charges 112.86 -
Grocery ltems 33.06 37.20
5,153.76 6,211.41
(iii) Revenue by location of customers
India 5,120.70 6,174.21
Outside India 33.06 37.20
5,153.76 6,211.41

(iv) Reconciliation of revenue recognised in statement of profit and loss with contracted price
Revenue as per contracted price 5,153.76 6,211.41
Less: Cash Discount

5,153.76 6,211.41

(v) Performance Obligation
Sale of products: Performance obligation in respect of sale of goods is satisfied when control of the goods is transferred to the customer, generally on delivery
of the goods and payment is generally due as per the terms of contract with customer.

Sales of services: The performance obligation in respect of maintenance services is satisfied over a period of time and acceptance of the customer. In respect
of these services, payment s generally due upon completion of maintenance period based on time elapsed and acceptance of the customer.

22 OTHERINCOME
a) Interestreceived onfinancial assets carried at amortised cost:
Interest Income from Banks 38.59 31.74
Interest Income from others 0.28 -

b) Othernon-operatingincome

Foreign Currency Exchange Fluctuations (Net) - 30.28
Profit on Sale of Vehicle 1.97 -
Miscellaneous income 1.77 39.15
42.60 101.17
23 COSTOF MATERIALS CONSUMED

MS Pipe 369.73 465.02
Ms Plate 426.45 654.80
Motor 200.62 316.06
Control Panel 60.69 83.84
Forging 110.71 125.11
Control Gear 33.02 45.62
Cable 66.25 91.52
GearBox 145.45 162.95
MS Profile 68.44 94.55
Brake 52.99 73.20
Consumable Stores 1,518.37 1,869.32
3,052.71 3,982.01
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24 PURCHASE OF STOCKIN TRADE (TRADED GOODS)
Purchase Traded Goods 26.57 57.93
26.57 57.93

(Amount in Lakhs)

As at As at (Increase) /
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 Decrease
25 CHANGEININVENTORIES OF FINISHED GOODS AND WORK-IN-PROGRESS
Inventories at the end of the year
Finished goods 415.02 406.89 (8.13)
Work-in-Progress 194.51 178.86 (15.65)
609.53 585.75 (23.79)
Inventories at the beginning of the year
Finished goods 406.89 420.02 13.14
Work-in-Progress 178.86 461.20 282.34
585.75 881.22 295.48
(Increase)/ Decrease in stocks (23.79) 295.48
Details of inventories at the end of the year
a) Finished Goods
Crane 415.02 406.89 (8.13)
415.02 406.89 (8.13)
b) Work-in-Progress
Crane 194.51 178.86 (15.65)
194.51 178.86 (15.65)
Details of inventories at the beginning of the year
a) Finished Goods
Crane 406.89 420.02 13.13
406.89 420.02 13.13
b) Work-in-Progress
Crane 178.86 461.20 282.34
178.86 461.20 282.34
As at As at

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

26 EMPLOYEEBENEFITS EXPENSES

Salary, Wages, Bonus and other benefits 512.25 407.72
Contribution towards PF and ESI 27.64 25.16
Gratuity 14.94 13.75
Staff welfare expenses 14.07 1.48
568.90 448.11
Employee benefits expense include managerial remuneration as detailed below:
Salary 48.00 24.00
27 FINANCECOSTS
Interest Expense 116.43 101.92
Other Borrowing Costs 54.31 42.73
170.74 144.65
28 DEPRECIATION AND AMORTISATION EXPENSES
Depreciation on tangible assets 34.04 31.46
34.04 31.46
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29 OTHEREXPENSES
Consumption of Stores and Spares
Powerand Fuel
Job Work and Erection Charges
Hire Charges
Project Site Expenses
Testing Charges
Rent
Repairs to Machinery
Repairs others
Security Charges
Insurance
Rates and Taxes
Legal & Professional Charges
Travel, Conveyance and Vehicle Maintenance
Telephone, Internet, Postage & Courier
Pattern & Drawing Charges
Bad debts and sundry balances written off
Paymentto Auditors
Auditfee
Taxauditfee
Certificate & Other Charges
Exchange Fluctuation
Transportation expenses and Export Expenses
Business Promotion and Marketing Expenses
Miscellaneous expenses

30 COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES
A Contingentliabilities (to the extent not provided for)
a) Claimsfiled againstthe Company notacknowledged as debts

b) Bankguarantees obtained from banks
(Margin money Rs.315.81 previous year Rs.513.04)

c) Disputed tax liabilities in respect of pending cases refer point (ii))

d) Demand raised by TDS Department (Tax Deduction at Source) (refer point (iii))

Notes:

(Amount in Lakhs)

As at

As at

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

1.78 1.95
25.66 32.94
338.84 342.49
1.10 5.69
96.13 108.49
237 16.17
13.33 5.15
18.99 14.96
0.20 0.38
45.91 65.86
19.97 11.73
1.31 2.99
34.33 38.24
27.21 37.03
5.37 6.12
2.00 0.76
133.97 111.08
4.75 4.50
0.50 0.50
0.50 0.35
10.57 -
306.82 299.08
1.13 1.34
22.89 28.32
1,115.63 1,136.11
15.98 15.98
1,541.95 1,683.70
13.50 5.94
3.83 3.83
1,575.26 1,709.45

(i) (a) Aclaim has been filed against the Company by a supplier for recovery which is pending before The Honble District Judge (Commercial Court)-02

North-West. No provision for the same has been made since the Company has disputed the liability.
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(ii) The various disputed tax litigations are as under :
Sl. Description Court / Authority Financial year to Disputed Amount
NO. which relates
As at As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
a) | Goods & Services Tax
(i) | Demand raised by the GST Department Addl. Commissioner, Gr.2 2023-24 5.94 5.94
(Excluding Penalty) (Appeal) Meerut-I
(Amount deposited Rs. 5.94 Lakh)
(i) | *Demand raised by the Office of the
Commissioner, Central Gst, Audit- Il Delhi Office Of The Commissioner, 2017-23 7.56
SCNreceived fromRs.18.32 Central Gst, Audit-ll Delhi
(Excluding Penalty)
(Amount deposited Rs. 10.49 Lakh)
Total 13.50 5.94

B

*  The Company in the process for application for waiver of interest and penalty. in respect of notice.

(iii) The Company has outstanding TDS demands of Rs. 3.83 Lakhs on account of short deductions and interest u/s 201 and 220(2) of the Income TaxAct, 1961.
The Company will be filing the revised returns/applications and itis expected that there will be no demand on this account.

Commitments As at As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

(i) Capital Commitments - -

31 OTHERNOTESONACCOUNTS

1

a)

a) Inthe opinion of the Board, assets have a value on realization in the ordinary course of business at least equal to the amount at which they are stated.

b) Balance of unsecured short term bororrowings from others, trade payables, other current liabilities, long and short term advances, other non-current and
current assets and trade receivables are subject to reconciliation and confirmations.

Disclosures pursuant to Ind AS - 19 "Employee Benefits” (specified under section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013, read with Rule 7 of Companies (Accounts)
Rules, 2015 ) are given below:

Defined Contribution Plan
Contribution to Defined Contribution Plan, recognised as expense for the year is as under:
(Amount in Lakhs)

As at As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

Contribution to Defined Contribution Plan, recongised during the year are as under:-

Employer's Contribution towards Provident Fund (PF) (including Administration Charges) 23.27 2124

Employer's Contribution towards Employee State Insurance (ESI) 4.37 4.22
27.64 25.46

Defined Benefit Plan

Gratuity (Unfunded)

The present value of obligation is determined based on actuarial valuation using the Projected Unit Credit Method, which recognizes each period of services as
giving rise to additional unit of employee benefit entitlement and measures each unit separately to build up the final obligation.

(Amount in Lakhs)

As at As at
Reconciliation of opening and closing balances of Defined Benefit obligation March 31,2025 March 31, 2024
Present value of obligation at the beginning of the year 69.88 59.11
Current Service Cost 9.90 9.40
Interest Cost 5.05 435
Acturial (gain) /loss arising during the year 0.97 (0.63)
Benefit paid (3.38) (2.35)
Present value of obligation at the end of the year 82.41 69.88
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(Amount in Lakhs)
As at As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Current Liability (Short Term) 25.96 17.26
Non-current Liability (Long Term) 56.44 52.62
b) NetAsset/(Liability) recognisedin the balance sheet
Present value of defined benefit obligation 82.41 69.88
Amountrecognised in Balance Sheet-Asset/ (Liability) 82.41 69.88
¢) Expenserecognised in the Statement of profit and loss during the year
Current Service Cost 9.90 9.40
Interest Cost 5.05 4.35
14.94 13.75
d) Acturial (Gain)/Loss recognised in other comprehensive income during the year
- changes in demographic assumptions
- changes in financial assumptions 1.16 0.65
-changes in experience adjustments (0.19) (1.28)
Recognised in other comprehensive income 0.97 (0.63)
e) Broad categories of plan assets as a percentage of total assets
Insurer managed funds Nil Nil
f)  Actuarial Assumptions
Mortality Table (LIC) 100% of IALM  100% of IALM
2012-14 2012-14
Discount Rate (perannum) 6.59% 7.22%
Rate of escalation in salary (per annum) 8.00% 8.00%
g) Quantitative sensitivity analysis for significant assumptions is as below:
Increase / (decrease) on present value of defined benefits obligations at the end of the year
Impact of change in discount rate
Impact due toincrease by 0.5 % (2.51) (2.30)
Impact due to decrease by 0.5 % 2.69 247
Impact of change in salary
Impactdue toincrease by 0.5% 2.38 2.23
Impact due to decrease by 0.5 % (2.25) (2.11)
h) Maturity profile of defined benefit obligation
0to1Year 25.96 17.26
1to2 Year 6.99 6.45
2to3Year 5.40 6.05
3to4 Year 3.28 4.49
4to5 Year 2.95 2.69
5to6 Year 3.00 2.39
6 Year onwards 34.82 30.55

Total expected payments 824t ——69.88—

i) Theaverage duration of the defined benefit plan obligation at the end of the reporting period is 8.19 years. (Previous Year-8.25 years)

i) Theestimates of rate of escalation in salary considered in actuarial valuation are after taking into account inflation, seniority, promotion and other relevant
factors including supply and demand in the employment market. The above information is as certified by the Actuary.

k) Discount rate is based on the prevailing market yields of Indian Government securities as at the balance sheet date for the estimated term of the
obligations.

[)  The sensitivity analysis above have been determined based on a method that extrapolates the impact on defined benefit obligation as a result of
reasonable changes in key assumptions occurring at the end of the reporting period.

3 a) Duringthe year, the Company had allotted 27,80,000 fully Convertible Warrants at an issue price of 102/- per warrant, on prefrential basis to promoters and
promoter group, non promoter group with an option to convert the same into equal number of equity shares at a price of Rs.102/- per warrant, including
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premium of Rs. 92/- per share on face value of Rs. 10/- per share, within a period of 18 months from the date of allotment of warrants i.e. October 25, 2024.

b)  Further during the year, the company had already received an upfront payment of Rs. 708.90, 25% i.e. Rs. Per warrant, at the time of subscription of the
warrants, from the allottees. As per terms of warrant holders shall deposit the remaining portion of 75% i.e Rs. 76.50 per warrant for conversion of warrant
into equity share.

c) During the year, ended 31st March 2025, the Company has converted 5,70,000 Warrants into equal number of equity shares of Rs. 10/- each at an issue

price of Rs. 102/- per equity share.

d) Forthe purpose of calculation of diluted EPS, effect has been given of the above conversion of warrants, into equity shares.

4  Related party transactions
The related parties as per the terms of Ind AS-24,"Related Party Disclosures”, (specified under section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013, read with Rule 7 of
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2015) are disclosed below:

A Names of related parties and description of relationship:
Key Managerial Personnel
Piyush Agrawal
Chaitanya Agrawal
Ashwani Kumar Jindal
Shilpy Chopra
Shalini Rahul
Priyanka Pathak
Sonia Mendiratta (19th December, 2024 to 17th January, 2025)
Renu Singh (Upto 12 December 2023)
Heena Sharma (w.e.f2 April 2024)

Relatives of Key Managerial Personnel
Amitabh Agrawal
RituAgrawal

B Associates and Joint Ventures
IFE Cranex Elevators and Excalators India Pvt. Ltd
Shree Cranex (JV)

C Enterprises inwhich directors and relative of such directors are
interested and Associates/Joint Ventures
Ritu Investments Private Limited
Piyush Agrawal (HUF)
Skylark Associates Pvt. Limited
MPD Karigar Crafts LLP

D Transactions during the year:

(i)

(ii)

Loans taken from
Enterprises in which directors and relative of such directors are interested
Amitabh Aggarwal (HUF)

Key Management Personnel
Piyush Agrawal - Managing Director
Chaitanya Agrawal - Whole Time Director & CFO

Loans repaid

Enterprises in which directors and relative of such directors are interested
IFE Cranex Elevators and Excalators India Pvt. Ltd

Amitabh Agrawal (HUF)

Key Management Personnel
Piyush Agrawal - Managing Director
ChaitanyaAgrawal - Whole Time Director & CFO
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Managing Director

Whole Time Director & CFO
Independent Director
Independent Director
Independent Director
Independent Director
Independent Director
Company Secretery
Company Secretery

Associate Company
Joint Ventures

As at

As at

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

35.00 -
35.00 -
21.00 209.45
32.50 81.94
53.50 291.39
1.08 6.00
82.00 85.00
83.08 91.00
568.00 151.05
161.00 61.50
729.00 212,55




CRANEX

(iv)

)

(vi)

50" Annual Report 2024-2025

(iii) Money received againest Share Warrant
Key Management Personnel
Piyush Agrawal - Managing Director
Chaitanya Agrawal - Whole Time Director & CFO

Relatives of Key Managerial Personnel
Amitabh Agrawal

Enterprises in which directors and relative of such directors are interested
Ritu Investments Private Limited

Equity Share Isued(Including security premium)
Key Management Personnel
Piyush Agrawal - Managing Director

Enterprises in which directors and relative of such directors are interested
Ritu Investments Private Limited

Rent Paid
Enterprises in which directors and relative of such directors are interested
Piyush Agrawal (HUF)

Sale of Goods and Services
Enterprises in which directors and relative of such directors are interested
Shree Cranex (JV)

(vii) Remuneration

Key Management Personnel

Piyush Agrawal - Managing Director

Chaitanya Agrawal - Whole Time Director & CFO
Renu Singh

Heena Sharma

(viii) Relatives of Key Management personnel

(ix)

Payal Agrawal

Director Sitting Fees

Key Management Personnel
Sonia Mendiratta

Shilpy Chopra

Priyanka Pathak

D Balancesattheyearend

U]

(ii)

Amount Receivables
Enterprises in which directors and relative of such directors are interested
Shree Cranex (JV)

Amount Payables

Enterprises in which directors and relative of such directors are interested
IFE Cranex Elevators and Excalators India Pvt. Ltd

Piyush Agrawal (HUF)

Key Management Personnel and relative of KMP
Loan Payable
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459.00 -
102.00 -
561.00 .
76.50 -
76.50 -
102.00 -
102.00 .
459.00 -
459.00 -
102.00 -
102.00 -
0.82 0.60
0.82 0.60
57.46 233.00
57.46 233.00
28.50 19.50
19.49 13.50
- 341

5.28 -
53.27 36.41
- 0.30

. 0.30

0.05 -
0.48 0.30
0.30 -
0.83 0.30
309.28 313.32
309.28 313.32
615.63 616.63
- 0.05
615.63 616.68
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Piyush Agrawal - Managing Director 3.93 550.93
Chaitanya Agrawal - Whole Time Director & CFO 146.65 275.15
Amitabh Aggarwal (HUF) 99.72 146.72
250.30 972.80

Salary & Other Payable
Piyush Agrawal - Managing Director 2.16 1.19
Chaitanya Agrawal - Whole Time Director & CFO 1.49 0.84
Shilpy Chopra - 0.03
3.65 2.06

Notes:

a) Thetransactions with related parties are made on terms equivalent to those that prevail in arm’s length transactions. Outstanding balances at the year-end
are unsecured and interest free (other than borrowings taken by the Company) and settlement occurs in cash.

For the year ended March 31, 2025, the Company has not recorded any impairment of receivables relating to amounts owed by related parties. This
assessment is undertaken each financial year through examining the financial position of the related party and the market in which the related party
operates.

b) Allthe liabilities for post retirement benefits being 'Gratuity’ and 'Leave Encashment' are provided on an actuarial basis for the Company as a whole, the
amount pertaining to Key management personnel are notincluded above.

c) Asperthe section 149(6) of the Companies Act, 2013, Independent Directors are not considered as “Key Managerial Person”, however to comply with the
disclosure requirements of Ind AS-24 on “Related party transactions” they have been disclosed as “Key Managerial Person”.

Particulars 2024-25 2024-25 Explanation for
Numerator | Denominator | Ratio | Numerator | Denominator | Ratio ) change in the
Variance | ratio by more
than 25% as
compared to the
previous year

(@) Current Ratio (times) = 4,677.95 2,919.66 1.60 4,321.53 3,709.31 117 37.52% Increase in
Current Assets / Current liabilities Current Assets

(b) Debt - Equity Ratio (times) = 1,992.00 2,440.74 0.82 2,707.00 1,101.88 246 | -66.78% Decrease in
Total Borrowings/ Shareholder's equity Borrowings

(c) Debt- Service Coverage Ratio = 456.33 170.74 2.67 392.94 144.65 2.72 -1.61% N/A
Earnings available for Debt
service/(refer note)

(d) Return on Equity Ratio % = 194.64 1,771.31 | 10.99% 151.88 1,025.71 | 14.81% | -25.79% Increase in
Net profits after taxes/ Average Equity
Shareholder's Equity

(e) Inventory Turnover Ratio (times) = 5,153.76 991.59 5.20 6,211.41 1,370.44 453 14.67% N/A
Revenue from operations/ Average
inventory

(f) Trade Receivables Turnover Ratio 5,153.76 2,960.05 1.74 6,211.41 2,403.96 258 | -32.62% Decrease in
(times) = Net credit revenue from Turnover
operations/ Average trade receivables

(9) Trade Payables Turnover Ratio (times) 3,079.28 1,065.30 2.89 4,039.94 1,342.56 3.01 -3.94% N/A
= Net credit purchases / Average
trade payables

(h) Net Capital Turnover Ratio (times) = 5,1563.76 1,758.29 2.93 6,211.41 612.22 10.15 | -71.11% | Better working
Revenue from operations / working capital
capital management

(I) Net Profit Ratio % = Net profit / 194.64 5,153.76 3.78% 152.35 6,211.41 2.45% 53.98% | Increase in Net
Revenue from operations Profit

(i) Return on Capital Employed % = 367.98 2,695.37 | 13.65% 318.75 1,783.85 | 17.87% | -23.60% N/A
EBIT / Capital employed (refer note ii)

(k) Return on Investment % = 367.98 5,608.63 6.56% 318.75 5397.31 | 591% 11.10% N/A
EBIT / Average total assets
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Notes:

i) Debt Service = Interest & lease Payments + Principal Repayments
i) Capital Employed = Tangible Net Worth + Total Borrowings + Deferred Tax Liability
iii) Tangible Net Worth is Computed as Total Assets - Total Liabilities .
*Borrowings does not includes Lease liabilities

Relationship with struck off companies is as under:

Name of struck off Company Nature of transactions | Balance outstanding as | Balance outstanding as | Relationship with the struck off
with struck-off Company at 31 March,2025 at 31 March,2024 company , if any, to be
disclosed

KAN SECURITIES (INDIA) PVT. LTD. Shares held by struck | 500 Number of Shares 500 Number of Shares Shareholder
CIN NO.- U67120DL1994PTC059893 off company of Rs. 10/- Each of Rs. 10/- Each

SAYA SECURITIES PVT. LTD. Shares held by struck 5 Number of Shares 5 Number of Shares Shareholder
CIN NO.-U70101DL1996PTC082684 off company of Rs. 10/- Each of Rs. 10/- Each

VAISHAK SHARES LIMITED Shares held by struck 10 Number of Shares 10 Number of Shares Shareholder
CIN NO.- U85110KA1994PLC015178 off company of Rs. 10/- Each of Rs. 10/- Each

CHANDRAMA INVESTMENT Shares held by struck | 100 Number of Shares 100 Number of Shares Shareholder

FINANCE & LEASING LIMITED off company of Rs. 10/- Each of Rs. 10/- Each
CIN NO.- U67120UP1995PLC018753

MUNDHRA FINANCING PVT LTD Shares held by struck | 2000 Number of Shares | 2000 Number of Shares Shareholder
CIN NO.- U74999UP2021PTC157320 off company of Rs. 10/- Each of Rs. 10/- Each

ARSHI ENGINEERING WORKS Payables 0.04 Creditors
CIN NO.- U45400CT2013PTC000918

J.P.S. SHARE BROCKERS PVT LTD Shares held by struck 1 Number of Shares Shareholder
CIN NO.- U67120DL1997PTC091100 off company of Rs. 10/- Each

MEGA HEIGHTS RETAILORS Shares held by struck | 500 Number of Shares Shareholder

PRIVATE LIMITED off company of Rs. 10/- Each
CIN NO.- U45200BR2015PTC024367

7  Corporate Social Responsibility

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013, Every company having net worth of rupees five hundred crore or more, or turnover of
rupees one thousand crore or more or a net prot of rupees five crore or more during the immediately preceding financial year is required to incur at least 2% of
the average net profits of the preceding three financial years towards Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR).
Based on last audited balance sheet dated 31 March, 2024, the company does not meet any of the threshold prescribed by law. Hence, the provisions of
CompaniesAct, 2013 regarding CSR would not be applicable.

8 The Company has borrowings from banks on the basis of current assets. The Company has complied with the requirement of ling of quarterly
returns/statements of security of current assets with the banks or financial institutions, as applicable, and these returns were in agreement with the books of

accounts exceptas under:

(Amount in Lakhs)

SL. Particulars As per Submitted As Per Books Difference Reasons
No. Statement
Quarter 1
1 | Inventory 1,396.83 1,396.89 (0.06) Due to filing of unaudited/
2 | Trade Receivables 2,308.82 2,226.63 82.19 provisional figures with banks.
3 | Trade Payables 597.49 1,059.47 (461.98)
Quarter 2
1 Inventory 1,117.92 1,117.92 - Due to filing of unaudited/
2 | Trade Receivables 2,813.01 2,802.28 10.73 provisional figures with banks.
3 | Trade Payables 587.84 1,218.80 (630.96)
Quarter 3
1 Inventory 1,068.03 1,068.03 - Due to filing of unaudited/
2 | Trade Receivables 2,766.86 2,779.57 (12.71) provisional figures with banks.
3 | Trade Payables 351.96 950.48 (598.52)
Quarter 4
1 Inventory 649.92 852.04 (202.12) Due to filing of unaudited/
2 | Trade Receivables 3,205.79 3,215.53 (9.74) provisional figures with banks.
3 | Trade Payables 373.82 826.79 (452.97)
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9 SegmentReporting
Segment information is presented in respect of the Company’s key operating segments. The operating segments are based on the Company’s management
and internal reporting structure.

10

Operating Segments
The Company's Managing Director and CFO has been identied as the Chief Operating Decision Maker ('CODM'), since Managing Director and CFO are
responsible for all major decision w.r.t. the preparation and execution of business plan, preparation of budget and other key decisions.

CRANEX

Managing director reviews the operating results at the Company level to make decisions about the Company's performance. Accordingly, management has
identied the business as single operating segment i.e. "Manufacturing of EOT cranes and installation of escalators". Accordingly, there is only one Reportable
Segment forthe Company i.e. "Manufacturing of EOT cranes and installation of escalators”, hence no specic disclosures have been made.

a)

b)

d)

e)

Information about products and services

Please refer to note 21 of the financial statements

Revenue as per Geographical Markets
Domestic Market

Overseas Market

Total

Non-current assets (other than deferred tax assets and financial instruments) in Geograpgical Market

Within India
Outside India
Total

Information about major customers

Customers contributing more than 10% of the Company's total revenue are as under:

a) BharatAluminium Company Limited
b) MumbaiMetro Rail Corporation Limited

Geographical Capital Expenditure
Domestic Market
Overseas Market

Fair value measurements
Set out below, is a comparison by class of the carrying amounts and fair value of the Company’s financial instruments, other than those with carrying amounts

that are reasonable approximations of fair values:

Financial instruments by category

Financial assets at amortized cost
Investments (non-current)

Loans and advances (non current)
Other financial assets (non-current)
Trade receivables (current)

Cash and cash equivalents

Other bank balances

Other financial assets (current)

Financial Liabilities at amortized cost
Borrowings (non-current)

Borrowings (current)

Trade payables (current)

Other financial liabilities (current)

(*excluding investments in associates)
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Carrying Value

As at

As at

March 31,2025 March 31, 2024

As at

As at

March 31,2025 March 31, 2024

5,120.70 6,174.21
33.06 37.20
5,153.76 6,211.41
744.71 816.38
744.71 816.38
1,045.58 1,409.06
613.87 907.85
1,659.45 2,316.91
8.77 52.55
8.77 52.55

(Amount in Lakhs)

Fair Value

As at

As at

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

0.01 0.01 0.01 0.01
208.82 407.86 208.82 407.86
3,215.53 2,704.57 3,215.53 2,704.57
0.81 1.34 0.81 1.34
426.05 145.68 426.05 145.68
25.51 148.73 25.51 148.73
3,876.73 3,408.19 3,876.73 3,408.19
221.04 650.97 221.04 650.97
1,770.96 2,056.03 1,770.96 2,056.03
826.79 1,303.82 826.79 1,303.82
115.30 1556.59 115.30 1556.59
2,934.09 4,166.41 2,934.09 4,166.41
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The fair value of the financial assets and liabilities is included at the amount at which the instrument could be exchanged in a current transaction between willing parties,
otherthanin aforced or liquidation sale. The following methods and assumptions were used to estimate the fair values:

)

The fair value of unquoted instruments, loans from banks and other financial liabilities, as well as other non-current financial liabilities is estimated by
discounting future cash flows using rates currently available for debt on similar terms, credit risk and remaining maturities. In addition to being sensitive to a
reasonably possible change in the forecast cash flows or the discount rate, the fair value of the equity instruments is also sensitive to a reasonably possible
change in the growth rates. The valuation requires management to use unobservable inputs in the model, of which the significant unobservable inputs are
disclosed in the tables below. Management regularly assesses a range of reasonably possible alternatives for those significant unobservable inputs and
determines theirimpact on the total fair value.

The fair values of the Company’s interest-bearing borrowings and loans are determined by using Discounted cash flow method using discount rate that reflects
the issuer’s borrowing rate as at the end of the reporting period. The own non-performance risk as at 31 March 2025 was assessed to be insignificant.

Long-term receivables/ payables are evaluated by the Company based on parameters such as interest rates, risk factors, individual creditworthiness of the
counterparty and the risk characteristics of the financed project. Based on this evaluation, allowances are taken into account for the expected credit losses of
these receivables.

The significant unobservable inputs used in the fair value measurement categorized within Level 1 and Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy together with a
quantitative sensitivity analysis as atend of each year, are as shown below:

Fair value hierarchy

The Company uses the following hierarchy for determining and disclosing the fair value of financial instruments by valuation technique:

Level1: quoted (unadjusted) prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities
Level 2: other techniques for which all inputs that have a significant effect on the recorded fair value are observable, either directly or indirectly
Level 3: techniques that use inputs that have a significant effect on the recorded fair value that are not based on observable market data

Quantitative disclosures of fair value measurement hierarchy for assets as on March 31, 2025
(Amount in Lakhs)

Assets carried at amortized cost for which . Fair Value
fair value are disclosed Carrying Value Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Investments (non-current) 0.01 - 0.01
Loans and advances (non current) - - -
Other financial assets (non-current) 208.82 - 208.82
Trade receivables (current) 3,215.53 - 3,215.53
Cash and cash equivalents 0.81 - 0.81
Other bank balances 426.05 - 426.05
Other financial assets (current) 25.51 - 25.51
3,876.73 - 3,876.73
(Amount in Lakhs)
. Fair Value
Carrying Value Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Liabilities carried at amortized cost for which fair value are disclosed
Borrowings (non-current) 221.04 - 221.04
Borrowings (current) 1,770.96 - 1,770.96
Trade payables (current) 826.79 - 826.79
Other financial liabilities (current) 115.30 - 115.30
2,934.09 - 2,934.09
Quantitative disclosures of fair value measurement hierarchy for assets as on March 31, 2024
(Amount in Lakhs)
Assets carried at amortized cost for which . Fair Value
fairvalue are disclosed Carrying Value Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Investments (non-current) 0.01 - 0.01
Loans and advances (non current) - - -
Other financial assets (non-current) 407.86 - 407.86
Trade receivables (current) 2,704.57 - 2,704.57
Cash and cash equivalents 1.34 - 1.34
other bank balances 145.68 - 145.68
Other financial assets (current) 148.73 - 148.73
3,408.19 - 3,408.19
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(Amount in Lakhs)

Carrvina Val Fair Value

arrying value Level 1 Level 2 Level 3

Liabilities carried at amortized cost for which fair value are disclosed
Borrowings (non-current) 650.97 - - 650.97
Borrowings (current) 2,056.03 - - 2,056.03
Trade payables (current) 1,303.82 - - 1,303.82
Other financial liabilities (current) 155.59 - - 155.59
4,166.40 - - 4,166.41

Note:
The management assessed that cash and cash equivalents, trade receivables, trade payables, bank overdrafts and other current liabilities approximate their
carrying amounts largely due to the short-term maturities of these instruments.

11 Financial risk management objectives and policies
The Company'’s principal financial liabilities, other than derivatives, comprise loans and borrowings, trade and other payables. The main purpose of these financial
liabilities is to finance the Company’s operations. The Company’s principal financial assets include loans, trade and other receivables, and cash and cash
equivalents that are derived directly from its operations.

The Company's financial risk management is an integral part of how to plan and execute its business strategies. The Company is exposed to market risk, credit risk
and liquidity risk.

The Company's senior management oversees the management of these risks. The senior professionals working to manage the financial risks and the appropriate
financial risk governance framework for the Company are accountable to the Board of Directors and Audit Committee. This process provides assurance to
Company's senior management that the Company's financial risk-taking activities are governed by appropriate policies and procedures and that financial
risk are identified, measured and managed in accordance with Company policies and Company risk objective.

The Board of Directors reviews and agrees policies for managing each of these risks which are summarized as below:

(@) MarketRisk
Marketrisk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market prices. Market prices comprises
three types of risk: currency rate risk, interest rate risk and other price risks, such as equity price risk and commodity price risk. Financial instruments
affected by market risks include loans and borrowings, deposits, investments, and foreign currency receivables and payables. The sensitivity analysis in
the following sections relate to the position as at March 31, 2025. The analysis exclude the impact of movements in market variables on: the carrying values
of gratuity and other post-retirement obligations; provisions; and the non-financial assets and liabilities. The sensitivity of the relevant Profitand Loss item is
the effect of the assumed changes in the respective market risks. This is based on the financial assets and financial liabilities held as of March 31, 2025.

(i) Foreigncurrencyrisk
Foreign currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in foreign exchange rates.
The Company’s exposure to the risk of changes in foreign exchange rates relates primarily to the Company’s operating activities (when revenue or expense
is denominated in foreign currency). Foreign currency exchange rate exposure is partly balanced by purchasing of goods from the respective countries.
The Company evaluates exchange rate exposure arising from foreign currency transactions and follows established risk management policies.

Foreign currency risk sensitivity

The following tables demonstrate the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in USD, AED & Euro exchange rates, with all other variables held
constant. The impact on the Company profit before tax is due to changes in the fair value of monetary assets and liabilities. Foreign currency exposures
recognised by the Company that have notbeen hedged by a derivative instrument or otherwise are as under:

(Fig. In Lakhs)

Currency Foreign March 31, 2025 Gain/ (loss) Impact on profit/
Currency Foreign Indian (loss) before tax and equity
Currency Rupees 1% increase 1% decrease
Change in United States Dollar Rate $ 0.19 16.24765 0.16 (0.16)
Export trade receivables - - -
Other receivables - - - -
Capital Advances - - - -
Advances against material and services 0.05 4.71 0.05 (0.05)
Trade payables 3.84 328.98 3.29 (3.29)
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(b)

(Fig. In Lakhs)

Currency Foreign March 31, 2024 Gain/ (loss) Impact on profit/
Currency Foreign Indian (loss) before tax and equity

Currency Rupees 1% increase 1% decrease

Change in United States Dollar Rate $ - - - -

Export trade receivables - - - -
Other receivables - - - -
Capital Advances - - - .

Advances against material and services -

Trade payables 473 393.99 3.94 (3.94)

(ii)

Commodity Price Risk

The Company is exposed to the risk of price fluctuation of raw material as well as finished goods. The Company manages its commodity price risk by
maintaining adequate inventory of raw materials and finished goods considering future price movement. To counter raw material risk, the Company works
with various suppliers working in domestic and international market with the objective to moderate raw material cost, enhance application flexibility and
increased product functionality and also invests in product development and innovation. To counter finished goods risk, the Company deals with wide range
of vendors and manages these risks through inventory management and proactive vendor development practices. The Company also passes on the
Commodity price hike in case of several customers when Company have fixed price contracts. Fixed price contracts are enetered into after due
consideration of the Commodity price volatility during the delivery / contract period.

Credit Risk

Credit Risk is the risk that the counter party will not meet its obligation under a financial instrument or customer contract, leading to a financial loss. The
Company is exposed to credit risk from its operating activities (primarily trade receivables) and from its financing activities, including deposits with banks,
foreign exchange transactions and other financial instruments.

(i)

(ii)

Trade Receivables

Customer credit risk is managed by each business unit subject to the Company's established policy, procedures and control relating to customer credit risk
management. Credit quality of a customer is assessed based on an extensive credit rating scorecard and individual credit limits are defined in accordance
with this assessment. Outstanding customer receivables are regularly monitored. Out of that, the Company has 10 customers that owed the Company
approx. Rs.2918.41 lakhs (March 31,2024: Rs. 2687.41 lakhs) and accounted for 90.76% (March 31, 2024: 68.40%) of total trade receivables.

An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date on trade receivables by lifetime expected credit loss method based on provision matrix. The
maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is the carrying value of each class of financial assets. The Company does not hold collateral as
security. The Company evaluates the concentration of risk with respect to trade receivables as low, as its customers are located in several jurisdictions and
industries and operate in largely independent markets.

Financial instruments and cash deposits

Creditrisk from balances with banks and financial institutions is managed by the Company’s treasury department in accordance with the Company’s policy.
Investments of surplus funds are made in bank deposits and other risk free securities. The limits are set to minimise the concentration of risks and therefore
mitigate financial loss through counterparty’s potential failure to make payments.

The Company’s maximum exposure to credit risk for the components of the balance sheet at 31 March 2025 is the carrying amounts. The Company’s
maximum exposure relating to financial instrumentis noted in liquidity table below.

Trade Receivables and other financial assets are written off when there is no reasonable expectation of recovery, such as debtor failing to engage in the
repayment plan with the Company.

94



50" Annual Report 2024-2025

CRANEX

Financial assets for which allowance is measured using 12 months Expected Credit Loss Method (ECL)
Loans and advances (non current)

(Amount in Lakhs)

As at As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

208.82 407.86

Other financial assets (non-current)

Cashand cash equivalents 0.81 1.34

Otherbank balances 426.05 145.68

Other financial assets (current) 25.51 148.73
661.19 703.61

Financial assets for which allowance is measured using Life time Expected Credit Loss Method (ECL)

Trade receivables (current)

Balances with banks is subject to low credit risks due to good credit ratings assigned to these banks

(i) Theageing analysis of trade receivables has been considered from the date the invoice falls due

(Amount in Lakhs)

As at As at
March 31,2025 March 31, 2024
Particulars
0to 365 days due past due date 2,554.17 2130.58
More than 365 days past due date 661.37 573.99
Total Trade Receivables 3,215.53 2,704.57

The following table summarises the change in loss allowance measured using the life time expected credit loss model:
Particulars

As atthe beginning of year

Provision during the year

Reversal of earlier provision credited to other Income (Excess Provision written back)

As atthe end of year

(c) Liquidityrisk

Liquidity risk is defined as the risk that the Company will not be able to settle or meet its obligations on time or at reasonable price. The Company's objective is to
at all times maintain optimum levels of liquidity to meet its cash and liquidity requirements. The Company closely monitors its liquidity position and deploys a
robust cash management system. It maintains adequate source of financing through the use of short term bank deposits and cash credit facility. Processes and
policies related to such risks are overseen by senior management. Management monitors the Company's liquidity position through rolling forecasts on the basis
of expected cash flows. The Company assessed the concentration of risk with respect to its debt and concluded it to below:

Maturity profile of financial liabilities
The table below provides the details regarding the remaining contractual maturities of financial liabilities at the reporting date based on contractual
undiscounted payments.

(Amount in Lakhs)

As atMarch 31,2025 Less than 1 year More than 1 year Total

Borrowings (non-current) - 221.04 221.04
Borrowings (current) 1,770.96 - 1,770.96
Trade payables (current) 826.79 - 826.79
Other financial liabilities (current) 115.30 - 115.30

(Amount in Lakhs)

As atMarch 31,2024 Less than 1 year More than 1 year Total

Borrowings (non-current) - 650.97 650.97
Borrowings (current) 2,056.03 - 2,056.03
Trade payables (current) 1,303.82 - 1,303.82
Other financial liabilities (current) 155.59 - 155.59

(d) InterestRate Risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instruments will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. The
Company’s exposure to the risk of changes in market interest rates relates primarily to the Company’s short-term borrowings obligations in the form of cash
credit carrying floating interest rates.
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12

13

(Amount in Lakhs)

As at As at
March 31,2025 March 31, 2024
Fixed rate borrowing 36.49 4472
Variable rate borrowing 79.93 57.20
116.42 101.92

Sensitivity analysis: For floating rates liabilities, the analysis is prepared assuming the amount of the liability outstanding at the end of the reporting period was
outstanding for the whole year.

Sensitivity on variable rate borrowings

Impact on statement of profit and loss
Interestrate increase by 0.25% 243 212
Interest rate decrease by 0.25% (2.43) (212)

The Following Table summarises movemntinindebtedness as on the reporting date :
Change in Liabilities arising from financing activites

(Amount in Lakhs)

Net Cashflow As on Net Cashflow Foreign Transfer Change in fair As on
April 1, 2024 Exchange values March 31, 2025
Management
LONG TERM BORROWINGS
Secured
Term loan from Bank 19.23 19.23 - - -
Finance Lease Obligations
From Banks 41.55 6.95 - - - 34.60
From Others - - - -
Unsecured
Term loans from others parties 616.63 1.00 - - - 615.63
SHORT TERM BORROWINGS
Secured
Cash credit facility from bank 809.11 24.40 - - - 784.71
Buyer's credit facility from bank - - - - - -
Unsecured
Loan from Related Parties 972.80 722.50 - - - 250.30
Loan from others 247.69 (59.08) - - - 306.77

2,707.01 715.00 - - - 1,992.01

Capital Management

For the purposes of Company's capital management, Capital includes equity attributable to the equity holders of the Company and all other equity reserves. The
primary objective of the Company's capital management is to ensure that it maintains an efficient capital structure and maximize shareholder value. The Company
manages its capital structure and makes adjustments in light of changes in economic conditions and the requirements of the financial covenants. To maintain or adjust
the capital structure, the Company may adjust the dividend payment to shareholders or issue new shares. The Company is not subject to any externally imposed
capital requirements. No changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes for managing capital during the year ended March 31, 2024 and March 31,
2025.

The capital structure of the Company is based on the management's judgement of its strategic and day-to-day needs with a focus on total equity so as to maintain
investors, creditors and market confidence. The calculation of the capital for the purpose of capital managementis as below:
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16
17

(Amount in Lakhs)

Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

Borrowings 221.04 650.97
Cashand cash equivalents 0.81 1.34
Net Debt 221.85 652.31
Equity share capital 657.00 600.00
Other equity 1,783.74 501.88
Total Capital 2,440.74 1,101.88
Capital and Net Debt 2,662.59 1,754.19
Gearing Ratio (Net Debt/Capital and Debt) 8.33% 37.19%

Earnings per share

a) BasicEarnings pershare
Numerator for earnings per share

Profit/ (loss) after taxation (Rs.) 194.64 151.88
Denominator for earnings per share

Weighted number of equity shares outstanding during the year (Nos.) 6,065,589.00 6,000,000
Earnings per share-Basic (one equity share of Rs.10/- each) (Rs.) 3.21 253

b) Diluted Earnings per share
Numerator for earnings per share

Profit/ (loss) after taxation (Rs.) 194.64 151.88
Denominator for earnings per share

Weighted number of equity shares outstanding during the year (Nos.) 8,275,589.04 6,000,000
Earnings per share-Basic (one equity share of Rs.10/- each) (Rs.) 235 253

Note: There are noinstruments issued by the Company which have effect of dilution of basic earning per share.

Disclosures pursuant to Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and Section 186
of the Companies Act, 2013:

Particulars of Investments made: (Amount in Lakhs)
Sr. Name of the Investee Opening Investment | Impact of fair | Investment Outstanding
No Balance Made value Sold Balance

1 | Shree Cranex(JV) 31.71 - - - 31.71

2 | IFE Cranex Elevators & Excalators India Pvt. Ltd 182.00 - - - 182.00
Pending of Registration or satisfaction of charge : NIL

Additional regulatory information required by Schedule Ill of Companies Act,2013
(i) Details of Benami Properties: No proceedings have been initiated or are pending against the company for holding any Benami property under the Benami
Trasactions (prohibition) Act,1988 (45 of 1988) and the rules made thereunder.

(i) Utilization of borrowed funds and share premium:

The Company has not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entitites (intermediaries) with the understanding
that the shall:

(a) Directly orindirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (Ultimate Beneficiaries)
or;

(b) Provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the ultimate beneficiaries.

The Company has not received any fund from any person(s) or entity(ies) , including foreign entities (funding party) with the understanding (whether recorded in
writing or otherwise ) that the company shall:

(a) Directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the funding Party (Ultimate
Beneficiaries) or
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(b) Provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the ultimate beneficiaries.

(i) Compliance with number of layers of Companies: The Company has complied with the number of layers as prescribed under the Companies Act,2013.

(iv) Undisclosed Income: There is no income undisclosed or surrendered as income during the current or previous year in the tax assessments under the Income
TaxAct,1961, that has not recorded in the books of accounts.

(v) Crypto Currency or Virtual Currency: The company has not traded or invested in crypto currency or virtual currency during the current or previous year.

(vi) Valuations of PPE, Intangible assets :The company has not revalued its property, plantand equipment or intangible assets or both during the current or previous
year.

(vi) The Company has notgranted any loans or advances in the nature of loans repayable on demand.

18  Amounts in the financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees in lacs rounded off to two decimal places as permitted by Schedule 1l to the Companies Act,
2013. Per share data are presented in Indian Rupees to two decimals places.

19 NoteNo.1t031 formintegral part of the balance sheet and statement of profitand loss.

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
As per our report of even date

For V.R. Bansal & Associates For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration No.: 016534N
Sd/- Sd/- Sd/-
Rajan Bansal Piyush Agrawal Chaitanya Agrawal
Partner Managing Director Whole-Time Director & CFO
M. No.: 093591 DIN: 01761004 DIN: 05108809
Sd/-
Heena Sharma
Place: Sahibabad Company Secretary
Date: 30th May 2025 M. No.: A-65512

98



50" Annual Report 2024-2025 CRANEX

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To

The Members of
CRANEXLIMITED

57/1, Industrial Area, Site - 1V,
Sahibabad, Ghaziabad,
Uttar Pradesh-201010

Reporton the Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements
Qualified Opinion

We have audited the accompanying consolidated Ind AS financial statements of CRANEX LIMITED (“The Parent’), and its associate
Company(the Parent Company and its associate are together referred to as “the group”)which comprise the consolidated Balance Sheet as
at March 31, 2025, the consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss (including other comprehensive income), the consolidated Statement of
Cash Flows, and the consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies
and other explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as the consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanation given to us, except for the effects of the matter described in
the basis of Qualified Opinion section of our report, the aforesaid consolidated Ind AS financial statements, give the information required by
the Companies Act, 2013 in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally
accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31,2025,consolidated net profit and total comprehensive income,
consolidated changes in equity and its consolidated cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Qualified Opinion

a) The Parent Company has produced a Joint Venture agreement which it has entered into with M/s Shree Construction on
23/09/2021, whereby the parties have entered into a Joint Venture agreement and a Joint Venture entity namely M/s Shree-Cranex
(JV) has been formed . However, the parent company has not applied Equity method of accounting in respect of the investment in
the Joint Venture and hence not complied with the provisions of Ind AS 28 (Investment in Associates and Joint Ventures) with
respect to accounting Joint Ventures in consolidated financial statements.

b) Property, Plant and Equipment (PPE) registered has not been produced before us for the verification. Depreciation of Property,
Plantand Equipment has been provided on the basis of figures as certified by the management.

c) Balances under Trade Receivables and Trade Payables, loans and advances given by the Company and parties from whom
unsecured loans have been taken are subject to confirmations and adjustments, if any.

d) The Financial Assets and Liabilities — Trade Receivables and long term borrowings taken from IFE Cranex Elevators and
Escalators India Private Limited have not been measured at fair value as required by Ind AS-109 “Financial Instruments”.
Impairment provisions and fair value measurements have not been measured in accordance with Expected Credit Loss (ECL)
method as per Ind AS-109.

e) Inventory register has not been produced before us for verification by the Parent Company. Inventory value has been provided on
the basis of figures as certified by the management.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section 143(10) of the Companies Act 2013, as
amended (“The Act”). Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the “Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Results” section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the code of Ethics issued by
The Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statement
under the provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence obtained by us is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our qualified opinion on the statement

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a
whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. We have determined the matters
described below to be the key audit matters to be communicated in our report.
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S. | KeyAuditMatter Auditor's Response

1 | Revenue from the sale of goods (hereinafter referred to as “Revenue”is | Our proceduresincluded:
recognized when the Parent Company performs its obligation to its | *  Evaluating the design and implementation of Company’s controls in respect of revenue
customers and the amount of revenue can be measured reliably and recognition.

recovery of the consideration is probable. The timing of such recognition | *  Testingthe effectiveness of such controls over revenue cut offat yearend. ,
in the case of sale of goods is when the control over the same is | ° Testing the supporting documentation for sales transactions recorded during the period

transferred to the customer which is mainlv upon dispatch. delivery or closer to the year end and subsequent to the year end, including examination of credit
' vy up P - g notes issued after the year end to determine whether revenue was recognized in the
upon formal customer acceptance depending on customer's terms. correct period

2 | The timing of revenue recognition is relevant to the reported | *« Performing analytical procedures on current year revenue based on monthly trends and
performance of the Parent Company. The management considers where appropriate, conducting further enquiries and testing.

revenue as a key measure for evaluation of performance. There is a risk
of revenue being recorded before control is transferred.

Refer note no. 2.15 - Significant Accounting Policies; and note no. 22 -
Revenue from Operations; of the Financial Statement.

+ Assessing the appropriateness of the Parent Company’s revenue recognition
accounting policies in line with Ind AS 115 (“Revenue from Contracts with Customers”
and testing thereof.

3 | Evaluation of tax positions + Ouraudit procedures include the following substantive procedures:

The Parent Company operates in India and is subject to periodic| ¢ Obtained anunderstanding of key tax litigations and potential tax exposures

challenges by local tax authorities on a range of tax matters during the | *  Wealong with ourinternal tax experts -

normal course of business including direct tax, transfer pricing and | * read and analyzed select key correspondence and consultations carried out by

indirect tax matters. management with external tax experts for key tax litigations and potential tax exposures;
These involve significant management judgment to determine the | *  discussed with appropriate senior management and evaluated management's
possible outcome of the tax litigations, consequently having an impact underlying key assumptions and grounds of appeal in estimating the tax provisions; and

on related accounting and disclosures in the financial statements. Refer | * Evaluated the status of the recent and current tax assessments / inquiries, results of
previous tax assessments and changes in the tax environment to assess management's

Note 30(A) to the standalone Ind AS financial statements. . ' el X
estimate of the possible outcome of key tax litigations and potential tax exposures.

4. | Taxation Significant judgments are required in determining provision We evaluated the design and implement of controls in respect of provision for current tax
of income taxes, both current and deferred, as well as the assessment of and the recognition and recoverability of deferred tax assets. We discussed with
provision for uncertain tax position including estimates where management the adequate implementation of policies and control regarding current and
appropriate. deferred tax.

We examined the procedure in place for the current and deferred tax calculation for
completeness and valuation and audited the related tax computation and estimates in
light of our knowledge of the tax circumstances. Our work has conducted with our tax
specialist.

We performed the assessment of the material components impacting the tax expenses,
balance and exposures. We reviewed and challenged the information reported by
components with the support of our tax specialist, where appropriate.

In respect of deferred tax assets and liabilities, we assess the appropriateness of
management’s assumption and

Estimates to support deferred tax assets for tax losses carried forward and related
disclosures in financial statements. Based on the procedure performed above, we obtain
sufficient audit evidence to corroborate management's estimates regarding current and
deferred tax balances.

Information Other than the Consolidated Financial Statements and Auditor's Report Thereon

The Parent Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information included
in the Annual report but does not include the Ind AS financial statements and our auditor's report thereon. The Annual Report is expected to
be made available to us after the date of this Auditor's Report. Our opinion on the Ind AS financial statements does not cover the other
information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the Ind AS financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially in consistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information; we are required to
report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charges with Governance for the Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements

The Parent Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of these consolidated Ind AS financial statements that give a
true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance including other comprehensive income, consolidated cash flows and
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consolidated statement of changes in equity of the company in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in India,
including the Indian Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Parent Companies (Accounts)
Rules, 2014 and the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015.This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate
accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Group and for preventing and detecting
frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are
reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating
effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the
consolidated Ind AS financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the board of directors of the companies included in the Group are responsible for the
assessing the ability of the Group to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless Board of Directors either intends to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or has no realistic
alternative but to do so.

Those respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group are also responsible for overseeing the company's financial
reporting process of the Group.

Auditor's Responsibility for the Audit of Ind AS Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated Ind AS financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a
high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement
when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated Ind AS financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.
We also:

. Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated Ind AS financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as
fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

»  Obtain an understanding of internal financial controls relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances. Under section 143(3)(l) of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has
adequate internal financial controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

»  Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by management.

»  Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability
to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report
to the related disclosures in the consolidated Ind AS financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion.
Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions
may cause the Parent Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated Ind AS financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated Ind AS financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the consolidated Ind AS financial statements that, individually or in aggregate, makes it
probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the Ind AS financial statements may be influenced. We
consider quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work;
and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in the Ind AS financial statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were of most significance in the
audit of the consolidated Ind AS financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these
matters in our auditor's report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare
circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so
would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.
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Other Matter

We did not audit the financial statements and other financial information of the associate company included in these consolidated financial
statements, whose financial statements include share in loss (net of tax) of Rs. 0.001 Lakhs for the year ended on that date. These financial
statements and other financial information have been audited by other auditors. Our opinion on the consolidated Ind AS financial results, in
so far as it relates to the amounts and disclosures included in respect of the associate and our report in terms of sub-sections (3) of Section
143 ofthe Act, in so far as it relates to the aforesaid associate are based solely on the reports of such other auditors.

Our opinion on the consolidated Ind AS financial results report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements below is not modified in
respect of this matter with respect to our reliance on the work done and the reports of the other auditors.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1.

With respect to the matters specified in paragraphs 3(xxi) and 4 of the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 (the “order’/ “CARQ”)
issued by the Central Government in terms of Section 143(11) of the Act, to be included in the Auditor's report, according to the
information and explanations given to us, and based on the CARO reports issued by us for the Company included in the consolidated
financial statements of the Company, to which reporting under CARO is applicable, we report that there are qualifications or adverse
remarks in these CARO reports, as stated in “Annexure A” of this report.

In respect of the Associate Company, “IFE CRANEX ELEVATORS AND ESCALATORS INDIA PRIVATE LIMITED” CARO report as
required under paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 (the “order” / “CARQ”), is not applicable as
reported by their auditors.

As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit and on the consideration of report of the other auditors on separate
financial statements and the other financial information of associates, as noted in the 'other matter' paragraph we report, to the extent
applicable, that:

(@) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief were necessary
for the purposes of our audit.

(b) Inouropinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Parent Company so far as it appears from our
examination of those books, the data backup of the books & accounts in electronic mode has been kept on server physically
located inside India.

(c) The Consolidated Balance Sheet, and the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss including the Statement of Other
Comprehensive Income, the Consolidated Cash Flow Statement and consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity dealt with by
this Report are in agreement with the books of account.

(d) Inouropinion, except for the effects/possible effects of the matters described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion paragraph above,
the aforesaid consolidated financial statements comply with the Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under Section 133 of
the Actand the rules prescribed there under.

(e) Onthe basis of the written representations received from the directors of the Parent Company as on 31st March, 2025 taken on
record by the Board of Directors of the Parent Company, and on the basis of written representation received from the Directors of
Associate Company as on March 31,2025 and taken on report by the Board of Directors of Associate Company, none of the
Directors of the Parent Company and its Associate Company are disqualified as on March 31,2025 from being appointed as a
director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act;

(f)  With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial control over financial reporting of the Parent Company and the operating
effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate reportin “Annexure B” to this report.

(9) The qualifications relating to maintenance of accounts and other matters connected therewith are as stated in the Basis for
Qualified Opinion paragraph above.

(h) The matter described in the Basis for Qualified opinion paragraph above, in our opinion, does not have any adverse effect on the
functioning of the Group.

() In our opinion, the managerial remuneration for the year ended March 31, 2025 has been paid / provided by the Parent
Company toits directors in accordance with the provision of section 197 read with schedule V to the Act;

No managerial remuneration has been paid/ provided by the Associate Company;

()  With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and
Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

(i) The consolidated Ind AS financial statement has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in its Ind
AS financial statements.

(i) Provision has been made in the consolidated Ind AS financial statements, as required under the applicable law or accounting
standards, for material foreseeable losses, if any, on long-term contracts including derivative contracts
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(iii) There has been no delay in transferring amounts, required to be transferred, to the Investor Education and Protection Fund
by the Company.

(iv) (a) TheManagementofthe Parent Company has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds (which

(b)

(c)

are material either individually or in the aggregate) have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed
funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any other person or entity,
including foreign entity (“Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the
Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner
whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on
behalf of the Ultimate Benéeficiaries;

The Management of the Parent Company has represented to us, that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds
(which are material either individually or in the aggregate) have been received by the Company from any person or
entity, including foreign entity (“Funding Parties”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise,
that the Company shall, whether, directly orindirectly, lend orinvest in other persons or entities identified in any manner
whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (“‘Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like
on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

Based on the audit procedures that have been considered reasonable and appropriate in the circumstances, nothing
has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the representations under sub-clause (i) and (ii) of Rule 11(e),
as provided under (a) and (b) above, contain any material misstatement.

(v) As The Parent Company has not declared any dividend during the year. Hence, reporting requirements under rule 11(f) of
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 are not applicable to the Company.

(Vi) (a)

Place: Delhi

(b)

(c)

Based on our examination carried out in accordance with the Implementation Guidance on Reporting on Audit Trail
under Rule 11(g) of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 (Revised 2025 Edition issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India, which included test checks, we report that the Parent company has used an
accounting software for maintaining its books of account which has a feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility and
the same has operated throughout the year all relevant transactions recorded in the software. Further, during the
course of our audit we did not come across any instance of audit trail feature being tampered with.

Additionally, the audit trail has been preserved by the Parent company as per the statutory requirements for record
retention. Our examination of the audit trail was in the context of an audit of financial statements carried out in
accordance with the standards of auditing and only to the extents required by Rule 11 (g) of the Companies(Audit and
Auditors) Rules, 2014. We have not carried out any audit or examination of the audit trail beyond the matters required
by the aforesaid Rule 11 (g) nor have we carried out any standalone audit or examination of the audit trail.

In case of the Associate Company, the auditor of the Associate Company has commented as under:-

In our examination carried out in accordance with the Implementation Guidance on Reporting on Audit Trail under Rule
11(g) of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 (Revised 2025 Edition) issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India, it was observed that the company has not implemented an accounting software with the feature
of recording audit trail (edit log) facility. Consequently, we were unable to perform the audit procedures related to the
audit trail feature as required by Rule 11(g). We have not carried out any audit or examination of the audit trail beyond
the matters required by the aforesaid Rule 11(g) nor have we carried out any standalone audit of the audit trail.”

ForV.R.Bansal & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 016534N

(Rajan Bansal)
Partner
Membership No. 093591

Dated: 30" May 2025 UDIN: 25093591BMKWBG1995
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Annexure - A to the Auditors' Report

Report on the matters specied in paragraph 3 and 4 of the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 (“the order”) issued by the
Central Government of India in terms of section 143(11) of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) as referred to in paragraph 1 of
'Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements' section.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, following companies incorporated in India and included in the
consolidated financial statements, have unfavourable remarks, qualification or adverse remarks given by the respective auditors in their
reports under the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 (CARO), details given below:

S. No. Name of Entities CIN Holding Holding
Company/ Associate Company/ Associate
1. Cranex Limited L74899DL1973PLC006503 Parent Company Clause (1)(a)
2. Cranex Limited L74899DL1973PLC006503 Parent Company Clause (1)(b)
3. | Cranex Limited L74899DL1973PLC006503 Parent Company Clause (2)(a)
4. | Cranex Limited L74899DL1973PLC006503 Parent Company Clause (2)(b)

In respect of the Associate Company, “IFE CRANEX ELEVATORS AND ESCALATORS INDIA PRIVATE LIMITED” CARO report as
required under paragraphs 3 and 4 of the companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 (the “order” / “CARGQ?”), is not applicable as reported
by their auditors.

ForV.R. Bansal & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 016534N

(Rajan Bansal)

Partner
Place: Delhi Membership No. 093591
Dated: 30" May 2025 UDIN: 25093591BMKWBG1995
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Annexure - B to the Auditors' Report

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)
To the Members of Cranex Limited

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of CRANEX LIMITED (“the Parent Company”) as of 31st March, 2025
in conjunction with our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the Parent Company for the period ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Parent Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based on the internal control
over financial reporting criteria established by the Parent Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India
(‘ICAT’). These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were
operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to company’s policies, the
safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and
the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors’ Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Parent Company's internal financial controls over financial reporting based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting (the
“Guidance Note”) and the Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAl and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies Act,
2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls and, both
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over
financial reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial controls system over
financial reporting and their operating effectiveness.

Our audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over
financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of
internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the
risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Parent
Company’s internal financial controls system over financial reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the

reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted

accounting principles. Acompany's internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that:

1. pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the
assets of the company;

2. provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance
with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance
with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and

3. Provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the
company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the possibility of collusion or improper
management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any
evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control
over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or
procedures may deteriorate.
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Opinion

In our opinion, the Parent Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over financial reporting and
such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as at 31st March 2025, based on the internal control over
financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance
Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

ForV.R. Bansal & Associates
Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration No. 016534N

(Rajan Bansal)

Partner
Place: Delhi Membership No. 093591
Dated: 30" May 2025 UDIN: 25093591BMKWBG1995
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Statement on Impact of Audit Qualifications (for audit report with modified opinion) submitted along-with
Annual Audited Financial Results - (Consolidated)
(in lakhs)

Statement on Impact of Audit Qualifications for theYear ended March 31, 2025
[UnderRegulation 33 / 52 of the SEBI (LODR) (Amendment) Regulations, 2016]

| Sl. Particulars Audited Figures (as reported| Adjusted Figures (audited
No. before adjusting for figures after adjusting for
qualifications) qualifications)
1 Turnover / Total Income 5196.36 5196.36
2 Total Expenditure 5001.72 5001.72
3 Net Profit/ (Loss) 194.64 194.64
4 Earnings Per Share 3.21 3.21
5 Total Assets 5649.95 5649.95
6 Total Liabilities 3230.72 3230.72
7 Net Worth 2419.22 2419.22
8 Net Profit before OCI 194.64 194.64
9 Other Comprehensive Income (0.73) (0.73)
8 Net Profit after OCI 193.90 193.90

IIl. | AuditQualification (each audit qualification separately):

a. Details of Audit Qualification:

i.  The Parent Company has produced a Joint Venture agreement which it has entered into with M/s Shree Construction on 23/09/2021, whereby the

ii. Property, Plant and Equipment (PPE) register has not been produced before us for verification. Depreciation of Property, Plant and Equipment has

parties have entered into a Joint Venture agreement and a Joint Venture entity namely M/s Shree-Cranex (JV) has been formed . However the parent
company has not applied Equity method of accounting in respect of the investment in the Joint Venture and hence not complied with the provisions of
IndAS 28 (Investmentin Associates and Joint Ventures) with respect to accounting Joint Ventures in consolidated financial statements.

been provided on the basis of figures as certified by the management.

Balances under Trade Receivables and Trade Payables, loans and advances given by the Company and parties from whom unsecured loans have
been taken are subject to confirmations and adjustments, if any.

The Financial Assets and Liabilities — Trade Receivables and long term borrowings taken from IFE Cranex Elevators and Escalators India Private
Limited have not been measured at fair value as required by Ind AS-109 “Financial Instruments”. Impairment provisions and fair value|
measurements have not been measured in accordance with Expected Credit Loss (ECL) method as per Ind AS-109.

Inventory register has not been produced before us for verification by the parent company. Inventory value has been provided on the basis of figures|

as certified by the management.

b. Type of Audit Qualification : Qualified Opinion

c. Frequency of qualification:
The qualification mentioned abovein I (a) (i) to (iv) is repetitive

d. ForAudit Qualification(s) where the impact is quantified by the auditor, Management's Views:
As per attached annexure |

e. ForAudit Qualification(s) where the impact is not quantified by the auditor:
() Management's estimation on the impact of audit qualification: As perattached annexurel
(i) Ifmanagementis unable to estimate the impact, reasons forthe same: N.A.
(iii) Auditors' Comments on (i) or (ii) above: N.A.

Signatories

O  PiyushAgrawal, (Managing Director)

O ChaitanyaAgrawal, (CFO)

O  Shilpy Chopra, (Audit Committee Chairman)

O RajanBansal, (Statutory Auditor)

Place: Ghaziabad

Date: 30.05.2025
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Annexurel

Audit Qualification (each audit qualification separately):

For Audit Qualification(s) where the
impact is quantified by the auditor,
Management's Views:

For Audit Qualification(s) where the impact
is not quantified by the auditor

()

The Parent Company has produced a Joint Venture agreement
which it has entered into with M/s Shree Construction on 23/09/2021,
whereby the parties have entered into a Joint Venture agreement
and a Joint Venture entity namely M/s Shree-Cranex (JV) has been
formed . However the parent company has not applied Equity
method of accounting in respect of the investment in the Joint
Venture and hence not complied with the provisions of Ind AS 28
(Investment in Associates and Joint Ventures) with respect to
accounting Joint Ventures in consolidated financial statements.

There will be a very insignificant impact on the
Company from the financial results from M/S Shree
Cranex (JV).

Further, financial closing and financial data of M/s
Shree Cranex (JV) are not finalized, as they are
required to do so only by 30 September 2025.
Hence, itwas not considered.

Property, Plant and Equipment (PPE) register has not been
produced before us for verification. Depreciation of Property, Plant
and Equipment has been provided on the basis of figures as certified
by the management,

The Company has calculated the Depreciation
figures as per applicable rules.
The detailed register is under preparation.

(iii) Balances under Trade Receivables and Trade Payables, loans and

advances given by the Company and parties from whom unsecured
loans have been taken are subject to confirmations and adjustments,
ifany.

Noted and confirmed

(iv) The Financial Assets and Liabilities — Trade Receivables and long

term borrowings taken from IFE Cranex Elevators and Escalators
India Private Limited have not been measured at fair value as
required by Ind AS-109 “Financial Instruments”. Impairment
provisions and fair value measurements have not been measured in
accordance with Expected Credit Loss (ECL) method as per Ind AS-
109.

The Company does not expect any change in the
long term borrowings taken from IFE Cranex
Elevators and Escalators India Private Limited.
Thereis no Expected CreditLoss (ECL).

Inventory register has not been produced before us for verification by
the parent company. Inventory value has been provided on the basis
of figures as certified by the management.

Noted and confirmed

Signatories

O

Piyush Agrawal, (Managing Director)

O ChaitanyaAgrawal, (CFO)
O  Shilpy Chopra, (Audit Committee Chairman)
O RajanBansal, (Statutory Auditor)

Place: Ghaziabad

Date: 30.05.2025
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CRANEX

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET AS AT MARCH 31, 2025

(Amount in Lakhs)

Notes As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024
ASSETS
1 Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 3 569.49 600.10
Investments in associates and Joint Ventures 4 192.19 192.19
Financial assets 5
(i) Non-Current Investments 0.01 0.01
(i) Loans and advances - -
(iii) Other Financial Assets 208.82 407.86
Deferred tax assets (Net) 6 - -
Other non-current assets 7 1.50 2.58
972.01 1,202.74
2 Current assets
Inventories 8 852.04 1,131.14
Financial assets 9
(i) Trade receivables 3,215.53 2,704.57
(i) Cash and cash equivalents 0.81 1.34
(iii) Other bank balances 426.05 145.68
(iv) Loans and advances - -
(v) Other Financial Assets 25.51 148.73
Current tax assets (Net) 10 - -
Other current assets 11 158.00 190.07
4,677.94 4,321.53
Total Assets 5,649.95 5,524.28
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
1 EQUITY
Equity share capital 12 657.00 600.00
Other equity 13 1,762.22 480.36
2,419.22 1,080.36
2 LIABILITIES
Non-current liabilities
Financial liabilities
(i) Borrowing 14 221.04 650.97
(i) Lease Liabilities - -
Provisions 15 56.44 52.62
Deferred tax liabilities (Net) 6 33.59 31.00
311.07 734.58
Current liabilities
Financial liabilities
(i) Short Term Borrowings 17 1,770.96 2,056.03
(i) Trade payable
Total outstanding dues of micro and small enterprises 34.92 129.96
Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro and small enterprises 791.87 1,173.86
(iii) Other financial liabilites 115.30 155.59
Other current liabilities 18 154.35 171.69
Provisions 19 25.96 17.26
Current tax liabilities (Net) 20 26.28 4.94
2,919.65 3,709.31
Total Equity and Liabilities 5,649.95 5,524.28
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Summary of significant accounting policies
Contingent liabilities, commitments and litigations
Other notes on accounts

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
As per our report of even date

For V.R. Bansal & Associates
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration No.: 016534N

Sd/-

Rajan Bansal
Partner

M. No.: 093591

Place: Sahibabad
Date: 30th May 2025

110

30
31

Sd/-

Piyush Agrawal
Managing Director
DIN: 01761004

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Sd/-

Chaitanya Agrawal
Whole-Time Director & CFO
DIN: 05108809

Sd/-

Heena Sharma
Company Secretary
M. No.: A-65512
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CRANEX

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE PERIOD ENDED MARCH 31, 2025

(Amount in Lakhs)

Notes As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024
I INCOME
Revenue from operations 21 5,153.76 6,211.41
Other income 22 42.60 101.17
Total Income 5,196.36 6,312.58
Il EXPENSES
Cost of materials consumed 23 3,052.71 3,982.01
Purchase of traded goods 24 26.57 57.93
Change in inventories of FG, Traded Goods and WIP 25 (23.79) 295.48
Employee benefits expenses 26 568.90 448.11
Finance costs 27 170.74 144.65
Depreciation and amortisation expenses 28 34.04 31.46
Other expenses 29 1,115.63 1,136.11
Total Expenses 4,944.81 6,095.74
il Profit before exceptional items and tax 251.55 216.83
Share of Profit/(loss) of an associate(net of tax) 0.00 (2.04)
Add : Exceptional items - -
IV Profit before tax 251.55 214.79
V  Tax expenses
Current tax 60.00 50.95
Income tax for earlier year (5.93) 13.49
Deferred tax 2.84 0.51
Income tax expense 56.91 64.95
VI Profit/ (loss) for the year 194.64 149.84
VIl Other comprehensive income
Other comprehensive income not to be reclassified to profit or loss in
subsequent periods
i) Re-measurement gains on defined benefit plans (0.97) 0.63
ii) Income tax effect 0.24 (0.16)
Other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax (0.73) 0.47
VIII Total comprehensive income/ (loss) for the year, net of tax 193.90 150.31
IX Earnings per equity share
(nominal value of share Rs.10/-)
Basic (Rs.) 3.21 249
Diluted (Rs.) 2.35 249
Summary of significant accounting policies 2
Contingent liabilities, commitments and litigations 30
Other notes on accounts 31
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
As per our report of even date
For V.R. Bansal & Associates For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration No.: 016534N
Sd/- Sd/- Sd/-
Rajan Bansal Piyush Agrawal Chaitanya Agrawal
Partner Managing Director Whole-Time Director & CFO
M. No.: 093591 DIN: 01761004 DIN: 05108809
Sd/-
Heena Sharma
Place: Sahibabad Company Secretary
Date: 30th May 2025 M. No.: A-65512
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE PERIOD ENDED MARCH 31ST , 2025

(Amount in Lakhs)

As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024
A. CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit/ (loss) before income tax 251.55 214.79
Share of Profit/(loss) of an associate(net of tax) 0.00 2.04
Adjustments to reconcile profit before tax to net cash flows
Depreciation and amortisation expense 34.04 31.46
Profit on Sale of Vehicle (1.97) -
Finance cost 170.74 144.65
Interest income (38.86) (31.74)
Operating Profit before working capital changes 415.49 361.21
Movement in working capital
(Increase)/ Decrease in financial assets loans and advances 37.93 (23.96)
(Increase)/ Decrease in inventories 279.10 478.60
(Increase)/ Decrease in trade receivables (510.96) (601.24)
(Increase)/ Decrease in other financial assets 123.21 (136.65)
(Increase)/ Decrease in other non-financial assets 32.07 23.24
Increase/ (Decrease) in trade payables (477.02) (77.48)
Increase/ (Decrease) in other financial liabilities (40.29) (88.83)
Increase/ (Decrease) in other financial liabilities (17.34) (2.62)
Increase/ (Decrease) in other non current asset 1.08 (0.25)
Increase/ (Decrease) in current Tax libility
Increase/ (Decrease) in provisions 11.56 11.40
Cash generated from operations (145.15) (56.58)
Income tax paid (net of refunds) (32.73) (55.80)
Net Cash flow from Operating Activities (A) (177.88) (112.38)
B. CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of property, plant and equipment and CWIP (net of creditor for capital
goods and capital advances) (8.77) (52.55)
Proceeds from fixed deposits (Net) (119.28) (20.98)
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment 7.31 -
Interest Received 38.86 31.74
Net Cash flow from/(used) in Investing Activities (B) (81.87) (41.79)
C. CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds/(Repayment) of Long term borrowings (714.99) 297.13
Proceeds from Share issued 1,144.95 -
Interest Paid (170.74) (144.65)
Net Cash Flow from/(used) in Financing Activities (c) 259.22 152.48
Net increase / (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C) (0.53) (1.69)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 1.34 3.02
Cash and Cash Equivalents at the end of the year 0.81 1.34

Notes :
1 The above Cash flow statement has been prepared under the "Indirect Method" as set out in Indian Accounting Standard-7, "Statement of Cash Flows".

2 Components of cash and cash equivalents :-
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Cash and cash equivalents
Balances with banks

Current accounts

Cash on hand

As per our report of even date

For V.R. Bansal & Associates
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration No.: 016534N

Sd/-

Rajan Bansal
Partner

M. No.: 093591

Place: Sahibabad
Date: 30th May 2025

113

As at March 31, 2025

(Amount in Lakhs)
As at March 31, 2024

0.76 0.93
0.04 0.41
0.81 1.34

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Sd/-

Piyush Agrawal
Managing Director
DIN: 01761004

Sd/-

Chaitanya Agrawal
Whole-Time Director & CFO
DIN: 05108809

Sd/-

Heena Sharma
Company Secretary
M. No.: A-65512
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES INEQUITY FOR THE PERIOD ENDED MARCH 31,2025

(A) Equity Share Capital

Particulars Nos. (Amount in Lakhs)
As at March 31, 2023 6,000,000 600.00
Add:- Issued during the year - -
As at March 31, 2024 6,000,000 600.00
Add:- Issued during the year 570,000 57.00
As at March 31, 2025 6,570,000 657.00

(B) OtherEquity

(Amount in Lakhs)

Particulars Reserves and surplus Money received Total
Securities Premium Account | Retained Earnings | 2gdainest share
warrant
As at April 1, 2023 330.05 330.05
Net profit /(loss) for the year 149.84 149.84
Other comprehensive income for the year
Re-measurement gains on defined benefit plans (net of tax) 047 047
As at March 31, 2024 480.36 - 480.36
Net profit /(loss) for the year 194.64 194.64
Other comprehensive income for the year
Re-measurement gains on defined benefit plans (net of tax) (0.73) (0.73)
Transaction with owners in their capacity as owners
Equity share Issued during the year 524.40 524.40
Money received against share warrant 563.55 563.55
As at March 31, 2025 524.40 674.27 563.55 1,762.22
Summary of significant accounting policies 2
Contingent liabilities, commitments and litigations 30
Other notes on accounts 31
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
As per our report of even date
For V.R. Bansal & Associates For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration No.: 016534N
Sd/- Sd/- Sd/-
Rajan Bansal Piyush Agrawal Chaitanya Agrawal
Partner Managing Director Whole-Time Director & CFO
M. No.: 093591 DIN: 01761004 DIN: 05108809
Sd/-
Heena Sharma
Place: Sahibabad Company Secretary
Date: 30th May 2025 M. No.: A-65512
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31,2025

CORPORATE INFORMATION
Cranex Limited (the Company) was incorporated on 27th February 1973. The Company is a public limited Company incorporated and domiciled in India and has its
registered office at Delhi, India. The Company is listed on Bombay Stock Exchange (BSE).The CIN ofthe Company s L74899DL1973PLC006503.

1

The Company is primarily engaged in the business of manufacturing and selling cranes and its parts.The Company's corporate office and manufacturing unit are
loacted at57/1, Industrial Area, Site-1V, Sahibabad, 201010 in Uttar Pradesh.

The Consolidated Financial Statements were authorised by the Board of Directors for issue in accordance with resolution passed on 30th May, 2025

The Company along withits associate has been collectively hereinafter referred to as "the group”

SIGNIFICANTACCOUNTING POLICIES

21

22

23

24

Statement of Compliance

The Consolidated financial statements of the Group have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (IND AS) notified under Companies
(Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015. For all periods including the year ended 31 March 2017, the Group prepared its financial statements in accordance
with accounting standards notified under the section 133 of the Companies Act 2013, read together with paragraph 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014
(Indian GAAP). The consolidated financial statements were authorised for issue by the Company’s Board of Directors on 30th May, 2025.

Basis of Consolidation

The Consolidated Financial Statements of the group comprise the financial statements of Cranex Limited ('the Parent Company'), and its associate namely M/s
IFE Cranex Elevators and Excalators India Pvt. Ltd. as at March 31, 2025. Control is achieved when the Group is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from
its involvement with the investee and has the ability to affect those returns through its power over the investee. Specically, the group controls an investee if and
only if the group has:

(i) Powerovertheinvestee (i.e. existing rights that give it the current ability to direct the relevant activities of the investee)
(i) Exposure, orrights, to variable returns from its involvement with the investee, and
(iii) The ability to use its power over the investee to affect its returns.

Generally, there is a presumption that a majority of voting rights result in control. To support this presumption and when the group has less than a majority of the
voting or similar rights of an investee, the group considers all relevant facts and circumstances in assessing whether it has power over an investee, including:

(i) Thecontractual arrangementwith the other vote holders of the investee

(i) Rights arising from other contractual arrangements

(iiiy The Group's voting rights and potential voting rights

(iv) Thesize ofthe group's holding of voting rights relative to the size and dispersion of the holdings of the other voting rights holders

The Group re-assesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or more of the three elements of
control. Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the group obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases when the group loses control of the subsidiary.
Assets, liabilities, income and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the year are included in the consolidated financial statements from the
date the group gains control until the date the group ceases to control the subsidiary. Consolidated financial statements are prepared using uniform accounting
policies for like transactions and other events in similar circumstances. If a member of the group uses accounting policies other than those adopted in the
consolidated financial statements for like transactions and events in similar circumstances, appropriate adjustments are made to that group member's financial
statementsin preparing the consolidated financial statements to ensure conformity with the group's accounting policies.

Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements of the Group have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (IND AS) notified under Companies
(Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015.These standalone financial statements are presented in INR and all values are rounded to the nearest Lakhs (INR
00,000), exceptwhen otherwise indicated

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared on accural basis and under historical cost basis, except for the following assets and liabilities
which have been measured at fair value:

(a) Certainfinancial assets and liabilities thatis measured at fair value.
(b) Assets held for sale-measured at fair value less cost to sell.
(c) Defined benefit plans-plan assets measured at fair value.

Use of estimates and judgments

The preparation of the consolidated financial statements in conformity with Ind AS requires the management to make estimates, judgments and assumptions.
These estimates, judgments and assumptions affect the application of accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, the disclosures of
contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the period. Accounting
estimates could change from period to period. Actual results could differ from those estimates. Appropriate changes in estimates are made as management
becomes aware of changes in circumstances surrounding the estimates. Changes in estimates are reflected in the consolidated financial statements in the
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2.6

2.7

period in which changes are made and, if material, their effects are disclosed in the notes to the consolidated financial statements.

Summary of material accounting policies
This note provides a list of the material accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these Indian Accounting Standards (Ind-AS) Standalone financial
statements. These policies have been consistently applied to all the years except where newly issued accounting standard is initially adopted.

Current versus non-current classification

The Group presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current/ non-current classification. An assetis treated as current whenitis:
(a) Expected tobe realized orintended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle

(c) Held primarily for purpose of trading

(d) Expected to be realized within twelve months after the reporting period, or

(e) Cashorcashequivalentunless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle aliability for at least twelve months after the reporting period

All other assets are classified as non-current.

Aliability is currentwhen:

(@) Itisexpectedto be settledin normal operating cycle

(b) Itisheld primarily for purpose of trading

(c) ltisdue tobe settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or

(d) Thereisnounconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period.

All other liabilities are classified as non current.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are classified as non- current assets and liabilities.

The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realization in cash and cash equivalents. The Group has identified
twelve months as its operating cycle.

Property, plantand equipment

Property, Plant and equipment including capital work in progress are stated at cost, less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any.
The cost comprises of purchase price, taxes, duties, freight and other incidental expenses directly attributable and related to acquisition and installation of the
concerned assets and are further adjusted by the amount of input tax credit availed wherever applicable. When significant parts of plant and equipment are
required to be replaced at intervals, the Group depreciates them separately based on their respective useful lives. Likewise, when a major inspection is
performed, its cost is recognised in the carrying amount of the plant and equipment as a replacement if the recognition criteria are satisfied. All other repair and
maintenance costs are recognised in profit or loss as incurred. The present value of the expected cost for the decommissioning of an asset after its use is
included in the cost of the respective asset f the recognition criteria for a provision are met.

An item of property, plant and equipment and any significant part initially recognised is derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset) is included in the income statement when the asset is derecognised.

Capital work- in- progress includes cost of property, plantand equipment under installation / under development as at the balance sheet date.
Depreciation on property, plant and equipment is provided on prorata basis on straight-line method using the useful lives of the assets estimated by
managementand in the manner prescribed in Schedule Il of the Companies Act 2013. The useful lives are as follows:

Assets Useful life (in years)

Property, Plantand Equipment Over its useful life considered as 30 years as technically assessed
Computer Software Overa period of 5 years

Other Over the period of agreement of right to use

Components relevent to fixed assets, where significant, are separately depreciated on strainght line basis in terms of their life span assessed by technical
evaluation initem specified context.

Lease holdimprovements are depreciated on straight line basis over their initial agreement period.
The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and equipment are reviewed at each financial year end and adjusted
prospectively, if appropriate.

(i) Goodwill
No self-generated goodwill is recognized. Goodwill arises during the course of acquisition of an entity in terms of accounting treatment provided in IND AS-
103 dealing with "Business Combination". Goodwill represents the excess of consideration money over the fair value of net assets of the entity under
acquisition. Such goodwill is construed to have indefinite life and as such is not subject to annual amortization but annual test of impairment under IND AS -
36. Any shortfall in consideration money vis-a-vis fair value of net assets on account of bargain purchase is recognized in OCI at acquisition point and
subsequently transferred to capital reserve.

(ii) Intangible assets
Intangible assets including software license of enduring nature and contractual rights acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost.
Following initial recognition, intangible assets are carried at cost less accumulated amortization and accumulated impairment losses, if any. Internally
generated intangibles, excluding capitalized development cost, are not capitalized and the related expenditure is reflected in statement of Profitand Loss in
the period in which the expenditure is incurred. Cost comprises the purchase price and any attributable cost of bringing the asset to its working condition for
its intended use.
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The useful lives ofintangible assets are assessed as either finite or indefinite.

Intangible assets with finite lives are amortized over their useful economic lives and assessed for impairment whenever there is an indication that the
intangible asset may be impaired. The amortization period and the amortization method for an intangible asset with a finite useful life is reviewed at least at
the end of each reporting period. Changes in the expected useful life or the expected pattern of consumption of future economic benefits embodied in the
asset is accounted for by changing the amortization period or method, as appropriate, and are treated as changes in accounting estimates. The
amortization expense on intangible assets with finite lives is recognized in the statement of profit and loss in the expense category consistent with the
function of the intangible assets.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are not amortized, but are tested forimpairment annually, either individually or at the cash-generating unitlevel.
The assessment of indefinite life is reviewed annually to determine whether the indefinite life continues to be supportable. If not, the change in useful life
from indefinite to finite is made on a prospective basis.

Gains or losses arising from disposal of the intangible assets are measured as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of
the assetand are recognized in the statement of profit and loss when the assets are disposed off.

Intangible assets are amortized on a straightline basis over the estimated useful economic life which generally does not exceed 6 years.

Type of assets Basis
ERP and other Software Straightline basis over a period of six years.

(iii) Research and Development Costs (Product Development)
Research costs are expensed as incurred. Development expenditure on an individual project is recognised as an intangible asset when the Company can
demonstrate:

) The technical feasibility of completing the intangible asset so that the asset will be available for use or sale
) ltsintention to complete and its ability and intention to use or sell the asset

) How the asset will generate future economic benefits

) The availability of resources to complete the asset

)

Following initial recognition of the development expenditure as an asset, the asset is carried at cost less any accumulated amortisation and accumulated
impairment losses. Amortisation of the asset begins when development is complete and the asset is available for use. It is amortised over the period of
expected future benefit. Amortisation expense is recognised in the statement of profit and loss unless such expenditure forms part of carrying value of
anotherasset.

During the period of development, the asset is tested forimpairment annually.

Investmentin Subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures
An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant influence. Significant influence is the power to participate in the financial and operating policy
decisions of the investee, but is not control or joint control over those policies.

The Group investment in subsidiary, associate and Joint venture are carried at cost as per IND AS 27. Investment accounted for at cost is accounted for in
accordance with IND AS 105 when they are classified as held for sale and Investment carried at cost is tested for impairment as per IND AS 36. An investor,
regardless of the nature of its involvement with an entity (the investee), shall determine whether it is a parent by assessing whether it controls the investee. An
investor controls an investee when it is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the investee and has the ability to affect those returns
through its power over the investee. Thus, an investor controls an investee ifand only if the investor has all the following:

(@) powerovertheinvestee;

(b) exposure, orrights, to variable returns fromits involvement with the investee and

(c) the ability to use its power over the investee to affect the amount of the investor’s returns.

On disposal ofinvestment, the difference between its carrying amount and net disposal proceeds is charged or credited to the statement of profit and loss.

Investment Properties

Property that is held for long term rental yields or for capital appreciation or for both, and that is not occupied by the Group, is classified as investment property.
Investment property is measured initially at its cost, including related transaction cost and where applicable borrowing costs. Subsequent expenditure is
capitalised to assets carrying amount only when itis probable that future economic benefits associated with the expenditure will flow to the Group and the cost of
the item can be measured reliably. All other repair and maintenance cost are expensed when incurred. When part of an investment property is replaced, the
carrying amount of the replaced partis derecognised.

Investment property consist of land which is Carried at Cost.
Aninvestment property is derecognised upon disposal or when the investment property is permanently withdrawn from use and no future economic benefits are
expected from the disposal. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of property is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss in the same period.

Financialinstruments
Afinancial instrumentis any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or equity instrument of another entity.
I Financial Assets
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The Company classifies its financial assets in the following measurement categories:
(@) Thoseto be measured subsequently atfair value (either through other comprehensive income, or through profit & loss).
(b) Those measured atamortised cost.

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are recognised initially at fair value plus, in the case of financial assets not recorded at fair value through profit and loss, transaction costs
that are directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets. Purchase or sale of financial asset that require delivery of assets within a time frame
established by regulation or conversion in the market place (regular way trades) are recognised on the trade date, i.e., the date that the Group commits to
purchase and sell the assets.

Subsequent measurement

For purposes of subsequent measurement financial assets are classified in following categories:
(@) Debtinstruments atamortized cost

(b) Debtinstruments atfair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)

(c) Debtinstruments atfair value through profitand loss (FVTPL)

(d) Equity instruments measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)
(e) Equity instruments measured at fair value through profitand loss (FVTPL)

Where assets are measured at fair value, gains and losses are either recognized entirely in the statement of profit and loss (i.e. fair value through profit or
loss), or recognized in other comprehensive income (i.e. fair value through other comprehensive income). For investment in debt instruments, this will
depend on the business model in which the investment is held. For investment in equity instruments, this will depend on whether the Group has made an
irrevocable election at the time of initial recognition to account for equity instruments at FVTOCI.

Debt instruments at amortized cost

ADebtinstrumentis measured atamortized cost if both the following conditions are met:

()  Business Model Test: The assetis held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets for collecting contractual cash flows, and

(i)  Cashflow Characterstics Test: Contractual terms of asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest (SPPI) on principal amount outstanding.

After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured atamortized cost using the effective interest rate (EIR) method. Amortised
costis calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of EIR. The EIR amortization
is included in finance income in statement of profit or loss. The losses arising from impairment are recognized in the statement of profit or loss. This
category generally applies to trade, other receivables, loans and other financial assets.

Debt instruments at fair value through OCI
A'debtinstrument'is classified as at the FVTOCI if both of the following criteria are met:

()  Business Model Test: The objective of the business modelis achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial assets, and

(i) Cashflow Characterstics Test: The asset's contarctual cash flows represent SPPI.

Debt instrument included within the FVTOCI category are measured initially as well as at each reporting date at fair value. Fair value movements are
recognized in the other comprehensive income (OCI). However, the Group recognises interest income, impairment losses and reversals and foreign
exchange gain or loss in the statement of profit and loss. On dereognition of the asset, cumulative gain or loss previously recognized in OCl is
reclassified from the equity to statement of profit & loss. Interest earned whilst holding FVTOCI debtinstrument is reported as interestincome using the
EIR method.

Debtinstruments at FVTPL
FVTPL s a residual category for debt instruments. Any debt instrument, which does not meet the criteria for categorization as at amortized cost or as
FVTOCI, is classified as at FVTPL.

In adition, the Group may elect to designate a debt instrument, which otherwise meets amortised cost or FVTOCI criteria, as at FVTPL. However, such
election is allowed only if doing so reduces or eliminates a measurement or recognition inconsistency (referred to as 'accounting mismatch'). The
Group has notdesignated any debtinstrumentas at FVTPL.

Equity investments of other entities

All equity investments in scope of IND AS 109 are measured at fair value. Equity instruments which are held for trading are classified as at FVTPL. For
all other equity instruments, the Group may make an irrevocable election to present in other comprehensive income all subsequent changes in the fair
value. The Group makes such election on an instrument-by-instrument basis. The classification is made on initial recognition and is irrevocable.

In case of equity instruments classified as FVTOCI, then all fair value changes on the instrument, excluding dividends, are recognized in the OCI.
There is no recycling of the amounts from OClI to statement of profit and loss, even on sale of investment. However, the Group may transfer the
cumulative gain or loss within equity.

Equity instruments included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all changes recognized in the Statement of Profitand loss.

Derecognition
Afinancial asset (or ,where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of group of similar financial assets) is primarily derecognised when:
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(@) Therightto receive cash flows from the assets have expired, or
(b) The Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the received cash flows in full without
material delay to a third party under a "pass through" arrangement and either:

()  the Company has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or

(i) the Company has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the asset.
Where the Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered into a passthrough arrangement, it evaluates if and to what
extent it has retained the risks and rewards of ownership. Where it has nither transferred not retained substantially all of the risks and rewards of the assets, nor
transferred control of the assets, the Company continues to recognise the transferred assets to the extent of the Company's continuing involvement. In that
case, the Company also recognises an associated liability. The transferred asset and the associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and
obligations thatthe Company has retained.

Impairment of financial assets
In accordance with IND AS 109, the Group applies expected credit losses (ECL) model for measurement and recognition of impairment loss on the following
financial asset and credit risk exposure:

) Financial assets measured at amortized cost e.g. loans, debt securities, deposists, trade receivables and bank balance;

) Financial assets measured at fair value through other comprehensive income(FVTOCI);

) Trade receivables or any contractual right to receive cash or another financial asset that result from transactions that are within the scope of Ind AS 18
) Financial guarantee contracts which are not measured at FVTPL

(a
(b
(c
(d
The Company follows "simplified approach” for recognition ofimpairment loss allowance on:
Trade receivables or contract revenue receivables;

(a)
(b) Alllease receivables resulting from the transactions within the scope of INDAS 116

The application of simplified approach does not require the Group to track changes in credit risk. Rather, it recognizes impairment loss allowance based on
lifetime ECLs at each reporting date, right from its initial recognition.

For recognition of impairment loss on other financial assets and risk exposure, the Group determines whether there has been a significant increase in the credit
risk since initial recognition. If credit risk has not increased significantly, 12-month ECL is used to provide for impairment loss. However, if credit risk has
increased significantly, lifetime ECL is used. If, in subsequent period, credit quality of the instrument improves such that there is no longer a significant increase
in credit risk since initial recognition, then the entity reverts to recognizing impairment loss allowance based on 12-months ECL.

Lifetime ECL are the expected credit losses resulting from all possible default events over the expected life of a financial instrument. The 12-month ECL is a
portion of the lifetime ECL which results from default events that are possible within 12 months after the reporting date.

ECL s the difference between all contractual cash flows that are due to the Group in accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that the entity expects to
receive (i.., all cash shortfalls), discounted at the original EIR. When estimating the cash flows, an entity is required to consider:

(a) Financial assets measured as at amortised cost, contractual revenue receivables and lease receivables: ECL is presented as an allowance, i.e., as
an integral part of the measurement of those assets in the balance sheet. The allowance reduces the net carrying amount. Until the asset meets write-off
criteria, the Group does not reduce impairment allowance from the gross carrying amount.

(b) Debt instruments measured at FVTOCI: Since financial assets are already reflected at fair value, impairment allowance is not further reduced from its
value.

For assessing increase in credit risk and impairment loss, the Group combines financial instruments on the basis of shared credit risk characteristics with the
objective of facilitating an analysis that is designed to enable significant increases in credit risk to be identified on a timely basis.

Financial liabilities:

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified at initial recognition as financial liabilities at fair value through statement of profit or loss, loans and borrowings, and payables,
as appropriate.

Allfinancial liabilities are recognised intially at fair value and in case of loans, borrowings and payables, net of directly attributable transaction costs.
The Group's financial liabilities include trade and other payables, loans and borrowings including bank overdrafts.

Subsequent measurement
The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification, as described below:

Trade Payables

These amounts represents liabilities for goods and services provided to the Group prior to the end of financial year which are unpaid. The amounts are
unsecured and are usually paid within 120 days of recognition. Trade and other payables are presented as current liabilities unless payment is not due within 12
months after the reporting period. They are recognized initially at fair value and subsequently measured at amortized cost using EIR method.

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial liabilities at fair value through statement of profit or loss include financial liabilities held for trading and financial liabilities designated upon initial
recognition as at fair value through statement of profit or loss. Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading if they are incurred for the purpose of
repurchasing in the near term.
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Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading are recognized in the statement of profit and loss.

Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition at fair value through statement of profit or loss are designated as such at the initial date of recognition, and
only if the criteria in IND AS 109 are satisfied. For liabilities designated as FVTPL, fair value gains/ losses attributable to changes in own credit risk are
recognized in OCI. These gains/ loss are not subsequently transferred to profit and loss. However, the Group may transfer the cumulative gain or loss within
equity. All other changes in fair value of such liability are recognized in the statement of profit or loss. The Group has not designated any financial liability as at
fair value through profit and loss.

Loans and borrowings

Borrowings are initially recognised at fair value, net of transaction costincurred. After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently
measured atamortized cost using the EIR method. Gains and losses are recognized in statement of profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognised as well as
through the EIR amortization process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR
amortization is included as finance costs in the statement of profitand loss.

Financial guarantee contracts

Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Group are those contracts that require a payment to be made to reimburse the holder for a loss itincurs because the
specified debtor fails to make a payment when due in accordance with the terms of a debt instrument. Financial guarantee contracts are recognized initially as a
liability at fair value, adjusted for transaction costs that are directly attributable to the issuance of the guarantee. Subsequently, the liability is measured at the
higher of the amount of loss allowance determined as perimpairment requirements of IND AS 109 and the amount recognized less cumulative amortization.

Derecognition

Afinancial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires. When an existing financial liability is replaced by
another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is
treated as the derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognized in the
Statement of Profitand Loss.

Reclassification of financial assets:

The Group determines classification of financial assets and liabilities on initial recognition. After initial recognition, no reclassification is made for financial assets
which are equity instruments and financial liabilities. For financial assets which are debt instruments, a reclassification is made only if there is a change in the
business model for managing those assets. Changes to the business model are expected to be infrequent. The Group’s senior management determines
change in the business model as a result of external or internal changes which are significant to the Group’s operations. Such changes are evident to external
parties. A change in the business model occurs when the Group either begins or ceases to perform an activity that is significant to its operations. If the Group
reclassifies financial assets, it applies the reclassification prospectively from the reclassification date which is the first day of the immediately next reporting
period following the change in business model. The Group does not restate any previously recognised gains, losses (including impairment gains or losses) or

interest.
Original classification Revised classification Accounting treatment

Amortised cost FVTPL Fair value is measured at reclassification date. Difference between
previous amortized cost and fair value is recognised in statement
of profitand loss.

FVTPL Amortised cost Fair value at reclassification date become its new gross carrying
amount. EIR is calculated based on the new gross carrying
amount.

Amortised cost FVTOCI Fair value is measured at reclassification date. Difference between
previous amortised cost and fair value is recognised in OCI. No
change in EIR due to reclassification.

FVTOCI Amortised cost Fair value at reclassification date becomes its new amortised cost
carrying amount. However, cumulative gain or loss in OCI is
adjusted against fair value. Consequently, the asset is measured
asifithad always been measured at amortised cost.

FVTPL FVTOCI Fair value at reclassification datebecomes its new carrying
amount. No other adjustment s required.

FVTOCI FVTPL Assets continue to be measured at fair value. Cumulative gain or

loss previously recognized in OCl is reclassified to statement of
profitand loss at the reclassification date.

Offsetting of financial instruments:
Financials assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet if there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset
the recognized amounts and there is an intention to settle on a netbasis, to realize the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.
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Inventories

(a) Basis of valuation

() Raw Materials, Packing Materials and Stores and Spare parts are valued at lower of cost and net realizable value.Materials and other items held for use in
the production of inventories are not written down below cost, if the finished products in which they will be incorporated are expected to be sold at or above
cost. Raw Material, Packing Materials, Stores and Spares & and Raw Material contents of work in progress are valued by using the first in first out (FIFO)
method.

(i) Finished goods, traded goods and work in progress are valued at cost or netrealizable value whichever is lower.

(b) Method of Valuation
(i) Cost of raw materials has been determined by using FIFO (first-in-first-out) method and comprises all costs of purchase, duties, taxes (other than those
subsequently recoverable from tax authorities) and all other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location and condition.

(i) Cost of finished goods and work-inprogress includes direct labour and an appropriate share of fixed and variable production overheads.Fixed production
overheads are allocated on the basis of normal capacity of production facilities. Cost is determined on weighted average basis.

(iii) Cost of traded goods has been determined by using FIFO(first-in-first-out) method and comprises all costs of purchase, duties, taxes (other than those
subsequently recoverable from tax authorities) and all other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location and condition.

(iv) Netrealizable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated costs of completion and estimated costs necessary to
make the sale.

Business Combinations

Common control business combinations includes transactions, such as transfer of subsidiaries or businesses, between entities within a group.
Business combinations involving entities or businesses under common control shall be accounted for using the pooling of interests method.
The pooling of interest method is considered to involve the following:

(@) Theassets and liabilities of the combining entities are reflected at their carrying amounts.

(b) No adjustments are made to reflect fair values, or recognise any new assets or liabilities. The only adjustments that are made are to harmonise accounting
policies.

(c) The financial information in the financial statements in respect of prior periods should be restated as if the business combination had occurred from the
beginning of the preceding period in the financial statements, irrespective of the actual date of the combination. However, if business combination had
occurred after that date, the prior period information shall be restated only from that date.

(d) The balance of the retained earnings appearing in the financial statements of the transferor is aggregated with the corresponding balance appearing in the
financial statements of the transferee.

Provisions and Contingent Liabilities

Provisions

A provision is recognized when the Group has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources
embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. These estimates are
reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimates.

If the effect of time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre - tax rate that reflects, when appropriate, the risks specific to the
liability. When discounting is use, the increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognised as a finance cost.

Contingent liabilities

Acontingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events whose existence will be confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more
uncertain future events beyond the control of the Group or a present obligation that is not recognized because it is not probable that an outflow of resources will
be required to settle the obligation. A contingent liability also arises in extremely rare cases, where there is a liability that cannot be recognized because it cannot
be measured reliably. the Group does not recognize a contingent liability but discloses its existence in the consolidated financial statements unless the
probability of outflow of resources is remote.

Provisions, contingent liabilities, contingent assets and commitments are reviewed at each balance sheet date.

Taxes
Taxexpense for the year comprises of direct tax and indirect tax.

Direct Tax
(a) CurrentTax
i) Currentincome tax, assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities in accordance
with the Income Tax Act, 1961. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that are enacted or substantively enacted, at the
reporting date in India as per Income Computation and Disclosure Standards (ICDS) where the Group operates and generates taxable income.

ii) Current income tax relating to item recognized outside the statement of profit and loss is recognized outside profit or loss (either in other
comprehensive income or equity).Current tax items are recognized in correlation to the underlying transactions either in statement of profit and loss or
directly in equity. Management periodically evaluates positions taken in the tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulations are
subject tointerpretation and establishes provisions where appropriate.

(b) Deferred Tax
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Deferred tax is provided using the liability method on temporary differences between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for
financial reporting purposes at the reporting date.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognized for all deductible temporary differences, the carry forward of unused tax credits and any unused tax
losses. Deferred tax assets are recognized to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary
differences, and the carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilized, except:

(@) When the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temporary difference arises from the initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that
is nota business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss.

(b) Inrespect of deductible temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, deferred tax assets are recognised only to the extent that it
is probable that the temporary differences will reverse in the foreseeable future and taxable profit will be available against which the temporary
differences can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable
profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilized. Unrecognized deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each reporting date
and are recognized to the extent that it has become probable that future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year when the asset is realized or the liability is settled,
based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Deferred tax relating to items recognized outside the statement of profit and loss is recognized outside the statement of profit and loss (either in other
comprehensive income or in equity). Deferred tax items are recognized in correlation to the underlying transaction eitherin OCl or directin equity.

Deferred Tax includes Minimum Alternate Tax (MAT) recognizes MAT credit available as an asset only to the extent that there is convincing evidence that
the Group will pay normal income tax during the specified period, i.e. the period for which MAT credit is allowed to be carried forward. The Group reviews the
“MAT credit entitlement” asset at each reporting date and writes down the asset to the extent the Group does not have convincing evidence that it will pay
normal tax during the specified period.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax assets against current tax liabilities and the
deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity and the same taxation authority.

Indirect Tax

Goods and Sevice Tax has been accounted for in respect of the goods cleared. The Group is providing Goods and Sevice tax liability in respect of finished
goods. GST has been also accounted for in respect of services rendered.(w.e.f. 1st July, 2017 GST has been implemented. All the taxes like Excise Duty, Value
Added Tax, etc. are subsummed in Goods and Service Tax.)

Revenue From Contracts with Customers

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable, taking into account contractually defined terms of payment and excluding
taxes or duties collected on behalf of the government. Revenue is recognized to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Group and
the revenue can be reliably measured, regardless of when the payment is being made. Amounts disclosed are inclusive of Goods and service tax and net of
returns, trade discounts, rebates and amount collected on behalf of third parties. (w.e.f. 1st July, 2017 GST has been implemented. All the taxes like Excise Duty,
Value Added Tax, etc. are subsummed in Goods and Service Tax.)

The Group assesses its revenue arrangements against specific criteria in order to determine if it is acting as principal or agent. The Group has concluded that it
is acting as a principal in all of its revenue arrangements since it is the primary obligor in all the revenue arrangements as it has pricing latitude and is also
exposed to inventory and credit risks. The specific recognition criteria described below must also be met before revenue is recognised:

(a) Saleofgoods
Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when the significant risks and rewards of ownership of the goods have passed to the buyer, usually on
delivery of the goods and is measured at fair value consideration received/receivable, net of returns and allowances, discounts, volume rebates and cash
discounts.

Revenue is usually recognised when it is probable that economic benefits associated with the transaction will flow to the entity, amount of revenue can be
measured reliably and entity retains neither continuing managerial involvement to the degree usually associated with ownership nor effective control over
the goods sold.

i) Variable Consideration:
If the consideration in a contract includes a variable amount, the Group estimates the amount of consideration to which it will be entitled in exchange for
transferring the goods to the customer. The variable consideration is estimated at contract inception and constrained until it is highly probable that a
significant revenue reversal in the amount of cumulative revenue recognised will not occur when the associated uncertainty with the variable consideration
is subsequently resolved. Some contracts for the sale of electronics equipment provide customers with a right of return and volume rebates. The rights of
return and volume rebates give rise to variable consideration.

ii) ContractAssets:
Acontract asset is the right to consideration in exchange for goods or services transferred to the customer. If the Group performs by transferring goods or
services to a customer before the customer pays consideration or before payment is due, a contract asset is recognised for the earned consideration that is
conditional.
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Areceivable represents the Group’s right to an amount of consideration thatis unconditional (i.e., only the passage of time is required before payment of the
consideration is due).

(b) Rendering of Services
Revenue from service related activities is recognised as and when services are rendered and on the basis of contractual terms with the parties.

(c) Interestincome
For all debt instruments measured either at amortised cost or at fair value through other comprehensive income, interest income is recorded using the
effective interest rate (EIR). EIR is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash payments or receipts over the expected life of the financial
instrument or a shorter period, where appropriate, to the gross carrying amount of the financial asset or to the amortised cost of a financial liability. When
calculating the effective interest rate, the Group estimates the expected cash flows by considering all the contractual terms of the financial instrument (for
example, prepayment, extension, call and similar options) but does not consider the expected credit losses. Interestincome is included in otherincome in
the statement of profitand loss.

(d) Dividend frominvestmentin Shares
Dividend Income is recognized when the right to receive the payment is established which is generally when shareholders approve the dividend.

(e) Claims
Claims are recognised when there exists reasonable certainity with regard to the amounts to be realised and the ultimate collection thereof.

Retirement and other Employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits and defined contribution plans
All employee benefits payable/ available within twelve months of rendering the services are classified as short-term employee benefits. Benefits such as
salaries, wages and bonus etc. are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss in the period in which the employee renders the related services.

Provident fund

Retirement benefit in the form of provident fund is a defined contribution scheme. The Group has no obligation, other than the contribution payable to the
provident fund. The Group recognizes contribution payable to the provident fund scheme as an expense, when an employee renders the related services. If the
contribution payable to scheme for service received before the balance sheet date exceeds the contribution already paid, the deficit payable to the scheme is
recognized as a liability after deducting the contribution already paid. If the contribution already paid exceeds the contribution due for services received before
the balance sheet date, then excesses recognized as an asset to the extent that the prepayment will lead to , for example, a reduction in future payment or a
cashrefund.

Gratuity (Unfunded)
Gratuity is a defined benefit scheme. The cost of providing benefits under the defined benefit plan is determined using the projected unit credit method.

The Group recognises termination benefit as a liability and an expense when the Group has present oblligation as a result of past events, it is probable that an
outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. If
the termination benefits fall due more than 12 months after the balance sheet date, they are measured at present value of future cash flows using the discount
rate determined by refrence to market yields at the balance sheet date on governments bonds.

Re-measurements, comprising of actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the asset ceiling, excluding amounts included in netinterest on the net defined benefit
liability and the return on the planned assets (excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability), are recognised immediately in the
balance sheet with a corresponding debit or credit to retained earnings through OCl in the period in which they occur. Re-measurements are not reclassified to
profitor loss in subsequent periods.

Past service costs are recognised in profit or loss on the earlier of :
(a) The date of the planamendment or curtailment, and
(b) The date thatthe Comoany recognises related restructuring cost

Netinterestis calculated by applying the discount rate to the net defined benefit liability or asset.

The Company recognises the following changes in the net defined benefit obligation as an expense in the Statement of Profitand Loss:
(a) Service costs comprising current service costs, past service costs, gains and losses on curtailments and
(b) Netinterestexpenses orincome

Compensated Absences
Accumlated leave, which is expected to be utilised within next 12 months, is treated as short term employee benefit. The Group measures the expected cost of
such absences as the additional amount that it expects to pay as a result of the unused entitiement that has accumlated at the reporting date.

The Group treats accumlated leave expected to be carried forward beyond 12 months, as long-term employee benefit for measurement purposes. Such long-
term comopensated absences are provided for based on the acturial valuation using the projected unit credit method at the period end. Re-measurement,
comprising of actuarial gains and losses, are immediately taken to the Statement of Profit and Loss and are not deffered. The Group presents the leave as a
current liability in the balance sheet to the extent it does not have an unconditional right to defer its settlement for 12 months after the reporting date. Where
Group has the unconditional legal and contractual right to defer the settlement for a period beyond 12 months, the same is presented as non-current liability.

Borrowing Costs
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Borrowing cost includes interest and other costs incurred in connection with the borrowing of funds and charged to Statement of Profit & Loss on the basis of
effective, interestrate (EIR) method. Borrowing cost also includes exchange differences to the extent regarded as an adjustment to the borrowing cost.

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of an asset that necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready for
its intended use or sale are capitalised as part of the cost of the respective asset. All other borrowing costs are recognised as expense in the period in which they
occur.

Government Grants
Government Grants are recognized at their fair value when there is reasonable assurance that the grant will be received and all the attached conditions will be
complied with.

When the grant relates to an expense item, it is recognized as income on a systematic basis over the periods that the related costs, for which it is intended to
compensate, are expensed. When the grant relates to an asset, it is recognized as income in equal amounts over the expected useful life of the related asset.

When the Group receives grants of non-monetary assets, the asset and grant are recorded at fair value amounts and released to profit or loss over the
expected useful life in a pattern of consumption of the benefit of the underlying asset.

Earnings Per Share

Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity shareholders by the weighted average number of
equity shares outstanding during the period. The weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period is adjusted for events such as bonus
issue, bonus elementin a rights issue, share split, and reverse share split (consolidation of shares) that have changed the number of equity shares outstanding,
without a corresponding change in resources.

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity shareholders and the weighted average
number of shares outstanding during the period are adjusted for the effect of all potentially dilutive equity shares.

Impairment of non- financial assets

The Company assesses, at each reporting date, whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired. If any indication exists, or when annual
impairment testing for an asset is required, the Company estimates the asset's recoverable amount. An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s
or cash-generating unit's (CGU) fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use. Recoverable amount is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset
does not generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets or Company's of assets. Where the carrying amount of an asset or CGU
exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset s considered impaired and is written down to its recoverable amount.

In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. In determining fair value less costs of disposal, recent market transactions are taken
into account, if available. If no such transactions can be identified, an appropriate valuation model is used. These calculations are corroborated by valuation
multiples , quoted share prices for publicaly traded companies or other available fair value indicators.

Impairment losses including impairment on inventories, are recognized in the statement of profit and loss. After impairment, depreciation is provided on the
revised carrying amount of the asset over its remaining useful life.

Non-financial assets other than goodwill that suffered an impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of the impairment at the end of each reporting period.

An assessment is made at each reporting date to determine whether there is an indication that previously recognised impairment losses no longer exist or have
decreased. If such indication exists, the Group estimates the asset’s or CGU’s recoverable amount. A previously recognised impairment loss is reversed only if
there has been a change in the assumptions used to determine the asset's recoverable amount since the lastimpairment loss was recognised. The reversal is
limited so that the carrying amount of the asset does not exceed its recoverable amount, nor exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net
of depreciation, had no impairment loss been recognised for the assetin prior years. Such reversal is recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

Segment accounting:
Based on "Management Appoarch” as defined in Ind AS 108- Operating Segments, the executive Management Committee evaluates the Group's performance
and allocates the resources based on an analysis of various performance indicators by business segments.

The Group prepares its segment information in conformity with the accounting policies adopted for preparing and presenting the consolidated statements of the
Group asawhole.

Foreign currencies
The Group’s financial statements are presented in Indian rupee (INR) which is also the Group’s functional and presentation currency. ltems included in the
financial statements are measured using the currency of the primary economic environmentin which the entity operates ('the functional currency').

Foreign currency transactions are recorded on initial on initial recognition in the functional currency, using the exchange rate prevailing at the date of
transaction.

Measurement of foreign currency items at the balance sheet date

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the dates of the initial
transactions. Non-monetary items measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the date when the fair value is
determined. The gain or loss arising on translation of non- monetary items measured at fair value is treated in line with the recognition of the gain or loss on the
change infair value of the item (i.e., translation differences on items whose fair value gain or loss is recognized in OCl or profit or loss are also recognized in OCI
or profitorloss, respectively).
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Exchange differences
Exchange differences arising on settiement or translation of monetary items are recognized as income or expense in the statement of profit and loss in the
period in which they arise.

Bank Guarantee and Letter of Credit
Bank Guarantee and Letter of Credits are recognised at the point of negotiation with Banks and coverted at the rates prevailing on the date of Negotiation.
However, outstanding at the period end are recognised at the rate prevailing as on that date and total sum is considered as contingent liability.

Dividend Distributions
The Group recognizes a liability to make payment of dividend to owners of equity when the distribution is authorized and is no longer at the discretion of the
Group and is declared by the shareholders . Acorresponding amount is recognized directly in equity.

Fair value measurement
The Group's measures financial instruments at fair value at each balance sheet date.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the
measurement date. The fair value measurementis based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either:

(i) Inthe principal market for asset or liability, or
(i) Inthe absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability.

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company.

The fair value of an asset or liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that
market participants actin their economic best interest.

Afair value measurement of a non- financial asset takes into accounta market participant's ability to generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest
and best use or by selling it to another market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to measure fair value, maximising the
use of relevant observable inputs and minimizing the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the consolidated financial statements are categorized within the fair value hierarchy,
described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

Level1- Quoted(unadjusted) market prices in active markets foridentical assets or liabilities
Level2- Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurementis directly or indirectly observable
Level 3- Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurementis unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognized in the consolidated financial statements on a recurring basis, the Group determines whether transfers have
occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing categorization ( based on the lowest level input that is significant to fair value measurement as a whole )
atthe end of each reporting period.

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Group has determined classes of assets and liabilities on the basis of the nature, characteristics and risks of the
assetorliability and the level of the fair value hierarchy as explained above.

Leases
The Group assesses at contract inception whether a contract is, or contains, a lease. That s, if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified
asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration.

The Company as alessee
The Group applies a single recognition and measurement approach for all leases, except for short-term leases and leases of low-value assets. The Group
recognises lease liabilities to make lease payments and right-of-use assets representing the right to use the underlying assets.

Right-of-use assets

The Group recognises right-of-use assets at the commencement date of the lease (i.e., the date the underlying asset is available for use). Right-of-use assets
are measured at cost, less any accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liabilities. The cost of right-of-
use assets includes the amount of lease liabilities recognised, initial direct costs incurred, and lease payments made at or before the commencement date less
any lease incentives received. Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the shorter of the lease term and the estimated useful lives of
the building (i.e. 30 and 60 years)

If ownership of the leased asset transfers to the Group at the end of the lease term or the cost reflects the exercise of a purchase option, depreciation is
calculated using the estimated useful life of the asset. The right-of-use assets are also subject to impairment. Refer to the accounting policies in section
'Impairment of non-financial assets'.

(b) Lease Liabilities

Atthe commencement date of the lease, the group recognises lease liabilities measured at the present value of lease payments to be made over the lease term.
The lease payments include fixed payments (including in substance fixed payments) less any lease incentives receivable, variable lease payments that depend
on an index or a rate, and amounts expected to be paid under residual value guarantees. The lease payments also include the exercise price of a purchase
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option reasonably certain to be exercised by the group and payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects the group exercising the
option to terminate. Variable lease payments that do not depend on an index or a rate are recognised as expenses (unless they are incurred to produce
inventories) in the period in which the event or condition that triggers the payment occurs.

In calculating the present value of lease payments, the group uses its incremental borrowing rate at the lease commencement date because the interest rate
implicitin the lease is not readily determinable. After the commencement date, the amount of lease liabilities is increased to reflect the accretion of interest and
reduced for the lease payments made. In addition, the carrying amount of lease liabilities is remeasured if there is a modification, a change in the lease term, a
change in the lease payments (e.g., changes to future payments resulting from a change in an index or rate used to determine such lease payments) or a
change in the assessment of an option to purchase the underlying asset.

(c) Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition exemption to its short-term leases (i.e., those leases that have a lease term of 12 months or less from the
commencement date and do not contain a purchase option). It also applies the lease of low-value assets recognition exemption to leases that are considered to
be low value. Lease payments on short-term leases and leases of low-value assets are recognised as expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

The Group as alessor

Leases for which the group is a lessor is classified as finance or operating lease. Leases in which the group does not transfer substantially all the risks and
rewards incidental to ownership of an asset are classified as operating leases. Rental income arising is accounted for on a straight-line basis over the lease
terms. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the leased asset and recognised over the
lease term on the same basis as rentalincome. Contingent rents are recognised as revenue in the period in which they are earned.

Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions

The preparation of the Group’s financial statements requires management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of
revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and the accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these assumptions
and estimates could resultin outcomes that require a material adjustment to the carrying amount of the asset or liability affected in future periods.

Judgments

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies, management has made the following judgments, which have the most significant effect on the

amounts recognized in the consolidated financial statements.

(a) Operating lease commitments — Group as lessee
The Group has taken various commercial properties on leases. The Group has determined, based on an evaluation of the terms and conditions of the
arrangements, such as the lease term not constituting a substantial portion of the economic life of the commercial property, and that it does not retain all the
significant risks and rewards of ownership of these properties and accounts for the contracts as operating leases.

(b) Assessment of lease contracts
Significantjudgment is required to apply lease accounting rules under Appendix C to IND AS 116 : determining whether an Arrangement contains a Lease.
In assessing the applicability to arrangements entered into by the Group, management has exercised judgment to evaluate the right to use the underlying
assets, substance of the transaction including legally enforced arrangements and other significant terms and conditions of the arrangement to conclude
whether the arrangements meet the criteria under Appendix C to IND AS 116.

Estimates and assumptions
The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the reporting date, that have a significant risk of causing a
material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are described below. The Group based its assumptions and
estimates on parameters available when the consolidated financial statements were prepared. Existing circumstances and assumptions about future
developments, however, may change due to market changes or circumstances arising beyond the control of the Group. Such changes are reflected in the
assumptions when they occur.

a) Revenue from contracts with customers
The Group applied the following judgements that significantly affect the determination of the amount and timing of revenue from contracts with customers:

Determining method to estimate variable consideration and assessing the constraint

In estimating the variable consideration, the Group is required to use either the expected value method or the most likely amount method based on which
method better predicts the amount of consideration to which it will be entitied. The Group determined that the expected value method is the appropriate
method to use in estimating the variable consideration for revenue from operation, given the large number of customer contracts that have similar
characteristics.Before including any amount of variable consideration in the transaction price, the Group considers whether the amount of variable
consideration is constrained. The Group determined that the estimates of variable consideration are not constrained based on its historical experience,
business forecast and the current economic conditions. In addition, the uncertainty on the variable consideration will be resolved within a short time frame.

(b) Taxes
Uncertainties exist with respect to the interpretation of complex tax regulations, changes in tax laws, and the amount and timing of future taxable income.
Given the wide range of business relationships and the long-term nature and complexity of existing contractual agreements, differences arising between
the actual results and the assumptions made, or future changes to such assumptions, could necessitate future adjustments to tax income and expense
already recorded. The Group establishes provisions, based on reasonable estimates. The amount of such provisions is based on various factors, such as
experience of previous tax audits and differing interpretations of tax regulations by the taxable entity and the responsible tax authority. Such differences of
interpretation may arise on a wide variety of issues depending on the conditions prevailing in the respective domicile of the companies.
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Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused tax losses to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the losses can be
utilised. Significant management judgementis required to determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can be recognised, based upon the likely timing
and the level of future taxable profits together with future tax planning strategies.

Defined Benefit Plans

The cost of defined benefit plans (i.e. Gratuity benefit) and the present value of the gratuity obligation are determined using actuarial valuations. An actuarial
valuation involves making various assumptions which may differ from actual developments in the future. These include the determination of the discount
rate, future salary increases and mortality rates. Due to the complexities involved in the valuation and its long-term nature, a defined benefit obligation is
highly sensitive to changes in these assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at each reporting date.

The parameter most subject to change is the discount rate. In determining the appropriate discount rate for the plans operated in India, management
considers the interest rates of long term government bonds with extrapolated maturity corresponding to the expected duration of the defined benefit
obligation.

The mortality rate is based on publicly available mortality tables for the specific countries. Those morality tables tend to change only at interval in response
to demographic changes. Future salary increases and pension increases are based on expected future inflation rates for the respective countries.

Further details about the assumptions used, including a sensitivity analysis, are givenin note no. 31(2).

Fair value measurement of financial instrument

When the fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the balance sheet cannot be measured based on quoted prices in active markets,
their fair value is measured using valuation techniques including the Discounted Cash Flow (DCF) model. The inputs to these models are taken from
observable markets where possible, but where this is not feasible, a degree of judgment is required in establishing fair values. Judgments include
considerations of inputs such as liquidity risk, credit risk and volatility. Changes in assumptions about these factors could affect the reported fair value of
financial instruments. See note no. 31(11) for further disclosures.

Impairment of financial assets

The impairment provisions of financial assets are based on assumptions about risk of default and expected loss rates. the Group uses judgment in making
these assumptions and selecting the inputs to the impairment calculation, based on Group's past history ,existing market conditions as well as forward
looking estimates at the end of each reporting period.

Impairment of non-financial assets

The Group assesses at each reporting date whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired. If any indication exists, or when annual
impairment testing for an asset is required, the Group estimates the asset's recoverable amount. An assets recoverable amount is the higher of an asset's
CGU'S fair value less cost of disposal and its value in use. Itis determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are
largely independent of those from other assets or Group's of assets. Where the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable amount, the
assetis considered impaired and is written down to its recoverable amount.

In assessing value in use , the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. In determining fair value less costs of disposal, recent market transactions are
taken into account. If no such transactions can be identified, an appropriate valuation model is used. These calculations are corroborated by valuation
multiples, or other fair value indicators.

Expected Credit Loss

The Group has used a practical expedient by computing the expected credit loss allowances for trade receivables based on a provision matrix takes ito
accounts historical credit loss experience and adjusted for forward looking information. The expected credit loss allowance is based on the ageing of the
day of the receivables are due and the rates are given in the provision matrix.

2.27 Cashand Cash Equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-term deposits with an original maturity of three months or less,
which are subject to insignificant risk of changes in value.

For the purpose of statement of cash flow, cash & cash equivalents consists of cash and short term deposits as defined above, net of outstanding bank
overdrafts as they are considered as integral part of Group's cash management.
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Notes to Financial Statements for the period ended March 31, 2025

3. Property, Plant and Equipment
(Amount in Lakhs)

Particulars Land Factory Plant and Vehicles Office Furniture & Air Computer | Total
Building Equipment Equipments | Fixtures Conditioners

Gross Block (At cost)

At April 01, 2023 18.35 236.47 577.01 69.76 45.38 11.95 7.28 097 | 967.17
Additions - 3.65 45.55 1.32 2.03 52.55
Disposals - - - - - - - - -
At March 31, 2024 18.35 236.47 580.67 115.31 46.70 11.95 7.28 3.01 [1,019.73
Additions - - 5.48 - 1.24 0.60 1.44 8.77
Disposals - - - 19.05 - - - - 19.05
At March 31, 2025 18.35 236.47 586.15 96.26 47.94 11.95 7.88 4.45 (1,009.44

Depreciation

At April 01, 2023 - 30.84 275.66 44.80 22.47 9.88 435 0.17 | 388.16
Charge for the year - 3.74 13.07 10.39 2.67 0.58 0.35 0.67 31.46
Disposals - - - - - - - - -
At March 31, 2024 - 34.58 288.72 55.19 2514 10.46 4.70 0.84 | 419.62
Charge for the year 3.74 13.49 12.02 2.79 0.44 0.43 1.14 34.04
Disposals - - - 13.71 - - - - 13.71
At March 31, 2025 - 38.31 302.21 53.50 27.93 10.89 5.13 198 | 439.95
Net carrying amount

At March 31, 2024 18.35 201.89 291.94 60.13 21.56 1.49 2.58 216 | 600.10
At March 31, 2025 18.35 198.15 283.94 42.76 20.01 1.06 2.75 247 | 569.49

Notes: -

() Depreciation has been provided prorata basis on straight line method using the useful lives and in the manner as prescribed under Schedule Il of the
CompaniesAct, 2013. (Refer Accounting Policies No. 2.6)

(i)  The Company has notrevalued its Property, Plantand Equipment.
(iii)  Interestduring construction paid during the year amounting to Rs.Nil/-(March 31;2024: Rs. Nil/-) has been capitalised.

(iv) The title in respect of self -constructed buildings and title deeds of all other immovable properties (other than properties where the Company is the lessee and
the lease agreements are duly executed in favour of the lessee), disclosed in the financial statements included under Property, Plantand Equipment are held in
the name of the Company as the balance sheet date.

(v) Vehicles taken onfinance lease are financed from Kotak Mahindra Prime Limited and HDFC Bank Limited (Refer Note No. 14.1)
(vi) Property, Plantand equipment pledged as security towards liabilities as on March 31,2025 and March 31,2024 are as under (refer note no 14.1):

Firstand Exclusive Charge onImmovable Property PlotNo.57/1 and 57/1/19, industrial area site IV, Sahibabad, Ghaziabad in the name of the Company.
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Consolidated Notes to Financial Statements for the period ended March 31,2025

(Amount in Lakhs)

As at As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
4  INVESTMENTSINASSOCIATES
Investments in equity instruments (unquoted) non-trade, (valued at cost)
Investments in Associate Company
IFE Cranex Elevators & Excalators India Pvt. Ltd. 160.48 162.52
1,82,000(26%) (March31,2024:1,82,000(26%)) equity shares of Rs.100/- each fully paid up
Add:- Share in profits(loss) for the year ended 0.00 (2.04)
160.48 160.48
Other Investments
Investments in Joint Ventures
Shree Cranex (JV) [Refer Note (b) Below] 31.71 31.71
Aggregate amount of unquoted investments in associates 192.19 192.19

Aggregate amount of impairment on value of investments

Notes: -
(@) Managementis of the opinion that the fair value of the unquoted equity share of IFE Cranex Elevators & Excalators India Private Limited exceed the amount of
investment made and hence there is no impairment in the value of investment.

(b) During the financial year 2021-22, the Parent Company has invested an amount of Rs. 31.71 Lakhs in Shree Cranex (JV), a joint venture with Shree
Construction. The share of the company as a designated partner in the total capital of the Joint Venture (JV) is 26 % which amounts to a capital contribution of
Rs. 31.71 Lakhs. The name and share of other designated partner of the Joint Venture (JV) are IFE Elevators Company Limited with a share of 74% which
amounts to capital contribution of Rs. 1,24.55 Lakhs.

5  NON-CURRENTFINANCIALASSETS

5.1 INVESTMENTS
(a) Investments in equity instruments (unquoted), non trade
Valued at Fair Value through Other Comprehensive Income [FVTOCI]

Saraswat Co-operative Bank Ltd. 0.01 0.01
50 (March 31,2024:50) equity shares of Rs.10/- each fully paid up
Aggregate amount of unquoted investments (At fair Value) 0.01 0.01
Aggregate amount of unquoted investments (At Cost) 0.01 0.01

5.2 LONG TERMLOANS AND ADVANCES
(Valued at amortised cost)
(Unsecured, considered good)

Other Loans and Advances

5.3 OTHERNON-CURRENT FINANCIALASSETS
(Valued at amortised cost)
(Unsecured, considered good)

Security deposits 14.62 52.55

Fixed deposits held as margin money against bank guarantees having

remaining maturity period of more than twelve months 194.20 355.30
208.82 407.86

(i)  Security deposits includes deposits against electricity, telephone,shipping lines, vendors, etc.
(i) The deposits maintained by the Company with banks comprise of time deposits of varying periods of more than twelve months and earn interest at the
respective depositrates.

6 DEFERREDTAXASSETS (NET)
(a) Incometax expense inthe statement of profit and loss comprises :

Currentincome tax charge 60.00 50.95
Income Tax for earlier years (5.93) 13.49
Deferred Tax

Relating to origination and reversal of temporary differences 2.84 0.51
Income tax expense reported in the statement of profit or loss 56.91 64.95
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(Amount in Lakhs)

As at As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
(b) Other Comprehensive Income
Re-measurement (gains)/losses on defined benefit plans 0.24 (0.16)
Tax expense related to items recognized in OCl during the year 0.24 (0.16)
(c) Reconciliation of tax expense and the accounting profit multiplied by
India’s domestic tax rate:
Accounting Profit before tax 251.55 214.79
Applicable tax rate 25.17% 25.17%
Computed Tax Expense 63.31 54.06
Expense not allowed for tax purpose 6.57 10.37
Additional allowances for tax purpose - -
Income tax charged to Statement of Profit and Loss at effective rate of 22.62%
(March 31,2024: 30.24%) 69.88 64.43
Balance Sheet Statement of profit & loss
As at As at As at As at

March 31,2025 March 31,2024 March 31,2025 March 31, 2024

(d) Deferred tax assets comprises:

Accelerated Depreciation for Tax purposes (56.62) (561.17) (5.45) (5.97)
Expenses allowable on payment basis 23.03 20.18 2.85 5.30
(33.59) (31.00) (2.60) (0.67)
MAT Credit entitlement - - - -
(33.59) (31.00) (2.60) (0.67)
(e) Reconciliation of deferred tax assets (net)
Opening balance (31.00) (30.32)
Tax expense recognised in the statement of profit and loss during the year (2.84) (0.51)
Tax expense recognised in other comprehensive income during the year 0.24 (0.16)
Closing balance (33.59) (31.00)

(i) Effective tax rate has been calculated on profit before tax and exceptional items.

(i) The Company offsets tax assets and liabilities if and only if it has a legally enforceable right to set off curent tax assets and current tax liabilities and the deffered
tax assets and deferrred tax liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same tax authority.

As at As at
March 31,2025 March 31, 2024

7  OTHERNONCURRENTASSETS
(Unsecured, considered good)

Others
Prepaid expenses 1.50 2.58
1.50 2.58
Notes: -
(i) Prepaidexpensesincludes expenses related to License Fees & Insurance.
As at As at

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

8 INVENTORIES
(Valued at lower of cost and net realisable value unless otherwise stated)

Raw materials 242.51 545.39
Workiin progress. 194.51 178.86
Finished goods 415.02 406.89
852.04 1,131.14

Notes: -

(i) Inventories are hypothecated with the bankers against working capital limits. (refer note no. 17.1(i)

(i) Referaccounting policy no.2.11 formode of valuation of Inventories.
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9  CURRENTFINANCIALASSETS
9.1 TRADERECEIVABLES

Notes: -

(il

(a) Trade Receivables considered good-Secured

Trade Receivables considered good-Unsecured

(b)
(c) Trade Receivables which have significantincrease in Credit Risk
(d)

Trade Receivables -Creditimpaired

Less: Impairment allowance for trade receivables

Trade receivables are usually non-interest bearing and are on trade terms of 0 to 90 days.

As at

CRANEX

As at

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

2,704.57

3,215.53
3,215.53 2,704.57
3,215.53 2,704.57

No trade receivables are due from directors or other officers of the company either severally or jointly with any other person. Trade receivables due from firms or
private companies respectively in which any director or partner is having a substantial interest are as under:

Shree Cranex-JV

Trade Receivables aging schedule as at 31st March,2025

309.28

313.32

309.28

313.32

Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment

Particulars

Less than
6 months

6 months -
1 year

1-2 years

2-3 years

More than 3
years

Total

Undisputed Trade receivables —
considered good

878.37

1,675.80

521.73

32.85

91.43

3,200.18

Undisputed Trade Receivables —
which have significant increase in credit risk

Undisputed Trade Receivables —
credit impaired

Disputed Trade Receivables —
considered good

15.35

15.35

Disputed Trade Receivables —
which have significant increase in credit risk

Disputed Trade Receivables — credit impaired

Total

878.37

1,675.80

521.73

106.78

3,215.53

Less: Allowance for Trade Receivable

Total

878.37

1,675.80

521.73

106.78

3,215.53

Trade Receivables aging schedule as at 31st March,2024

Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment

Particulars

Less than
6 months

6 months -
1 year

1-2 years

2-3 years

More than 3
years

Total

Undisputed Trade receivables —
considered good

1,637.10

493.48

515.89

2,646.48

Undisputed Trade Receivables —
which have significant increase in credit risk

Undisputed Trade Receivables —
credit impaired

Disputed Trade Receivables —
considered good

58.10

58.10

Disputed Trade Receivables —
which have significant increase in credit risk

Disputed Trade Receivables — credit impaired

Total

1,637.10

493.48

58.10

2,704.57

Less: Allowance for Trade Receivable

Total

1,637.10

493.48

58.10

2,704.57
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As at As at
March 31,2025 March 31, 2024

9.2 CASHAND CASHEQUIVALENTS

Balances with banks:
Currentaccounts 0.76 0.93
Cashonhand 0.04 0.41
0.81 1.34
Notes: -
There are no restrictions with regard to cash and cash equivalents as at the end of the reporting period.
9.3 OTHERBANKBALANCES
Fixed deposits pledged with government departments having a original
maturity period of more than three months but less than twelve months 426.05 145.68
426.05 145.68

Notes: -
(i)  The deposits maintained by the Company with banks comprise of time deposits made of varying periods between three months to twelve months and earn
interest at the respective short term deposit rates.

(i) Fixed deposit with original maturity of more than twelve months but remaining maturity of less than twelve months have been disclosed under other bank
balances. (refer note no.5.3)

9.4 SHORTTERMLOANSANDADVANCES
LoanandAdvances - -

9.5 OTHER CURRENT FINANCIALASSETS
(Valued at amortised cost)
(Unsecured, considered good,unless otherwise stated)

Security deposits 13.12 13.88
Unbilled Revenue 12.40 134.85
25.51 148.73

Notes: -
(i) Security deposits include deposits with material suppliers.

(i) Noamounts are due to directors or other officers of the Company or any of them either severally or jointly with any other person.

10 CURRENTTAXASSETS (NET)
Advance Tax and TDS (net of provision for tax ) - -

11 OTHERCURRENTASSETS
(Unsecured, considered good,unless otherwise stated)

Advances against materials and services 69.11 106.14
Balance with Statutory/ Government authorities 39.32 23.07
Pre-deposits with Government departments under protest 5.94 23.20
Income Tax Refund 29.71 29.71
Prepaid Expenses 9.72 4.46
Otheradvances 4.20 3.49

158.00 190.07

Notes: -

() Prepaidexpensesincludes expenses related to License Fees & Insurance.
(i) Otheradvance include outstanding balance in staffimprest accounts, Staff loans & Advances..

As at As at
March 31,2025 March 31, 2024

12 EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL

a) Authorized
100,00,000 equity shares of Rs.10/- each (March 31,2024:100,00,000 equity shares of Rs.10/- each) 1,000.00 1,000.00

Issued, subscribed and fully paid up
65,70,000 equity shares of Rs.10/- each (March 31,2024: 60,00,000 equity shares of Rs.10/- each) 657.00 600.00

b) Reconciliation of the shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the year
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As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024
No. of shares AmountinRs. No. of shares Amountin Rs.
Atthe beginning of the year 6,000,000 600.00 6,000,000 600.00
Add: Equity shares issued 570,000 57.00 - -
Atthe end of the year 6,570,000 657.00 6,000,000 600.00
c) Termslrights attached to equity shares
The Parent Company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of Rs.10/- per share (March 31,2024 : Rs.10/- per share). Each holder of equity
shares is entitled to one vote per share. The Company declares and pays dividend in Indian rupees.
In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the Company after distribution of all
preferential amounts. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders.
d) Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the Company is set out below (representing legal and beneficial ownership):
Name of Shareholders As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024
No. of shares % holding No. of shares % holding
Mr. Piyush Agrawal 2,593,000 39.47% 2,143,000 35.72%
As per the records of the Company, including its register of shareholders/members and other declarations received from shareholders regarding beneficial
interest, the above shareholdingrepresents both legal and beneficial ownership of shares.
e) Aggregate number of shares bought back, or issued as fully paid up pursuant to contract without payment being received in cash or by way of
bonus shares during the period of five years immediately preceding the date of Balance Sheet:
As at As at
March 31,2025 March 31, 2024
No. of shares  No. of shares
Equity shares allotted as fully paid-up pursuant to contracts for consideration other than cash. Nil Nil
Equity shares allotted as fully paid up bonus shares by capitalisation of securities premium account and general reserve. Nil Nil
Equity shares bought back Nil Nil
f) Details of Shareholding of promoters in the company :
Shares Held by the Promoters at the end of the year
No. of Shares Held % of Total Shares % change
Name of the Promoter during the year
2024-25 2023-24 2024-25 2023-24
1 Mr.PiyushAgrawal 2,593,000 2,143,000 39.47% 35.71% 3.76%
2 Mrs.RituAgrawal 242,345 242,345 3.69% 4.04% -0.35%
3 ChaitanyaAgrawal 190,000 190,000 2.89% 3.17% -0.28%
4 RituInvestments Private Limited 100,000 - 1.52% 0.00% 1.52%
Total 3,125,345 2,575,345 47.57% 42.92%
As at As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
OTHEREQUITY
Securities Premium 524.40 -
Retained earnings 695.79 501.88
Money received against share warrants 563.55 -
1,783.74 501.88
Notes:
(a) Securities premiumreserve
Opening Balance -
Add:-Equity shares issued during the year 524.40
524.40 -
(b) Retained earnings
As perthe last balance sheet 480.36 330.05
Net profit/(loss) for the year 194.64 149.84
Items of other comprehensive income recognised directly in retained earnings
Re-measurement gains /(losses) on defined benefit plans (net of tax) (0.73) 0.47
674.27 480.36
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(c) Money received against share warrant
Opening Balance -
Add:-received during the year 708.90

Less:- Converted into equity Share 145.35
563.55 -

(A) Nature & Purpose of Reserves

(a) Securities premium
Securities premium is used to record the premium on issue of shares. The reserve can be utilised only for limited purposes such as issuance of bonus share in
accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act,2013.

(b) Retained earnings
Retained Earnings are profit the company has earned till date less transfer to General Reserve, dividend or other distribution or transaction with shareholders.

(c) ShareWarrant(refer note no 31(3)

As at As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
14 NONCURRENT LIABILITIES

14.1 BORROWINGS
Term Loan form Banks(Secured)

Kotak Mahindra bank limited - 19.24
19.24
Less : Current Maturity of Long Term Borrowing - 19.24

Non-Current Portion -

Finance Lease Obligations(secured)

From Banks
HDFC Bank limited 34.60 41.53
34.60 4153
Less: Current Maturity of Finance lease obligations 8.07 7.20
Non-Current Portion 26.53 34.33
Term Loan from others(unsecured)
IFE Cranex Elevators & Esclators India Private Limited 615.63 616.63
Less : Current Maturity of Long Term Borrowings 421.12 -
194.51 616.63
221.04 650.97

Notes:

A) Term Loan from Kotak Mahindra Bank

I The Parent Company,Working capital term loan from Kotak Mahindra Bank Limited is taken for a sum of Rs. 90 Lakhs Outstanding balance as on 31.03.2025
Rs Nil/- (Previous year Rs.19.24 Lakhs) under WCCTL Guranteed Emergency Credit Line (GECL) to provide liquidity support and build up current asset and
meet operational liabilities affected due to Covid 19 Pandemic.

Il The Term loan is secured by way of second exclusive equitable mortgage charge on the Book Debts Movable Property (not being pledge), current assets,
Movable Fixed Assets and furthur Immovable property .

il The Term loan is further secured by second exclusive equitable mortagage charge on immovable property Plot No 57/1/19, industrial area site |V, Sahibabad,
Ghaziabad in the name of Cranex Limited.

IV Terms of Repayment:
Term Loan of Rs. 90 Lakhs :- Commencing from 15th Nov. 2020 repayable in total of 48 installments which are as follows:

1st Installment Rs.60,983.60/- Only have interest component
2nd Installment Rs.59,016.39/- Only have interest component
3rd Installment Rs.61,059.06/- Only have interest component
4th Installment Rs.61,150.68/- Only have interest component
5th Installment Rs. 55,232.88/- Only have interest component
6th Installment Rs.61,150.68/- Only have interest component
7th Installment Rs.59,178.08/- Only have interest component
8th Installment Rs.61,150.68/- Only have interest component
9th Installment Rs.59,178.08/- Only have interest component
10th Installment Rs.61,150.68/- Only have interest component
11th Installment Rs.61,150.68/- Only have interest component
12th Installment Rs.59,178.08/- Only have interest component
Next 35 Installments Rs. 282,027.00/- Principal Component Plus Interest
Last Installment Rs.282,189.76/- Principal Component Plus Interest
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V' The Parent Company has borrowings from banks on the basis of current assets. The Company has complied with the requirement of filing of quarterly
returns/statements of security of current assets with the banks or financial institutions, as applicable, and these returns were in agreement with the books of
accounts exceptas shownin note no 31(8). The difference are due to unaudited/ provisional figures filed with the Bank.

VI The borrowings obtained by the Parent Company from banks have been applied for the purposes for which such loans were taken. In respect of term loans
which were taken in the previous year, those were applied in the respective year for the purpose for which the loan were obtained.

B) Finance Lease Obligations
Long term maturities of finance lease obligations secured against hypothecation of respective vehicles under finance lease are as under:-

Name of Lendor Nature of Lease Terms of repayments (Including Interest)

HDFC Bank Finance Lease Repayable in total 60 monthly equal instalments Rs.41,741/- all including

interest, commencing from 7th March 2024.
HDFC Bank Finance Lease Repayable in total 60 monthly equal instalments Rs.44,554/- all including
interest, commencing from 05th Apr 2024.

C) Unsecured Loan IFE Cranex Elevators & Esclators India Private Limited- An Associate Company.

The said loan has been granted in lieu of bank gurantees given by the Company for projects. The Loan is interest free and is repayable on extinguishment of
bank gurantees as and whenitoccurs. There are amountdue for repaymentin F.Y 2025-26 Amount421.12 Lakhs.

D) TheParentCompany has notdefaulted in repayment of principal amount and interest during the year and complied with loan covenants of the lenders.

NON CURRENT PROVISIONS
Provision for employee benefits
Gratuity(refer note no 31(2)) 56.44 52.62

56.44 52.62

OTHERNON-CURRENT LIABILITIES - -

CURRENT FINANCIAL LIABILITIES
17.1 SHORT TERMBORROWINGS

SECURED (atAmortised Cost)
Repayable on Demand

Cash Credit facility - Kotak Mahindra Bank Limited (See Note I) 784.71 806.38
Cash Creditfacility - Canara Bank Limited (refer note no. 31(6B) ) - 2.73
Current maturities of long-term borrowings - 19.24
Current maturities of finance lease obligation 8.07 7.20

792.77 835.54

UNSECURED (at Amortised Cost)
(a) Loan from Related Parties

Loans and advances from related parties ( See Note v) 250.30 972.80

(b) Others
National Small Industries corporation Limited ( See Note ii) 214.02 247.69
Oxyzo Financial Services Ltd. ( See Noteiiii) 92.75 -
Current maturities of long-term borrowings-Others 421.12 -
978.19 1,220.49
1,770.96 2,056.03

Notes:

(i)

The Parent Company has availed working capital limits of Rs.3185 Lakhs (Previous Year Rs.3185 Lakhs ) from Kotak Mahindra Bank which is secured by way
of first charge on Book Debts of the Company.In the given working capital limit, fund based limitis of Rs. 1327 Lakhs and Non Fund based limit is to the extent of
Rs. 1885 Lakhs.

The workig capital limit is secured by the way of first and exclusive hypothencation chrges on all existing and future and current assets, movalbe fixed assets
and any interest therein

The working Capital Limitis further secured by Exclusive Equitable Charge on Immovable Property Plot no 57/1 and 57/1/19, industrial area site 1V, Sahibabad,
Ghaziabad in the name of the Company.

The Company has borrowings from banks on the basis of current assets. The companyhas complied with the requirment of filling of quarterly returns/statement
of security of current assets with the bank or Financial instituations, as applicable, and these returns were in agreement with the books of accounts except as
showninnote no 31(8).

The difference are due to unaudited /provisional figures filed with bank
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Aggregated amount of working Capital Limits secured by way of personal gurantee of
Mr. Piyush Aggarwal (Director) and Mr. Chaitanya Aggrawal (Director) 784.71 809.10

(i) The Parent Company has been sanctioned an unsecured loan of Rs. 300.00 lakhs by National Small Industries Corporation Limited (NSICL) for its business
needs. The Company has not furnished any security. However, Bank Gurantee equivalent to the value of limit sanctioned from Kotak Mahindra Bank been
charged against the said loan.

(i) The Parent Company has been sanctioned an unsecured loan of Rs. 130.00 lakhs by Oxyzo Finacial service Limmited for its business needs. The Company
has not furnished any security. However, Bank Gurantee equivalent to the value of limit sanctioned from Kotak Mahindra Bank been charged against the said
loan.

(iv) The effective rate of interest on short term borrowings ranges between 9.5% p.a. to 14.5% p.a. during the year, depending upon the prime lending rate of the
banks and financial institutions at the time of borrowing, wherever applicable, and interest rate spread agreed with the banks

(v) Loan
Amitabh Aggarwal (HUF) 99.72 146.72
Chaitanya Agrawal 146.65 275.15
Piyush Agrawal 3.93 550.93
250.30 972.80
(vi) There are no defaultin the repayment of borowings and interests as on the date of the balance sheet.
17.2TRADE PAYABLES
Total outstanding dues of micro and small enterprises 34.92 129.96
Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro and small enterprises 791.87 1,173.86
826.79 1,303.81
Trade payables ageing schedule for the year ended as on March 31,2025
_ Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment Total
Particulars Not due Less than 1 1-2 years 2-3years | More than 3
Year years
(I) | MSME 30.24 - 30.24
(ii) | Others 235.70 100.58 93.30 61.46 300.83 791.87
(iii) | Disputed dues — MSME - - - 4.67 - 4.67
(iv) | Disputed dues - Others - - - - - -
Total 265.94 100.58 93.30 66.14 300.83 826.79

Trade payables ageing schedule for the yearended as on March 31,2024:

_ Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment Total
Particulars Not due Less than 1 1-2 years 2-3years | More than 3
Year years
(i) | MSME 8.75 109.24 8.09 0.71 3.17 129.96
(ii) | Others 39.06 669.61 44317 13.61 0.44 1,165.90
(iii) | Disputed dues — MSME - - - - - -
(iv) | Disputed dues - Others - - 7.96 7.96
Total 47.81 778.85 451.26 14.32 11.57 1,303.81

Notes: -
*Trade payablesincludes due to related parties Rs. Nil/- (March 31, 2024: Nil/-)
*The amounts are unsecured and are usually paid within 120 days of recognition.
*Trade payables are usually non- interest bearing .In few cases ,where the trade payables are interest bearing, the interest s settled on quarterly basis.

(i) Information as required to be furnished as per section 22 of the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 (MSMED Act) for the year ended
March 31, 2025 is given below. This information has been determined to the extent such parties have been identified on the basis of information available with
the Company.
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(i) | Principal amount and interest due thereon remaining unpaid to any supplier covered under MSMED Act:

Principal 34.52 129.95

Interest Nil Nil
(i) | The amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of section16, of the MSMED Act, 2006 along with the

amounts of the payment made to the supplier beyond the appointed day during each accounting year. Nil Nil
(iii) | The amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment (which have been paid but

beyond the appointed day during the year) but without adding the interest specified under MSMED Act. Nil Nil
(iv) | The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of each accounting year. Nil Nil

(v) | The amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding years, until such date when the interest
dues as above are actually paid to the small enterprise for the purpose of disallowance as a deductible expenditure
under section 23 of the MSMED Act, 2006 Nil Nil

(i) Theinformation in respect of party determined under the MSMED Act 2006, has been identified on the basis of information available with the Company.

17.30THERFINANCIAL LIABILITIES

Employee Benefit Expenses 56.11 84.74
Other payables 59.20 70.85
115.30 155.59
Notes:
(i) Employees benefitexpenses include payable to directors and other related parties are as under:-
ChaitanyaAgrawal 1.49 0.84
Piyush Agrawal 2.16 1.19
Shilpy Chopra - 0.03
(i) Otherpayables arein respectof audit fee, uncleared cheques and other miscellaneous liabilities payable.
18 OTHERCURRENT LIABILITIES
Revenue received inadvance
Advance from customers 13.30 87.23
Statutory dues
Goods and Service Tax (GST) 132.08 77.19
Others statutory dues
PF Payable 3.79 3.62
ESIPayable 0.45 0.46
TDS Payable 4.73 3.19
154.36 171.69
19 CURRENTPROVISIONS
Provision for employee benefits
Gratuity( refernote no 31(2) 25.96 17.26
25.96 17.26

Notes:
(i) Provisions are recognized for Gratuity. The provisions are recognized on the basis of past events and probable settlements of the present obligations as a result
of the pastevents, in accordance with Indian Accounting Standard-37 issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

The movement of provisions are as under:-

At the beginning of the year

Gratuity (Non-current Lakhs 52.61/-) 69.88 59.11
Income Tax 50.95 23.50
Arising during the year

Gratuity (Includes items of OCI) 15.91 13.12
Income Tax 60.00 50.95
Utilised during the year

Gratuity 3.38 2.35
Income Tax 50.95 23.50
Atthe end of the year

Gratuity (Non-Current Lakhs 56.44/-) 82.41 69.88
Income Tax 60.00 50.95
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(Amount in Lakhs)

As at As at
March 31,2025 March 31, 2024

20 CURRENTTAXLIABILITIES (NET)
Income Tax (Netof TDS) 26.28 4.94
26.28 4.94

21 REVENUEFROMOPERATIONS

Sale of Products 3,777.48 4,841.76
Sale of services 1,376.28 1,369.65
5,153.76 6,211.41
Notes:
() Timing of Revenue Recognition
Goods transferred ata pointin time 3,777.48 4,841.76
Services transferred over the time 1,376.28 1,369.65
5,153.76 6,211.41
(i) Disaggregation of revenue based on product or service
Cranes 3,695.85 4,711.24
Accessories 43.48 8.90
Erection & Installation 1263.42 1,368.68
Freight - 0.97
TestRings - 84.42
Iron Scrap 5.09 -
Annual Maintenance Charges 112.86 -
Grocery ltems 33.06 37.20
5,153.76 6,211.41
(iii) Revenue by location of customers
India 5,120.70 6,174.21
Outside India 33.06 37.20
5,153.76 6,211.41

(iv) Reconciliation of revenue recognised in statement of profit and loss with contracted price
Revenue as per contracted price 5,153.76 6,211.41
Less: Cash Discount

5,153.76 6,211.41

(v) Performance Obligation
Sale of products: Performance obligation in respect of sale of goods is satisfied when control of the goods is transferred to the customer, generally on delivery
of the goods and payment s generally due as per the terms of contract with customer.

Sales of services: The performance obligation in respect of maintenance services is satisfied over a period of time and acceptance of the customer. In respect
of these services, payment s generally due upon completion of maintenance period based on time elapsed and acceptance of the customer.

22 OTHERINCOME
a) Interestreceived onfinancial assets carried at amortised cost:

Interest Income from Banks 38.59 31.74
Interest Income from others 0.28 -
b) Other non-operatingincome

Foreign Currency Exchange Fluctuations (Net) - 30.28
Profit on Sale of Vehicle 1.97 -
Miscellaneous income 1.77 39.15

42.60 101.17

23 COSTOF MATERIALS CONSUMED

MS Pipe 369.73 465.02
Ms Plate 426.45 654.80
Motor 200.62 316.06
Control Panel 60.69 83.84
Forging 110.71 125.11
Control Gear 33.02 45.62
Cable 66.25 91.52
GearBox 145.45 162.95
MS Profile 68.44 94.55
Brake 52.99 73.20
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Consumable Stores 1,518.37 1,869.32
3,052.71 3,982.01
24 PURCHASE OF STOCKIN TRADE (TRADED GOODS)
Purchase Traded Goods 26.57 57.93
26.57 57.93
(Amount in Lakhs)
As at As at (Increase) /
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 Decrease
25 CHANGEININVENTORIES OF FINISHED GOODS AND WORK-IN-PROGRESS
Inventories atthe end of the year
Finished goods 415.02 406.89 (8.13)
Work-in-Progress 194.51 178.86 (15.65)
609.53 585.75 (23.79)
Inventories at the beginning of the year
Finished goods 406.89 420.02 13.14
Work-in-Progress 178.86 461.20 282.34
585.75 881.22 295.48
(Increase)/ Decrease in stocks (23.79) 295.48
Details of inventories at the end of the year
a) Finished Goods
Crane 415.02 406.89 (8.13)
415.02 406.89 (8.13)
b) Work-in-Progress
Crane 194.51 178.86 (15.65)
194.51 178.86 (15.65)
Details of inventories at the beginning of the year
a) Finished Goods
Crane 406.89 420.02 13.13
406.89 420.02 13.13
b) Work-in-Progress
Crane 178.86 461.20 282.34
178.86 461.20 282.34
As at As at
March 31,2025 March 31, 2024
26 EMPLOYEEBENEFITS EXPENSES
Salary, Wages, Bonus and other benefits 512.25 407.72
Contribution towards PF and ESI 27.64 25.16
Gratuity 14.94 13.75
Staff welfare expenses 14.07 1.48
568.90 448.11
Employee benefits expense include managerial remuneration as detailed below:
Salary 48.00 24.00
27 FINANCECOSTS
Interest Expense 116.43 101.92
Other Borrowing Costs 54.31 42.73
170.74 144.65
28 DEPRECIATION AND AMORTISATION EXPENSES
Depreciation on tangible assets 34.04 31.46
34.04 31.46
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29 OTHEREXPENSES
Consumption of Stores and Spares
Powerand Fuel
Job Work and Erection Charges
Hire Charges
Project Site Expenses
Testing Charges
Rent
Repairs to Machinery
Repairs others
Security Charges
Insurance
Rates and Taxes
Legal & Professional Charges
Travel, Conveyance and Vehicle Maintenance
Telephone, Internet, Postage & Courier
Pattern & Drawing Charges
Bad debts and sundry balances written off
Payment to Auditors
Auditfee
Taxauditfee
Certificate & Other Charges
Exchange Fluctuation
Transportation expenses and Export Expenses
Business Promotion and Marketing Expenses
Miscellaneous expenses

30 COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES
A Contingentliabilities (to the extent not provided for)
a) Claimsfiled againstthe Company not acknowledged as debts

b) Bankguarantees obtained from banks
(Margin money Rs.315.81 previous year Rs.513.04)

c) Disputed taxliabilities in respect of pending cases refer point ii))

d) Demandraised by TDS Department (Tax Deduction at Source) (refer point (iii))

Notes:

(Amount in Lakhs)

As at

As at

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

1.78 1.95
25.66 32.94
338.84 342.49
1.10 5.69
96.13 108.49
237 16.17
13.33 5.15
18.99 14.96
0.20 0.38
45.91 65.86
19.97 1.73
1.31 2.99
34.33 38.24
27.21 37.03
5.37 6.12
2.00 0.76
133.97 111.08
4.75 450
0.50 0.50
0.50 0.35
10.57 -
306.82 299.08
1.13 1.34
22.89 28.32
1,115.63 1,136.11
15.98 15.98
1,541.95 1,683.70
13.50 5.94
3.83 3.83
1,575.26 1,709.45

(i) (a) Aclaim has been filed against the Company by a supplier for recovery which is pending before The Honble District Judge (Commercial Court)-02

North-West. No provision for the same has been made since the Company has disputed the liability.
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(ii) The various disputed tax litigations are as under :
Sl. Description Court / Authority Financial year to Disputed Amount
NO. which relates
As at As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
a) | Goods & Services Tax
(i) | Demandraised by the GST Department Addl. Commissioner, Gr.2 2023-24 5.94 5.94
(Excluding Penalty) (Appeal) Meerut-I
(Amount deposited Rs. 5.94 Lakh)
(i) | *Demand raised by the Office of the
Commissioner, Central Gst, Audit- 1| Delhi Office Of The Commissioner, 2022-23 7.56
SCNreceived from Rs.18.32 Central Gst, Audit-ll Delhi
(Excluding Penalty)
(Amount deposited Rs. 10.49 Lakh)
Total 13.50 5.94

*

The Company in the process for application for waiver of interest and penalty. in respect of notice.

(iii) The Parent Company has outstanding TDS demands of Rs. 3.83 Lakhs on account of short deductions and interest u/s 201 and 220(2) of the Income T a x
Act, 1961. The Company will be filing the revised returns/applications and itis expected that there will be no demand on this account.

B Commitments

(i) Capital Commitments

31 OTHERNOTESONACCOUNTS

As at As at
March 31,2025 March 31, 2024

In the opinion of the Board, assets have a value on realization in the ordinary course of business at least equal to the amount at which they are stated.

b) Balance of unsecured short term bororrowings from others, trade payables, other current liabilities, long and short term advances, other non-current and

currentassets and trade receivables are subject to reconciliation and confirmations.

c) Group Information
The consolidated Financial Statement of the group includes Associates companies as mentioned below:

Name of the Entity Country of Nature Owership Year Ended Net Assests i.e Total assets minus Total
Incorporation Interest Liabilities
As % of Amount
consolidated net (In Lakhs)
assets
Parent
Cranex Limited India Parent March 31st,2025 100% 2419.22
Company March 31st,2024 100% 1080.36
Associates
IFE Cranex Elevators & India Associate 26% March 31st,2025 - -
Escalators India Pvt Ltd Company 26% March 31st,2024
Share in Profit and Loss Share in Other Comprehensive Income Share in Total Comprehansive Income
As % of consolidated profit or loss | Amount (in Lakhs) Asm‘;/:n%frzﬁgﬁts)il‘ilclait:go?rt‘l;er Amount (in Lakhs)
Parent
2024-25 | 100.00% | 19464 | 100.00% | (0.73) 100.00% | 19391
Associates
2024-25 | 0.00% | - 0.00% | 0.00% | (0.01)
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2

a)

Disclosures pursuant to Ind AS - 19 "Employee Benefits" (specified under section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013, read with Rule 7 of Companies
(Accounts) Rules, 2015) are given below:

Defined Contribution Plan

Contribution to Defined Contribution Plan, recognised as expense for the yearis as under:
(Amount in Lakhs)

As at As at
March 31,2025 March 31, 2024

Contribution to Defined Contribution Plan, recongised during the year are as under:-

Employer's Contribution towards Provident Fund (PF) (including Administration Charges) 23.27 2124

Employer's Contribution towards Employee State Insurance (ESI) 4.37 4.22
27.64 25.46

Defined Benefit Plan

Gratuity (Unfunded)

The present value of obligation is determined based on actuarial valuation using the Projected Unit Credit Method, which recognizes each period of services as
giving rise to additional unit of employee benefit entitlement and measures each unit separately to build up the final obligation.
As at As at

March 31,2025 March 31, 2024
Reconciliation of opening and closing balances of Defined Benefit obligation

Present value of obligation at the beginning of the year 69.88 59.11
Current Service Cost 9.90 9.40
Interest Cost 5.05 4.35
Acturial (gain) /loss arising during the year 0.97 (0.63)
Benefit paid (3.38) (2.35)
Presentvalue of obligation at the end of the year 82.41 69.88
Current Liability (Short Term) 25.96 17.26
Non-current Liability (Long Term) 56.44 52.62
b) NetAsset/(Liability) recognisedin the balance sheet
Present value of defined benefit obligation 82.41 69.88
Amount recognised in Balance Sheet- Asset/ (Liability) 82.41 69.88
¢) Expenserecognised in the Statement of profit and loss during the year
Current Service Cost 9.90 9.40
Interest Cost 5.05 4.35
14.94 13.75

d) Acturial (Gain)/Loss recognised in other comprehensive income during the year
- changes in demographic assumptions

-changesiin financial assumptions 1.16 0.65
- changes in experience adjustments (0.19) (1.28)
Recognised in other comprehensive income 0.97 (0.63)

e) Broad categories of plan assets as a percentage of total assets
Insurer managed funds Nil Nil

f)  Actuarial Assumptions

Mortality Table (LIC) 100% of IALM  100% of IALM

2012-14 2012-14
Discount Rate (perannum) 6.59% 7.22%
Rate of escalation in salary (per annum) 8.00% 8.00%

g) Quantitative sensitivity analysis for significant assumptions is as below:
Increase / (decrease) on present value of defined benefits obligations at the end of the year

Impact of change in discount rate
Impactdue toincrease by 0.5 % (2.51) (2.30)
Impact due to decrease by 0.5 % 2.69 247

Impact of change in salary
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h)

°)

d)

Impact due toincrease by 0.5 % 2.38 2.23
Impact due to decrease by 0.5 % (2.25) (2.11)
Maturity profile of defined benefit obligation

0to1Year 25.96 17.26
1to2Year 6.99 6.45
2to 3 Year 5.40 6.05
3to4 Year 3.28 449
4to5Year 2.95 2.69
5t06 Year 3.00 2.39
6 Year onwards 34.82 30.55
Total expected payments 82.41 69.88

The average duration of the defined benefit plan obligation at the end of the reporting period is 8.19 years.(Previous Year-8.25 years)

The estimates of rate of escalation in salary considered in actuarial valuation are after taking into account inflation, seniority, promotion and other relevant
factors including supply and demand in the employment market. The above information is as certified by the Actuary.

Discount rate is based on the prevailing market yields of Indian Government securities as at the balance sheet date for the estimated term of the
obligations.

The sensitivity analysis above have been determined based on a method that extrapolates the impact on defined benefit obligation as a result of
reasonable changes in key assumptions occurring at the end of the reporting period.

During the year, the Parent Company had allotted 27,80,000 fully Convertible Warrants at an issue price of 102/- per warrant, on prefrential basis to
promoters & promoter group and non-promoter group with an option to convert the same into equal number of equity shares at a price of Rs.102/- per
warrant, including premium of Rs. 92/- per share on face value of Rs. 10/- per share, within a period of 18 months from the date of allotment of warrants i.e.
October25,2024.

Further during the year, the Parent Company had already received an upfront payment of Rs. 708.90, 25% i.e. Rs. Per warrant, at the time of subscription
of the warrants, from the allottees. As per terms of warrant holders shall deposit the remaining portion of 75% i.e Rs. 76.50 per warrant for conversion of
warrantinto equity share.

During the year, ended 31st March 2025, the Parent Company has converted 5,70,000 Warrants into equal number of equity shares of Rs. 10/- each atan
issue price of Rs. 102/- per equity share.

Forthe purpose of calculation of diluted EPS, effect has been given of the above conversion of warrants, into equity shares.

4 Related party transactions
The related parties as per the terms of Ind AS-24,"Related Party Disclosures", (specified under section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013, read with Rule 7 of
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2015) are disclosed below:

A

Names of related parties and description of relationship:
Key Managerial Personnel

Piyush Agrawal Managing Director
ChaitanyaAgrawal Whole Time Director & CFO
Ashwani Kumar Jindal Independent Director
Shilpy Chopra Independent Director
ShaliniRahul Independent Director
Priyanka Pathak Independent Director
Sonia Mendiratta (19th December, 2024 to 17th January, 2025) Independent Director
Renu Singh (Upto 12 December 2023) Company Secretery
Heena Sharma (w.e.f2 April 2024) Company Secretery
Relatives of Key Managerial Personnel

Amitabh Agrawal

RituAgrawal

Associates and Joint Ventures

IFE Cranex Elevators and Excalators India Pvt. Ltd Associate Company
Shree Cranex (JV) Joint Ventures

Enterprises in which directors and relative of such directors are
interested and Associates/Joint Ventures
Ritu Investments Private Limited
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Piyush Agrawal (HUF)

Skylark Associates Pvt. Limited

MPD Karigar Crafts LLP

Transactions during the year:

(i) Loanstakenfrom
Enterprises in which directors and relative of such directors are interested
Amitabh Aggarwal (HUF)

Key Management Personnel
Piyush Agrawal - Managing Director
Chaitanya Agrawal - Whole Time Director & CFO

(i) Loansrepaid

Enterprises in which directors and relative of such directors are interested

IFE Cranex Elevators and Excalators India Pvt. Ltd
Amitabh Agrawal (HUF)

Key Management Personnel
Piyush Agrawal - Managing Director
Chaitanya Agrawal - Whole Time Director & CFO

(iii) Money received againest Share Warrant
Key Management Personnel
Piyush Agrawal - Managing Director
Chaitanya Agrawal - Whole Time Director & CFO

Relatives of Key Managerial Personnel
Amitabh Agrawal

Enterprises in which directors and relative of such directors are interested
Ritu Investments Private Limited

Equity Share Isued(Including security premium)
Key Management Personnel
Piyush Agrawal - Managing Director

Enterprises in which directors and relative of such directors are interested
Ritu Investments Private Limited

Rent Paid
Enterprises in which directors and relative of such directors are interested
Piyush Agrawal (HUF)

Sale of Goods and Services
Enterprises in which directors and relative of such directors are interested
Shree Cranex (JV)

(vii) Remuneration

Key Management Personnel

Piyush Agrawal - Managing Director

Chaitanya Agrawal - Whole Time Director & CFO
Renu Singh

Heena Sharma
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53.27 36.41
(viii) Relatives of Key Management personnel
Payal Agrawal - 0.30
- 0.30
(ix) Director Sitting Fees
Key Management Personnel
Sonia Mendiratta 0.05 -
Shilpy Chopra 0.48 0.30
Priyanka Pathak 0.30 -
0.83 0.30
D Balances attheyearend
(i) AmountReceivables
Enterprises in which directors and relative of such directors are interested
Shree Cranex (JV) 309.28 313.32
309.28 313.32

(ii) AmountPayables
Enterprises in which directors and relative of such directors are interested
IFE Cranex Elevators and Excalators India Pvt. Ltd 615.63 616.63

Piyush Agrawal (HUF) - 0.05
615.63 616.68

Key Management Personnel and relative of KMP

Loan Payable

Piyush Agrawal - Managing Director 3.93 550.93

Chaitanya Agrawal - Whole Time Director & CFO 146.65 27515

Amitabh Aggarwal (HUF) 99.72 146.72
250.30 972.80

Salary & Other Payable

Piyush Agrawal - Managing Director 2.16 1.19

Chaitanya Agrawal - Whole Time Director & CFO 1.49 0.84

Shilpy Chopra - 0.03

3.65 2.06
Notes:

a) Thetransactions with related parties are made on terms equivalent to those that prevail in arm’s length transactions. Outstanding balances at the year-end
are unsecured and interest free (other than borrowings taken by the Company) and settlement occurs in cash.

For the year ended March 31, 2025, the Company has not recorded any impairment of receivables relating to amounts owed by related parties. This
assessment is undertaken each financial year through examining the financial position of the related party and the market in which the related party
operates.

b)  Allthe liabilities for post retirement benefits being 'Gratuity' and 'Leave Encashment' are provided on an actuarial basis for the Company as a whole, the
amount pertaining to Key management personnel are notincluded above.

c) Asperthe section 149(6) of the Companies Act, 2013, Independent Directors are not considered as “Key Managerial Person”, however to comply with the
disclosure requirements of Ind AS-24 on “Related party transactions” they have been disclosed as “Key Managerial Person”.
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5 Relationship with struck off companies is as under:

Name of struck off Company Nature of transactions | Balance outstanding as | Balance outstanding as | Relationship with the struck off
with struck-off Company at 31 March,2025 at 31 March,2024 company , if any, to be
disclosed

KAN SECURITIES (INDIA) PVT. LTD. Shares held by struck | 500 Number of Shares 500 Number of Shares Shareholder
CIN NO.- U67120DL1994PTC059893 off company of Rs. 10/- Each of Rs. 10/- Each

SAYA SECURITIES PVT. LTD. Shares held by struck 5 Number of Shares 5 Number of Shares Shareholder
CIN NO.-U70101DL1996PTC082684 off company of Rs. 10/- Each of Rs. 10/- Each

VAISHAK SHARES LIMITED Shares held by struck 10 Number of Shares 10 Number of Shares Shareholder
CIN NO.- U85110KA1994PLC015178 off company of Rs. 10/- Each of Rs. 10/- Each

CHANDRAMA INVESTMENT Shares held by struck | 100 Number of Shares 100 Number of Shares Shareholder

FINANCE & LEASING LIMITED off company of Rs. 10/- Each of Rs. 10/- Each
CIN NO.- U67120UP1995PLC018753

MUNDHRA FINANCING PVT LTD Shares held by struck | 2000 Number of Shares | 2000 Number of Shares Shareholder
CIN NO.- U74999UP2021PTC157320 off company of Rs. 10/- Each of Rs. 10/- Each

ARSHI ENGINEERING WORKS Payables 0.04 Creditors
CIN NO.- U45400CT2013PTC000918

J.P.S. SHARE BROCKERS PVT LTD Shares held by struck 1 Number of Shares Shareholder
CIN NO.- U67120DL1997PTC091100 off company of Rs. 10/- Each

MEGA HEIGHTS RETAILORS Shares held by struck | 500 Number of Shares Shareholder

PRIVATE LIMITED off company of Rs. 10/- Each
CIN NO.- U45200BR2015PTC024367

6 Corporate Social Responsibility

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013, Every company having net worth of rupees five hundred crore or more, or turnover of
rupees one thousand crore or more or a net prot of rupees five crore or more during the immediately preceding financial year is required to incur at least 2% of
the average net profits of the preceding three financial years towards Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR).

Based on last audited balance sheet dated 31 March, 2024, the company does not meet any of the threshold prescribed by law. Hence, the provisions of
CompaniesAct, 2013 regarding CSR would not be applicable.

7 The Parent Company has borrowings from banks on the basis of current assets. The Company has complied with the requirement of ling of quarterly
returns/statements of security of current assets with the banks or nancial institutions, as applicable, and these returns were in agreement with the books of

accounts exceptas under:

(Amount in Lakhs)

SL. Particulars As per Submitted As Per Books Difference Reasons
No. Statement
Quarter 1
1 Inventory 1,396.83 1,396.89 (0.06) Due to filing of unaudited/
2 | Trade Receivables 2,308.82 2,226.63 82.19 provisional figures with banks.
3 | Trade Payables 597.49 1,059.47 (461.98)
Quarter 2
1 Inventory 1,117.92 1,117.92 - Due to filing of unaudited/
2 | Trade Receivables 2,813.01 2,802.28 10.73 provisional figures with banks.
3 | Trade Payables 587.84 1,218.80 (630.96)
Quarter 3
1 Inventory 1,068.03 1,068.03 - Due to filing of unaudited/
2 | Trade Receivables 2,766.86 2,779.57 (12.71) provisional figures with banks.
3 | Trade Payables 351.96 950.48 (598.52)
Quarter 4
1 Inventory 649.92 852.04 (202.12) Due to filing of unaudited/
2 | Trade Receivables 3,205.79 3,215.53 (9.74) provisional figures with banks.
3 | Trade Payables 373.82 826.79 (452.97)
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8 SegmentReporting
Segment information is presented in respect of the Company’s key operating segments. The operating segments are based on the Company’s management
andinternal reporting structure.

)

Operating Segments
The Company's Managing Director and CFO has been identied as the Chief Operating Decision Maker ({CODM'), since Managing Director and CFO are
responsible for all major decision w.r.t. the preparation and execution of business plan, preparation of budget and other key decisions.

CRANEX

Managing director reviews the operating results at the Company level to make decisions about the Company's performance. Accordingly, management has
identied the business as single operating segment i.e. "Manufacturing of EOT cranes and installation of escalators". Accordingly, there is only one Reportable
Segment for the Company i.e. "Manufacturing of EOT cranes and installation of escalators", hence no specic disclosures have been made.

a)

b)

c)

d)

e)

Information about products and services

Please refer to note 21 of the financial statements
Revenue as per Geographical Markets
Domestic Market

Overseas Market

Total

Non-current assets (other than deferred tax assets and financial instruments) in Geograpgical Market

Within India
Outside India
Total

Information about major customers

Customers contributing more than 10% of the Company's total revenue are as under:
a) BharatAluminium Company Limited

b) Mumbai Metro Rail Corporation Limited

Geographical Capital Expenditure
Domestic Market
Overseas Market

Fair value measurements
Set out below, is a comparison by class of the carrying amounts and fair value of the Company’s financial instruments, other than those with carrying amounts
that are reasonable approximations of fair values:

Financial instruments by category

As at

March 31,2025 March 31, 2024

Financial assets at amortized cost

Carrying Value

As at

(Amount in Lakhs)

As at

As at

March 31,2025 March 31, 2024

5,120.70 6,174.21
33.06 37.20
5,153.76 6,211.41
744.71 816.38
744.71 816.38
1,045.58 1,409.06
613.87 907.85
1,659.45 2,316.91
8.77 52.55
8.77 52.55

(Amount in Lakhs)

Fair Value

As at

As at

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

Investments (non-current) 0.01 0.01 0.01 0.01
Loans and advances (non current) - - - -
Other financial assets (non-current) 208.82 407.86 208.82 407.86
Trade receivables (current) 3,215.53 2,704.57 3,215.53 2,704.57
Cash and cash equivalents 0.81 1.34 0.81 1.34
Other bank balances 426.05 145.68 426.05 145.68
Other financial assets (current) 25.51 148.73 25.51 148.73
3,876.73 3,408.19 3,876.73 3,408.19
Financial Liabilities at amortized cost
Borrowings (non-current) 221.04 650.97 221.04 650.97
Borrowings (current) 1,770.96 2,056.03 1,770.96 2,056.03
Trade payables (current) 826.79 1,303.82 826.79 1,303.82
Other financial liabilities (current) 115.30 155.59 115.30 155.59
2,934.09 4,166.41 2,934.09 4,166.41

(*excluding investments in associates)

The fair value of the financial assets and liabilities is included at the amount at which the instrument could be exchanged in a current transaction between willing parties,
other thanin aforced or liquidation sale. The following methods and assumptions were used to estimate the fair values:

The fair value of unquoted instruments, loans from banks and other financial liabilities, as well as other non-current financial liabilities is estimated by
discounting future cash flows using rates currently available for debt on similar terms, credit risk and remaining maturities. In addition to being sensitive to a
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reasonably possible change in the forecast cash flows or the discount rate, the fair value of the equity instruments is also sensitive to a reasonably possible
change in the growth rates. The valuation requires management to use unobservable inputs in the model, of which the significant unobservable inputs are
disclosed in the tables below. Management regularly assesses a range of reasonably possible alternatives for those significant unobservable inputs and
determines theirimpact on the total fair value.

2)  Thefairvalues of the Company’s interest-bearing borrowings and loans are determined by using Discounted cash flow method using discount rate that reflects
the issuer’s borrowing rate as at the end of the reporting period. The own non-performance risk as at 31 March 2025 was assessed to be insignificant.

3)  Long-term receivables/ payables are evaluated by the Company based on parameters such as interest rates, risk factors, individual creditworthiness of the
counterparty and the risk characteristics of the financed project. Based on this evaluation, allowances are taken into account for the expected credit losses of
these receivables.

4)  The significant unobservable inputs used in the fair value measurement categorized within Level 1 and Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy together with a
quantitative sensitivity analysis as atend of each year, are as shown below:

Fairvalue hierarchy

The Company uses the following hierarchy for determining and disclosing the fair value of financial instruments by valuation technique:

Level1: quoted (unadjusted) prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities
Level 2: other techniques for which all inputs that have a significant effect on the recorded fair value are observable, either directly or indirectly
Level 3: techniques that use inputs that have a significant effect on the recorded fair value that are not based on observable market data

Quantitative disclosures of fair value measurement hierarchy for assets as on March 31, 2025

(Amount in Lakhs)

Assets carried at amortized cost for which . Fair Value
fair value are disclosed Carrying Value Level 2 Level 3
Investments (non-current) 0.01 0.01
Loans and advances (non current) - -
Other financial assets (non-current) 208.82 208.82
Trade receivables (current) 3,215.53 3,215.53
Cash and cash equivalents 0.81 0.81
Other bank balances 426.05 426.05
Other financial assets (current) 25.51 25.51
_ 387673 3,876.73
Liabilities carried at amortized cost for which fair value are disclosed
Borrowings (non-current) 221.04 221.04
Borrowings (current) 1,770.96 1,770.96
Trade payables (current) 826.79 826.79
Other financial liabilities (current) 115.30 115.30
2,934.09 2,934.09

Quantitative disclosures of fair value measurement hierarchy for assets as on March 31,2024

(Amount in Lakhs)

Assets carried at amortized cost for which . Fair Value
fair value are disclosed Carrying Value Level 2 Level 3
Investments (non-current) 0.01 0.01
Loans and advances (non current) - -
Other financial assets (non-current) 407.86 407.86
Trade receivables (current) 2,704.57 2,704.57
Cash and cash equivalents 1.34 1.34
other bank balances 145.68 145.68
Other financial assets (current) 148.73 148.73
3,408.19 3,408.19
Liabilities carried at amortized cost for which fair value are disclosed
Borrowings (non-current) 650.97 650.97
Borrowings (current) 2,056.03 2,056.03
Trade payables (current) 1,303.82 1,303.82
Other financial liabilities (current) 155.59 155.59
4,166.40 4,166.41
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(a)

Note:
The management assessed that cash and cash equivalents, trade receivables, trade payables, bank overdrafts and other current liabilities approximate their
carrying amounts largely due to the short-term maturities of these instruments.

Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Company'’s principal financial liabilities, other than derivatives, comprise loans and borrowings, trade and other payables. The main purpose of these
financial liabilities is to finance the Company’s operations. The Company’s principal financial assets include loans, trade and other receivables, and cash and
cash equivalents that are derived directly from its operations.

The Company's financial risk management is an integral part of how to plan and execute its business strategies. The Company is exposed to market risk, credit
risk and liquidity risk.

The Company's senior management oversees the management of these risks. The senior professionals working to manage the financial risks and the
appropriate financial risk governance framework for the Company are accountable to the Board of Directors and Audit Committee. This process provides
assurance to Company's senior management that the Company's financial risk-taking activities are governed by appropriate policies and procedures and that
financial risk are identified, measured and managed in accordance with Company policies and Company risk objective.

The Board of Directors reviews and agrees policies for managing each of these risks which are summarized as below:

Market Risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market prices. Market prices comprises
three types of risk: currency rate risk, interest rate risk and other price risks, such as equity price risk and commodity price risk. Financial instruments affected by
market risks include loans and borrowings, deposits, investments, and foreign currency receivables and payables. The sensitivity analysis in the following
sections relate to the position as at March 31, 2025. The analysis exclude the impact of movements in market variables on: the carrying values of gratuity and
other post-retirement obligations; provisions; and the non-financial assets and liabilities. The sensitivity of the relevant Profit and Loss item is the effect of the
assumed changes in the respective market risks. This is based on the financial assets and financial liabilities held as of March 31, 2025.

(i) Foreign currency risk
Foreign currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in foreign exchange rates.
The Company’s exposure to the risk of changes in foreign exchange rates relates primarily to the Company’s operating activities (when revenue or expense
is denominated in foreign currency). Foreign currency exchange rate exposure is partly balanced by purchasing of goods from the respective countries.
The Company evaluates exchange rate exposure arising from foreign currency transactions and follows established risk management policies.

Foreign currency risk sensitivity
The following tables demonstrate the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in USD, AED & Euro exchange rates, with all other variables held

(Fig. In Lakhs)

Currency Currency March 31, 2025 Gain/ (loss) Impact on profit/
Symbol Foreign Indian (loss) before tax and equity
Currency Rupees 1% increase 1% decrease
Change in United States Dollar Rate $ 0.19 16.24765 0.16 (0.16)
Export trade receivables - - -
Other receivables - - - -
Capital Advances - - - -
Advances against material and services 0.05 4.71 0.05 (0.05)
Trade payables 3.84 328.98 3.29 (3.29)
(Fig. In Lakhs)
Currency Currency March 31, 2024 Gain/ (loss) Impact on profit/
Symbol Foreign Indian (loss) before tax and equity
Currency Rupees 1% increase 1% decrease
Change in United States Dollar Rate $ - - - -

Export trade receivables - - - -
Other receivables - - - .
Capital Advances - - - .
Advances against material and services - -
Trade payables 473 393.99 3.94 (3.94)

(ii) Commodity Price Risk

The Company is exposed to the risk of price fluctuation of raw material as well as finished goods. The Company manages its commodity price risk by
maintaining adequate inventory of raw materials and finished goods considering future price movement. To counter raw material risk, the Company works
with various suppliers working in domestic and international market with the objective to moderate raw material cost, enhance application flexibility and
increased product functionality and also invests in product development and innovation. To counter finished goods risk, the Company deals with wide range
of vendors and manages these risks through inventory management and proactive vendor development practices. The Company also passes on the
Commodity price hike in case of several customers when Company have fixed price contracts. Fixed price contracts are enetered into after due
consideration of the Commodity price volatility during the delivery / contract period.
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(b)

Credit Risk

Credit Risk is the risk that the counter party will not meet its obligation under a financial instrument or customer contract, leading to a financial loss. The
Company is exposed to credit risk from its operating activities (primarily trade receivables) and from its financing activities, including deposits with banks,
foreign exchange transactions and other financial instruments.

U]

(ii)

Trade Receivables

Customer credit risk is managed by each business unit subject to the Company's established policy, procedures and control relating to customer credit risk
management. Credit quality of a customer is assessed based on an extensive credit rating scorecard and individual credit limits are defined in accordance
with this assessment. Outstanding customer receivables are regularly monitored. Out of that, the Company has 10 customers that owed the Company
approx. Rs.2918.41 lakhs (March 31, 2024: Rs. 2687 .41 lakhs) and accounted for 90% (March 31,2024:68.40%) of total trade receivables.

An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date on trade receivables by lifetime expected credit loss method based on provision matrix. The
maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is the carrying value of each class of financial assets. The Company does not hold collateral as
security. The Company evaluates the concentration of risk with respect to trade receivables as low, as its customers are located in several jurisdictions and
industries and operate in largely independent markets.

Financial instruments and cash deposits

Credit risk from balances with banks and financial institutions is managed by the Company’s treasury departmentin accordance with the Company'’s policy.
Investments of surplus funds are made in bank deposits and other risk free securities. The limits are set to minimise the concentration of risks and therefore
mitigate financial loss through counterparty’s potential failure to make payments.

The Company’s maximum exposure to credit risk for the components of the balance sheet at 31 March 2025 is the carrying amounts. The Company’s
maximum exposure relating to financial instrumentis noted in liquidity table below.

Trade Receivables and other financial assets are written off when there is no reasonable expectation of recovery, such as debtor failing to engage in the
repayment plan with the Company.
(Amount in Lakhs)

As at As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

Financial assets for which allowance is measured using 12 months Expected Credit Loss Method (ECL)
Loans and advances (non current) - -
Other financial assets (non-current) 208.82 407.86

Cashand cash equivalents 0.81 1.34
Other bank balances 426.05 145.68
Otherfinancial assets (current) 25.51 148.73

661.19 703.61

Financial assets for which allowance is measured using Life time Expected Credit Loss Method (ECL)

Trade receivables (current) - -

Balances with banks is subject to low credit risks due to good credit ratings assigned to these banks

() Theageing analysis of trade receivables has been considered from the date the invoice falls due

(Amount in Lakhs)

As at As at
March 31,2025 March 31, 2024

Particulars

0to 365 days due past due date 2,554.17 2130.58
More than 365 days past due date 661.37 573.99
Total Trade Receivables 3,215.53 2,704.57

The following table summarises the change in loss allowance measured using the life time expected credit loss model:

Particulars

As atthe beginning of year - -
Provision during the year - -
Reversal of earlier provision credited to other Income (Excess Provision written back) - -
As atthe end of year - -

(c)

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is defined as the risk that the Company will not be able to settle or meet its obligations on time or atreasonable price. The Company's objective is to
at all times maintain optimum levels of liquidity to meet its cash and liquidity requirements. The Company closely monitors its liquidity position and deploys a
robust cash management system. It maintains adequate source of financing through the use of short term bank deposits and cash credit facility. Processes and
policies related to such risks are overseen by senior management. Management monitors the Company's liquidity position through rolling forecasts on the basis
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of expected cash flows. The Company assessed the concentration of risk with respect to its debt and concluded it to below:

Maturity profile of financial liabilities

CRANEX

The table below provides the details regarding the remaining contractual maturities of financial liabilities at the reporting date based on contractual

undiscounted payments.

(Amount in Lakhs)
As atMarch 31,2025 Less than 1 year More than 1 year Total
Borrowings (non-current) - 221.04 221.04
Borrowings (current) 1,770.96 - 1,770.96
Trade payables (current) 826.79 - 826.79
Other financial liabilities (current) 115.30 - 115.30

(Amount in Lakhs)

As atMarch 31,2024 Less than 1 year More than 1 year Total

Borrowings (non-current) - 650.97 650.97
Borrowings (current) 2,056.03 - 2,056.03
Trade payables (current) 1,303.82 - 1,303.82
Other financial liabilities (current) 155.59 - 155.59

(d) InterestRate Risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instruments will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. The
Company’s exposure to the risk of changes in market interest rates relates primarily to the Company’s short-term borrowings obligations in the form of cash

credit carrying floating interest rates.

(Amount in Lakhs)

As at As at
March 31,2025 March 31, 2024
Fixed rate borrowing 36.49 44.72
Variable rate borrowing 79.93 57.20
116.42 101.92

Sensitivity analysis: For floating rates liabilities, the analysis is prepared assuming the amount of the liability outstanding at the end of the reporting period was

outstanding for the whole year.
Sensitivity on variable rate borrowings

Impact on statement of profit and loss
Interestrate increase by 0.25%
Interest rate decrease by 0.25%

11 The Following Table summarises movemntin indebtedness as on the reporting date :

Change in Liabilities arising from financing activites

243
(2.43)

212
(2.12)

(Amount in Lakhs)

Net Cashflow As on Net Cashflow Foreign Transfer Change in fair As on
April 1, 2024 Exchange values March 31, 2025
Management
LONG TERM BORROWINGS
Secured
Term loan from Bank 19.23 19.23 -
Finance Lease Obligations
From Banks 41.55 6.95 - 34.60
From Others - - -
Unsecured
Term loans from others parties 616.63 1.00 615.63
SHORT TERM BORROWINGS
Secured
Cash credit facility from bank 809.11 24.40 784.71
Buyer's credit facility from bank - - -
Unsecured
Loan from Related Parties 972.80 722.50 250.30
Loan from others 247.69 (59.08) 306.77
2,707.01 715.00 1,992.01
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Capital Management

For the purposes of Company's capital management, Capital includes equity attributable to the equity holders of the Company and all other equity reserves.
The primary objective of the Company's capital management is to ensure that it maintains an efficient capital structure and maximize shareholder value. The
Company manages its capital structure and makes adjustments in light of changes in economic conditions and the requirements of the financial covenants. To
maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Company may adjust the dividend payment to shareholders or issue new shares. The Company is not subject to any
externally imposed capital requirements. No changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes for managing capital during the year ended March 31,
2024 and March 31,2025.

The capital structure of the Company is based on the management's judgement of its strategic and day-to-day needs with a focus on total equity so as to
maintain investors, creditors and market confidence. The calculation of the capital for the purpose of capital managementis as below:

(Amount in Lakhs)

Particulars As at As at
March 31,2025 March 31, 2024
Borrowings 221.04 650.97
Cashand cash equivalents 0.81 1.34
Net Debt 221.85 652.31
Equity share capital 657.00 600.00
Other equity 1762.22 480.36
Total Capital 2,419.22 1,080.36
Capital and Net Debt 2,641.07 1,732.67
Gearing Ratio (Net Debt/Capital and Debt) 8.40% 37.65%

(Amount in Lakhs)

13 Earnings per share As at As at
March 31,2025 March 31, 2024
a) BasicEarnings per share
Numerator for earnings per share
Profit/ (loss) after taxation (Rs.) 194.64 149.84
Denominator for earnings per share
Weighted number of equity shares outstanding during the year (Nos.) 6,065,589.00 6,000,000
Earnings per share-Basic (one equity share of Rs.10/- each) (Rs.) 3.21 249
b) Diluted Earnings per share
Numerator for earnings per share
Profit/ (loss) after taxation (Rs.) 194.64 149.84
Denominator for earnings per share
Weighted number of equity shares outstanding during the year (Nos.) 8,275,589.04 6,000,000
Earnings per share-Basic (one equity share of Rs.10/- each) (Rs.) 2.35 249
Note: There are no instruments issued by the Company which have effect of dilution of basic earning per share.
14 Disclosures pursuant to Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and Section
186 of the Companies Act, 2013:
(i) Particulars of Investments made: (Amount in Lakhs)
Sr. Name of the Investee Opening Investment | Impact of fair | Investment Outstanding
No Balance Made value Sold Balance
1 | Shree Cranex(JV) 31.71 31.71
2 | IFE Cranex Elevators & Excalators India Pvt. Ltd 182.00 182.00
15 Pending of Registration or satisfaction of charge : NIL
16 Additional regulatory information required by Schedule lll of Companies Act,2013

(i) Details of Benami Properties: No proceedings have been initiated or are pending against the company for holding any Benami property under the Benami

Trasactions (prohibition) Act,1988 (45 of 1988) and the rules made thereunder.

(i) Utilization of borrowed funds and share premium:

The Company has not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entitites (intermediaries) with the
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understanding that the shall:

(a) Directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (Ultimate
Beneficiaries) or;

(b) Provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the ultimate beneficiaries.

The Company has not received any fund from any person(s) or entity(ies) , including foreign entities (funding party) with the understanding (whether
recorded in writing or otherwise ) that the company shall:

(a) Directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the funding Party (Ultimate
Beneficiaries) or

(b) Provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the ultimate beneficiaries.
(iiiy Compliance with number of layers of Companies: The Company has complied with the number of layers as prescribed under the Companies Act,2013.

(iv) Undisclosed Income: There is no income undisclosed or surrendered as income during the current or previous year in the tax assessments under the
Income TaxAct,1961, that has not recorded in the books of accounts.

(v) Crypto Currency or Virtual Currency: The company has not traded or invested in crypto currency or virtual currency during the current or previous year.

(vi) Valuations of PPE, Intangible assets :The company has not revalued its property, plant and equipment or intangible assets or both during the current or
previous year.

(vii) The Company has not granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans repayable on demand.

17 Amounts in the financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees in lacs rounded off to two decimal places as permitted by Schedule IIl to the Companies Act,
2013. Per share data are presented in Indian Rupees to two decimals places.

18 NoteNo. 11031 formintegral part of the balance sheet and statement of profitand loss.

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
As per our report of even date

For V.R. Bansal & Associates For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
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